
Council may add and take action on other items not listed on this agenda 

BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
November 26, 2019 

Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 
City Council Meeting 

Opening 7:00 P.M. 
 

 Call to Order         Next Ordinance #24-19 
 Pledge of Allegiance        Next Resolution #19-09 
 Roll Call of Council Members       Next Agenda Bill #AB19-115 
   
 

A. Citizen Participation 
 

1. Jeff Fetter – Buckley Log Show Trademark Pg. 6
   
2. Marvin Sundstrom – RCW 29A.60.280(3)(b) Pg. 7
 

Time Limit of Three Minutes (Citizens wishing to speak are encouraged to sign up at City Hall by Wednesday 
prior to the Council Meeting) 

   
 

B. Staff Reports 
 

 
C. Main Agenda 

 
1. Public Hearing: Comprehensive Plan Amendment Pg. 11
2. ORD No. ____-19: Adopting Final 2020 Budget Pg. 139
3. ORD No. ____-19: Adopting the 2020 City Employee Salary Scale Pg. 271
4. ORD No. ___-19: Setting Voter Approved Fire Station Levy for 2020 Pg. 277
5. ORD No. ___-19: Authorizing the Transfer of Natural Gas Utility Surplus Funds Pg. 280
6. ORD No. ___-19: Cnossen Rezone Pg. 283
7. Cancellation of December 24, 2019, Council Meeting Pg. 303
8. Executive Session – Potential Litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) regarding: 

a. DSHS/City Lease 
b. Councilmember 42.23 Conflict of Interest and City Contracts 

 
D. Consent Agenda 

 
9. A. Claims  
 B. Transfer Voucher 

 
 

E. Committee Reports  
 

10. Mayor’s Report       Johnson 
11. Administration, Finance & Public Safety    Tremblay 
12. Transportation & Utilities      B. Burkett 
13. Community Services      S. Burkett 
14. Council Member Comments & Good of the Order 



The above meetings will be held in the Multi-Purpose Center located at 811 Main Street unless otherwise noted.  
      Last Revised November 21, 2019 

       CITY OF BUCKLEY  PO BOX 1960  BUCKLEY, WA 98321 
360-829-1921  Fax 360-829-2659  http://www.cityofbuckley.com 

 
CITY OF BUCKLEY MEETING LIST 

 
November 2019 

 
 
Nov. 26 9:30 AM Admin/Finance/Public Safety (City Hall) 
 
Nov. 26 7:00 PM City Council  
 
 

December 2019 
 

Dec. 2 7:00 PM Planning Commission 
 
Dec. 3 7:00 PM City Council Study Session 
 
Dec. 9 10:30 AM Buckley Hall Board (City Hall) 
 
Dec. 10 9:30 AM Admin/Finance/Public Safety (City Hall) 
 
Dec. 10 7:00 PM City Council 
 
Dec. 16 7:00 PM Planning Commission CANCELLED 
 
Dec. 17 7:00 PM  Transportation & Utilities (City Shop) CANCELLED 
 
Dec. 19 1:00 PM Community Services (City Hall) 
 
Dec. 24 9:30 AM Admin/Finance/Public Safety (City Hall) -CANCELLED 
 
Dec. 24 7:00 PM City Council  - CANCELLED 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
2



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
     1  2 

3  4 
 
 
7 Planning Commis‐
sion 

5 
 
 
6:30 City Council 
Budget Workshop 

6  7  8  9 

10  11 
 
 
 
City Offices Closed 

12 
 
9:30 A/F/PS 
 
7 City Council 

13  14  15  16 

17  18 
 
 
7 Planning Commis‐
sion 

19 
 
 
7 Transp. & U li es 

20  21 
 
 
1 Community Services 

22  23 

24  25  26 
 
9:30 A/F/PS 
 
7 City Council 

27  28 
 
 
 
City Offices Closed 

29  30 

November 2019      

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
3



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
1  2 

 
 
7 Planning Commis‐
sion 

3 
 
 
7 City Council Study 
Session 

4  5  6  7 

8  9 
 
10:30 Buckley Hall 
Board 

10 
 
9:30 A/F/PS 
 
7 City Council 

11  12  13  14 

15  16 
 
 
7 Planning Commis‐
sion 

17 
 
 
7 Transporta on & 
U li es 

18  19 
 
1 Community Services 

20  21 

22  23  24 
9:30 A/F/PS 
City Hall Closing at 
Noon 
7 City Council 

25 
City Hall Closed! 

26  27  28 

29  30  31 
 
City Hall Closing at 
Noon 

    

     December 2019               

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
5



 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
6



 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
7



 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
8



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B. STAFF REPORTS 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
9



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. MAIN AGENDA 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
10



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: November 26, 2019       AB19-115 
 
Public Hearing: Comprehensive 
Plan Amendments 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:  N/A Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren  X 
Timeline:  N/A Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Memo and Comp Plan Elements 7 and 8 with Changes       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: See attached Memo. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Transportation & Utilities 11/19/19 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   N/A 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

11/26/2019 Public Hearing Only 
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
11



 

City of Buckley  
P.O. Box 1960, Buckley WA  98321 
Phone: 360-829-1921 ext 200 
Fax: 360-829-2659                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Memo 
 

To:       Mayor & City Council 
 
From:   City Administrator 
 
Date:    November 18, 2019 

RE:       Explanation of Additional Changes to Elements 7 & 8  

 
On May 6, 2019 the City Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on draft 

Comprehensive Plan Elements 7 and 8 and upon conclusion forwarded a recommendation to 
the City Council to adopt the two drafts.  

 
However, after receiving the Planning Commission’s recommendation and after 

receiving multiple inquiries into development of areas in the 112th St E and Hinkleman RD 
areas, City staff identified that the draft plans did not consider and/or plan for higher density 
residential development in these areas although the adopted zoning code permitted this type 
of use. The focus for the City had been that this area would develop both with commercial 
retail and light industrial type uses. 

 
Upon identification of the need, the City engineer completed modeling of the two 

areas at potential higher densities and identified that sewer facilities in the area were 
inadequate to serve these types of densities. As a result additional capital sewer 
improvements were developed in these areas in order to serve higher residential 
development. 

 
As a result of the changes to the draft Elements recommended by the PC, the City is 

required to conduct a subsequent public hearing to solicit comments on the additional 
changes. 
 

 
City Administrator 
 

 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
12



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 1 of 44 

7 UTILITIES 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. PURPOSE OF THE UTILITIES ELEMENT ................................. 2 
URBAN GROWTH AREA ....................................................................... 3 
FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS .......................................... 3 

Revised Codes of Washington and Washington Utilities and Transportation 
Commission ........................................................................... 4 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ......................................... 4 
Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 .................................................... 4 
Northwest Power Planning Council ............................................... 4 
1991 Clean Air Amendments ...................................................... 5 

II. INVENTORY AND ANALYSIS ....................................................... 5 
INVENTORY ...................................................................................... 5 

City-Owned Utilities ................................................................. 5 
Privately- or County-Owned Utilities ............................................ 5 

III. WATER SYSTEM .............................................................................. 5 
SOURCE AND SUPPLY .......................................................................... 6 

Level of Service ...................................................................... 6 
Inventory of System ................................................................. 6 
Forecast of Future Needs............................................................ 8 

TREATMENT ..................................................................................... 9 
Level of Service ...................................................................... 9 
Inventory System ..................................................................... 9 
Forecast of Future Needs.......................................................... 10 

STORAGE ....................................................................................... 10 
Level of Service .................................................................... 10 
Inventory of System ............................................................... 11 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs ......................................... 11 

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM ............................................. 11 
Level of Service .................................................................... 11 
Inventory of System ............................................................... 11 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs ......................................... 12 

IV. SEWAGE COLLECTION AND TREATMENT .......................... 14 
COLLECTION SYSTEM ........................................................................ 14 

Level of Service .................................................................... 14 
Inventory of System ............................................................... 15 
Proposed Location and Future Needs ........................................... 16 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
13



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 2 of 44 

AREA LIFT STATIONS ........................................................................ 17 
COMPLETION OF SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REHABILITATION ...................... 18 
TREATMENT SYSTEM ........................................................................ 18 

Level of Service .................................................................... 18 
Inventory of System ............................................................... 19 
Treatment System Improvements ............................................... 20 

V. STORMWATER COLLECTION AND TREATMENT .............. 20 
TREATMENT ................................................................................... 21 

Level of Service .................................................................... 21 
COLLECTION .................................................................................. 21 

Level of Service .................................................................... 22 
System Inventory ................................................................... 22 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs ......................................... 23 

VI. OTHER UTILITIES ......................................................................... 27 
NATURAL GAS UTILITY ..................................................................... 27 
ELECTRICAL UTILITIES ...................................................................... 29 
TELECOMMUNICATION UTILITIES ......................................................... 30 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION ................................................................ 31 

VII. GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND POLICIES AND CONSISTENCY WITH 
COUNTY-WIDE POLICIES .......................................................... 31 
PLAN FOR FUTURE UTILITIES .............................................................. 31 

Vision Statement and Comprehensive Plan Goals ........................... 31 
Utility Goals ........................................................................ 31 
General Utility Policies ........................................................... 32 
Water Utility Policies ............................................................. 35 
Sewer System Policies ............................................................ 36 
Storm and Surface Water Drainage Utility Policies ......................... 36 
Hazardous Waste Policies ........................................................ 37 
Solid Waste Policies ............................................................... 37 
Relationship to Growth Management Plans and Requirements ........... 38 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

I. PURPOSE OF THE UTILITIES ELEMENT 
 
This utilities element has been developed in accordance with Section 36.70A.070 of the 
Growth Management Act (GMA) to address utility services in the City of Buckley and the 
surrounding Planning Area.  The GMA requires all Comprehensive Plans to include a 
utilities element consisting of the general locations, proposed locations, and capacities of all 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
14



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 3 of 44 

existing and proposed utilities.  The utilities element represents the community’s policy plan 
for growth over the next 20 years (the year 2035 has been used for the Buckley 
Comprehensive Plan).  The utilities element describes how the goals in the other plan 
elements will be implemented through utility policies and regulations, and is an important 
element in implementing the comprehensive plan.   
 
The GMA also contains requirements pertaining to the important concept of concurrency.  
Concurrency means that jurisdictions must be able to demonstrate that all public facilities, 
including roads, can be made available for all new development at the time such 
development is constructed.  This is a sometimes overlooked, but very critical part of the 
GMA.  Plans for making those utilities available when the development is built must include 
a financing plan.  Thus, while the capital facilities, land use, and transportation elements of 
this Comprehensive Plan describe other issues relevant to meeting the concurrency 
requirements of the GMA, this utilities element represents an important part of the plans 
needed to meet the concurrency of GMA. 
 
The utilities element also has been developed in accordance with county wide planning 
policies, and has been integrated with all other planning elements to ensure consistency 
throughout the comprehensive plan.  The utilities element considers the general location, 
proposed location, and capacity of existing and proposed utilities, including water, sewer, 
surface water drainage, natural gas, electricity, and communications. 

 
The utilities element includes: 
 
• Introduction 
• Inventory and Analysis 
• Future Needs and Alternatives 
• Goals, Objectives, and Policies 

 
 

URBAN GROWTH AREA 
 
The Urban Growth Area (UGA) boundary was selected in order to ensure that urban 
services, including utilities, can be made available to all development.  This includes the 
provision of future utility facilities.  The City will incorporate plans into its comprehensive 
planning efforts in order to identify ways of improving the quality and delivery of services 
provided in the City and its designated urban growth area boundary.   
 
All development requiring urban growth services will be located in the Urban Growth Area, 
and will have these services extended to them in a timely and financially feasible manner.  
The utility plan in this element will guide decision making to achieve the community goals 
as articulated in the vision statement.   

 
FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
15



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 4 of 44 

Revised Codes of Washington and Washington Utilities and Transportation 
Commission 

 
Utilities and transportation are regulated in Washington by the Washington Utilities and 
Transportation Commission (WUTC).  The WUTC, composed of three members appointed 
by the governor, is empowered to regulate utilities (including, but not limited to, electrical, 
gas, irrigation, telecommunications, and water companies).  State law (WAC 480-120) 
regulates the rates and charges, services, facilities, and practices of utilities. 
 
The WUTC requires gas providers to demonstrate that existing ratepayers will not subsidize 
new customers.  Thus, historically gas main extensions have not been planned in advance 
but have been initiated only when there is sufficient customer demand. 

 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

 
The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) is an independent five-member 
commission within the U.S. Department of Energy.  FERC establishes rates and charges for 
the interstate transportation and sale of natural gas, for the transmission and sale of 
electricity, and the licensing of hydroelectric power projects.  In addition, the Commission 
establishes rates or charges for the interstate transportation of oil by pipeline. 

 
Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 

 
The central theme of the National Gas Policy Act (NGPA) is encouragement of competition 
among fuels and supplies across the country.  As a result, natural gas essentially has been 
decontrolled.  The NGPA also contained incentives for developing new natural gas resources 
and a tiered pricing structure aimed at encouraging the development of nation-wide 
transmission pipelines.   
 

Northwest Power Planning Council 
 
The Northwest Power Planning Council (NWPPC) focuses on the generation of electricity; 
however, its policies have implications for gas, too.  The NWPPC has directed the region to 
develop cogeneration as an energy resource and hydro firming as a power back-up system. 
 
Cogeneration is the use of heat, as a byproduct of power generation, for industrial processes 
or for space and water heating.  Natural gas is often used as a fuel source for cogeneration. 
 
Hydro firming is the back up of the region’s intermittent excess spring hydro generation with 
gas-fired combustion turbines to provide back-up if hydroelectric power generation is below 
normal levels. 
 
These two policies could have a major impact on natural gas consumption in the northwest.  
However, natural gas for heating purposes is up to 50 percent more efficient than generating 
electricity with gas, for the same heating function.  The most efficient use of natural gas, 
interior heating and water heating, can contribute to a balanced regional energy policy.   

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
16



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 5 of 44 

 
1991 Clean Air Amendments 

 
The passage of the Washington State Clean Air Act in 1991 indicates the state’s intent to 
promote the diversification of fuel sources for motor vehicles.  This is in response to a need 
to both reduce atmospheric emissions and reduce the nation’s reliance on gasoline for 
strategic reasons.  It also studies the potential and encourages the development of natural gas 
vehicle refueling stations. 
 

II. INVENTORY AND ANALYSIS 
 
INVENTORY 
 
The inventory presented in this element provides information useful to planning.  The 
inventory summarizes general information pertaining to the existing utility service system in 
the City.  Many public and private agencies are involved in regulating, coordinating, 
producing, delivering, and supplying utility services.  This section of the element identifies 
those providers as well as the legislation regulating the utility.  The inventory includes: 
 

City-Owned Utilities 
 

• Water 
• Sewer 
• Surface water drainage 

 
Privately- or County-Owned Utilities 

 
• Natural Gas 
• Electrical 
• Telecommunications 
• Solid waste 

 
Water service to some areas within the urban growth boundary is provided by other 
purveyors.  These are discussed within the Water System section. 
 
Buckley owns and operates its sewage collection and treatment system, water supply system, 
and surface water drainage system.  Natural gas, electricity, telecommunications, and solid 
waste collection systems are owned and operated by private companies.  Solid waste disposal 
is managed by Pierce County, which operates the county landfill. 
 
 

III. WATER SYSTEM 
 
The City of Buckley currently maintains approximately 1,700 water service connections, 
which consist of both commercial and residential hookups.  The City charges for water 
service on a monthly basis. Monthly water rates consist of a monthly base charge plus a 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
17



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 6 of 44 

consumption rate. The monthly base charge varies by meter size and covers usage up to 200 
cubic (1,496 gallons) per month. The consumption rate applies to consumption in excess of 
200 cubic feet per month, and increases with increasing consumption. This rate structure is 
an increasing block rate structure, where successive block of consumption are charged at 
increasing rates. 
 
The 2017 water usage records indicate that a total volume of just under 200 million gallons 
was consumed by the City’s service population.  This total included both residential and 
commercial usage, the residential usage accounts for 55 percent of the total.  The estimated 
average per capita demand for the six-year period, 2012 through 2017, is 60 gallons per 
capita per day (gpcd).  This average consumption figure established does not include 
adjustments for commercial and/or public facility usage.  This exclusion inflates the average 
per capita consumption figures. 
 
SOURCE AND SUPPLY 
 

Level of Service 
 
The water system quality shall be in compliance with Washington Administrative Code (246-
290) requirements for water quality.   
 
The source capacity shall equal or exceed the design maximum demand rate plus that rate 
necessary to replace fire suppression storage within 72 hours. 
 
Fire flow service shall be provided to insurance services office (ISO) standards for Class 6 
fire protection facilities. 

 
Inventory of System 

 
The water utility currently receives approximately 64 percent of its supply from South Prairie 
Creek, which is located to the south and east of existing city limits.  Water is delivered from 
the Creek via a 29,200-foot transmission main to the Slow Sand Filter Water Treatment Plant 
(WTP) and 2.3 million gallon reservoir.  The City and Rainier School jointly own the water 
transmission main from South Prairie Creek.  The City owns the Slow Sand Filter WTP and 
reservoir, while Rainier School owns the land where the WTP and reservoir are located.  The 
City and Rainier School retain separate ownership of their respective water distribution 
systems.  An agreement was signed in May 1996 between the City and the Department of 
Social and Health Services delineating the entities retention of ownership of their respective 
water rights and those facilities specific to the operation of their systems.  The City of 
Buckley and Rainier School have water rights issued by the Washington Department of 
Ecology (WDOE) for a total instantaneous right of 5.02 cfs (2,252 gpm) for municipal 
consumption purposes and 3.0 cfs (1,347 gpm) for irrigation.  The total annual water right for 
the City and Rainier School is 1,746 acre-feet for consumption and 400 acre-feet for 
irrigation.  Source production capacity is based upon the limiting factor between water right 
limits and physical water production limits, such as pumping and treatment capacities.  The 
instantaneous production capacity for the City of Buckley and Rainier School is 1,870 gpm.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
18



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 7 of 44 

On an instantaneous basis, the City’s existing water system production capacity will be 
exceeded by maximum day demands by the year 2025.  The transmission main from South 
Prairie Creek to the WTP has a capacity of between 900 and 1,000 gpm.  The WTP operated 
at a filter-loading rate of 0.085 gpm/sq ft has a treatment capacity of 725 gpm.  The Prairie 
Creek watershed is owned by the U.S. Forest Service, Longview Timberlands LLC, 
Muckleshoot Federal Corporation, Muckleshoot Indian Tribe, Manke Timber Co., Hancock 
Forest Management, Frank and Marina Wallace, and Edward Hudson. The City has obtained 
agreements from all of these parties restricting activities that might have adverse impacts on 
water quality, but does not prohibit use within the watershed.  The watershed area is 
relatively inaccessible except for a few unimproved roads, and the City restricts access along 
its service road to the headworks. 
 
In addition to South Prairie Creek, the City has several groundwater sources that are utilized 
to supplement South Prairie Creek or as backup sources.  The following groundwater sources 
provide approximately 36 percent of City’s water demands.  Inventories of these wells are 
provided below. 
 
Well No. 2 
 
Well No. 2 located adjacent to and east of the City limits on the east side of Levesque Road, 
north of Second Avenue.  This well has an 8-inch diameter casing and is finished to a depth 
of 170 feet below ground surface (bgs).  The capacity of this well is 130 gpm.  Water from 
this well can be pumped either to the slow sand filter system or directly to the reservoir via a 
6-inch water transmission main.  The water from this well is available to be chlorinated with 
gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well No. 3  
 
Well No. 3 also located just east of city limits was drilled with a 6-inch casing alongside 
Well No. 2 to investigate the production capacity of an upper aquifer encountered at a depth 
of 60 feet.  This well is currently used as an observation well.  There are no plans to use this 
well as a water supply source for the City. 
 
Well No. 4 
 
In order to take advantage of the apparent high production capacity of the upper aquifer 
encountered by Well No. 3, Well No. 4 was drilled approximately 100 feet away.  This well 
has a 16-inch diameter casing and is finished to a depth of 70 feet bgs.  The capacity of this 
well is 240 gpm.  Water from this well can be pumped either to the slow sand filter system or 
directly to the reservoir via a 6-inch AC water transmission main.  The water from this well 
is available to be chlorinated with gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well No. 1 (Naches Street Well) 
 
The Naches Street Well, located on the west side of Naches Street (just north of Wheeler 
Street), was placed into service in 1967.  This well has a 10-inch diameter casing and is 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
19



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 8 of 44 

finished to a depth of 130 feet bgs.  The capacity of this well is 260 gpm.  The water from 
this well is chlorinated with gas chlorine on site, and pumped directly into the water 
distribution system. 
 
Well No. 5 (Rainier School Well 
 
This well is finished to a depth of 180 bgs.  The capacity of this well is 215 gpm.  Water 
from this well can be pumped either to the slow sand filter system or directly to the reservoir 
via a 6-inch AC water transmission main.  The water from this well is not available to be 
chlorinated on site. 
 
Well No. 6 (Trail Well No. 1) 
 
This well was drilled in 2005 as a test well to determine how much water could be available 
at the site located south of town along SR 165, near the Foothills Trail.  The well was drilled 
to a depth of 197 feet, has a 6-inch casing to 135 feet and a 6-inch telescoping, 30-slot 
screen, installed from 135 feet to 155 feet.  The well was operates at a capacity of 90 gpm.  
Due to an elevated level of manganese, a filtration system, using pyrolusite material has been 
installed at the well.  The water from this well is chlorinated with gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well No. 7 (Trail Well No. 2) 
 
This well is located approximately 60 feet north of Well No. 6.  The well was drilled to a 
depth of 163 feet, has a 12-inch casing extending to 125, feet and a 12-inch telescoping 100-
slot screen extending from 125 to 140 feet.  The well was operates at a capacity of 205 gpm.  
Due to an elevated level of manganese, a filtration system, using pyrolusite material has been 
installed at the well.  The water from this well is chlorinated with gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well System Operations 
 
Water produced from Wells No. 2, 4, and the Rainier School Well can be directed through 
the slow sand filter or pumped directly into the reservoir.  These wells have their own 
chlorination system prior to entering the reservoir.  The Naches Street Well and the two Trail 
Wells also have their own chlorination systems and water from these wells is pumped 
directly into the distribution system.  Low water levels in the reservoir call the wells 
sequentially, as the reservoir level decreases.  As water level in the reservoir increases, the 
wells are deactivated in the reverse sequence.   
 
As a part of the above noted source of water, the City currently maintains an emergency 
intertie with the City of Tacoma.  The intertie includes a booster station and is located to 
along SR-410 near the Post Office.   
 
The locations of these sources are indicated in Figure W1. 
 

Forecast of Future Needs 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
20



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 9 of 44 

Based on the above noted supply rates and the anticipated population growth rate within the 
urban growth area boundaries, maximum day demands will exceed source capacity by 2025.  
Additional source capacity will be obtained through modifications to the slow sand filter and 
development of additional groundwater sources. 
 
The City should be cognizant of the fact that future water sources may yet be required and 
that the securing of additional rights would be beneficial and consistent to their extended 
growth plans. 
 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to source water 
improvements, which will be suggested to support the anticipated future development and 
maintain adequate water service to existing development within the urban growth area 
boundary.   
 

S-1.   Slow Sand Filter Re-Sand Pilot Study to test the effectiveness of increasing 
the loading rate. 

S-2.   Re-Sand Slow Sand Filter at the Water Treatment Plant. 
S-3.   Expand Slow Sand Filter Water Treatment Plant-construct additional filter 

bed area; expand filter building, additional inlet and under-drain piping, site 
piping and controls.  

S-4.   Hydro-Geologic Study for a New Well- complete a hydro-geologic study to 
obtain recommendations of locations that would be most likely to support 
productive wells.  

S-5.   Drill and Test New Well. 
 

TREATMENT 
 

Level of Service 
 
The treatment of potable water shall be provided to comply with the standards as set by the 
Federal Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and the Surface Water Treatment Rule (SWTR). 
 

Inventory System 
 
The water system includes a slow sand filter water treatment plant to provide surface water 
treatment.  The filtration plant has an available filter surface area of 8,500 square feet.  The 
plant is currently operated at a treatment capacity of 725 gpm.  The water is chlorinated with 
gas chlorine after filtration and before entering the on-site storage reservoir. Chlorine contact 
time is provided in the reservoir. 
 
Water produced from Wells 2, 4, and 5 can be directed through the slow sand filter, or they 
can be pumped directly into the reservoir. Gas chlorination is available at Wells 2 and 4, but 
is used only when the wells are discharged directly to the reservoir. When water is 
discharged from the wells directly to the reservoir, the chlorination rates at Wells 2 and 4 is 
adjusted to provide the target chlorine residual in the combined flow from Wells 2, 4 and 5. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
21



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 10 of 44 

When the wells are discharged to the slow sand filter, the water is chlorinated as it leaves the 
filter system. 
 
The Naches Street Well (Well 1) has its own gas chlorination system, and water from this 
well is pumped directly into the distribution system. No chlorine contact time is required for 
this well. 
 
Water from Trail Wells 1 and 2 is treated with pyrolusite filter media to remove dissolved 
iron and manganese. The Trail Wells Treatment Facility includes five, 3-foot diameter 
vessels and has a design flowrate of 300 gpm and a design filter loading rate of 8.5 gpm/sq. 
ft. The raw well water is chlorinated with glass chlorine and sodium permanganate upstream 
of the filters. The treated water enters the distribution system 
near the intersection of Ryan Road and SR 165. 
 

Forecast of Future Needs 
 
Future treatment needs include the following improvements at the WTP: 
 

• Increasing filter-loading rate and expand slow sand treatment plant to gain more 
filtration capacity.  Projects under the Source and Supply section will address the 
slow sand filtration capacity. 

 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to water treatment plant 
improvements, which will be required to support the anticipated future development and 
maintain adequate water service to existing development within the urban growth area 
boundary.   
 

TR-1.   Upgrade System Telemetry. This will allow the City to maintain more 
competitive service contracts for maintenance and repairs of its telemetry 
equipment. 

 
STORAGE 
 

Level of Service 
 
Storage capacities shall be per the Washington State Department of Health’s sizing 
guidelines and requirements as stated within the Ten State Standards.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
22



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 11 of 44 

Inventory of System 
 
The system includes two storage reservoirs.  Only one reservoir, located adjacent to the 
filtration plant is normally used.  This reservoir has a capacity of 2.3 million gallons. 

 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs 

 
Based on projected growth rates and required storage volumes, the City will exceed its 
storage capacity by the year 2029.  The City will require an additional 208,000 gallons of 
storage by the year 2029.  This assumes the City increases its source capacity to meet its 
maximum day demands (from the current 1,870 to a future 2,425 gpm in 2035).  Future 
storage needs include: 
 

• Additional storage will be required by 2029.  Approximate reservoir size is 
anticipated to be 1.0 million gallons to provide redundancy for the existing 2.3 
million gallon reservoir. 

 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to storage improvements, 
which will be required to support the anticipated future development and maintain adequate 
water service to existing development within the UGA boundary.   

 
ST-1.   Reservoir Siting Study.  Evaluate potential reservoir locations and 

configurations. 
ST-2.   Construct 1.0 MG Reservoir. 

 
TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 
 

Level of Service 
 
This supply of water to various areas within the UGA boundary shall be completed to 
comply with the Department of Health, Ten State Standards, and County Fire Marshall 
Standards.   
 

Inventory of System 
 
The existing City water system is shown in Figure W1.  The system includes both 
transmission and distribution components.  The transmission main conveying water from 
South Prairie Creek to the slow sand filtration plant is 29,200 feet in length.  The City’s 
distribution system consists of 32 miles of pipes ranging in size from 4 to 12 inches in 
diameter.  The various pipe materials include ductile iron pipe, polyvinyl chloride pipe, cast 
iron pipe, steel pipe, and HDPE pipe.  The age of the existing system varies but a sizable 
portion of the network was installed over 50 years ago. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
23



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 12 of 44 

Proposed Locations and Future Needs 
 
To determine the future impacts that increasing development may impose upon the City’s 
existing system a hydraulic model analysis was performed.  The City’s water system was 
analyzed using MWH Soft’s H2ONet hydraulic modeling software, which operates in an 
AutoCAD computer-aided design and drafting environment.  The H2ONet model was created 
using the City’s water system basemap.  Reservoir elevations and well capacities were 
determined from existing planning documents and City records.  The H2ONet model is 
configured with a graphical user interface.  Each water system element (sources, pipes, 
control valves, and reservoir) is assigned a unique graphical representation within the model.  
Each element is assigned a number of attributes specific to its function in the actual water 
system.  Typical element attributes include spatial coordinates, elevation, water demand, pipe 
lengths and diameters, and critical water levels for reservoirs.  With attributes of each system 
element as the model input, the software produces the model output in the form of flows and 
pressures throughout the simulated water system.  The following five system demand 
scenarios were used to hydraulically model the City of Buckley water system: 
 

• 2014 Average Daily Demands:  These demands were used while calibrating the 
model. 

• 2020 Peak Hour Demands:  These demands were used to verify the system is able 
to meet the DOH standards to supply domestic water at a minimum system wide 
pressure of 30 psi. 

• 2020 Maximum Day Demands:  These demands were used to evaluate the 
system’s ability to meet the maximum day demands plus required fire flows at 
DOH’s requirement of 20 psi. 

• 2035 Peak Hour Demands:  These demands were used to verify the system is able 
to meet the DOH standards to supply domestic water at a minimum system wide 
pressure of 30 psi. 

• 2035 Maximum Day Demands:  These demands were used to evaluate the 
system’s ability to meet the maximum day demands plus required fire flows at 
DOH’s requirement of 20 psi. 

 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to improvements, which 
will be required to support the anticipated future development and maintain adequate water 
service to existing development within the urban growth area boundary (see Figures W2 and 
W3).  The improvements, which have been noted represent additions to the existing main line 
conveyance systems and are presented to allow for the delivery of water, to the estimated 
development areas, for both potable and fire flow usage.  Additional improvements will 
undoubtedly be required within various communities as the location of growth and the type 
of developments would dictate.  The following projects are listed in order of priority under 
either, Transmission or Distribution. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
24



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 13 of 44 

Transmission 
 

T-1.  Segment 6, End of Trenchless to North Slope-replace 2,440 LF of Raw Water 
Transmission Main between Segment 5 and Segment 7 with new 12-inch HDPE 
Raw Water Transmission Main. 

T-2. Segment 8, Creek Crossing Restoration.  The City installed a cable bridge across 
South Prairie Creek in 2016 to carry a segment of the transmission main.  The 
old pipeline and concrete encasement requires removal and the disturbed banks 
along the creek require additional restoration. 

T-3.  Segment 13, Between Replacement Segments-replace 260 LF of Raw Water 
Transmission Main between Segment 14 and Segment 16 with new 12-inch 
HDPE Raw Water Transmission Main. 

T-4.   Segment 15, End of Cable Bridge to Replacement Segment-replace 1,135 LF of 
the Raw Water Transmission Main from the north end of the cable bridge to 
connect the south end of the Segment 14 with new 12-inch HDPE Raw Water 
Transmission Main. 

T-5. Annual Transmission Main Leak Detection-continue an annual leak detection 
program to determine if there are any additional sections of the pipeline in need 
repair. 

T-6. Segment 16, Existing Cable Bridge.  Replace 200 LF cable bridge across a creek 
gully. 

T-7. Segment 19, Along Cliff Face.  Replace 200 LF of transmission main, including 
a new cliff anchorage system. 

T-8. Segment 21, Creek Bed to Headworks.  Replace 1,000 LF of transmission main 
in the South Prairie Creek streambed near the headworks of the transmission 
main. 

 
Distribution 

 
D-1. Edith from Park to Dundass, Balm from 4th to Ewing, Ewing from Dundass to 

Balm, 3rd from Main to Masin.  Install 1,200 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-2. Heather between Whitmore and Elk Ridge Elementary School.  Install 70 LF 

of 8-inch water main. 
D-3.   Mason from A to D, B south of Mason, Rainier from Main to Mason.  Install 

1,900 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-4.   A from Park to Main.  Install 850 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-5.   Division from Ryan to Fire Station.  Install 360 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-6.   Jefferson from 3rd to Pearl, Pearl from Perkings to Ryan, Mill from Pearl to 

Jefferson.  Install 2,080 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-7.   Ryan from Spiketon Road to east side of LDS Church. -Install 2,360 LF of 

12-inch water main. 
D-8.   Fulton and 4th.  Install 450 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-9.  Sheets, south of Ryan.  Install 600 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-10.  Klink, south of Ryan.  Install 1,400 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-11. SR 410, west to Mundy-Loss.  Install 1,100 feet of 8-inch water main. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
25



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 14 of 44 

D-12  Hinkleman Extension from SR 410 to 112th.  Install 700 feet of 8-inch water 
main. 

D-13 Hinkleman Road from Hinkleman Extension to Mundy-Loss.  Install 2,200 
feet of 8-inch water main. 

D-14.  McNeely, north of Collins.  Install 2,200 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-15.  McNeely, south of Collins.  Install 750 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-16 River, north of Dieringer.  Install 450 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-17 Mason from Spruce to McNeely.  Install 2,000 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-18 Dieringer from Sorenson to McNeely.  Install 2,200 feet of 8-inch water main. 

 
IV. SEWAGE COLLECTION AND TREATMENT 

 
The City of Buckley owns, operates, and maintains a sanitary collection system within City 
limits.  The City system consists of a collection system, a secondary wastewater treatment 
plant, and an outfall to the White River.  The plant is located north of Park Avenue and 
currently serves an estimated 4,300 people.  Additionally, the City receives wastewater from 
a school district lift station west of the City, which serves two existing schools of the White 
River School District.  The plant operates under NPDES WA-002336-1, which became 
effective May 1, 2003 and expired in 2008.  However, Ecology administratively extended 
that permit and requires the City to monitor the influent and effluent and comply with the 
limitations specified in the expired permit.  Under this permit, treated effluent is discharged 
into an outfall located in a side channel of the mainstream of the White River.  The nearest 
other treatment facility is located at the Enumclaw WWTP located about 2 miles to the 
northeast of Buckley.   
 
This section of the report first addresses the conditions and needs of the sanitary collection 
system and then those for the wastewater treatment facility.   
 
COLLECTION SYSTEM 
 

Level of Service 
 
The Level of Service (LOS) for the sanitary sewer system was established from the Criteria 
for Sewage Works Design, Department of Ecology, 2008, and construction standards adopted 
by the City through its municipal codes.   
 
The Level of Service (LOS) requirements for the sanitary sewer collection system include the 
capability of handling peak flow and providing adequate pipeline velocity.  Gravity lines 
must be sized and sloped to provide a minimum velocity of 2 feet per second.  Minimum 
pipeline diameter for gravity service is 8 inches with a slope of 0.004 ft/ft.  In addition, 
gravity lines must be protected with a minimum of 3 feet of cover and provided with 
manholes spaced about 400 feet apart and located at all the intersections and changes of 
grade.  New construction is required to meet standards to limit infiltration and inflow into the 
system.  These standards include precast manhole sections with gasketed seals, concrete pipe 
with rubber joints, or heavy duty PVC pipe.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
26



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 15 of 44 

The City of Buckley system currently has only two pump stations on the west end of the 
system, which serve two schools.  However, it is anticipated that as the City expands to 
provide service within its GMA boundaries, additional pumping stations will connect to the 
system.  Design criteria for pumping stations are established in detail in the Criteria for 
Sewage Works Design.  Among the requirements are ones for duplicate pumps for each 
station, each capable of handling the station’s maximum design flow.  Each station shall be 
protected against the 100-year flood and provide sufficient head to maintain a minimum 
velocity of 2 feet per second within the force main.  Minimum pipe size for sewage force 
mains shall be 4 inches.  In addition, an alarm system shall be provided for all pumping 
stations as well as provisions for auxiliary power. 
 

Inventory of System 
 
The City’s existing sanitary sewer system consists of approximately 123,500 LF of gravity 
sewers, 10,600 LF of 6-inch and 4-inch force mains, and approximately 270 manholes.  The 
existing sanitary sewer system is shown in Figure S1.  The system is more or less divided 
into two parts by SR 410.  Flow on the southeast side of SR 410 is collected, transported 
under the highway at Wheeler Avenue and Park Avenue, and then conveyed by gravity to the 
wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) north of Park Avenue.  A small volume of flows is 
conveyed across SR 410 immediately west of the intersection of SR 410 and SR 165.  Flows 
northeast of the highway travel north to the main trunk line on Park Avenue.  A summary of 
this collection system is shown below in Table U1.   
 

TABLE U1 Collection System Inventory 
 

Pipe Diameter Length (lineal feet) 
Gravity System 

4-inch 24,000 
6-inch 2,100 
8-inch 60,300 
10-inch 12,000 
12-inch 9,100 
14-inch 2,000 
15-inch 2,100 
18-inch 6,200 
Subtotal 117,800 

Force Main 
4- and 6-inch  7,800 

 
The collection system in Buckley was originally built in the early 1900’s as a combined 
storm and sanitary sewer system.  Over the years, extensions and sewer separations have 
occurred resulting in a total pipeline length exceeding 125,000 feet.  The older gravity sewer 
mains consist of clay pipe with mortared bell-spigot type joints.  More recent construction is 
primarily 8 and 10-inch concrete and PVC pipe with rubber joints.  However, only about 1/3 
of the system was installed with this type of construction.  The depth of the sewer mains 
typically varies from 2 to 15 feet, with 6 to 7 feet as the average depth.  Manholes in the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
27



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 16 of 44 

older portion of the system are of brick and mortar construction, while the most recently 
installed manholes are precast concrete.  Due to the age of the system, the depths of the 
conveyance mains and type of construction, infiltration and inflow (I/I) problems have 
continued to develop.  I/I problems result during storms, when water infiltrates through pipe 
imperfections such as misaligned joints and cracks in the lines, greatly increasing flows to 
the plant.  The City has replaced most of the downtown core area gravity sewers, resulting in 
significant reductions in I/I. 
 

Proposed Location and Future Needs  
 
The evaluation of the City’s collection system conducted in 2017 identified several needs to 
serve existing and future customers.  These are briefly discussed below.  In addition, 
planning under GMA has identified other future needs.   
 
As has been previously noted, the majority of the City’s original sanitary sewer conveyance 
system consisted of 50 year old clay pipe which had deteriorated considerably and was in 
need of replacement due to the volumes of infiltration/inflow presently accessing the 
conveyance network.  Furthermore, by the Department of Ecology (DOE) standards several 
of the existing sewer mains are undersized and/or sloped at less than acceptable grades. 
 
A sewer system rehabilitation program was first developed from an I/I study in 1973.  A 
second I/I analysis and a sewer system evaluation survey were conducted in 1975.  Because 
the WWTP exceeded design flows during wet weather months, a third I/I study was 
undertaken in 1992 and completed in 1994.  This report (Infiltration/Inflow Analysis and 
Engineering Report) was amended in January 1999.  The report indicated that removal of I/I 
would be more cost-effective than expansion of the treatment plant, if 45 percent of the I/I 
were removed.  Manhole rehabilitation was also identified in the 1994 plan as another project 
aimed at reducing I/I.  The amendment to the I/I analysis and Engineering Report completed 
in January 1999 looked at reducing I/I in two of the drainage basins. 
 
As a result of the 1992-94 I/I study, the city of Buckley replaced parts of its sanitary sewer 
collection system.  In 1998, the City applied for approval from the Department of Ecology to 
increase the capacity of the WWTP by approximately 330 connections, and received 
approval on condition that the City construct wastewater improvements to remove 
approximately 45 percent of the inflow and infiltration of stormwater into the City’s sewer 
system and on the condition that the City construct a digester at the treatment plant. 
 
The future improvement projects recommended by this plan are based both on the anticipated 
maximum or build-out development within the UGA boundary and the existing condition of 
the sanitary conveyance system as described in the modeling completed in 2015. 
 
The expected future sewage flow rates were developed by applying per capita flow rates and 
peaking factors to the estimated population figures as have been presented within the land 
use element section of this plan.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
28



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 17 of 44 

The 2017 Draft Sewer Comprehensive Plan included a hydraulic capacity analysis of the 
existing sewer collection system using a computer software modeling program called 
InfoSewer.  The entire city was divided into eight sewer basin areas, shown in Figure S2.  
Interceptors within the eight areas were at least 10 inches in diameter or greater.  The eight 
areas include the existing service areas named as follows:  A1, A2, A4, CW, A26, B13, E2A, 
and F1.  The future service areas are named as follows:  Nanevicz, North McNeely, Central 
McNeely, South McNeely, Van Sickle, Shay/Rainier School, TAN-W, TAN-E, Elk Heights, 
EM, and SE.  Currently, approximately 1,100 acres are being served by the City’s collection 
system.  The future service area will include an additional 800 acres for a total of 
approximately 1,900 acres in the City’s collection system.  The amount of sanitary flow is 
determined by the contribution per capita and the calculated population.  The population 
density assumes the land is fully developed to the level allowed by the corresponding land 
use designation.  The future peak flow of 2.88 mgd was used in the modeling. 
 
All recommended pipe replacement projects include lowering the pipeline elevation and 
increasing the pipe’s existing slope.  These modifications will allow the system to serve 
outlying areas primarily by gravity. 
 
The following projects address deficiencies to the sewer collection system identified from 
modeling and studies discussed above and are shown in Figure S3. 
 
Gravity Sewer Main Projects 
 

G-1.  Alley to the East of Edith Street–construct 450 LF of new 8” PVC from Park 
Avenue to Dundass Street. 

G-2.  Spiketon Road-construct 500 LF of new 8” PVC from Ryan Road to A Street. 
G-3.  Alley between Cascade Street and Edith Street-construct 450 LF of new 8” 

PVC from Dundass Avenue to Park Avenue. 
G-4.   Near 550 Balm Street- construct 200 LF of new 8” PVC. 
G-5.  Spiketon Road–construct 900 LF of new 8” PVC from Ryan Road to 649 

Spiketon Road. 
G-6. Alley between Naches Street and Second Street–construct 1,000 LF of new 8” 

PVC, from Park Avenue to Mason Avenue.  
G-7.  Sergeant Road-construct 700 LF of new 8” PVC from Whitmore Way to 

Collins Road. 
 
Trunk Sewer Main Projects 
 

T-1.  McNeely Street South, East on Mason to State School Property Line, South to 
Ryan Road to Klink Street-construct 4,800 LF of new 12” PVC. 

 
AREA LIFT STATIONS 
 
There is presently sewer service to the elementary and middle schools which are located in 
the most southerly and westerly area of the GMA boundary via a 6-inch force main along SR 
410 and a school district maintained lift station.  The existing topography of this area would 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
29



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 18 of 44 

dictate that gravity mains flow towards the most northerly and westerly area of the proposed 
development limits.  To convey flows completely by gravity from the most outlying areas to 
the treatment plant would require sewer piping installation of depths, over 25 feet.  This type 
of system is not viewed as financially feasible because of these depths and the glacial till 
underlying most of the area.  An alternative is the installation of lift stations sized to serve the 
developing population.   
 
 The following projects address deficiencies to the sewer collection system that are remedied 
by lift stations and force main projects: 

 
Lift Station and Force Main Projects 
 

L-1.  South Spiketon Road Lift Station - 500 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency 
Generator. 

F-1.  South Spiketon Road-construct 1,300 LF of new 6” Ductile Iron Force Main. 
L-2.  Hinkleman Road Lift Station – 200 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator. 
F-2.  Hinkleman Road-construct 3.800 LF of new 4” Ductile Iron Force Main 
L-3.  East 112th Street Lift Station – 250 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator. 
F-3.  East 112th Street-construct 2,400 LF of new 4” Ductile Iron Force Main  
L-4.  West 112th Street Lift Station – 150 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator. 
F-4.  West 112th Street-construct 2.300 LF of new 4” Ductile Iron Force Main 

 
COMPLETION OF SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REHABILITATION 
 
The system improvements and/or extensions noted above do not include additional projects 
that need to be completed for the continued improvement of the older segments of the 
collection system.  The City will complete TV inspection work and disconnection of roof, 
yard, and cellar drains as previously recommended to City.  The City will also analyze and 
collect additional flow data, conduct limited system evaluation and complete spot repairs, 
perform mainline and side sewer rehabilitation of existing sewers as identified in I/I Program 
and system evaluation. 
 
TREATMENT SYSTEM 
 

Level of Service  
 
The Level of Service (LOS) for the sewage treatment plant was established from the Criteria 
for Sewage Works Design, DOE, 2008.  Average design flows were established from an 
average demand of 108 gallons per day per capita, and the expected service population.  
Projected wastewater flows in 2035 are 1.07 mgd annual average flow and 1.60 mgd 
maximum monthly flow. 
 
In addition to hydraulic design criteria, there are also loading criteria for LOS.  Typically 
loading criteria are established for Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD5) and Total Suspended 
Solids (TSS).  For BOD, 0.2 lbs/day per capita was utilized for design loadings; for TSS, 
0.17 lbs/day per capita were utilized. Both values are consistent with Criteria of Sewage 

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
30



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 19 of 44 

Design.  Historic phosphorus literature data was used to size the nutrient removal 
components to be added treatment plant. 
 
The existing sewage treatment plant is permitted NPDES WA-00-2336-1 which was issued 
May 1, 2003 and expired in 2008.  However, Ecology administratively extended that permit 
and requires the City to monitor the influent and effluent and comply with the limitations 
specified in the expired permit.  This permit establishes reporting requirements and 
performance criteria for the discharge of treated wastewater and the quality of wastewater 
sludge.  Phosphorus limits are not included in this permit, but are anticipated in the next 
permit cycle.  The values shown below represent the limits on what the treatment plant can 
discharge to the White River under the existing permit. 
 

 
Table U-2 NPDES Permit Limits 

 
Parameter Monthly Average Weekly Average 

5-day Biochemical Oxygen 
Demand 

30 mg/L 
134 lb/day 

45 mg/L 
201 lb/day 

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 30 mg/L  
114 lb/day 

45 mg/L 
171 lb/day 

Fecal Coliform Bacteria 200/100 ml 100/100 ml 
pH Shall not be outside the range of 6.5-8.5 
Total Residual Chlorine 9 ug/L 23 ug/L 
Total Ammonia (as N)  
May1 – Oct.31 

2.6 mg/L 7.43 mg/L 
62 lbs./day 

Total Ammonia (as N) 
Nov. 1 – Apr. 30 

4.5 mg/L 10.5 mg/L 

Total Copper Interim 27 ug/L 
Final 11.13 ug/L 

Interim 38.5 ug/L 
Final 16.24 ug/L 

 
A review of monthly reports for the period of 2009 to 2017 indicated that the plant did not 
fail to meet these discharge limits. 
 

Inventory of System 
 
The current plant was designed to accommodate an average flow of 1.0 mgd and has a peak 
hydraulic capacity of 2.7 mgd. 
 
The system components include headworks/grit removal, two oxidation ditches, two 
clarifiers, chlorination/dechlorination, and a mechanical building housing sludge pumps and 
dewatering equipment.  The headworks of the facility consists of the influent channel, a bar 
screen, a degritter, a grinder, an adjustable flow splitter and effluent channels to the oxidation 
ditches.  From the headworks, influent enters the oxidation ditches where the main treatment 
process occurs.  Effluent is then transported to the clarifier units where solids are separated 
from liquid and either recirculated to the oxidation ditches or wasted to the sludge disposal 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
31



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 20 of 44 

system.  Effluent from the clarifiers enters the dual chlorine contact tanks prior to discharge 
into the White River via a 14-inch outfall pipe. 

 
Treatment System Improvements 

 
The City of Buckley completed major improvements to the exiting wastewater treatment, 
effluent disposal, and biosolids processing systems in 2008.  
 
The needs for these improvements are being driven by two factors.  The first is the 
implementation of phosphorous limitations for discharges to the White River.  Buckley 
currently operates a conventional secondary wastewater treatment plant.  The White River 
has been the location of the City’s treated wastewater effluent discharge.  A Total Maximum 
Daily Load (TMDL) study was performed on the White River and it was determined that 
phosphorous loadings were a threat to the health of the river.  A subsequent Waste Load 
Allocation (WLA) has determined that Buckley must reduce its phosphorous loadings to the 
river.  A conventional secondary treatment is not capable of removing phosphorous to the 
level required by the WLA, so the City proceeded with improvements necessary to remove 
phosphorous. 
 
The second factor is the need to accommodate additional growth in the Buckley Urban 
Growth Area (UGA).  The current customer base for the wastewater system consists of 
approximately 4,300 persons.  This customer base is expected to increase to 8,000 by the 
year 2035.  
 
With the substantial treatment plant upgrades completed, the City plans to make a minor 
revision to one of the plant systems and to evaluate improvements needed for reuse water to 
be distribute 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Projects 
 

TP-1.  WWTP Non-Potable Water System Upgrades 
TP-2.  WWTP Wastewater Reuse Feasibility Study 

 
 

V. STORMWATER COLLECTION AND TREATMENT 
 
The storm and surface water drainage utility is owned, operated and maintained by the City 
and provides drainage, flood control, and protection of environmentally sensitive areas such 
as wetlands, steep slopes and stream corridors.  For the most part, the original system is 
somewhat antiquated and consists of piping materials and construction methods, which were 
employed nearly 60 years ago.  The majority of this original drainage network was 
completed using clay tile piping with open joint construction.  Over time, this piping has 
deteriorated to an extremely poor condition, with several areas needing immediate 
improvements. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
32



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 21 of 44 

The City utilities department has completed some improvements to the system over the years.  
The installation of new piping systems and improvements to existing drainage channels has 
substantially increased the hydraulic performance of the existing system.  Current growth and 
expected growth will require more improvements and additions to the existing system.  The 
existing storm drainage system is shown in Figure D1. 
 
The Level of Service (LOS) for the City’s stormwater conveyance system is to convey the 
25-year storm event.  The City of Buckley has adopted the Ecology Stormwater Management 
Manual for Western Washington (2012), as the City’s technical manual (BMC 14.30.061).  
The City has also adopted the Low Impact Development Technical Guidance Manual for 
Puget Sound (LID Manual). 
 
Moving stormwater within the City is difficult, due to the flat topography and minimal 
natural grade within the City to convey surface water runoff.  The area, prior to development, 
was dominated by wetlands and lies within the flood plain of the White River.  Several areas 
are serviced by open ditches, which convey water into the pipe collection system or into an 
open, uninhabited area. 
 
TREATMENT 
 
As stated previously, the City has adopted Ecology’s 2012 Stormwater Management Manual, 
which describes in detail the methods and practices for mitigating stormwater runoff impacts.  
 

Level of Service 
 
The Washington State Department of Ecology (DOE) has enacted certain guidelines and 
rules for the management of stormwater.  The requirements include provisions for the 
following:  ordinances to control off-site water quality, the use of source Best Management 
Practices (BMPs), effective water quality treatment for the design storm, use of infiltration 
where possible, erosion and sediment control, the protection of wetlands and stream 
channels; operation and maintenance programs for new and existing stormwater systems; 
record keeping of drainage system facilities; adoption of Ecology's Technical Manual or 
equivalent; education programs for the general public; coordination with the Growth 
Management Act; and basin planning. 
 
The City adopted stormwater management regulations are included in Buckley Municipal 
Code Chapter 14.30.  The activities covered under this regulation include land disturbing 
activities, structural development including construction, installation or expansion of a 
building or other structure, creation of impervious surfaces, Class IV general forest practices 
that are conversions from timber land to other uses, subdivision, short subdivision and 
binding site plans and redevelopment.  
 
The level of service chosen for new conveyance facilities is to provide the conveyance 
capacity of the 100-year, 24-hour event. 

 
COLLECTION 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
33



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 22 of 44 

 
Level of Service 

 
The Pierce County ordinance requires the City to develop a Storm Drainage Plan that 
describes how all storm drainage impacts will be mitigated for any existing or future project.  
This plan is required if the project consists of or results in high housing densities, changes in 
the drainage patterns, contains wetlands or swales, filling, sensitive areas, is tributary to any 
pothole off-site, changes to the runoff coefficient, changes in erosion characteristics, or if 25 
percent of the surface area becomes impervious. 
 
This plan must include a description of the property prior to development, as it exists now, 
and how it might be modified in the future; details of the topography, basin, and soils; 
downstream drainage analysis, and calculations of the runoff rates and volumes that would 
occur for the 25-year event.  In addition, the plan must include recommendations and 
construction projects necessary to manage any runoff problems. 
 
The importance of a storm drainage plan, and of properly managing storm runoff, is 
significant step in alleviating potential future drainage issues.  By detaining, retaining, or 
allowing storm runoff to infiltrate, citizens, property and environmentally sensitive areas are 
better protected from flooding, erosion, depleted groundwater and summer base flows, and 
pollution. 
 

System Inventory 
 
The City’s storm drainage network is comprised of numerous catch basins and storm drain 
manholes, piping ranging in size from 6 to 36 inches, year and/or area draws, detention 
ponds/pipes and an extensive network of storm drainage ditches that includes culverts and 
outlet channels.  Several areas are either not currently serviced or are inadequately serviced.  
Areas slated for development or currently without service will require improvements before 
any development can continue, in order to mitigate flooding and other impacts. 
 
The City does not currently provide storm drainage for the State of Washington Rainier 
School.  The Rainier School is located along the easterly City limit and encompasses nearly 
160 acres.  The School directs a majority of its stormwater through a privately maintained 
system to an outfall in the White River, north of the City.  It is believed that the south 
campus, approximately 70 acres in area, channels storm runoff into the City’s drainage 
system located along and within the Ryan Road corridor. 
 
The collector and drainage infrastructure, as it presently exists, predominantly conveys water 
to both the north and west areas of the City to ultimately discharge into the Puget Power 
Flume and the White River Basin.  Areas to the south and east part of the City, which are less 
developed, discharge drainage flows south into the Spiketon Creek Basin area.  The City’s 
existing storm drainage system in included as Figure D1.   
 
To analyze the existing and required future storm drainage capacities, the Urban Growth 
Area was segregated into fourteen individual drainage basins.  Some of the basins were 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
34



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 23 of 44 

divided into smaller sub-basins for the purpose of analysis.  This was accomplished based on 
the present system’s configuration and outfall locations as well as the general topography of 
the Buckley Basin.  These individual drainage basins are shown in Figure D2.  Existing 
conveyance piping and stormwater outfall locations were surveyed to estimate the maximum 
available capacity at discharge points.  Previously, City standards relied on the “Yrjanainen 
and Warren” (Y&W) method of hydraulic analysis.  The Ecology Manual uses the “Unit 
Hydrograph Analysis Methods” for estimating storm run off volumes and rates as the 
preferred method for estimating runoff.  The Comprehensive Flood Hazard Management 
Plan for Buckley used the Santa Barbara Urban Hydrograph Method to analyze 10, 25, 100, 
and 500- year storm events.  The analysis reflected existing conditions as well as impervious 
areas that are likely to result from the Comprehensive Plan – designated development.  The 
existing drainage conditions, outfall capacities and estimated future drainage flows were then 
reviewed to determine storm sewer improvements necessary to decrease flood potential.  
There are several basins within the City with inadequate storm drainage. The City lies in a 
relatively flat area, which makes management of drainage challenging. In addition, previous 
storm drainage detention standards either did not include detention, or included a 25-year 
Y&W detention analysis.  These standards proved to be inadequate during the 1996 and 1997 
floods.  Some of the areas needing improvements simply require larger pipes or open 
channels.  For others, increasing conveyance will move existing flooding to another location.  
In addition to these conveyance system mitigation measures, alternatives including 
construction of detention facilities and restoration of historic drainage patterns must be 
considered. 
 
The City currently experiences flooding and ponding in areas which are not provided with 
adequate storm drainage.  Some of the areas needing improvement simply require larger 
pipes or open channels, while others have no conveyance system in place.  Areas now being 
proposed for development will need upgrades to existing conveyance systems before any 
development can be completed.  Areas of large impervious surfaces will result in flooding 
and erosion leading to property damage, unless an adequate drainage system is constructed. 
 
The previously completed sanitary sewer infiltration/inflow report recommends that once 
improvements to the sanitary system have been completed and sewage flows are redirected 
into the new network, the old sanitary sewer pipe can be used to collect, convey and 
discharge storm runoff.  The stormwater improvements outlined herein have been selected 
based on the use of the existing storm sewers capacity.  Additional drainage capacity could 
be achieved by the conversion of sanitary piping, and may be completed during sanitary 
system improvement projects, not included as a part of this analysis. 
 
The City’s existing storm drain outfall locations were surveyed and reviewed to estimate 
existing basin discharge capacities.  These estimates were then compared with both the 
existing drainage flows and future estimated maximum runoff flows to determine the current 
and future levels of service.   
 

Proposed Locations and Future Needs 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
35



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 24 of 44 

The following project descriptions and recommendations for construction projects have been 
selected based on a review of the City’s existing storm drainage conditions.  These 
improvements are targeted to remove existing storm conveyance problems within the City.  
Each of the selected projects is to be completed with systems that will adequately pass the 
runoff from the future “build-out” developments that are presently anticipated.  The 
recommended piping has been selected to comply with the City standards, which require 
commercial and high value areas to convey a 100-year storm event at maximum development 
expected to occur in each area. 
 
Each of the indicated stormwater system improvement projects indicated in Figure D3, have 
been proposed based on both future development and existing conditions.  Figure D3 
indicates capital improvements recommended for the 6-year and 20-year time frames.  The 
main trunk lines of each basin’s system have been shown and outfall locations have been 
selected to take advantage of existing topographic conditions.  Improvements to the existing 
sanitary sewer system or roadways may significantly impact the development of these 
projects. 
 
The following is a brief description of the projects involved in developing a complete storm 
drainage system, which will support the drainage requirements of the area within the UGA 
boundary.  The projects are taken from the May 2008 City of Buckley Comprehensive 
Stormwater Management Plan (CSMP) and are listed in order of priority. 
 
Stormwater Capital Improvement Projects 
 
CIP 1 – Spiketon Bridge involves the installation of a 12-foot-wide by 3-foot-tall bridge 

section at the Spiketon Road crossing. This will replace the two 24-inch concrete 
pipes at Spiketon Road and will help minimize flooding currently experienced in 
this area during a 100-year storm event. 

 
CIP 2 – Dundass Avenue is a project that was brought to the attention of City staff by a 

resident in 2006. This project includes connecting 135 linear feet of new 12-inch 
pipe between 3rd Street and 4th Street to the existing storm system. The installation 
of this pipe should alleviate the flooding seen in this area.  

 
CIP 3 – The Sheets Road Diversion project involves the diversion of flow from Spiketon 

Ditch to the ditch along the east side of Sheets Road. This ditch flows north, under 
Ryan Road, and then along the west side of the Rainier School property where it 
crosses Collins Road, and eventually discharges to the PSE Flume. In diverting 
water north along Sheets Road, flooding will be lessened on the properties 
surrounding Spiketon Ditch west of Sheets Road. This project involves the upgrade 
of existing Sheets Road driveway culverts to 36-inch pipes and the replacement of a 
36-inch pipe south of Collins Road with 1,025 linear feet of 60-inch pipe. Flow 
splitters will also be needed to direct flow north along Sheets Road, and then again 
near Ryan Road where flow will need to be disbursed between the existing 18-inch 
and 24-inch pipes in this area.  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
36



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 25 of 44 

CIP 4 – The Division Street (Ryan Road Diversion) project is a temporary measure to 
implement prior to the installation of a 48-inch pipe that will connect runoff from 
Ryan Road to the existing 48-inch pipes in Hinkelman Extension. The purpose of 
the Division Street project is to divert water from Ryan Road south along Division 
Street. By doing so, the first 645 linear feet of pipe will need to be replaced with 24-
inch pipe.  In addition, 100 linear feet of ditch will need to be rehabilitated near the 
south end of Division Street. 

 
CIP 5 – The Hinkleman Road East Basin is a 58-acre basin that drains to the north via a ditch 

across private property midway between the Hinkleman Extension and Mundy Loss 
Road.  The recommended improvements in this basin include the installation of 
2,685 linear feet of 36-inch pipe on the south side of Hinkelman Road. The 
drainage should be directed east, opposite of its current flow direction, to the 48-
inch storm sewer system installed in the Hinkleman Road Extension.  

 
CIP 6 – The Hinkelman Extension/Ryan Road Extension project was noted above as the 

installation of 3,440 linear feet of 48-inch pipe. This pipe will connect the Ryan 
Road storm system to the existing 48-inch pipes at Hinkelman Extension. The pipes 
will extend west of the intersection of Ryan Road and Division Street, west toward 
112th Street East.  This project has been completed as part of the SR410/SR165 
Realignment Project.  The completed project has improved the flooding seen along 
Ryan Road and A Street and has helped restore the flow back to its natural 
discharge location.  

 
CIP 7 – The McNeely basin includes the area between McNeely Road and the WSU Dairy 

Farm property, and is bounded on the south by Collins Road and the north by the 
PSE flume. The improvements in this basin are listed as the seventh priority of the 
CIP plan. The basin is lightly developed at this time. The ditch and driveway 
culverts that run north through this basin and along McNeely Road are not 
adequately sized to convey the 100-year event. The ditch should be rehabilitated for 
354 linear feet, and 797 linear feet of pipe and culverts will need to be replaced with 
24-inch pipes.  

 
CIPs 8 and 9 – Regional Treatment and Detention Feasibility Studies to identify the 

feasibility of installation of one or more regional stormwater treatment and 
detention ponds should be prepared. These projects were ranked eighth and ninth. 
The City will need the results of the feasibility study in order to evaluate 
alternatives for system improvements. The use of regional stormwater treatment and 
detention ponds could eliminate the need for multiple treatment and detention 
facilities located on private property. Regional ponds, because of their size, may 
provide better opportunities for water quality treatment and more effective 
maintenance.  

 
CIP 10 – The Elk Meadows Ditch project involves the enhancement of an existing ditch and 

culverts west of Sheets Road along private property. According to local residents, 
this area floods from Spiketon Ditch under extreme storm events. This project 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
37



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 26 of 44 

would involve the upgrade of three driveway culverts to two 3' x 3' box culverts and 
one 3' x 5' box culvert. In addition, 1,915 linear feet of ditch would need to be 
rehabilitated to handle the anticipated flow from a 100-year storm.  

 
CIP 11 – The Spiketon Road project is a minor project that resulted from the hydraulic 

modeling done along Spiketon Road. Under the 100-year storm condition, a 242 
linear foot section of ditch was found to have insufficient capacity. Therefore, it is 
recommended that a 2' x 3' box culvert replace this ditch.  

 
CIP 12 – The Collins Road Basin includes the drainage systems along Collins Road, 

Sergeant Street, and Spruce Street.  The basin has a large number of drainage 
deficiencies and the continuing development in this basin will continue to 
exacerbate the problem. The improvements recommended in the Collins Road 
Basin include pipe and ditch replacement. Approximately 2,150 linear feet of 18-
inch pipe and 1,464 linear feet of 24-inch pipe would be installed along Collins 
Road. South of Collins Road, 1,314 linear feet of parallel 36-inch pipe would be 
installed, which would then connect to the Collins Road system which continues 
northerly. From Collins Road north, the existing pipe would be replaced with 3,290 
linear feet of 60-inch pipe where it would then discharge into the PSE Flume.  

 
CIP 13 – The Ryan Road project includes the extension of the new 48-inch pipe of the 

Hinkelman Extension/Ryan Extension project. A 36-inch pipe was placed in Ryan 
Road during 2006 that extended from the Division Street/Ryan Road intersection 
east toward Spiketon Road. According to the hydraulic model, this pipe will need to 
be supplemented with 1,659 linear feet of a parallel 36-inch pipe. In addition, this 
project includes the installation of 3,175 linear feet of 36-inch pipe and 1,018 linear 
feet of 48-inch pipe.  

 
CIP 14 – The Downtown area consists of insufficient 18-inch pipes at the downstream end of 

the system in this basin. The Downtown project consists of replacing these 18-inch 
pipes with 140 linear feet of 24-inch pipes and 850 linear feet of 36-inch pipe. 

 
CIP 15 – The North Highway 410 project incorporates the replacement of existing pipes with 

1,240 linear feet of new 36-inch pipe and 210 linear feet of 48-inch pipe at the 
downstream end of this basin.  

 
CIP 16 – The River Avenue North project is similar to the Downtown and North Highway 

410 projects in that it includes the replacement of existing pipes with 1,720 linear 
feet of 36-inch pipe at the downstream end of the stormwater system in this area. 

 
CIP 17 – The 112th Street Basin is bounded on the south by the high point in the topography 

south of 112th Street and Mundy Loss Road to the west.  The drainage problems 
here have been minor in nature, yet the hydraulic model indicated that during a 100-
year storm along the west end of 112th Street, the existing pipes and ditch need to 
be replaced with 1,541 linear feet of parallel 36-inch and 48-inch pipe.  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
38



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 27 of 44 

CIPs 18 and 19 – West Highway 410A and 410B are located on the south and north sides of 
SR 410, respectively. The results of the hydrologic/hydraulic model indicated that 
the ditch should be replaced with 5,520 linear feet of 24-inch pipe on the south side 
of SR 410. It was also found that 75 linear feet of 12-inch pipe should be installed 
on the north side of SR 410 along with 85 linear feet of ditch that should be 
rehabilitated.  

 
 

VI. OTHER UTILITIES 
 

NATURAL GAS UTILITY  
 
The natural gas distribution utility is owned, operated, and maintained by the Puget Sound 
Energy (PSE).  
 
Company Overview: Puget Sound Energy (PSE) is a private utility providing natural gas 
and electric service to homes and businesses in Puget Sound region of Western Washington 
and portions of Eastern Washington, covering 10 counties and approximately 6,000 square 
miles.  PSE’s regional and local natural gas and electric planning efforts are integrated and 
centered on providing safe, dependable, and efficient energy service. PSE provides natural 
gas to more than 770,000 customers, throughout 6 counties, covering approximately 2,900 
square-mile area.  As of 20179, PSE provides natural gas service to approximately 1,500672 
customers in the City of Buckley. 
 
Regulatory Environment: PSE’s operations and rates are governed by the Washington 
Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC). PSE natural gas utility operations and 
standards are further regulated by the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), including 
the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Administration (PHMSA).  PHMSA’s Pipeline Safety 
Enforcement Program is designed to monitor and enforce compliance with pipeline safety 
regulations.  This includes confirmation that operators are meeting expectations for safe, 
reliable, and environmentally sound operation of PSE’s pipeline infrastructure. PHMSA and 
the WUTC update pipeline standards and regulations on an ongoing basis to assure the 
utmost compliance with standards to ensure public safety. The residents within the City of 
Buckley rely on the coordinated effort between PSE and the City for the adoption and 
enforcement of ordinances and/or codes to support on the  safe, reliable, and environmentally 
sound construction, operation and maintenance of PSE’s natural gas facilities. 
 
Integrated Resource Plan: In order for PSE to meet its regulatory requirements, it updates 
and files an Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) with the WUTC every two years.  The IRP 
identifies methods to provide dependable and cost effective natural gas service that address 
the needs of retail natural gas customers. Natural gas sales resource need is driven by design 
peak day demand. The current design standard ensures that supply is planned to meet firm 
loads on a 13-degree design peak day, which corresponds to a 52 Heating Degree Day 
(HDD).  Currently, PSE’s supply/capacity is approximately 970 MDth/Day at peak.  This 
figure will be updated in the fall of 2015. The IRP suggests the use of liquefied natural gas 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
39



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 28 of 44 

(LNG) for peak day supply and support the needs of emerging local maritime traffic and 
truck transport transportation markets. 
 
Natural Gas Supply: PSE controls its gas-supply costs by acquiring gas, under contract, 
from a variety of gas producers and suppliers across the western United States and Canada. 
PSE purchases 100 percent of its natural-gas supplies needed to serve its customers.  About 
half the natural gas is obtained from producers and marketers in British Columbia and 
Alberta, and the rest comes from Rocky Mountain States. All the gas PSE acquires is 
transported into PSE’s service area through large interstate pipelines owned and operated by 
Williams Northwest Pipeline. PSE buys and stores significant amounts of natural gas during 
the summer months, when wholesale gas prices and customer demand are low, and stores it 
in large underground facilities and withdraws it in winter when customer usage is highest; 
ensuring a reliable supply of gas is available. 
 
System Overview: To provide the City of Buckley and adjacent communities with natural 
gas, PSE builds, operates, and maintains an extensive system consisting of transmission and 
distribution natural gas mains, odorizing stations, pressure regulation stations, heaters, 
corrosion protection systems, above ground appurtenances, and metering systems. When PSE 
takes possession of the gas from its supplier, it is distributed to customers through more than 
21,000 miles of PSE-owned natural gas mains and service lines.  
 
PSE receives natural gas transported by Williams Northwest Pipeline’s 36” and 30” high 
pressure transmission mains at pressures ranging from 500 PSIG to 960 PSIG.  The custody 
change and measurement of the natural gas occurs at locations known as Gate Stations.  PSE 
currently has 39 40 such locations throughout its service territory. This is also typically 
where the gas is injected with the odorant mercaptan.  Since natural gas is naturally odorless, 
this odorant is used so that leaks can be detected. The Gate Station is not only a place of 
custody transfer and measurement but is also a common location of pressure reduction 
through the use of “pressure regulators”.     Due to state requirements, the pressure is most 
commonly reduced to levels at or below 250 PSIG.  This reduced pressure gas continues 
throughout PSE’s high pressure supply system in steel mains ranging in diameter of 2” to 20” 
until it reaches various other pressure reducing locations. PSE currently has 755 pressure 
regulating stations throughout its service territory. These locations consist of Limiting 
Stations, Heaters, District Regulators, and/or high pressure Meter Set Assemblies. 
 
The most common of these is the intermediate pressure District Regulator.  It is at these 
locations that pressures are reduced to the most common levels ranging from 25 PSIG to 60 
PSIG.  This reduced pressure gas continues throughout  PSE’s intermediate pressure 
distribution system in mains of various materials consisting of  polyethylene and wrapped 
steel that range in diameters from 1-1/4” to 8” (and in a few cases, larger pipe). The gas 
flows through the intermediate pressure system until it reaches either a low pressure District 
Regulator or a customer’s Meter Set Assembly.  
To safeguard against excessive pressures throughout the supply and distribution systems due 
to regulator failure, over-pressure protection is installed.  This over-pressure protection will 
release gas to the atmosphere, enact secondary regulation, or completely shut off the supply 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
40



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 29 of 44 

of gas. To safeguard steel main against corrosion, PSE builds, operates, and maintains 
corrosion control mitigation systems to prevent damaged pipe as a result of corrosion. 
 
Future Projects: To meet the regional and City of Buckley natural gas demand, PSE’s 
delivery system is modified every year to address new or existing customer growth, load 
changes that require system reinforcement, rights-of-way improvements, and pipeline 
integrity issues.  The system responds differently year to year and PSE is constantly adding 
or modifying infrastructure to meet gas volume and pressures demands. At this time, there 
are no known major construction projects anticipated in the City of Buckley.  
 
Current and future system integrity work will include ongoing investigations throughout the 
city to determine the location of where gas lines have been cross bored through sewer lines 
and make subsequent repairs. 
 
ELECTRICAL UTILITIES  
 
Puget Sound Energy (PSE) serves the City of Buckley. 
 
Company Overview: Puget Sound Energy (PSE) is a private utility providing electric and 
natural gas service to homes and businesses in Puget Sound region and portions of Eastern 
Washington, covering 10 counties and approximately 6,000 square miles.   PSE’s regional 
and local electric and natural gas planning efforts are integrated and centered on providing 
safe, dependable, and efficient energy service. PSE provides electrical power to more than 
1.2 1 million electric customers throughout 8 counties.  As of 20172019, PSE provides 
electric service to approximately 2,000 customers in the City of Buckley. 
 
Regulatory Environment: PSE’s operations and rates are governed by the Washington 
Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC). PSE electric utility operations and 
standards are further governed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), the 
National Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC), and the Western Electricity Coordinating 
Council (WECC). These respective agencies monitor, assess and enforce compliance and 
reliability standards for PSE. The residents of the City of Buckley and the region rely on the 
coordinated effort between PSE and the City for the adoption and enforcement  of ordinances 
and/or codes to protect transmission and distribution line capacity and support federal and 
state compliance of safe, reliable, and environmentally sound operation of PSE’s  electric  
facilities. Routine utility maintenance work, including vegetation management is required to 
maintain compliance with FERC, NERC, and WECC regulations.   
 
Integrated Resource Plan:   In order for PSE to meet regulatory requirements, it updates 
and files an Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) with the WUTC every two years.  The IRP) 
presents a long-term forecast of the lowest reasonable cost combination of resources 
necessary to meet the needs of PSE’s customers to provide dependable and cost effective 
service over the next 20 years. The current plan, which was filed in May of 2013, details both 
the energy supply and transmission resources needed to reliably meet customers’ wintertime, 
peak-hour electric demand over the next 20 years. The plan, which will be updated, 
forecasted that PSE would have to acquire approximately 4,900 megawatts of new power-

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
41



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 30 of 44 

supply capacity by 2033. This resource need is driven mainly by expiring purchased-power 
contracts and expected population and economic growth in the Puget Sound region.  The IRP 
suggests that roughly more than half of the utility’s long-term electric resource need can be 
met by energy efficiency and the renewal of transmission contracts. This reduces the need 
down to 2,200 MW by 2033. The rest of PSE’s gap in long-term power resources, the IRP 
stated is likely to be met most economically with added natural gas-fired resources.   
 
PSE generates approximately 46 percent of the electricity for its customers’ from its own 
generation specifically generation plants; hydro, thermal, solar and wind.  PSE currently has 
about 3,000 megawatts of power-generating capacity, and purchase the rest of its power 
supply from a variety of other utilities, independent power producers and energy marketers 
across the western United States and Canada. 
 
System Overview: To provide the City of Buckley with electricity, PSE builds, operates, and 
maintains an extensive integrated electric system consisting of generating plants, 
transmission lines, substations, switching stations, sub-systems, overhead and underground 
distribution systems, attachments, appurtenances, and metering systems. 
 
Electricity provided by PSE to the City of Buckley is often produced elsewhere and is 
interconnected to the Northwest’s regional transmission grid through an extensive network of 
transmission facilities providing bulk transmission service to meet the demands of electricity 
customers within the region’s eight states. The PSE electric transmission facilities in the City 
of Buckley are important components of the electric energy delivery grid serving the Puget 
Sound region.  As electricity reaches the City of Buckley the voltage is reduced and 
redistributed through lower-voltage transmission lines, distribution substations, overhead and 
underground distribution lines, smaller transformers, and to individual meters. 
 
PSE will be prudently and systematically deploying smart grid technology at each level of 
infrastructure to enhance and automate monitoring, analysis, control and communications 
capabilities along its entire grid. Smart grid technologies can impact the electricity delivery 
chain from a power generating facility all the way to the end-use application of electrical 
energy inside a residence or place of business. The ultimate goals of smart grid are to enable 
PSE to offer more reliable and efficient energy service, and to provide customers with more 
control over their energy usage. 
 
Future Projects: To meet regional and City of Buckley electric demand, PSE is upgrading 
the existing 55 kilovolt (kV) substations and transmission lines between Electron Heights 
(vicinity of Kapowsin) and Enumclaw to 115 kV. The multi-year projects began in 2009 and 
entail converting the voltage of over 20 miles of transmission line between the Electron 
Heights and Krain Corner (Enumclaw) substations, installing roughly 1.5 miles of new 
transmission line in Enumclaw, as well as converting, upgrading or completely rebuilding 
four substations as well as constructing a new substation in Buckley and adding a fiber-optic 
line to existing transmission facilities between Buckley and Enumclaw. 
 
TELECOMMUNICATION UTILITIES  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
42



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 31 of 44 

The City of Buckley is served by CenturyLink.  Various facilities are located throughout the 
County and the City. 
 
Many of the telecommunication facilities are co-located with those of Puget Power.  Buckley 
has digital electronic facilities available through CenturyLink, which allow call forwarding 
and a number of other features to be available to the customer.   
 
CenturyLink reacts to customer demands, since the telecommunications industry is required 
to provide service upon demand.  CenturyLink has indicated to the City that there is capacity 
for the City and its Urban Growth Area. 
 
Cellular telephone service is provided in the Buckley area by Comcast.  Cable TV is 
provided to the Buckley area by Comcast for areas surrounding the City.   
 
The provision of telecommunication services is driven by the needs of its customers.  As the 
city grows, telecommunication facilities will be upgraded to ensure adequate service levels.  
Facilities will be upgraded as technology advances. 
 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION  
 
The City contracts with D.M. Disposal Company for solid waste collection.  Collection is 
performed once a week. in the unincorporated portion of the Planning Area, solid waste is 
collected also by D.M. Disposal.   
 

VII. GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND POLICIES AND CONSISTENCY WITH 
COUNTY-WIDE POLICIES 
 
PLAN FOR FUTURE UTILITIES 
 
This section discusses the plan for future utilities in the City of Buckley.  The timing of 
development and provision of utility services are key components of this planning process.  
In addition to the discussion below, growth alternatives in the Land Use Element, have been 
developed to illustrate the various land uses and growth management strategies. 
 
The analysis of existing conditions and projected needs in the previous sections highlights 
the areas of concern and opportunities for the City of Buckley.  The vision statement for the 
City was used, along with the inventory and analysis contained in this element, to create a 
plan.  The plan contains a strategy for achievement of the City’s goals.  The goals and 
policies within the plan provide guidelines and steps to attain those goals. 
 

Vision Statement and Comprehensive Plan Goals 
 
These goals are essential to the quality of life in the City of Buckley and likely will remain 
unchanged for long-term planning. 

 
Utility Goals 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
43



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 32 of 44 

 
Utility Goal 1: Facilitate the development and maintenance of all utilities at 

the appropriate levels of service to accommodate growth that is 
anticipated to occur in the City of Buckley and its Urban 
Growth Area. 

 
Utility Goal 2: Facilitate the provision of utilities that are environmentally 

sensitive, safe and reliable, aesthetically compatible with the 
surrounding land uses, available at a reasonable economic cost, 
and can be provided in an efficient manner. 

 
Utility Goal 3: Process permits and approvals for utility facilities in a fair and 

timely manner and in accord with the development regulations 
which encourage predictability and consistency. 

 
 

General Utility Policies 
 
The policies specify what shall be accomplished to reach the goals.  These policies either 
provide clear guidance for decision-making when a situation arises, or provide clear 
responsibilities that will be implemented.  The accomplishments under these policies can be 
used to measure progress toward the goals. 
 
Policy U-1 
 
Public facilities and utility services necessary to support development shall be adequate to 
serve the development at the time development is available for occupancy and utility use 
shall not create a decrease in current service levels below City of Buckley standards. 
 
Policy U-2 
 
The location, type, and size of all public facilities shall be determined and/or approved by the 
City.  The extension and sizing of system components shall be based on the land use plan and 
proposed development. 
 
Policy U-3 
 
Facilities shall be designed, constructed, and maintained to reasonably minimize their impact 
on surrounding neighborhoods. 
 
Policy U-4 
 
Facilitate public utility service to unserved areas of the Urban Growth Area, including 
extensions into potential annexation areas under conditions consistent with the Growth 
Management Act. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
44



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 33 of 44 

Policy U-5 
 
Coordinate with other jurisdictions and governmental entities in the planning and 
implementation of multi-jurisdictional utility facility additions and improvements. 
 
Policy U-6 
 
Coordinate with Pierce County to ensure that public utility facilities that are to be constructed 
in potential annexation areas are designed and built in accordance with the City’s standards. 
 
Policy U-7 
 
Require notification to the City prior to a utility’s maintenance or removal of vegetation in 
City right-of-ways. 
 
Policy U-8 
 
Require the reasonable screening and/or architecturally compatible integration of all new 
site-specific, above-ground facilities. 
 
Policy U-9 
 
The City and utility company shall coordinate the acquisition, use, and enhancement of 
utility corridors for pedestrian, bicycle, and equestrian trails and for wildlife corridors and 
habitat provided such joint use is consistent with limitations as may be prescribed by prudent 
utility practice. 
 
Policy U-10 
 
Facilitate the conversion to cost-effective and environmentally sensitive alternative 
technologies and energy sources. 
 
Policy U-11 
 
Facilitate and encourage conservation of resources. 
 
Policy U-12 
 
Encourage system design practices intended to minimize the number and duration of 
interruptions to customer service. 
 
Policy U-13 
 
Encourage the utilities to solicit community input on the siting of proposed facilities prior to 
seeking City approval for facilities, which may have a significant impact on the community. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
45



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 34 of 44 

Policy U-14 
 
The City shall promote, when reasonably feasible and appropriate, co-location of new public 
and private utility distribution facilities in shared trenches/rights of way, and coordination of 
construction timing to minimize construction-related disruptions and reduce the cost of utility 
delivery. 
 

  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
46



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 35 of 44 

Policy U-15 
 
The City will provide timely effective notice to utilities to encourage coordination of public 
and private utility trenching activities for new construction and maintenance and repair of 
existing roads. 
 
Policy U-16 
 
The City shall encourage provision of an efficient, cost-effective, and reliable utility service 
by ensuring land will be made available for the location of utility lines, including location 
within transportation corridors. 
 
Policy U-17 
 
The City will encourage utility providers to ensure that all maintenance, repair, installation, 
and replacement activities by utilities are consistent with the City’s Critical Areas Ordinances 
(CAOs). 
 
Policy U-18 
 
The City will utilize maps of the existing and proposed utility facility corridors to determine 
consistency of such designations with the elements of the comprehensive plan. 
 
Policy U-19 
 
The City will assure that the comprehensive plan designates areas available for the location 
of utility facilities. 
 
Policy U-20 
 
Encourage additions to and improvements of facilities that provide adequate capacity for 
future planned growth. 
 

Water Utility Policies 
 
Policy W-1 
 
Provide reliable water service for domestic use, fire flow, and emergencies. 
 
Policy W-2 
 
Promote conservation and encourage development of conservation devices and programs. 
 
Policy W-3 
 
Improve the quality of the water supply to all customers. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
47



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 36 of 44 

 
Policy W-4 
 
Encourage private well water users in the planning area to access the City’s or other water 
purveyor systems, provided that the fair share of costs are paid by the benefiting parties. 
 
Policy W-5 
 
Insure a cost-effective water supply that meets City needs. 
 
Policy W-6 
 
Continue to participate in and facilitate the development of a regional water supply system 
that effectively balances regional water resources and supply needs, while protecting the 
City’s interests. 
 
Policy W-7 
 
Develop agreements with other water purveyors in the Urban Growth Area to consult with 
the City before approving additional water hookups. 
 

Sewer System Policies 
 
Policy S-1 
 
Ensure a cost-effective sewer system that meets the City’s needs and protects the 
environment. 
 
Policy S-2 
 
Continue to require sewer connections for all new developments, including single-family 
plats unless otherwise approved by the City. 
 
Policy S-3 
 
Encourage existing single-family homes with septic systems to connect to the sewer system 
where available.  If an existing septic system poses a health or environmental problem the 
homeowner shall be required to connect to the sewer system, if practicable. 
 

Storm and Surface Water Drainage Utility Policies 
 
Policy D-1 
 
Coordinate management of the stormwater system with property owners to prevent property 
damage from flooding, protect water quality, maintain recharge of aquifers, provide for the 
safety and enjoyment of citizens, and preserve and enhance habitat and sensitive areas. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
48



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 37 of 44 

 
Policy D-2 
 
Enforce surface water controls in order to protect surface and groundwater quality. 
 

Hazardous Waste Policies 
 
Policy H-1 
 
Cooperate with other private and public agencies in the region to manage and control 
hazardous waste and moderate-risk waste, including hazardous household substances. 
 
Policy H-2 
 
Educate the public in the proper handling and disposal of hazardous household waste and on 
the use of alternative products or practices that result in reducing the use and storage of 
hazardous materials in the home and businesses. 
 
Policy H-3 
 
Hazardous wastes shall be properly disposed of according to procedures and standards set by 
federal, state, or regional agencies. 
 
Policy H-4 
 
Provide for the safe and convenient disposal of hazardous household waste through a 
conveniently located collection facility or cooperation with county facilities. 
 
Policy H-5 
 
Replace, as soon as practicable, the City’s old underground fuel storage tanks with new tanks 
that reduce the potential for groundwater degradation and meets the Washington Department 
of Ecology’s standards. 
 

Solid Waste Policies 
 
Policy SW-1 
 
Promote the recycling of solid waste materials by providing opportunities for convenient 
recycling, waste reduction, and source separation. 
 
Policy SW-2 
 
Materials remaining after effective waste reduction and source separation shall be handled in 
accordance with the Tacoma-Pierce County Solid Waste Management Plan. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
49



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 38 of 44 

Policy SW-3 
 
The City shall develop recycling programs, including educational materials on recycling, 
composting, and other waste reduction methods. 
 
Policy SW-4 
 
Encourage and actively participate in a uniform regional approach to solid waste 
management. 
 
Policy SW-5 
 
Utilize the public review process in the selection and approval of any disposal facility, 
considering sensitivity to aesthetics, health effects, and environmental conditions. 
 
Policy SW-6 
 
Manage solid waste collection to minimize litter and neighborhood disruption. 
 
Policy SW-7 
 
Provide uniform collection service to areas annexed to the City as soon as can reasonably be 
arranged in accordance with service contracts. 
 
The following section describes Pierce County County-wide Planning Policies and a 
consistency analysis follows. 
 

Relationship to Growth Management Plans and Requirements 
 
Pierce County Comprehensive Plan 
 
Policy Overview 
 
The Pierce County Comprehensive Plan adopted in November 1994 and subsequent 
amendments defined an Urban Growth Area (UGA) by a boundary, which is intended to 
graphically show the separation of lands expected to be urban from those lands expected to 
be rural or devoted to mining, forestry, or agriculture.  The Growth Management Act (GMA) 
bestows the responsibility for designating these UGAs upon the County; and further, the Act 
requires that the designations be contained in the County’s Comprehensive Plan.  In the 
County’s Plan, the County designates a Comprehensive Urban Growth Area (CUGA) which 
is intended to set the limits for any further urban sprawl and encourage infilling for the 
County and the cities and towns within the CUGA.  In addition to the CUGA, the County has 
made certain UGA designations for cities and towns beyond the boundary of the CUGA.  
These satellite or stand-alone cities or towns are addressed differently than the municipalities 
within the CUGA.  The City of Buckley is designated a satellite or stand-alone city, not 
located with the CUGA but are located within the Rural Area of Pierce County.  For the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
50



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 39 of 44 

County’s 1996 amendment, designation of satellite city and town urban growth areas, a UGA 
was established at the existing jurisdictional boundary for the City of Buckley.  The 1994 
County Plan designated the City of Buckley’s UGA to include portions of unincorporated 
Pierce County beyond their existing city or jurisdictional limits.  These designations are 
based upon the jurisdictions’ commitment and apparent ability to provide urban level 
services and facilities to these areas.  Ultimately, the specific activities and land uses 
encouraged within these areas and the growth management system used will be identified 
through a joint planning process and subsequent negotiation and execution of Interlocal 
Agreements (ILAs). 
 
As stated in the County’s Comprehensive Plan, rural areas are defined as, outside the Urban 
Growth Area, but not including designated agricultural, forestry, or mining areas of long-
term commercial significance.  The context of rural areas is provided by the adjacent lands, 
such as designated forest land, and the land uses, such as designated agricultural land, that 
are interspersed within the rural areas.  Typically, rural areas have received their identity 
from a rural way of life rooted in history and resource-based industries such as commercial 
fishing, aquaculture, lumber milling, logging, dairying, daffodil or berry farming, horse 
ranching, and mining.  The Rural Center Alternative is consistent with the rural environment 
described in the County Plan.  In rural areas, the primary objectives of the County Plan are: 
 

Encourage diverse economic vitality in ways that protect the rural way of life and are 
compatible with the rural environment. 
 
Allow a range of rural densities within the carrying capacity of the natural 
environment. 
 
Allow a mix of uses that could include Rural Activity Centers, Rural Neighborhood 
Centers, and Rural Gateway Communities. 
 
Direct higher intensity mixed use development into rural centers, appropriate in 
character and scale to the rural environment. 

 
Countywide Planning Policies 
 

• Include the timing, phasing, and location of sewer interceptor expansions in the 
capital facilities element of the County Comprehensive Plan and ensure 
consistency with countywide planning policies, the Urban Growth Area 
boundaries and the Comprehensive Plan.  Coordinate phased expansions with the 
municipalities and give priority to existing urbanized unincorporated areas within 
the Urban Growth Area and to existing municipalities that do not have the ability 
to add capacity.  (Urban Growth Policy 3.4.1) 

 
  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
51



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 40 of 44 

Response 
 
Planned improvements to the City’s system include upgrading existing trunk lines with 
downstream trunk lines being replaced first.  Additionally, the City of Buckley will also 
accept wastewater from the Rainier School that is within the City limits.     
 

• Extend sewer interceptors outside of the Urban Growth Area only where:  (i) 
sewer service will remedy groundwater contamination and other health problems 
by replacing septic systems and community on-site sewage systems, or (ii) a 
formal binding agreement to service an approved planned development was made 
prior to the establishment of the Urban Growth Area.  (Urban Growth Policy 
3.4.2) 

 
Response 
 
The City has an existing policy not to allow extension of their sewer line outside of their 
incorporated area.  This is consistent with any UGA area. 
 

Ensure that sewer interceptors inside the Urban Growth Areas follow Tier phasing of 
capital facilities (1-6), (7-13), (14-20) unless:  (i) sewer service will remedy 
groundwater contamination and other health problems by replacing septic systems 
and community on-site sewage systems, or (ii) a formal binding agreement to service 
an approved planned development was made prior to the establishment of the Urban 
Growth Area.  (Urban Growth Policy 3.4.2) 

 
Response 
 
Existing City policy provides that where a City sewer line is extended along properties that 
have private or community septic system, all residences are required to connect to the new 
City sewer line. 
 

Prohibit availability of sewer service connections from interceptors to properties 
along the interceptor alignment where urban intensity development is not consistent 
with the Urban Growth Area boundary or tier designations and the County 
Comprehensive Plan.  (Urban Growth Policy 3.4.2) 

 
Response 

 
See response to UGP 3.4.1.  Development within the UGA and eventual urbanization with 
necessary public services and utilities is planned.  The extension of services from existing 
systems is planned as an incremental expansion into an immediately adjacent area. 
 

Recognize the necessity of adopting policies on the location and use of on-site and 
community sewage systems to protect the public health and safety of the citizens of 
Pierce County and to preserve and protect environmental quality and to protect 
aquifer recharge areas.  (Urban Growth Policy 3.4.3) 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
52



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 41 of 44 

 
Response 
 
On-site and community septic systems are not proposed in the City of Buckley 
Comprehensive Plan.  If the City sewer line is extended adjacent to residences with septic 
systems, City policy requires that a new sewer connection be provided. 
 

Prohibit the use of availability or potential for availability of sewer treatment plant 
capacity as justification for expansion of the sewer system or development in a 
manner inconsistent with the County-Wide Planning Policy, Urban Growth Area 
boundaries and the County Comprehensive Plan.  (Urban Growth Policy 3.4.4) 

 
Response 
 
Any planned expansion of the City of Buckley sewer system would need to be included in an 
updated Comprehensive Plan.  See also response to UGP 3.4.1. 
 

Integrate land use and transportation planning with health and human services 
planning to promote service delivery at affordable costs. (R-5) 

 
Response 
 
All City roadways would need to meet applicable roadway standards for safe movement and 
access of emergency vehicles. 
 

• Coordinate planning efforts among jurisdictions, agencies and federally 
recognized tribes where there are common borders or related regional issues to 
facilitate a common vision, consistency and effective implementation of planning 
goals.  (RI-1) 

 
Response 
 
The City of Buckley plan policies were developed through a cooperative effort with Pierce 
County when developing the Pierce County Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Protect significant regional open space, resource lands and critical areas through 
inter-jurisdictional planning by the identification, designation, preservation and 
enhancement of these lands, including linkages and networks.  (RO-3) 

 
Response 
 
The Land Use Element Policies allow for and encourage clustering concepts that provide 
open space areas to accomplish retention of open space for passive recreation, use 
compatibility, habitat conservation corridors, and the protection and preservation of 
environmentally sensitive areas. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
53



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 42 of 44 

Frame and separate central places and urban growth areas by creating and preserving 
a network of permanent urban and rural open space, including parks, recreation areas, 
critical areas, and resource lands. (RO-4) 

 
Response 
 
Clustering concepts will better retain open space, habitat corridors, and environmentally 
sensitive areas. 
 

The designated Urban Growth Area must be of sufficient size to accommodate only 
the urban growth projected to occur over the succeeding 20-year planning period.  
(Urban Growth Policy 2.1.1) 

 
Response 
 
The growth plan for the Urban Growth Area for the City of Buckley will be of sufficient size 
to accommodate anticipated growth in the next 20-year time frame.  The Land Use Element 
policies state that these growth boundaries will be reviewed periodically based on an updated 
20-year population projection. 
 

Consider any of the following in determining the location of urban growth area 
boundaries:  geographic, topographic, and manmade features; public facility and 
service availability, limits and extensions; jurisdictional boundaries including special 
improvement districts; location of designated natural resource lands and critical areas; 
avoidance of unserviceable islands of County land surrounded by other jurisdictional 
entities; or Vision 2020 urban/rural line and PSAPCA burn ban line.  (Urban Growth 
Policy 2.2) 

 
Response 
 
Clustering concepts will better retain open space, habitat corridors, and environmentally 
sensitive areas.  Determination of the UGA used several criteria to determine a logical 
extension of existing City boundaries including citizen preferences, logical topographic 
boundaries, containment of urbanized growth areas, and compatible uses with adjacent 
resource and critical areas. 
 

Designate tiers within the designated Urban Growth Area to discourage urban sprawl 
and leapfrog development and encourage adequate public facilities and services 
concurrent with development.  (Urban Growth Policy 2.3.1) 

 
Response 
 
See response to UGP 3.4.1.  Development within the UGA and eventual urbanization with 
necessary public services and utilities is planned.  The extension of services from existing 
systems is planned as an incremental expansion into an immediately adjacent area. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
54



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 43 of 44 

Adopt a process as well as standards and criteria by which a shift of land from one 
tier to another would take place.  (Urban Growth Policy 2.3.2) 

 
Response 
 
See relevant Land Use Element policies and policies relating to on-site transfer of density 
from environmentally sensitive areas. 
 

Relate the primary growth area (Tier 1) to the County’s 6-year capital facilities plan; 
ensure that urban growth in the primary urban growth area is sensitive to 
compatibility and fit with the type and density of existing development.  (Urban 
Growth Policy 2.3.3) 
 
Relate the secondary, (years 7-13) and tertiary (years 14-20) growth areas to the long-
range planning, capital improvement and service provision horizon.  (Urban Growth 
Policy 2.3.4) 
 
In the secondary and tertiary (if applicable) growth area, make various techniques 
available to property owners to ensure a reasonable use within a reasonable period of 
time.  (Urban Growth Policy 2.3.5) 
 
Condition approval of new fully contained communities within the current tier or 
subsequent tiers on inclusion of a phasing plan to ensure that the various segments of 
the development are timely served by adequate public facilities and services.  (Urban 
Growth Policy 2.3.6) 

 
Response 
 
Tier 1 (primary) growth is addressed under the City’s 6-year capital facilities plan.  
Development within the UGA and eventual urbanization with necessary public services and 
utilities is planned.  The extension of services from existing systems is planned as an 
incremental expansion into an immediately adjacent area. 
 

Allow extension of the Urban Growth Area to accommodate build-out of newly 
developed areas only if development capacity within municipal urban growth 
boundaries and growth in the areas identified in Policy 2.5 above is determined to be 
inadequate to meet total population and employment projections consistent with the 
other County-Wide Planning Policies.  (Urban Growth Policy 2.6) 

 
Response 
 
The Land Use Element policies state that these growth boundaries will be reviewed 
periodically based on an updated 20-year population projection. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
55



Utilities Element 7 

City of Buckley - Utilities Element 11/21/2019 11:33 AM Page 44 of 44 

Adopt measures to ensure that growth and development within the Urban Growth 
Area is timed and phased consistent with the provision of adequate public facilities 
and services.  (Urban Growth Policy 3) 

 
Response 
 
See response to UGP 3.4.1.  Development within the UGA and eventual urbanization with 
necessary public services and utilities is planned.  The extension of services from existing 
systems is planned as an incremental expansion into an immediately adjacent area. 
 

Adopt plans and implementation measures to ensure that sprawl and leapfrog 
development are discouraged.  (Urban Growth Policy 3.6) 

 
Response 
 
The Land Use Element contains policies which reduce sprawl and leapfrog development 
including using the urban growth area as a focus for designation of residential densities to 
avoid sprawl and provide for logical services and planning for public facilities and utilities.  
The designated UGA would meet the following criteria including:  containing areas 
characterized by urban growth; areas to be served or planned to be served by municipal 
facilities and services; uses would be compatible with the use of designated resource lands 
and critical areas following logical boundaries. 
 

Use joint municipal-County planning for designated Urban Growth Areas of 
municipalities, outside of municipal corporate limits.  Joint jurisdictional planning 
shall occur in those other areas where the respective jurisdictions agree such joint 
planning would be beneficial.  (Urban Growth Policy 4) 

 
Response 
 
The City of Buckley plan policies were developed through a cooperative effort with Pierce 
County.  The City has joined other cities in Pierce County through the Pierce County 
Regional Council (PCRC) to negotiate an interlocal planning agreement. 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
56



 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
57



 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
58



 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
59



 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
60



 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
61



CITY OF BUCKLEY

³

"ÎTP

[Ú

[Ú[Ú

[Ú

[Ú

[Ú

RYAN RD

SR
165

 E

SR410 E

112TH ST E

MAIN ST

SR410 S

MU
ND

Y 
LO

SS
 R

D 
E

COLLINS RD

SR
41

0 N

128TH ST E

N RIVE
R AV

SUMNER-BUCKLEY HWY E

PARK AV

MASON AV E

S A
 S

T

SP
IK

ET
ON

 R
D

PE
ARL S

T

321ST AV E
126TH ST E

HINKLEMAN RD E

SH
EE

TS
 R

D

124TH ST E

318TH AV E

S R
IVE

R AV

120TH ST E

29
8T

H 
AV

 E

SP
IK

ET
ON

 R
D 

E

96TH ST E

86TH ST E

DA
VI

S 
ST

S C
 S

T

27
8T

H 
AV

 E

PIONEER WY E

THIRD AV

SECOND AV

27
4T

H 
AV

 E

4TH AV

S D
 S

T

122ND ST E

JEFFERSON AV

S D
IV

IS
IO

N 
ST

BORELL RD E

KL
IN

K 
ST

N A
 S

T

S C
ED

AR
 S

T S B
 ST

DUNDASS AV

COULS AV

LEVESQUE RD E

LU
ND

 ST

MASON AV W

N MCNEELY ST

S C
OT

TA
GE

 S
T

N 
4T

H 
ST

S N
AC

HE
S 

ST

N 
3R

D 
ST

N 
2N

D 
ST

ENTWHISTLE RD E

S 2
ND

 S
T

S 3
RD

 S
T

ROSE PL

DIERINGER AV

BUS LOOP RD

S MILL ST

OLSEN AV

S P
ER

KI
NS

 S
T

S E
LS

A S
T

LEVESQUE RD
WHITE RIVER PARK RD

SHAY RD

N 
ED

ITH
 ST

GR
AV

ITY
 W

Y

S R
AI

NI
ER

 S
T

WE
SN

ER
 S

T

N 
CA

SC
AD

E 
ST

QU
IN

A L
T

CT

121ST ST E

WHITEHOUSE AV

CEM
ETE

RY
 RD

LAPIERRE AV

SP
AU

LD
IN

G 
CI

R

N 
NA

CH
ES

 S
T

N SERGEANT ST

27
5T

H 
AV

 E

BE
VL

O 
ST

FOURTH AV

27
7T

H 
AV

 E

HEATHER LN

GA
RN

ER
O 

ST

MOUNTAIN VIEW AV

306TH AV E

N 
EL

SA
 S

T

TANNER AV

HE
YN

ES
 S

T

28
2N

D 
AV

 E

HA
TC

H 
ST

SORENSEN ST

AMMON ST

WHITMORE WY

S M
CN

EE
LY

 ST

S 4
TH

 S
T

DAVIS PL

BOYLE ST

EVANS C T
HI

NK
LE

MA
N 

EX
TE

NS
IO

N 
RD

 E

N PIO
NEE

R ST

RO
SE

W
O O

D
DR

300
TH

 AV
 E

S S
PR

UC
E 

ST

CO
LL

IN
S C

T

N 
C 

ST

S S
ER

GE
AN

T S
T

30
2N

D 
AV

 E
N 

CO
TT

AG
E 

ST

83RD ST E

BALM AV

30
4T

H A
V E

N 
NO

RM
A S

T

MOUNTAIN CIR

RIVE R AV

HARMON ST

28
8T

H 
AV

CT
 E

MEADOWBROO K
PK

N 
B 

ST

TR
UL

LIN
GE

R S
T

FIELDCREST PL

CH
IN

OO
K D

R

FRANKLIN ST

RO
SE

LL
IN

I S
T

27
6T

H 
AV

 E

N 
D 

ST

KAREN AV

27
5T

H
A V

CT E

ASHLEY CT

CHAMBERLAIN ST

31
0T

H 
AV

 E

27
6T

H 
AV

CT
 E

N 
FU

LT
ON

 S
T

N
EW

IN
G

ST

HAMILTON CT

VIEW PL

MO
NT

E 
VI

ST
A S

T

N S
PR

UC
E S

T

N 
RA

IN
IE

R 
ST

S P
ION

EE
R S

T

122ND STCT E

PERKINS ST

WH
ITM

OR
E C

TBALM AV

124TH ST E

122ND ST E

120TH ST E

S D
IV

IS
IO

N 
ST

SR
410

 S

27
4T

H 
AV

 E

126TH ST E

SPIKETON RD

27
4T

H 
AV

 E

128TH ST E

MASON AV E

FIGURE NO. S3
SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Legend
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS:

PROPOSED SEWER FORCE MAINS
PROPOSED GRAVITY SEWER LINES

[Ú PROPOSED PUMP STATION
EXISTING SEWER SYSTEM:

EXISTING SEWER FORCE MAINS
EXISTING GRAVITY SEWER LINES

"ÎTP EXISTING SEWER TREATMENT PLANT
[Ú EXISTING PUMP STATION

EXISTING BUCKLEY CITY LIMITS & UGA

SOURCE: PIERCE COUNTY GIS

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 L:
\BU

CK
LE

Y\1
32

28
 Se

we
r P

lan
\Fi

gu
res

\FI
G 

NO
. S

3 -
 C

AP
ITA

L I
MP

RO
VE

ME
NT

S.m
xd

T-1

L-1

F-1

G-5

G-2

G-6

G-4

G-1G-3

0 1,500 3,000
Feet

TP-1 TP-2

L-3L-4
F-4 F-3

F-2L-2

DATE: 11/05/19

G-7

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
62



 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
63



 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
64



 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
65



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 1 of 73 

8 Capital Facilities  
 TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................. 5 
Purpose of the Capital Facilities Element ................................................. 5 
Urban Growth Area ........................................................................... 6 

II. MUNICIPAL FACILITIES ............................................................................... 6 
EXISTING FACILITIES ...................................................................................... 6 

City Hall Building ............................................................................. 6 
Multi-Purpose Center ......................................................................... 6 
Public Works Facilities ....................................................................... 7 
Youth Center 7 
Fire Station 7 
Police Station 7 

III. 2018 MUNICIPAL FACILITY EVALUATION ............................................. 8 
Table CF-1 6- and 20-year needs ....................................................... 9 

BUILDING EVALUATIONS.................................................................................. 9 
City Hall Building ............................................................................. 9 
Multi-Purpose Center ....................................................................... 11 
Building/Planning ........................................................................... 11 
Municipal Court ............................................................................. 11 
Senior Center 12 
Council/Court Room ........................................................................ 12 
Youth Center 12 
Public Works Facilities ..................................................................... 12 
Police Department Services ............................................................... 14 
Future Demand .............................................................................. 14 
Buckley Police Department Future Needs .............................................. 15 
Table CF-2 Projected Additions to Police Department Staff .................... 15 
Table CF-3 Police Department needs ................................................ 15 
Fire & EMS Services ....................................................................... 16 
Chart CF-2, Population & Call Volume History ....................................... 18 
Forecast Projected Needs .................................................................. 18 
Facilities 18 
Table CF-4 Fire Department Apparatus/Equipment .............................. 19 
Table CF-5 Fire Department Personnel .............................................. 19 
Level-of-Service Standards ................................................................ 19 
Fire Services 20 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
66



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 2 of 73 

Parks 20 
Potable Water 20 
Sanitary Sewer ................................................................................ 20 
Storm and Surface Water Drainage ....................................................... 21 
Transportation: ............................................................................... 21 

IV. WATER SYSTEM ............................................................................................ 21 
INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................... 21 
SOURCE AND SUPPLY .................................................................................... 21 

Level of Service .............................................................................. 21 
Inventory of System ......................................................................... 21 
Forecast of Future Needs ................................................................... 24 

TREATMENT ............................................................................................... 25 
Level of Service .............................................................................. 25 
Inventory System ............................................................................. 25 
Forecast of Future Needs ................................................................... 25 

STORAGE .................................................................................................. 26 
Level of Service .............................................................................. 26 
Inventory of System ......................................................................... 26 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs ................................................... 26 

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM ........................................................ 26 
Level of Service .............................................................................. 26 
Inventory of System ......................................................................... 27 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs ................................................... 27 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN ......................................................................... 29 
Source and Supply Projects ................................................................ 29 
Table CF-6 Source and Supply Water Projects ..................................... 29 
Water Treatment Projects ................................................................... 29 
Table CF-7 Treatment System Improvements ...................................... 30 
Water Storage Projects ...................................................................... 30 
Table CF-8 Storage Projects ............................................................ 30 
Transmission Main Projects ................................................................ 30 
Table CF-9 Transmission Main Projects ............................................. 30 
Distribution Main Projects ................................................................. 31 
Table CF-10 Distribution Main Projects ............................................... 31 

RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN ..................................................................... 31 
Table CF-11 Monthly Water System Rates – Base Charge for 200 cubic feet . 31 

V. SEWAGE COLLECTION AND TREATMENT .......................................... 33 
COLLECTION SYSTEM ................................................................................... 34 

Level of Service-+ ........................................................................... 34 
Inventory of System ......................................................................... 34 
Table CF-12 Collection System Inventory ............................................ 34 
Proposed Location and Future Needs .................................................... 35 

AREA LIFT STATIONS .................................................................................... 37 
COMPLETION OF SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REHABILITATION .................................. 38 
TREATMENT SYSTEM .................................................................................... 38 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
67



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 3 of 73 

Level of Service ............................................................................. 38 
Table CF-13 NPDES Permit Limits ................................................... 38 
Inventory of System ........................................................................ 39 
Treatment System Improvements ........................................................ 39 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN .......................................................................... 41 
Collection System ........................................................................... 41 
Table CF-14 Gravity Sewer and Trunk Sewer Projects ............................ 41 
Lift Station and Force Main Projects .................................................... 41 
Table CF-15 Lift Station and Force Main Projects .................................. 41 
Treatment Plant Improvements ........................................................... 43 
Table CF-16 Treatment Plant Improvements ........................................ 43 

RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN ..................................................................... 43 
VI. STORMWATER COLLECTION AND TREATMENT .............................. 45 

TREATMENT ............................................................................................... 45 
Level of Service ............................................................................. 45 

COLLECTION .............................................................................................. 46 
Level of Service ............................................................................. 46 
System Inventory ............................................................................ 46 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs .................................................. 49 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN .......................................................................... 52 
Stormwater System ......................................................................... 52 
Table CF-17 Stormwater Projects ...................................................... 52 

RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN ..................................................................... 52 
VII. OTHER UTILITIES ........................................................................................ 54 

NATURAL GAS UTILITY ................................................................................. 54 
ELECTRICAL UTILITIES .................................................................................. 56 
TELECOMMUNICATION UTILITIES ...................................................................... 57 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION ............................................................................ 58 
TRANSPORTATION ........................................................................................ 58 

Table CF-18 6-year Transportation Improvement Plan ............................ 58 
PARKS AND RECREATION ............................................................................... 59 

Level of Service ............................................................................. 59 
Table CF-19 Parks & Recreation LOS Standards ................................... 59 
Inventory of System ........................................................................ 60 
Table CF-20 Existing Inventory of Facilities ........................................ 60 
Facility Needs 61 
Table CF-21 Parks and Recreation Facility Needs .................................. 61 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN .......................................................................... 62 
Parks and Recreation ....................................................................... 62 
Table CF-22 Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement Schedule ............... 62 

RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN ..................................................................... 62 
Table CF-23 Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement Funding Sources ..... 63 

MUNICIPAL FACILITIES .................................................................................. 63 
Table CF-24 Public Facilities Projects ................................................ 64 

FIRE PROTECTION FACILITIES .......................................................................... 64 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
68



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 4 of 73 

POLICE PROTECTION ..................................................................................... 64 
Police Facilities ............................................................................... 65 

VIII. GENERAL CITY FINANCE .......................................................................... 65 
Table CF-25 Distribution of City Revenues Available for Current Expenses .. 65 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL FUNDING ...................................................................... 66 
Table CF-26 Intergovernmental Assistance for the Years 2012 to 2014 ........ 67 

CAPITAL FUNDS .......................................................................................... 68 
Table CF-27 City of Buckley Capital Funds Sources for the Years 2012 to 201468 
Table CF-28 Current 2018 Balance in the Major Capital Improvement Enterprise 
Funds 68 

CITY-OWNED UTILITIES ................................................................................ 69 
Table CF-29 City-Owned Utilities – Water, Sewer, Storm Revenue Generated69 

POTENTIAL SOURCES OF ADDITIONAL REVENUES/FUNDING CAPACITY ........................ 70 
Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) ........................................................... 70 
B&O Tax on General Business ............................................................ 70 
B&O Tax on Utilities ........................................................................ 70 
Table CF-30 Current Utility and B&O Rates ......................................... 70 
Formation of Local Improvement District (LID) ....................................... 71 
Transportation Benefit Districts ........................................................... 71 
Transportation Improvement Board ...................................................... 72 

PLAN OF FINANCE, CAPITAL FACILITIES FINANCE STRATEGY .................................... 72 
Expanded Revenue Base .................................................................... 72 
New Revenue Sources ...................................................................... 73 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
69



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 5 of 73 

 Capital Facilities Element 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

Purpose of the Capital Facilities Element 
 
This Capital Facilities Element has been prepared in accordance with Section 36.70A.070 of 
the Growth Management Act (GMA) to address the need for and the financing of capital 
facilities in the City of Buckley and its Urban Growth Area.  The GMA requires all 
Comprehensive Plans to include a Capital Facilities Element, which analyzes the need for 
future capital improvements to support the development goals stated in the Land Use 
Element, as well as the funding mechanisms available for implementation. 
 
The GMA requires cities to have a plan in place to ensure that capital facilities are developed 
concurrently with future development and the needs of the local population.  This 
Comprehensive Planning effort is a required step of the process to assure the City of Buckley 
is fully compliant with GMA goals. 
 
Toward this end, the Capital Facilities Element includes the following sections. 

 
• Inventory of existing capital facilities, showing location and capacities of all 

facilities 
 
• Forecast of future needs (for the next 6 years minimum) 

 
• The proposed locations and capacities of expanded or new capital facilities 

 
• At least a 6-year plan that will finance such facilities within projected funding 

capacities and identifies sources of public money for such purposes 
 

• Coordinate land use element, capital facilities element, and element plan 
 

The GMA also contains requirements pertaining to the concept of concurrency.  Concurrency 
means that jurisdictions must be able to demonstrate that all utilities, including roads, can be 
made available for all new development at the time such development is constructed.  Plans 
for making those utilities available when the development is built must include a financing 
plan.  Thus, this Capital Facilities Element represents an important part of the plans needed 
to meet those requirements. 
 
The Capital Facilities Element also has been developed in accordance with county wide 
planning policies, and has been integrated with all other planning elements to ensure 
consistency throughout the Comprehensive Plan.  The Capital Facilities Element considers 
the general location, proposed location, and capacity of existing and proposed utilities, 
including water, sewer, surface water drainage, natural gas, and other municipal services and 
facilities, such as fire and police protection services. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
70



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 6 of 73 

Urban Growth Area 
 
The Urban Growth Area (UGA) boundary was selected in order to ensure that urban services, 
including utilities, can be provided to the residents of each development at an acceptable 
level of service.  This includes the provision of utility and other capital facilities.  The UGA 
is depicted in Figure 1 of the Land Use Element, and on the utility maps in the Utilities 
Element. 
 
All development requiring urban services will be located in the UGA, and will have these 
services extended in a timely feasible manner.  For that portion of the UGA which is 
currently located outside City boundaries, annexation would need to occur prior to extension 
of most City services, with the exception of areas where existing service agreements may 
apply, or where services may be extended for public health and safety reasons. 
 

II. MUNICIPAL FACILITIES 
 
Existing Facilities  
 
City functions and operations are conducted from six (6) different facilities, with the 
exception of the Wastewater Treatment Plant, which is headquartered at 600 Hatch Street. 
These include City Hall at 933 Main Street, Multi-Purpose Center at 811 Main Street, Public 
Works Office Building at 250 S. River Avenue, Youth Center at 251 S. River Avenue, Fire 
Station at 611 S. Division and Police Station at 146 Cedar Street. In addition the City also 
has the Museum Building at 130 North River Avenue, Community Center (Buckley Hall) at 
127 N River Avenue, Buckley Cemetery Office at 600 Cemetery Rd, PW Garage/Shop at 
243 Pearl Street and three (3) storage outbuildings.  
 

City Hall Building  
 
The City Hall building is a 1,917 square foot one-story facility constructed in 1903 located at 
933 Main Street. City administration and finance operations were relocated to this building in 
1992. At that time the City had new windows installed and new carpeting installed 
throughout. Since that time there have been no other improvements, except for a new HVAC 
system which was installed in 2008.   
 

Multi-Purpose Center 
 
The Multi-Purpose is a 6,350 square foot one-story brick building constructed in 1979. This 
facility is used for multiple operations including Building/Planning Departments, Municipal 
Court, Senior Center and Council Chambers. The structure was constructed with grant 
funding for City purposes so no other activities have utilized this building except for those 
identified. Since construction there have been no major improvements, except for a new 
HVAC system which was installed in 2008.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
71



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 7 of 73 

Public Works Facilities  
 
The Public Works Office/Shop Facility consists of multiple structures located at 250 S. River 
Avenue and 243 Pearl Street. The primary Public Works Office Building is a newly 
renovated 1,560 square foot one-story wood frame building that functions as the operations 
center for the City Public Works and Utility Department. This building was totally renovated 
in 2017 and has no current needs. The second building is a 4,500 square foot Shop/Garage 
that has been converted at one end into small offices, with open storage bays in the middle 
and a mechanic shop in the opposite end. This building is an older one and one-half story 
wood frame building constructed in 1925. The building has been added onto a number of 
times with the most recent improvement added in 2008 when the west end was converted and 
improved into office space for the PW staff. In addition the Public Works Facility site 
contains one (1) storage outbuilding. 
 
Public Works Facilities also includes the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant located at 600 
Hatch Street.  
 

Youth Center 
 
The Youth Activities Center is a 2,730 square foot one-story wood frame building located at 
251 S. River Avenue. The Center was constructed in 2008 funded in part by a grant from 
HUD.  The Center is a drop-in center; open to teens ages 8-18 from the White River area. It 
provides a safe and fun environment for teens to hang out. It has everything from video 
games to a pool , guitar lessons, tutoring and much more. It also provides occasional classes 
and activities (e.g. dances, camp, plays, cardiopulmonary resuscitation, and arts and crafts). It 
is a non-profit center that is funded through the City of Buckley, government grants, and 
donations from various community groups. Since construction there have been no major 
improvements made to the building. 
 

Fire Station 
 
The City Fire Station is a 21,120 square foot building constructed in 2011 located at 611 S. 
Division Street. The Station construction was completed early in 2012 and began conducting 
Fire & EMS operations from there shortly after. No additional improvements were made 
since construction. 
 

Police Station  
 
The City purchased the building at 146 Cedar Street that is currently used for the Police 
Station in 2010 from the White River School District. In 2011 the Police Department moved 
operations from 133 S Cedar St to 146 S Cedar St. purchasing the building and closed the jail 
and dispatch center, contracting those services with other agencies.  Over the past seven 
years the building that was purchased was painted and remodeled inside to include; new 
Patrol office space, carpet, kitchen, lobby, BAC Room and new sign mounted on the building 
front indicating the Buckley Police Dept.  In 2018 a garage was built on the property for 
storage and maintenance of equipment and records.   

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
72



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 8 of 73 

III. 2018 MUNICIPAL FACILITY EVALUATION  
 
In 2018, an evaluation was conducted with three primary goals; 1) conduct a space needs 
assessment for all City functions for the present, as well as projections for space needs at six 
years and 20 years; 2) evaluate existing structures for present and future use in light of the 
results of the space needs assessment; and 3) develop a long-range plan for the Municipal 
Facilities in light of both the space needs assessment and the building evaluations. Each 
aspect of the Municipal Facility Evaluation will be discussed below.  
 
Space Needs Assessment  
The Space Needs Assessment was based primarily on information provided by department 
directors and other key personnel. A series of discussions with City staff, as well as with the 
Mayor and the City Administrator formed the basis of both present and future space needs. 
Department directors were asked to provide information on their current staffing levels along 
with an estimate of future staff needs at 6-year and 20-year intervals. These estimates were 
based on estimates of the growth of the City while assuming existing service levels will 
continue into the future.  
 
Each staff position was then allocated an amount of space based primarily on the space needs 
of that particular position. The criteria used to determine this was based on the following list: 
 
Employees Requiring Offices: 
 

• Mayor (400 square feet) 
• Administrator (200 square feet) 
• Directors/Managers (150 square feet) 

 
• Employees Requiring Cubicles: 

 
• Engineers/Planners (175 square feet) 
• Accountants (150 square feet) 
• Clerical (125 square feet) 
• I.T. (125 square feet) 
• *General (125 square feet) 

 
• Employees in an Open Area: 

 
• Data entry (125 square feet) 
• Clerks (125 square feet) 
• Temps (100 square feet) 

 
• Permanent Rooms and Spaces:  

 
• File room (100 square feet) 
• Storage room or library (100 square feet) 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
73



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 9 of 73 

• Work room (75 square feet) 
• Reception area (75 square feet plus 10 square feet per person waiting) 
• Lunch or break room (75 square feet plus 25 square feet per person seated) 
• Conference room (50 square feet plus 25 square feet per person seated 
• Restrooms (75 square feet each/gender) 

 
*Note: For calculation purposes “General” refers to position categories where a work station 
is provided, but not a normal full-time function of the position: for example utility workers, 
police officers, etc. 
 
The need for space in square feet identified through this process is summarized in the   CF-1 
below.  
 

Table CF-1 6- and 20-year needs 
 

Six- and Twenty-Year Space Needs 
Facility Existing 6-year 20-year 

City Hall 1,917 2,210 2,830 
Multi-Purpose Center 6,350   

Building/Planning 1,005 1,150 1,275 
Court Offices 528 615 740 

Senior 2,100 2,225 2,225 
Council/Court 2,100 2,100 2,100 

Public Works Facilities    
PW Office 1,560 1,560 1,560 

PW Shop/Garage 4,500 5,000 5,000 
PW Storage 800 4,700 4,700 

WWTP N/A N/A N/A 
Youth Center 2,688 2,688 2,688 
Fire Station 21,120 21,120 20,373 

Police Station    
 
 
Building Evaluations  
 

City Hall Building  
 
The evaluation of the City Hall Building revealed a number of serious problems. The existing 
building was constructed 115 years ago and has had only minor improvements throughout its 
long history including but not limited to metal roofing, new siding, carpeting, windows, 
electrical wiring and HVAC. 
 
The HVAC system was replaced in 2008; however, the duct system was only partially 
replaced and needs further improvement. Due to the age of the building exterior wall 
insulation is inadequate which makes it very expensive to heat and cool. The windows were 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
74



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 10 of 73 

replaced when City operations moved into the building in 1992, but they were industry 
standard at that time and are all single-pane, which adds to the difficulty in heating and 
cooling.    
 
The existing telecommunication hubs are located in the rear mechanical room where there is 
minimal insulation and a multitude of other equipment. This is an extremely harsh 
environment for this type of equipment.  
 
The existing electrical system within the City Hall was upgraded at some point in the past 
with 200 amp service and is in serviceable condition, but due to original exterior wall 
construction with lathe and plaster interior wall covering its difficult to ascertain whether or 
not all of the old wires have been replaced. The existing branch circuiting in the City Hall is 
inadequate, both in number of available circuits and in number of available receptacle 
outlets.  
 
The existing roof is pitched rafter with metal covering that was installed over preexisting 
composition 25-30 years ago. Although these are no apparent leaks it is beginning to show its 
age and will need to be replaced within the next 10 years. 

 
The building currently serves the administration, finance and clerical staff consisting of the 
Mayor, City Administrator, Finance Director, City Clerk, Finance Assistant and 
Administrative Assistant. In addition the building contains a small kitchen, conference area, 
single restroom, mechanical room, waiting area and file storage area.  

 
By utilizing current employee space needs estimates, City Hall has already exceeded capacity 
by 293 square feet. In addition we know that within the next 6- to 10-year timeframe the 
existing building will need: 
 
• Roof replacement – ($40K est) 
• Window replacement – ($30K est) 
• Carpet replacement – ($20K est) 
• Kitchen remodel – ($40K est) 
• Restroom remodel – ($25K est) 
 
Based on the initial assessment staff has identified that to resolve current and short-term 6-
year needs City Hall needs to be expanded by 293 square feet. In order to accommodate the 
20-year planning horizon an additional 175 square feet expansion needs to occur. The City 
Hall building is a square 42 feet by 57 feet structure that is placed approximately center on 
the 0.33 acre lot with room on either the east or west side for expansion. However, the needs 
for the building and layout of the floor area are more conducive to partial addition on the 
southern half of the building with a 15’ by 30’  expansion onto the east side for additional 
office space and a 23’ by 30’ expansion on the west side to expand the kitchen, mechanical 
room and add a 2nd restroom. Completion of this alternative would result in an expansion of 
1,140 square feet at an estimated cost of $230 per square foot for a total cost of $262,200. 
  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
75



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 11 of 73 

The 6-year planning period identifies a need of 293 square feet with another 175 square feet 
for the 20-year period. Since expansion and remodeling of the existing building would 
capture 1,140 square feet of space meeting both the 6-year and 20-year planning horizon, the 
$262,200 cost will be used for the 6-year planning projection.  
 

Multi-Purpose Center  
 
The Multi-Purpose identified under existing buildings serves for multiple operations 
including building/planning, court, senior services and council chambers. Because of the 
varied uses and needs we’ll discuss and evaluate the overall building’s condition and 
structural needs and evaluate and breakdown needs within each department/section area. 
The building is a 6,350 square foot, one-story brick building constructed in 1979. It is slab on 
grade with brick walls and minimal insulation. Existing windows are single pane with air 
gaps along the perimeter of some of the windows. Although the HVAC system was replaced 
in 2008 through a DOE Energy Grant it is still highly inefficient because of the lack of 
insulation and type of construction. The roof is a flat roof that has not been replaced since 
construction.  
 
Short term maintenance of the building will require at a minimum the following: 
 
• Roof replacement – ($125K est) 
• Window replacement – ($40K est) 
• Carpet replacement – ($30K est) 
• Foyer tile replacement – ($12K est) 
• Façade sealing – ($15K est) 
• Main entry door(s) replacement – ($20K) 
 

Building/Planning  
 
currently operates out of the NW corner of the building in an area approximately 1,005 
square feet. This area includes the main reception area with customer counter, a planning 
office, building office, lunch room, one restroom and a storage closet. The single restroom 
and kitchen/storage closet serves both the building/planning staff and the court staff because 
of their location between areas. 
 
By utilizing current employee space needs estimates, the Building/Planning Office currently 
needs 1,150 square feet and has therefore exceeded capacity by 145 square feet. Based on the 
initial assessment staff has identified that to resolve current and near term (six years) needs 
an additional 145 square feet must be added resulting in a total need of 145 square feet. 
 

Municipal Court  
 
the court administration office operates out of the SW corner of the building in an area 
approximately 528 square feet. This area includes a reception area with shared copy machine 
and 3 offices. The court staff shares the restroom and kitchen/storage closet with the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
76



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 12 of 73 

building/planning staff. Court is held in the Council Chambers that often experiences over 
capacity depending upon the size of the court docket for that day. 
 
By utilizing current employee space needs estimates, the Municipal Court Admin. Office 
currently needs 615 square feet and has therefore exceeded capacity by 87 square feet. Based 
on the initial assessment staff has identified that to resolve current and a near term (6-year 
plan) needs an additional 87 square feet must be added resulting in a total need of 87 square 
feet. 
 

Senior Center  
 
the Senior Center operates out of the NE corner of the building in an area approximately 
2,100 square feet. This area includes a reception area, office, store room, storage closet, 
restroom, dining area and commercial kitchen.  
 
By utilizing current employee space needs estimates, the senior staff needs an additional 125 
square feet of office space to resolve current and 6-year needs. 
 

Council/Court Room  
 
the Council Chambers/Court Room encompasses the SE corner of the building and serves as 
a meeting room for City Council, Planning Commission, Municipal Court, and as an 
event/game room for the seniors and other City functions. The space is adequate for current 
and future needs. 
 

Youth Center  
 
The Youth Activities Center is a 2,730 square foot facility that serves as drop-in center for 
youth ages 8-18 from the White River area. The building includes a conference room, office, 
storage room, kitchen, counseling room, computer conference room, game room, lobby, 
storage closet and two restrooms. 
 
By utilizing current employee space needs estimates, the Youth Center currently has 
adequate space to meet needs. For 6-year needs adequate space is in the building, but minor 
remodeling may be necessary to add office space for staff.  
 
Short term maintenance of the building will require at a minimum the following: 
 
• Carpet replacement – ($12K est) 
• Floor tile replacement – ($10K est) 
• Roof replacement – ($15K est) 
 

Public Works Facilities  
 
All of the facilities below are located at 240 River Ave with the exception of the City’s 
Wastewater Treatment Plant located at 600 Hatch Street. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
77



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 13 of 73 

 
The Public Works Shop Facility, identified under existing buildings, serves as the city’s 
mechanic shop, parks/building maintenance office and storage, equipment storage, utility 
worker workstations, locker room, lunch room and a bathroom. This 4,500 square foot 
building was constructed in 1925. 
 
The building was painted and the roof and gutters were completely replaced in 1997 and are 
still in good condition. As noted above, however, this facility is very old. As a result, it is 
completely inadequate in terms of space needs. In addition, it is creating significant costs to 
the City in both service effectiveness and efficiency.  
 
The Public Works Office Building- is a newly renovated 1,560 square foot (sq.ft.) one-story 
wood framed building that served as a utility storage building and now functions as the 
operations center for the Public Works and Utility Department. This remodel was constructed 
in 2017 and the building consists of a small breakroom, shower/locker room, conference 
room, bathroom, reception area, and four offices for management and clerical staff. This 
building has no current needs. 
 
Public Works Storage Outbuilding- is an 800-square-foot (sq. ft.) pole barn constructed 
building with a metal roof, used for storage. This building was constructed at some point and 
is in need of short term maintenance. Short term maintenance of the building will require the 
following: 

 
• Pole Replacement- ($5K) 
• Roof replacement- ($12K) 
• Gutter replacement- ($1K) 
 
Wastewater Treatment Facility- the Buckley WWTP was initially completed in 1981 and in 
2006 began a multi-phased upgrade.  The first phase completed in 2006 was the addition of a 
4000 sq. ft.  residual solids handling building and maintenance shop. The solids handling 
equipment includes blowers for the waste activated sludge holding tanks, and a 2.0 meter 
Andritz belt filter press. 
 
In 2008, a much larger phase of the upgrade began which included addition of a new 1400 
square foot head works building which housed rotary fine screening and grit removal 
equipment. Two anoxic treatment basins and three anaerobic treatment basins were added to 
facilitate biological nutrient removal while the existing oxidation ditches were retrofitted 
with new aeration equipment. Three clarifiers were added along with chemical dosing 
equipment for chemical phosphorus removal to achieve ultra-low phosphorus levels. 
 
A 1700 Sq. Ft. process building was added to house RAS/WAS pumps, aeration blowers, 
back-up power generation, and electrical and computer control equipment.  The 850 Sq. Ft. 
effluent disinfection building was built to house ultra-violet disinfection equipment, and a 
non-potable process water system to provide water for equipment operation and wash-down.  
The existing 1500 sq. ft. control building was also remodeled to add laboratory space. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
78



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 14 of 73 

The City has identified a potential site for a new Public Works Heated Storage Facility 
located near the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant at 600 Hatch Street. It is estimated that 
the purposed 4,700 square foot building includes a concrete slab, rollup garage doors, lights, 
heater and insulation will cost approximately $200,000. Construction of the new facility is 
dependent on budget priorities and financing.  
 

Police Department Services  
 
In 2018 the Buckley Police Department handled 8600 calls for service (CFS) for Wilkeson, 
Carbonado and Rainier School. These calls do not include daily walk in operations for 
CPL’S, Fingerprints, Records Request, questions about state or federal laws or Municipal 
codes, Special events such as presentations at local schools or businesses and Youth Center 
Activities. 
 
 The 8600 calls that were handled are a variety of low, medium and high priority incidents.  
Currently the Police Department has 10 commissioned Police Officers; this number includes 
a Chief, Assistant Chief, Patrol Sergeant and one Detective.  Also on staff is a full time 
records/TAC officer, a full time Community Service Officer and a part time Evidence 
Technician.  
  
The Department has 10 patrol vehicles with a spare patrol vehicle being a 2003 Crown 
Victoria. The department also has a 2007 Van and a 2016 F150 in the fleet used by the 
community Service Officer (CSO) for his daily duties of Transports of prisoners and caring 
for animals in the community such as Dogs. The department also has a utility terrain vehicle 
(UTV) used for special operations (Log Show) Search and Rescue (SAR) Special Patrol 
(snow, Ice, difficult patrol areas IE River Area) 
 
The increase in Population and higher traffic volumes has increased some of the low and 
medium priority calls. With this noted the animal services calls have increased along with 
some of the service calls during the daytime shifts handled by our records department and 
patrol officers.  
 
The Buckley Police Department strives to maintain a short response time to in-progress calls. 
Due to the increase of calls and only having 1 officer on per shift as an average, this makes it 
difficult to keep the standard we strive for with response times and ongoing mandatory 
training. 
 

Future Demand  
 
Assuming calls increase such as animal calls, service calls, traffic issues due to growth in the 
community and school districts; it may have an impact on time response to calls and the 
ability to train effectively having only 1 officer on duty as an average per shift. This may also 
impact visitation to the station increasing workload for administrative staff as the community 
grows. In addition growth and increased call volume could result in slower response times 
and training opportunities due to staffing levels.    
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
79



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 15 of 73 

Buckley Police Department Future Needs  
 
One of the most urgent needs for our Department is getting fully staffed by adding one more 
officer in 2019.  This will assist the Department with handling calls for service in a safe and 
timely manner. This will allow proper coverage while Department staff continues training as 
required by state laws. Secondly adding civilian personnel to assist with records and evidence 
will assure a professional standard held by the department.   
 
Additional officers will need to be increased in years to come (see  CF-2 below).  

 
Table CF-2  Projected Additions to Police Department 

Staff 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Additional police vehicles and 700MHZ radios will be necessary as the size of the 
department increases. A minimum of one patrol car per one patrol officers is required, as 
well as administrative vehicles. This will require new purchases consistent with hiring staff 
in addition to replacement of older vehicles. 
 
The Community service officer is in need of a new shelter for impoundment of dogs this 
building will require power/water and some fencing.  The Police Department is in need of a 
new pitched roof and parking lot facelift, Along with fencing around Police Department.  
(See  CF-3.) 
 

Table CF-3 Police Department needs 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year Commissioned 
Personnel Civilian Personnel 

2019 1 0 
2020 0 1 
2021 1 0 
2022 0 0 
2023 1 0 
2024 0 0 
2025 1 0 

Description  Cost Funding Source 
4 new patrol vehicles  $200,000.00 107-109 
6 replacement patrol vehicle $300,000.00 107-109 
Dog Shelter $15,000 107-109  
Computers and Workstations  $9,500.00  107-109  
Police Department Roof $125,000.00 107-109 
Parking lot Repair $135,000.00 107-109 
700 MHz Equipment  $32,000.00 107-109  
1 replacement transport van $50,000.00 107-109 
Total         $866.500.00 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
80



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 16 of 73 

Fire & EMS Services  
 
The Fire Department provides fire protection and emergency medical services within the City 
limits of Buckley, and also includes the City’s Department of Emergency Management.  In 
addition, the City contracts with the towns of Carbonado and Wilkeson to provide certain fire 
department functions in their jurisdictions.  The City also contracts with the State of 
Washington Department of Social and Health Services to provide fire protection and 
emergency medical services to the Rainier School campus and facilities within the city.   
 
The City of Buckley Fire Department through a governmental Interlocal agreement with the 
Town of Carbonado, Pierce County Fire District No. 25 (Crystal Mountain), and Pierce 
County Fire District No. 26 (Greenwater) is the lead agency in negotiating and administering 
a contractual cooperative operating agreement with private ambulance provider American 
Medical Response, through which contract ambulance transport and Advanced Life Support 
(ALS) paramedic services are provided within the service areas of the four jurisdictions.  
This relationship was established in June 2007 and has remained in continuous operation 
since its inception.  
 
The City is party to numerous formalized governmental Interlocal agreements governing 
mutual-aid and automatic-aid that allow for the sharing of resources throughout the region. 
 
The fire department E911 calls and fire and emergency medical service dispatching is 
provided through contract with South Sound 911, the county-wide E911 Law Enforcement 
and Fire communication dispatch center.   
 
The fire department operates from a single fire station.  In 2010 voters in the city approved a 
$5 million bond measure to construct a new fire station.  Construction began in 2011 and the 
fire department took occupancy of the new fire station in April 2012. 
 
The Fire Department is predominantly volunteer staffed utilizing a combination fire 
department structure.  Current staffing is:  
 
• 1 full-time 40+ hour per week paid Fire Chief 
• 1 full-time 40+ hour per week paid Assistant Fire Chief 
• 1 full-time 40 hour per week paid Firefighter/EMT 
• 1 full-time 40 hour per week paid Volunteer Recruitment & Retention Coordinator ** 
• 1 part-time 16 hour per week paid Administrative Assistant 
• 8 volunteer Fire Lieutenants 
• 72 volunteer Firefighter, Emergency Medical Technicians, and Paramedics   

 
** The Volunteer Recruitment & Retention Coordinator is a 4-year funded position through a 
DHS/FEMA 2017 SAFER Grant with grant funding ending November 22, 2022. 
 
Level of Service (LOS) in this document means the relationship between fire protection 
facilities and the provision of fire and emergency medical services within the City, as 
identified by the LOS goals established by the City.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
81



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 17 of 73 

 
The City of Buckley Fire Department LOS goals are established based on recommended 
industry guidelines and standards.  While not formally adopted by the City as a level of 
service standard, the City does base its LOS goals on the nationally recognized Standard for 
the Organization and Deployment of Fire Suppression Operations, Emergency Medical 
Operations, and Special Operations to the Public by Volunteer Fire Departments developed 
by the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) (NFPA Standard 1720, 2004 Edition).   
 
NFPA 1720 defines a Volunteer Fire Department as a fire department having volunteer 
emergency service personnel comprising 85 percent or greater of its department membership.  
The personnel composition of the City of Buckley Fire Department consists of 3.0 fulltime 
career personnel and 80 volunteer personnel (3.6% career and 96.4% volunteer). 
 
NFPA 1720 establishes Areas by defining Remote, Rural, Suburban and Urban Areas.  
NFPA 1720 defines an Urban Area as an area with at least 1,000 people per square mile.  The 
City of Buckley encompasses an area of approximately 3.9 square miles with a population of 
approximately 4,765 -- an average of 1,222 people per square mile.   
 
In summary NFPA 1720 provides that a Volunteer Fire Department serving an Urban Area 
shall ensure that a sufficient number of fire department personnel (15 personnel for a fire 
suppression operation) and resources are available to operate safely and effectively, and that 
the fire department achieves a response time of 9 or fewer minutes 90% of the time.  This is 
the LOS goal that the City of Buckley Fire Department has established.   
 
The 9 minute response time begins when a citizen calls 911 and includes a dispatch time of 1 
minute, turnout time of 3 minutes, and a response drive time of 5 minutes: 
 
Chart CF-1 

 
 
 
 
 

The City of Buckley Fire Department is consistently able to meet today’s LOS goals within the 
incorporated boundaries of the city as it exists today.  In choosing the site for the new fire station 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
82



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 18 of 73 

constructed in 2011 the city gave consideration to growth within the existing boundaries of the 
city as well as the potential for growth in areas adjacent to the city which could be annexed in the 
future.  The location of the newly constructed fire station is such that the city should continue to 
meet today’s LOS goals for growth and expansion that could occur in the next 30 years.   
 
Each fire district in Washington is reviewed every five years and rated between a high of Class 1 
and a low of Class 10. In its last two evaluations by the Washington Surveying and Rating 
Bureau the City has been issued a Fire Protection Class 3 rating, with the most recent rating 
being issued in March 2018.  The fire department continues to develop and implement strategies 
and programs in consideration of the City being able to maintain this attractive Fire Protection 
Class Rating.  Maintaining the Fire Protection Class 3 rating is in-part dependent on the fire 
department having adequate resources in facilities, equipment, and personnel.   
 
In determining the 20-year to 30-year future personnel needs and the need for additional 
equipment - primarily vehicle apparatus such as fire engines, ambulances, and support vehicles; 
we have evaluated the population history in comparison to demand for service (call volume).  
Our statistics demonstrate a disproportionate correlation in population increase to demand for 
service increase.  Therefore, the reliability of such future forecasting is difficult to qualify due to 
uncertainties, changing technology, expansion of service area, expansion of services, etc.   
 
 

Chart CF-2, Population & Call Volume History 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Forecast Projected Needs 
 
Facilities 

 
With the construction of a new fire station in 2011 and occupancy in 2012, there are no 
planned or projected major facility additions or improvements anticipated through 2035.   

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
83



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 19 of 73 

Table CF-4 Fire Department Apparatus/Equipment 
 

Apparatus Replacement 
Year 

Projected 
Replacement 

Cost 
Fund Note(s) 

1996 
Fire Engine 2019 $450,000 030 1996 Becomes 

Reserve Engine 
2008  

Fire Engine 2030 $535,000 030  

2019  
Fire Engine 2041 $605,000 030  

1998  
Ambulance 2020 - 105 2005 Ambulance 

moves to reserve states 
2001  

Ambulance 2020 $155,000 105 – 030  

2005  
Ambulance 2025 $165,000 105 – 030  

2011 
Utility 

Vehicle 
2026 $42,875 030  

2014  
Utility 

Vehicle 
2029 $44,450 030  

2018  
Utility 

Vehicle 
2033 $45,875 030  

2015  
SCBA 2030 $104,000 030  

 
Table CF-5 Fire Department Personnel  

 

Apparatus 2019 
Pop. 4,765 

2024 
Pop. 
6,556 

2035 
Pop. 7,888 Note(s) 

Fulltime Staff 4* 6 8 *includes SAFER 
Retention Coordinator 

Part-time Staff 1 2 2  
Volunteer Staff 75 90 110  

*   SAFER Grant Funded Volunteer Firefighter Program Recruitment & Retention Coordinator Position grant 
funded November 2018 through November 2022 

 
Level-of-Service Standards  

 
The Growth Management Act states that Level-of-Service (LOS) Standards are required for 
transportation facilities, (RCW 36.70A.070, Mandatory Elements).  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
84



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 20 of 73 

 
The Act also briefly touches on LOS standards for other types of capital facilities, (WAC 
365-195, Growth Management – Procedural Criteria for adopting Comprehensive Plans and 
Development Regulations).  
 
The City of Buckley has adopted minimum LOS standards for the following capital facilities: 
parks, potable water, sanitary sewer, and transportation facilities. These standards were 
adopted in the Comprehensive Plan or by individual comprehensive facility plans that were 
adopted into the Capital Facilities Element by reference.  
 

Fire Services 
 
As identified in the previous section the Fire Department has adopted an LOS goal of 
achieving a response time of 9 or fewer minutes 90% of the time. 
 

Parks 
 
The parks LOS standards are primarily population based with complimentary levels of 
development, for neighborhood and community parks, and are listed in the Parks, Recreation 
and Open Space Element of the Comprehensive Plan. There are 9 types of facilities that LOS 
has been established consisting of: softball fields, basketball courts, baseball fields, 
volleyball courts, tennis courts, neighborhood parks, community parks, urban open space and 
multi-use trails.  
 

Potable Water 
 
The City has adopted the following minimum LOS for the water system. The water system 
quality shall be in compliance with Washington Administrative Code (246-290) requirements 
for water quality.  The source capacity shall equal or exceed the design maximum demand 
rate plus that rate necessary to replace fire suppression storage within 72 hours. Fire flow 
service shall be provided to insurance services office (ISO) standards for Class 6 fire 
protection facilities. 
 

Sanitary Sewer 
 
The LOS requirements for the sanitary sewer collection system include the capability of 
handling peak flow and providing adequate pipeline velocity.  Gravity lines must be sized 
and sloped to provide a minimum velocity of 2 feet per second.  Minimum pipeline diameter 
for gravity service is 8 inches with a slope of 0.004 ft/ft.  In addition, gravity lines must be 
protected with a minimum of 3 feet of cover and provided with manholes spaced about 400 
feet apart and located at all the intersections and changes of grade.  New construction is 
required to meet standards to limit infiltration and inflow into the system.  These standards 
include precast manhole sections with gasketed seals, concrete pipe with rubber joints, or 
heavy duty PVC pipe.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
85



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 21 of 73 

Storm and Surface Water Drainage 
 

 The minimum LOS for the City’s stormwater conveyance system is to convey the 25-year 
storm event.   
 

Transportation: 
 
The City has established a minimum LOS standard of “D”, except for state highways. State 
Route 410 and State Route 165 travel through the City of Buckley.  The rightof-way for these 
routes is owned by the City, however, the facilities located between curbtocurb is maintained 
by the state.  The State has set a level of service standard for these routes, and identified SR 
410 as a Tier 2, and will need a LOS D, while SR 165 is a Tier 3 and require a LOS C. 
 

IV. WATER SYSTEM 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The City of Buckley currently maintains approximately 1,700 water service connections, 
which consist of both commercial and residential hookups.  The existing City water usage 
charge is based on a monthly service charge for the connection depending on the meter size 
and a usage fee based on cubic feet of water consumed.  The 2017 water usage records 
indicate that a total volume of just under 200 million gallons was consumed by the City’s 
service population.  This total included both residential and commercial usage, the residential 
usage accounts for 55 percent of the total.  The estimated average per capita demand for the 
six-year period, 2012 through 2017, is 60 gallons per capita per day (gpcd).  This average 
consumption figure established does not include adjustments for commercial and/or public 
facility usage.  This exclusion inflates the average per capita consumption figures. 
 
SOURCE AND SUPPLY 
 

Level of Service 
 
The water system quality shall be in compliance with Washington Administrative Code (246-
290) requirements for water quality.   
 
The source capacity shall equal or exceed the design maximum demand rate plus that rate 
necessary to replace fire suppression storage within 72 hours. 
 
Fire flow service shall be provided to insurance services office (ISO) standards for Class 6 
fire protection facilities. 
 

Inventory of System 
 
The water utility currently receives approximately 64 percent of its supply from South Prairie 
Creek, which is located to the south and east of existing city limits.  Water is delivered from 
the Creek via a 29,200-foot transmission main to the Slow Sand Filter Water Treatment Plant 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
86



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 22 of 73 

(WTP) and 2.3 million gallon reservoir.  The City and Rainier School jointly own the water 
transmission main from South Prairie Creek.  The City owns the Slow Sand Filter WTP and 
reservoir, while Rainier School owns the land where the WTP and reservoir are located.  The 
City and Rainier School retain separate ownership of their respective water distribution 
systems.  An agreement was signed in May 1996 between the City and the Department of 
Social and Health Services delineating the entities retention of ownership of their respective 
water rights and those facilities specific to the operation of their systems.  The City of 
Buckley and Rainier School have water rights issued by the Washington Department of 
Ecology (WDOE) for a total instantaneous right of 5.02 cfs (2,252 gpm) for municipal 
consumption purposes and 3.0 cfs (1,347 gpm) for irrigation.  The total annual water right for 
the City and Rainier School is 1,746 acre-feet for consumption and 400 acre-feet for 
irrigation.  Source production capacity is based upon the limiting factor between water right 
limits and physical water production limits, such as pumping and treatment capacities.  The 
instantaneous production capacity for the City of Buckley and Rainier School is 1,870 gpm.  
On an instantaneous basis, the City’s existing water system production capacity will be 
exceeded by maximum day demands by the year 2025.  The transmission main from South 
Prairie Creek to the WTP has a capacity of between 900 and 1,000 gpm.  The WTP operated 
at a filter-loading rate of 0.085 gpm/sq ft has a treatment capacity of 725 gpm.  The Prairie 
Creek watershed is owned by the U.S. Forest Service, Longview Timberlands LLC, 
Muckleshoot Federal Corporation, Muckleshoot Indian Tribe, Manke Timber Co., Hancock 
Forest Management, Frank and Marina Wallace, and Edward Hudson. The City has obtained 
agreements from all of these parties restricting activities that might have adverse impacts on 
water quality, but does not prohibit use within the watershed.  The watershed area is 
relatively inaccessible except for a few unimproved roads, and the City restricts access along 
its service road to the headworks. 
 
In addition to South Prairie Creek, the City has several groundwater sources that are utilized 
to supplement South Prairie Creek or as backup sources.  The following groundwater sources 
provide approximately 36 percent of City’s water demands.  Inventories of these wells are 
provided below. 
 
Well No. 2 
 
Well No. 2 located adjacent to and east of the City limits on the east side of Levesque Road, 
north of Second Avenue.  This well has an 8-inch diameter casing and is finished to a depth 
of 170 feet below ground surface (bgs).  The capacity of this well is 130 gpm.  Water from 
this well can be pumped either to the slow sand filter system or directly to the reservoir via a 
6-inch water transmission main.  The water from this well is available to be chlorinated with 
gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well No. 3  
 
Well No. 3 also located just east of city limits was drilled with a 6-inch casing alongside 
Well No. 2 to investigate the production capacity of an upper aquifer encountered at a depth 
of 60 feet.  This well is currently used as an observation well.  There are no plans to use this 
well as a water supply source for the City. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
87



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 23 of 73 

 
Well No. 4 
 
In order to take advantage of the apparent high production capacity of the upper aquifer 
encountered by Well No. 3, Well No. 4 was drilled approximately 100 feet away.  This well 
has a 16-inch diameter casing and is finished to a depth of 70 feet bgs.  The capacity of this 
well is 240 gpm.  Water from this well can be pumped either to the slow sand filter system or 
directly to the reservoir via a 6-inch AC water transmission main.  The water from this well 
is available to be chlorinated with gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well No. 1 (Naches Street Well) 
 
The Naches Street Well, located on the west side of Naches Street (just north of Wheeler 
Street), was placed into service in 1967.  This well has a 10-inch diameter casing and is 
finished to a depth of 130 feet bgs.  The capacity of this well is 260 gpm.  The water from 
this well is chlorinated with gas chlorine on site, and pumped directly into the water 
distribution system.  
 
Well No. 5 (Rainier School Well 
 
This well is finished to a depth of 180 bgs.  The capacity of this well is 215 gpm.  Water 
from this well can be pumped either to the slow sand filter system or directly to the reservoir 
via a 6-inch AC water transmission main.  The water from this well is not available to be 
chlorinated on site. 
 
Well No. 6 (Trail Well No. 1) 
 
This well was drilled in 2005 as a test well to determine how much water could be available 
at the site located south of town along SR 165, near the Foothills Trail.  The well was drilled 
to a depth of 197 feet, has a 6-inch casing to 135 feet and a 6-inch telescoping, 30-slot 
screen, installed from 135 feet to 155 feet.  The well was operates at a capacity of 90 gpm.  
Due to an elevated level of manganese, a filtration system, using pyrolusite material has been 
installed at the well.  The water from this well is chlorinated with gas chlorine on site. 
 
Well No. 7 (Trail Well No. 2) 
 
This well is located approximately 60 feet north of Well No. 6.  The well was drilled to a 
depth of 163 feet, has a 12-inch casing extending to 125, feet and a 12-inch telescoping 100-
slot screen extending from 125 to 140 feet.  The well was operates at a capacity of 205 gpm.  
Due to an elevated level of manganese, a filtration system, using pyrolusite material has been 
installed at the well.  The water from this well is chlorinated with gas chlorine on site. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
88



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 24 of 73 

Well System Operations 
 
Water produced from Wells No. 2, 4, and the Rainier School Well can be directed through 
the slow sand filter or pumped directly into the reservoir.  These wells have their own 
chlorination system prior to entering the reservoir.  The Naches Street Well and the two Trail 
Wells also have their own chlorination systems and water from these wells is pumped 
directly into the distribution system.  Low water levels in the reservoir call the wells 
sequentially, as the reservoir level decreases.  As water level in the reservoir increases, the 
wells are deactivated in the reverse sequence.   
 
As a part of the above noted source of water, the City currently maintains an emergency 
intertie with the City of Tacoma.  The intertie includes a booster station and is located to 
along SR-410 near the Post Office.   
 
The locations of these sources are indicated in Figure W1 in the Utilities Element. 
 
 

Forecast of Future Needs 
 
Based on the above noted supply rates and the anticipated population growth rate within the 
urban growth area boundaries, maximum day demands will exceed source capacity by 2025.  
Additional source capacity will be obtained through modifications to the slow sand filter and 
development of additional groundwater sources. 
 
The City should be cognizant of the fact that future water sources may yet be required and 
that the securing of additional rights would be beneficial and consistent to their extended 
growth plans. 
 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to source water 
improvements, which will be suggested to support the anticipated future development and 
maintain adequate water service to existing development within the urban growth area 
boundary.   
 

S-1.   Slow Sand Filter Re-Sand Pilot Study to test the effectiveness of increasing 
the loading rate. 

S-2.   Re-Sand Slow Sand Filter at the Water Treatment Plant. 
S-3.   Expand Slow Sand Filter Water Treatment Plant-construct additional filter 

bed area; expand filter building, additional inlet and under-drain piping, site 
piping and controls.  

S-4.   Hydro-Geologic Study for a New Well- complete a hydro-geologic study to 
obtain recommendations of locations that would be most likely to support 
productive wells.  

S-5.   Drill and Test New Well. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
89



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 25 of 73 

TREATMENT 
 

Level of Service 
 
The treatment of potable water shall be provided to comply with the standards as set by the 
Federal Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and the Surface Water Treatment Rule (SWTR). 
 

Inventory System 
 
The City of Buckley operates a slow sand filter water treatment plant to provide surface 
water treatment.  The filtration plant has an available filter surface area of 8,500 square feet.  
The plant is currently operated at a treatment capacity of 725 gpm.  The water is chlorinated 
with gas chlorine after filtration and before entering the on-site storage reservoir. Chlorine 
contact time is provided in the reservoir. 
 
Water produced from Wells 2, 4, and 5 can be directed through the slow sand filter, or they 
can be pumped directly into the reservoir. Gas chlorination is available at Wells 2 and 4, but 
is used only when the wells are discharged directly to the reservoir. When water is 
discharged from the wells directly to the reservoir, the chlorination rates at Wells 2 and 4 is 
adjusted to provide the target chlorine residual in the combined flow from Wells 2, 4 and 5. 
When the wells are discharged to the slow sand filter, the water is chlorinated as it leaves the 
filter system. 
 
The Naches Street Well (Well 1) has its own gas chlorination system, and water from this 
well is pumped directly into the distribution system. No chlorine contact time is required for 
this well. 
 
Water from Trail Wells 1 and 2 is treated with pyrolusite filter media to remove dissolved 
iron and manganese. The Trail Wells Treatment Facility includes five, 3-foot diameter 
vessels and has a design flowrate of 300 gpm and a design filter loading rate of 8.5 gpm/sq. 
ft. The raw well water is chlorinated with glass chlorine and sodium permanganate upstream 
of the filters. The treated water enters the distribution system 
near the intersection of Ryan Road and SR 165. 
 

Forecast of Future Needs 
 
Future treatment needs include the following improvements at the WTP: 
 

• Increasing filter-loading rate and expand slow sand treatment plant to gain more 
filtration capacity.  Projects under the Source and Supply section will address the 
slow sand filtration capacity. 

 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to water treatment plant 
improvements, which will be required to support the anticipated future development and 
maintain adequate water service to existing development within the urban growth area 
boundary.   

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
90



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 26 of 73 

 
TR-1.   Upgrade System Telemetry. This will allow the City to maintain more 

competitive service contracts for maintenance and repairs of its telemetry 
equipment. 

 
STORAGE 
 

Level of Service 
 
Storage capacities shall be per the Washington State Department of Health’s sizing 
guidelines and requirements as stated within the Ten State Standards.   
 

Inventory of System 
 
The system includes two storage reservoirs.  Only one reservoir, located adjacent to the 
filtration plant is normally used.  This reservoir has a capacity of 2.3 million gallons. 

 
Proposed Locations and Future Needs 

 
Based on projected growth rates and required storage volumes, the City will exceed its 
storage capacity by the year 2029.  The City will require an additional 208,000 gallons of 
storage by the year 2029.  This assumes the City increases its source capacity to meet its 
maximum day demands (from the current 1,870 to a future 2,425 gpm in 2035).  Future 
storage needs include: 
 

• Additional storage will be required by 2029.  Approximate reservoir size is 
anticipated to be 1.0 million gallons to provide redundancy for the existing 2.3 
million gallon reservoir. 

 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to storage improvements, 
which will be required to support the anticipated future development and maintain adequate 
water service to existing development within the UGA boundary.   
 

ST-1.   Reservoir Siting Study.  Evaluate potential reservoir locations and 
configurations. 

ST-2.   Construct 1.0 MG Reservoir. 
 

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 
 

Level of Service 
 
This supply of water to various areas within the urban growth boundary shall be completed to 
comply with the Department of Health, Ten State Standards, and City Fire Marshal 
Standards.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
91



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 27 of 73 

Inventory of System 
 
The existing City water system is shown in Figure W1 in the Utilities Element.  The system 
includes both transmission and distribution components.  The transmission main conveying 
water from South Prairie Creek to the slow sand filtration plant is 29,200 feet in length.  The 
City’s distribution system consists of 32 miles of pipes ranging in size from 4 to 12 inches in 
diameter.  The various pipe materials include ductile iron pipe, polyvinyl chloride pipe, cast 
iron pipe, steel pipe, and HDPE pipe.  The age of the existing system varies but a sizable 
portion of the network was installed over 50 years ago. 
 

Proposed Locations and Future Needs 
 
To determine the future impacts that increasing development may impose upon the City’s 
existing system a hydraulic model analysis was performed.  The City’s water system was 
analyzed using MWH Soft’s H2ONet hydraulic modeling software, which operates in an 
AutoCAD computer-aided design and drafting environment.  The H2ONet model was created 
using the City’s water system basemap.  Reservoir elevations and well capacities were 
determined from existing planning documents and City records.  The H2ONet model is 
configured with a graphical user interface.  Each water system element (sources, pipes, 
control valves, and reservoir) is assigned a unique graphical representation within the model.  
Each element is assigned a number of attributes specific to its function in the actual water 
system.  Typical element attributes include spatial coordinates, elevation, water demand, pipe 
lengths and diameters, and critical water levels for reservoirs.  With attributes of each system 
element as the model input, the software produces the model output in the form of flows and 
pressures throughout the simulated water system.  The following five system demand 
scenarios were used to hydraulically model the City of Buckley water system: 
 

• 2014 Average Daily Demands:  These demands were used while calibrating the 
model. 

• 2020 Peak Hour Demands:  These demands were used to verify the system is able 
to meet the DOH standards to supply domestic water at a minimum system wide 
pressure of 30 psi. 

• 2020 Maximum Day Demands:  These demands were used to evaluate the 
system’s ability to meet the maximum day demands plus required fire flows at 
DOH’s requirement of 20 psi. 

• 2035 Peak Hour Demands:  These demands were used to verify the system is able 
to meet the DOH standards to supply domestic water at a minimum system wide 
pressure of 30 psi. 

• 2035 Maximum Day Demands:  These demands were used to evaluate the 
system’s ability to meet the maximum day demands plus required fire flows at 
DOH’s requirement of 20 psi. 

 
The following project descriptions are provided as a brief outline to improvements, which 
will be required to support the anticipated future development and maintain adequate water 
service to existing development within the urban growth area boundary (see Figures W2 and 
W3 in the Utilities Element).  The improvements, which have been noted represent additions 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
92



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 28 of 73 

to the existing main line conveyance systems and are presented to allow for the delivery of 
water, to the estimated development areas, for both potable and fire flow usage.  Additional 
improvements will undoubtedly be required within various communities as the location of 
growth and the type of developments would dictate.  The following projects are listed in 
order of priority under either, Transmission or Distribution. 
 
Transmission 
 

T-1.  Segment 6, End of Trenchless to North Slope-replace 2,440 LF of Raw Water 
Transmission Main between Segment 5 and Segment 7 with new 12-inch HDPE 
Raw Water Transmission Main. 

T-2. Segment 8, Creek Crossing Restoration.  The City installed a cable bridge across 
South Prairie Creek in 2016 to carry a segment of the transmission main.  The 
old pipeline and concrete encasement requires removal and the disturbed banks 
along the creek require additional restoration. 

T-3.  Segment 13, Between Replacement Segments-replace 260 LF of Raw Water 
Transmission Main between Segment 14 and Segment 16 with new 12-inch 
HDPE Raw Water Transmission Main. 

T-4.   Segment 15, End of Cable Bridge to Replacement Segment-replace 1,135 LF of 
the Raw Water Transmission Main from the north end of the cable bridge to 
connect the south end of the Segment 14 with new 12-inch HDPE Raw Water 
Transmission Main. 

T-5. Annual Transmission Main Leak Detection-continue an annual leak detection 
program to determine if there are any additional sections of the pipeline in need 
repair. 

T-6. Segment 16, Existing Cable Bridge.  Replace 200 LF cable bridge across a creek 
gully. 

T-7. Segment 19, Along Cliff Face.  Replace 200 LF of transmission main, including 
a new cliff anchorage system. 

T-8. Segment 21, Creek Bed to Headworks.  Replace 1,000 LF of transmission main 
in the South Prairie Creek streambed near the headworks of the transmission 
main. 

 
Distribution 

 
D-1. Edith from Park to Dundass, Balm from 4th to Ewing, Ewing from Dundass to 

Balm, 3rd from Main to Masin.  Install 1,200 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-2. Heather between Whitmore and Elk Ridge Elementary School.  Install 70 LF 

of 8-inch water main. 
D-3.   Mason from A to D, B south of Mason, Rainier from Main to Mason.  Install 

1,900 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-4.   A from Park to Main.  Install 850 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-5.   Division from Ryan to Fire Station.  Install 360 LF of 8-inch water main. 
D-6.   Jefferson from 3rd to Pearl, Pearl from Perkings to Ryan, Mill from Pearl to 

Jefferson.  Install 2,080 LF of 8-inch water main. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
93



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 29 of 73 

D-7.   Ryan from Spiketon Road to east side of LDS Church. -Install 2,360 LF of 
12-inch water main. 

D-8.   Fulton and 4th.  Install 450 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-9.  Sheets, south of Ryan.  Install 600 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-10.  Klink, south of Ryan.  Install 1,400 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-11. SR 410, west to Mundy-Loss.  Install 1,100 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-12  Hinkleman Extension from SR 410 to 112th.  Install 700 feet of 8-inch water 

main. 
D-13 Hinkleman Road from Hinkleman Extension to Mundy-Loss.  Install 2,200 

feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-14.  McNeely, north of Collins.  Install 2,200 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-15.  McNeely, south of Collins.  Install 750 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-16 River, north of Dieringer.  Install 450 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-17 Mason from Spruce to McNeely.  Install 2,000 feet of 8-inch water main. 
D-18 Dieringer from Sorenson to McNeely.  Install 2,200 feet of 8-inch water main. 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 

Source and Supply Projects 
 
 CF-6 presents a capital improvement plan for source and supply projects.  The  lists the year 
of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are described 
in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the source and supply projects were taken 
from the City of Buckley Water System Comprehensive Plan, August 2017. 
 

Table CF-6 Source and Supply Water Projects 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated 
Project Cost 

(20179) 
S-1 20189 20% DSHS, 80% Water Cap. Fund $30,000 
S-2 201820 20% DSHS, 80% Water Cap. Fund $180,000 
S-3 201920 20% DSHS, 80% Water Cap. Fund $800,000 
S-4 20201 Water Capital Project Fund $25,000 
S-5 20212 Water Capital Project Fund $150,000 

 
Water Treatment Projects 

 
 CF-7 presents a capital improvement plan for water treatment projects.  The table lists the 
year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are 
described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the water treatment improvements 
were taken from the City of Buckley Water System Comprehensive Plan, August 2017. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
94



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 30 of 73 

Table CF-7  Treatment System Improvements 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

 
Funding Source 

Estimated 
Project Cost 

(20179) 
TR-1 201820 20% DSHS, 80% Water Cap. Fund $180,000 

 
 

Water Storage Projects 
 
 CF-8 presents a capital improvement plan for the water storage projects.  The table lists the 
year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are 
described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the water storage projects were 
taken from the City of Buckley Water System Comprehensive Plan, August 2017. 
 

Table CF-8 Storage Projects 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated Project 
Cost (20179) 

ST-1 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $25,000 
ST-2 2022 70% Loan, 30% Water Cap. Fund $2,000,000 

 
Transmission Main Projects 

 
 CF-9 presents a capital improvement plan for transmission main projects.  The table lists the 
year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are 
described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the transmission main projects 
were taken from the City of Buckley Water System Comprehensive Plan, August 2017. 
 

Table CF-9 Transmission Main Projects 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated 
Project Cost 

(20179) 
T-1 201921 70% Loan, 30% Water Cap. Fund $830,000 
T-2 2018 Water Capital Project Fund $50,000 
T-3 2020 Water Capital Project Fund $105,000 
T-4 2020 Water Capital Project Fund $390,000 
T-5 Annual Water Operating Fund $140,000 
T-6 2023 Water Capital Project Fund $203,000 
T-7 2025 Water Capital Project Fund $161,000 
T-8 2027 70% Loan, 30% Water Cap. Fund $409,000 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
95



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 31 of 73 

Distribution Main Projects 
 
 CF-10 presents a capital improvement plan for distribution main projects.  The table lists the 
year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are 
described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the distribution main projects 
were taken from the City of Buckley Water System Comprehensive Plan, August 2017. 

 
Table CF-10 Distribution Main Projects 

 
Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated 
Project Cost 

(20179) 
D-1 2018 Water Capital Project Fund $354,000 
D-2 201921 Water Capital Project Fund $29,000 
D-3 201821 Water Capital Project Fund $510,000 
D-4 201921 Water Capital Project Fund $250,000 
D-5 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $99,000 
D-6 20201 Water Capital Project Fund $583,000 
D-7 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $643,000 
D-8 2021 Water Capital Project Fund $211,000 
D-9 2023 Water Capital Project Fund $146,000 

D-10 2023 Water Capital Project Fund $334,000 
D-11 2024 Water Capital Project Fund $251,000 
D-12 2025 Water Capital Project Fund $158,000 
D-13 2026 70% Loan, 30% Water Cap. Fund $1,071,000 
D-14 2022 Developer Extension $523,000 
D-15 2022 Developer Extension $193,000 
D-16 2024 Developer Extension $120,000 
D-17 2024 Developer Extension $475,000 
D-18 2025 Developer Extension $545,000 

 
 
RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN 
 
The revenue to operate and maintain the City of Buckley’s water system is collected through 
a monthly water rates.  Water rates are determined by meter size serving the customer as 
shown in  CF-11. 
 

Table CF-11 Monthly Water System Rates – Base Charge for 
200 cubic feet 

 
Meter Size Cost 
Up to 3/4” $22.93 

1” $29.07 
1-1/2” $41.78 

2” $62.79 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
96



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 32 of 73 

Meter Size Cost 
3” $93.23 
4” $151.23 
6” $291.73 
8” $714.74 

 
In addition to the above meter base charges for the first 200 cubic feet per month, residential 
customers are charged $2.06 per 100 cubic feet for 200 to 700 cubic feet, $2.47 per 100 cubic 
feet for 700 to 1,500 cubic feet, and $2.94 per 100 cubic feet for over 1,500 cubic feet.  In 
addition to the above meter base charges for the first 200 cubic feet per month, commercial 
and industrial customers are charged $2.16 per 100 cubic feet and school customers are 
charged $2.04 per 100 cubic feet.  The City of Buckley Water Capital Project Fund is funded 
from revenues including the general facilities charges established by BMC 14.04.320 and the 
portion of the service charges allocated by the city council in Chapter 14.04 BMC.  The 
water capital project fund shall be used for the purpose of designing and construction 
improvements to the water system. 
 
The general facilities charge for the City water system is $6,500 for each single-family 
residence, $4,875.00 for each multi-family dwelling, and $6,500.00 for each equivalent 
residential unit, for all other uses. 
 
There are four principal ways that the improvements outlined in this water section can be 
financed aside from setting aside a portion of the monthly service charge.  Rates and charges 
must be maintained at an adequate level to ensure a sufficiency of funds to properly maintain 
and operate the system and provide funds for construction of the projects identified through a 
combination of cash contributions and debt financing. 
 
A. Developer Financing 
 
Developers of presently unimproved property will finance many of the new facilities 
constructed in the City.  All of the improvements required for service to property with new 
plats or commercial developments will be designed and constructed in accordance with the 
City’s developer project policies.  In some cases, latecomer’s agreements may be executed 
for any water main serving property other than the property owned by the developer that is 
financing the project. 
 
B. Combination Financing by the City and Developers 
 
It may be necessary in some cases to require the owner to construct a larger diameter water 
line than is required by the current development in order to support the comprehensive 
development of the City’s water system.  The City may enter into a latecomer’s agreement or 
reimburse the developer for the extra cost of increasing the size of the line over that required 
to serve the property under development.  Oversizing should be considered when it is 
necessary to construct any pipe over a certain diameter in a single-family residential area to 
comply with the water comprehensive plan.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
97



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 33 of 73 

C. Revenue Bond / General Obligation Bond 
 
Water treatment plant improvements, water storage facilities, and other major capital 
improvement projects that are a general benefit to a major portion of the City may be 
financed by revenue bonds or general obligation bonds.  Improvements that will benefit 
primarily a single developer should be financed by the developer of the property.  The City 
may use whatever funds are available for the payment of the debt service on the revenue 
bonds.  A major source of these funds is from the water rate revenues from the City 
customers.  However, all funds, such as general facility fees, connection charges or latecomer 
charges, may be used for debt service.  Water system improvements that will service many 
different property owners in areas that are already developed may be financed through the 
establishment of a local improvement district (LID).  The financing is accomplished through 
the sale of revenue bonds or general obligation bonds.  These bonds are retired with income 
from the assessments and/or other funds of the City. 
 
D. Grant Funds / Loans 
 
State and federal authorities provide funds under various grant programs for the construction 
of major improvements to or rehabilitation of water systems.  Programs available include 
State Revolving Fund Loan (SRF), United States Department of Agriculture Rural 
Development (USDA RD), and Public Works Trust Fund Loan Program (PWTF). 

 
 

V. SEWAGE COLLECTION AND TREATMENT 
 
The City of Buckley owns, operates, and maintains a sanitary collection system within City 
limits.  The City system consists of a collection system, a secondary wastewater treatment 
plant, and an outfall to the White River.  The plant is located north of Park Avenue and 
currently serves an estimated 4,300 people.  Additionally, the City receives wastewater from 
a school district lift station west of the City, which serves two existing schools of the White 
River School District.  The plant operates under NPDES WA-002336-1, which became 
effective May 1, 2003 and expired in 2008.  However, Ecology administratively extended 
that permit and requires the City to monitor the influent and effluent and comply with the 
limitations specified in the expired permit.  Under this permit, treated effluent is discharged 
into an outfall located in a side channel of the mainstream of the White River.  The nearest 
other treatment facility is located at the Enumclaw WWTP located about 2 miles to the 
northeast of Buckley.   
 
This section of the report first addresses the conditions and needs of the sanitary collection 
system and then those for the wastewater treatment facility.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
98



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 34 of 73 

COLLECTION SYSTEM 
 

Level of Service-+ 
 
The Level of Service (LOS) for the sanitary sewer system was established from the Criteria 
for Sewage Works Design, Department of Ecology, 1998, and construction standards adopted 
by the City through its municipal codes.   
 
The Level of Service (LOS) requirements for the sanitary sewer collection system include the 
capability of handling peak flow and providing adequate pipeline velocity.  Gravity lines 
must be sized and sloped to provide a minimum velocity of 2 feet per second.  Minimum 
pipeline diameter for gravity service is 8 inches with a slope of 0.004 ft/ft.  In addition, 
gravity lines must be protected with a minimum of 3 feet of cover and provided with 
manholes spaced about 400 feet apart and located at all the intersections and changes of 
grade.  New construction is required to meet standards to limit infiltration and inflow into the 
system.  These standards include precast manhole sections with gasketed seals, concrete pipe 
with rubber joints, or heavy duty PVC pipe.   
 
The City of Buckley system currently has only two pump stations on the west end of the 
system, which serve two schools.  However, it is anticipated that as the City expands to 
provide service within its GMA boundaries, additional pumping stations will connect to the 
system.  Design criteria for pumping stations are established in detail in the Criteria for 
Sewage Works Design.  Among the requirements are ones for duplicate pumps for each 
station, each capable of handling the station’s maximum design flow.  Each station shall be 
protected against the 100-year flood and provide sufficient head to maintain a minimum 
velocity of 2 feet per second within the force main.  Minimum pipe size for sewage force 
mains shall be 4 inches.  In addition, an alarm system shall be provided for all pumping 
stations as well as provisions for auxiliary power. 
 

Inventory of System 
 
The City’s existing sanitary sewer system consists of approximately 123,500 LF of gravity 
sewers, 10,600 LF of 6-inch and 4-inch force mains, and approximately 270 manholes.  The 
existing sanitary sewer system is shown in Figure S1 in the Utilities Element.  The system is 
more or less divided into two parts by SR 410.  Flow on the southeast side of SR 410 is 
collected, transported under the highway at Wheeler Avenue and Park Avenue, and then 
conveyed by gravity to the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) north of Park Avenue.  A 
small volume of flows is conveyed across SR 410 immediately west of the intersection of SR 
410 and SR 165.  Flows northeast of the highway travel north to the main trunk line on Park 
Avenue.  A summary of this collection system is shown below in  CF-12.   
 

Table CF-12 Collection System Inventory 
 

Pipe Diameter Length (lineal feet) 
Gravity System 

4-inch 24,000 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
99



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 35 of 73 

Pipe Diameter Length (lineal feet) 
Gravity System 

6-inch 2,100 
8-inch 60,300 

10-inch 12,000 
12-inch 9,100 
14-inch 2,000 
15-inch 2,100 
18-inch 6,200 
Subtotal 117,800 

Force Main 
4- and 6-inch  7,800 

 
 
The collection system in Buckley was originally built in the early 1900’s as a combined 
storm and sanitary sewer system.  Over the years, extensions and sewer separations have 
occurred resulting in a total pipeline length exceeding 125,000 feet.  The older gravity sewer 
mains consist of clay pipe with mortared bell-spigot type joints.  More recent construction is 
primarily 8 and 10-inch concrete and PVC pipe with rubber joints.  However, only about 1/3 
of the system was installed with this type of construction.  The depth of the sewer mains 
typically varies from 2 to 15 feet, with 6 to 7 feet as the average depth.  Manholes in the 
older portion of the system are of brick and mortar construction, while the most recently 
installed manholes are precast concrete.  Due to the age of the system, the depths of the 
conveyance mains and type of construction, infiltration and inflow (I/I) problems have 
continued to develop.  I/I problems result during storms, when water infiltrates through pipe 
imperfections such as misaligned joints and cracks in the lines, greatly increasing flows to 
the plant.  The City has replaced most of the downtown core area gravity sewers, resulting in 
significant reductions in I/I. 

 
Proposed Location and Future Needs  

 
The evaluation of the City’s collection system conducted in 2017 identified several needs to 
serve existing and future customers.  These are briefly discussed below.  In addition, 
planning under GMA has identified other future needs.   
 
As has been previously noted, the majority of the City’s original sanitary sewer conveyance 
system consisted of 50 year old clay pipe which had deteriorated considerably and was in 
need of replacement due to the volumes of infiltration/inflow presently accessing the 
conveyance network.  Furthermore, by the Department of Ecology (DOE) standards several 
of the existing sewer mains are undersized and/or sloped at less than acceptable grades. 
 
A sewer system rehabilitation program was first developed from an I/I study in 1973.  A 
second I/I analysis and a sewer system evaluation survey were conducted in 1975.  Because 
the WWTP exceeded design flows during wet weather months, a third I/I study was 
undertaken in 1992 and completed in 1994.  This report (Infiltration/Inflow Analysis and 
Engineering Report) was amended in January 1999.  The report indicated that removal of I/I 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
100



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 36 of 73 

would be more cost-effective than expansion of the treatment plant, if 45 percent of the I/I 
were removed.  Manhole rehabilitation was also identified in the 1994 plan as another project 
aimed at reducing I/I.  The amendment to the I/I analysis and Engineering Report completed 
in January 1999 looked at reducing I/I in two of the drainage basins. 
 
As a result of the 1992-94 I/I study, the city of Buckley replaced parts of its sanitary sewer 
collection system.  In 1998, the City applied for approval from the Department of Ecology to 
increase the capacity of the WWTP by approximately 330 connections, and received 
approval on condition that the City construct wastewater improvements to remove 
approximately 45 percent of the inflow and infiltration of stormwater into the City’s sewer 
system and on the condition that the City construct a digester at the treatment plant. 
 
The future improvement projects recommended by this plan are based both on the anticipated 
maximum or build-out development within the UGA boundary and the existing condition of 
the sanitary conveyance system as described in the modeling completed in 2015. 
 
The expected future sewage flow rates were developed by applying per capita flow rates and 
peaking factors to the estimated population figures as have been presented within the land 
use element section of this plan.  
 
The 2017 Draft Sewer Comprehensive Plan included a hydraulic capacity analysis of the 
existing sewer collection system using a computer software modeling program called 
InfoSewer.  The entire city was divided into eight sewer basin areas, shown in Figure S2 of 
the Utilities Element.  Interceptors within the eight areas were at least 10 inches in diameter 
or greater.  The eight areas include the existing service areas named as follows:  A1, A2, A4, 
CW, A26, B13, E2A, and F1.  The future service areas are named as follows:  Nanevicz, 
North McNeely, Central McNeely, South McNeely, Van Sickle, Shay/Rainier School, TAN-
W, TAN-E, Elk Heights, EM, and SE.  Currently, approximately 1,100 acres are being 
served by the City’s collection system.  The future service area will include an additional 800 
acres for a total of approximately 1,900 acres in the City’s collection system.  The amount of 
sanitary flow is determined by the contribution per capita and the calculated population.  The 
population density assumes the land is fully developed to the level allowed by the 
corresponding land use designation.  The future peak flow of 2.88 mgd was used in the 
modeling. 
 
All recommended pipe replacement projects include lowering the pipeline elevation and 
increasing the pipe’s existing slope.  These modifications will allow the system to serve 
outlying areas primarily by gravity. 
 
The following projects address deficiencies to the sewer collection system identified from 
modeling and studies discussed above and are shown in Figure S3 of the Utilities Element. 
 
Gravity Sewer Main Projects 

 
G-1.  Alley to the East of Edith Street–construct 450 LF of new 8” PVC from Park 

Avenue to Dundass Street. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
101



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 37 of 73 

G-2.  Spiketon Road-construct 500 LF of new 8” PVC from Ryan Road to A Street. 
G-3.  Alley between Cascade Street and Edith Street-construct 450 LF of new 8” 

PVC from Dundass Avenue to Park Avenue. 
G-4.   Near 550 Balm Street- construct 200 LF of new 8” PVC. 
G-5.  Spiketon Road–construct 900 LF of new 8” PVC from Ryan Road to 649 

Spiketon Road. 
G-6. Alley between Naches Street and Second Street–construct 1,000 LF of new 8” 

PVC, from Park Avenue to Mason Avenue.  
G-7.  Sergeant Road-construct 700 LF of new 8” PVC from Whitmore Way to 

Collins Road. 
 
Trunk Sewer Main Projects 
 

T-1.  McNeely Street South, East on Mason to State School 
Property Line, South to Ryan Road to Klink Street-construct 
4,800 LF of new 12” PVC. 

 
AREA LIFT STATIONS 
 

There is presently sewer service to the elementary and middle schools 
which are located in the most southerly and westerly area of the GMA 
boundary via a 6-inch force main along SR 410 and a school district 
maintained lift station.  The existing topography of this area would 
dictate that gravity mains flow towards the most northerly and 
westerly area of the proposed development limits.  To convey flows 
completely by gravity from the most outlying areas to the treatment 
plant would require sewer piping installation of depths, over 25 feet.  
This type of system is not viewed as financially feasible because of 
these depths and the glacial till underlying most of the area.  An 
alternative is the installation of lift stations sized to serve the 
developing population.   

 
 The following projects address deficiencies to the sewer collection system that are remedied 
by lift stations and force main projects: 
 
Lift Station and Force Main Projects 
 

L-1.  South Spiketon Road Lift Station - 500 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency 
Generator. 

F-1.  South Spiketon Road-construct 1,300 LF of new 6” Ductile Iron Force Main.  
L-2.  Hinkleman Road Lift Station – 200 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator. 
F-2.  Hinkleman Road-construct 3.800 LF of new 4” Ductile Iron Force Main 
L-3.  East 112th Street Lift Station – 250 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator. 
F-3.  East 112th Street-construct 2,400 LF of new 4” Ductile Iron Force Main  
L-4.  West 112th Street Lift Station – 150 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator. 
F-4.  West 112th Street-construct 2.300 LF of new 4” Ductile Iron Force Main 

Formatted: Left

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
102



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 38 of 73 

 
 

COMPLETION OF SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM REHABILITATION 
 
The system improvements and/or extensions noted above do not include additional projects 
that need to be completed for the continued improvement of the older segments of the 
collection system.  The City will complete TV inspection work and disconnection of roof, 
yard, and cellar drains as previously recommended to City.  The City will also analyze and 
collect additional flow data, conduct limited system evaluation and complete spot repairs, 
perform mainline and side sewer rehabilitation of existing sewers as identified in I/I Program 
and system evaluation. 
 
TREATMENT SYSTEM 
 

Level of Service  
 
The Level of Service (LOS) for the sewage treatment plant was established from the Criteria 
for Sewage Works Design, DOE, 2008.  Average design flows were established from an 
average demand of 108 gallons per day per capita, and the expected service population.  
Projected wastewater flows in 2035 are 1.07 mgd annual average flow and 1.60 mgd 
maximum monthly flow. 
 
In addition to hydraulic design criteria, there are also loading criteria for LOS.  Typically 
loading criteria are established for Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD5) and Total Suspended 
Solids (TSS).  For BOD, 0.2 lbs/day per capita was utilized for design loadings; for TSS, 
0.17 lbs/day per capita were utilized. Both values are consistent with Criteria of Sewage 
Design.  Historic phosphorus literature data was used to size the nutrient removal 
components to be added treatment plant. 
 
The existing sewage treatment plant is permitted NPDES WA-00-2336-1 which was issued 
May 1, 2003 and expired in 2008.  However, Ecology administratively extended that permit 
and requires the City to monitor the influent and effluent and comply with the limitations 
specified in the expired permit.  This permit establishes reporting requirements and 
performance criteria for the discharge of treated wastewater and the quality of wastewater 
sludge.  Phosphorus limits are not included in this permit, but are anticipated in the next 
permit cycle.  The values shown below represent the limits on what the treatment plant can 
discharge to the White River under the existing permit. 
 

Table CF-13 NPDES Permit Limits 
 

Parameter Monthly Average Weekly Average 
5-day Biochemical Oxygen 
Demand 

30 mg/L 
134 lb/day 

45 mg/L 
201 lb/day 

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 30 mg/L  
114 lb/day 

45 mg/L 
171 lb/day 

Fecal Coliform Bacteria 200/100 ml 100/100 ml 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
103



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 39 of 73 

pH Shall not be outside the range of 6.5-8.5 
Total Residual Chlorine 9 ug/L 23 ug/L 
Total Ammonia (as N)  
May1 – Oct.31 

2.6 mg/L 7.43 mg/L 
62 lbs./day 

Total Ammonia (as N) 
Nov. 1 – Apr. 30 

4.5 mg/L 10.5 mg/L 

Total Copper Interim 27 ug/L 
Final 11.13 ug/L 

Interim 38.5 ug/L 
Final 16.24 ug/L 

 
A review of monthly reports for the period of 2009 to 2017 indicated that the plant did not 
fail to meet these discharge limits. 
 

Inventory of System 
 
The current plant was designed to accommodate an average flow of 1.0 mgd and has a peak 
hydraulic capacity of 2.7 mgd. 
 
The system components include headworks/grit removal, two oxidation ditches, two 
clarifiers, chlorination/dechlorination, and a mechanical building housing sludge pumps and 
dewatering equipment.  The headworks of the facility consists of the influent channel, a bar 
screen, a degritter, a grinder, an adjustable flow splitter and effluent channels to the oxidation 
ditches.  From the headworks, influent enters the oxidation ditches where the main treatment 
process occurs.  Effluent is then transported to the clarifier units where solids are separated 
from liquid and either recirculated to the oxidation ditches or wasted to the sludge disposal 
system.  Effluent from the clarifiers enters the dual chlorine contact tanks prior to discharge 
into the White River via a 14-inch outfall pipe. 

 
Treatment System Improvements 

 
The City of Buckley completed major improvements to the exiting wastewater treatment, 
effluent disposal, and biosolids processing systems in 2008.  
 
The needs for these improvements are being driven by two factors.  The first is the 
implementation of phosphorous limitations for discharges to the White River.  Buckley 
currently operates a conventional secondary wastewater treatment plant.  The White River 
has been the location of the City’s treated wastewater effluent discharge.  A Total Maximum 
Daily Load (TMDL) study was performed on the White River and it was determined that 
phosphorous loadings were a threat to the health of the river.  A subsequent Waste Load 
Allocation (WLA) has determined that Buckley must reduce its phosphorous loadings to the 
river.  A conventional secondary treatment is not capable of removing phosphorous to the 
level required by the WLA, so the City proceeded with improvements necessary to remove 
phosphorous. 
 
The second factor is the need to accommodate additional growth in the Buckley Urban 
Growth Area (UGA).  The current customer base for the wastewater system consists of 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
104



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 40 of 73 

approximately 4,300 persons.  This customer base is expected to increase to 8,000 by the 
year 2035.  
 
With the substantial treatment plant upgrades completed, the City plans to make a minor 
revision to one of the plant systems and to evaluate improvements needed for reuse water to 
be distribute 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
105



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 41 of 73 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Projects 
 

TP-1.  WWTP Non-Potable Water System Upgrades 
TP-2.  WWTP Wastewater Reuse Feasibility Study 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 

Collection System 
 
 CF-14 presents a capital improvement plan for collection system requirements.  The table 
lists the year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects 
are described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the collection system 
improvements were taken from the City of Buckley Draft Sewer Comprehensive Plan, 
August 2017. 
 

Table CF-14 Gravity Sewer and Trunk Sewer Projects 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated Project 
Cost (20179) 

G-1 2018 Sewer Capital Project Fund $151,000 
G-2 201920 Sewer Capital Project Fund $180,000 
G-3 2018 Sewer Capital Project Fund $155,000 
G-4 2018 Sewer Capital Project Fund $101,000 
G-5 201920 Sewer Capital Project Fund $284,000 
G-6 201921 Sewer Capital Project Fund $325,000 
G-7 2021 Sewer Capital Project Fund $190,000 
T-1 2020 50% Developer Extension,    

50% Sewer Cap. Project Fund 
$1,633,000 

 
 

Lift Station and Force Main Projects 
 
 CF-15 presents a capital improvement plan for the area lift station and force main projects.  
The table lists the year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The 
projects are described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the lift station and 
force main improvements were taken from the City of Buckley Draft Sewer Comprehensive 
Plan, August 2017.   
 

Table CF-15 Lift Station and Force Main Projects 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated Project 
Cost (20197) 

L-1 2019 Developer Extension $86650,000 
F-1 2019 Developer Extension $2530,000 
L-2 2021 Developer Extension $300,000 
F-2 2021 Developer Extension $710,000 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
106



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 42 of 73 

L-3 2023 Developer Extension $350,000 
F-3 2023 Developer Extension $450,000 
L-4 2025 Developer Extension $250,000 
F-4 2025 Developer Extension $430,000 

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
107



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 43 of 73 

Treatment Plant Improvements 
 

 CF-16 presents a capital improvement plan for the Treatment Plant Improvements.  The  lists 
the year of completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are 
described in more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the treatment plant improvements 
were taken from the City of Buckley Draft Sewer Comprehensive Plan, August 2017  
  

Table CF-16 Treatment Plant Improvements 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated Project 
Cost (20179)  

TP-1 2018 Sewer Capital Fund  $158,000 
TP-2 201920 Sewer Capital Fund $100,000 

 
 
RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN 
 
The revenue to operate and maintain the City of Buckley’s sewer system is collected through 
a monthly service charge.  Each single family and mobile home sewer account is charged a 
flat rate of $77.99 per month.  Multi-family residences are charged a flat rate of $65.89 per 
month.  Non-system sewage disposal within the City is $275.66 per one hundred-five cubic 
feet.  Commercial sewer accounts are charged $77.99 plus $3.05 per 100 cubic feet in excess 
of nine hundred cubic feet of water per month.  Based on the financial analysis in the 2017 
Draft Sewer Comprehensive Plan, the rates are not required to increase.  The City plans to 
convert to an alternate rate structure with a base charge and a volume charge. 
 
The general facilities charge for the City sewer system is $8,100 for each single-family 
residence, $6,075 for each multi-family dwelling, and $8,100 for each equivalent residential 
unit, for all other uses. 
 
There are four principal ways that the improvements outlined in this sanitary sewer section 
can be financed aside from setting aside a portion of the monthly service charge.  Rates and 
charges must be maintained at an adequate level to ensure a sufficiency of funds to properly 
maintain and operate the system and provide funds for construction of the projects identified 
through a combination of cash contributions and debt financing. 
 

A. Developer Financing 
 
Developers of presently unimproved property will finance many of the new facilities 
constructed in the City.  All of the improvements required for service to property with new 
plats or commercial developments will be designed and constructed in accordance with the 
City’s developer project policies.  In some cases, latecomer’s agreements may be executed 
for any sewer main serving property other than the property owned by the developer that is 
financing the project. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
108



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 44 of 73 

B. B.Combination Financing by the City and Developers 
 
It may be necessary in some cases to require the owner to construct a larger diameter line 
than is required by the current development in order to support the comprehensive 
development of the City’s sewer system.  The City may enter into a latecomer’s agreement or 
reimburse the developer for the extra cost of increasing the size of the line over that required 
to serve the property under development.  Oversizing should be considered when it is 
necessary to construct any pipe over 10 inches in diameter in single-family residential areas 
to comply with the sewer capital facilities plan.  Construction of any pipe in residential, 
multiple family, or commercial areas that is larger than the size required to serve that 
development is considered oversizing. 
 

C. Revenue Bond / General Obligation Bond 
 
Interceptor, lift station, force main and treatment plant improvements that are a general 
benefit to a major portion of the City may be financed by revenue bonds or general obligation 
bonds.  Improvements that will benefit primarily a single developer should be financed by 
the developer of the property.  The City may use whatever funds are available for the 
payment of the debt service on the revenue bonds.  A major source of these funds is from the 
sewer rate revenues from the City customers.  However, all funds, such as general facility 
fees, connection charges or latecomer charges, may be used for debt service.  Sewer system 
improvements that will service many different property owners in areas that are already 
developed may be financed through the establishment of a local improvement district (LID).  
The financing is accomplished through the sale of revenue bonds or general obligation bonds.  
These bonds are retired with income from the assessments and/or other funds of the City. 
 

D. Grant Funds / Loans 
 
State and federal authorities provide funds under various grant programs for the construction 
of major improvements to or rehabilitation of sewer systems.  Programs available include 
Centennial Clean Water Grant Fund (CCWF), State Revolving Fund Loan (SRF), United 
States Department of Agriculture Rural Development (USDA RD), and Public Works Trust 
Fund Loan Program (PWTF). 
 

  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
109



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 45 of 73 

 
VI. STORMWATER COLLECTION AND 

TREATMENT 
 
The storm and surface water drainage utility is owned, operated and maintained by the City 
and provides drainage, flood control, and protection of environmentally sensitive areas such 
as wetlands, steep slopes and stream corridors.  For the most part, the original system is 
somewhat antiquated and consists of piping materials and construction methods, which were 
employed nearly 60 years ago.  The majority of this original drainage network was 
completed using clay tile piping with open joint construction.  Over time, this piping has 
deteriorated to an extremely poor condition, with several areas needing immediate 
improvements. 
 
The City utilities department has completed some improvements to the system over the years.  
The installation of new piping systems and improvements to existing drainage channels has 
substantially increased the hydraulic performance of the existing system.  Current growth and 
expected growth will require more improvements and additions to the existing system.  The 
existing storm drainage system is shown in Figure D1 of the Utilities Element. 
 
The Level of Service (LOS) for the City’s stormwater conveyance system is to convey the 
25-year storm event.  The City of Buckley has adopted the Ecology Stormwater Management 
Manual for Western Washington (2012), as the City’s technical manual (BMC 14.30.061).  
The City has also adopted the Low Impact Development Technical Guidance Manual for 
Puget Sound (LID Manual). 
 
Moving stormwater within the City is difficult, due to the flat topography and minimal 
natural grade within the City to convey surface water runoff.  The area, prior to development, 
was dominated by wetlands and lies within the flood plain of the White River.  Several areas 
are serviced by open ditches, which convey water into the pipe collection system or into an 
open, uninhabited area. 
 
TREATMENT 
 
As stated previously, the City has adopted Ecology’s 2012 Stormwater Management Manual, 
which describes in detail the methods and practices for mitigating stormwater runoff impacts.  
 

Level of Service 
 
The Washington State Department of Ecology (DOE) has enacted certain guidelines and 
rules for the management of stormwater.  The requirements include provisions for the 
following:  ordinances to control off-site water quality, the use of source Best Management 
Practices (BMPs), effective water quality treatment for the design storm, use of infiltration 
where possible, erosion and sediment control, the protection of wetlands and stream 
channels; operation and maintenance programs for new and existing stormwater systems; 
record keeping of drainage system facilities; adoption of Ecology's Technical Manual or 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
110



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 46 of 73 

equivalent; education programs for the general public; coordination with the Growth 
Management Act; and basin planning. 
 
The City adopted stormwater management regulations are included in Buckley Municipal 
Code Chapter 14.30.  The activities covered under this regulation include land disturbing 
activities, structural development including construction, installation or expansion of a 
building or other structure, creation of impervious surfaces, Class IV general forest practices 
that are conversions from timber land to other uses, subdivision, short subdivision and 
binding site plans and redevelopment. 
 
The level of service chosen for new conveyance facilities is to provide the conveyance 
capacity of the 100-year, 24-hour event. 

 
COLLECTION 
 

Level of Service 
 
The Pierce County ordinance requires the City to develop a Storm Drainage Plan that 
describes how all storm drainage impacts will be mitigated for any existing or future project.  
This plan is required if the project consists of or results in high housing densities, changes in 
the drainage patterns, contains wetlands or swales, filling, sensitive areas, is tributary to any 
pothole off-site, changes to the runoff coefficient, changes in erosion characteristics, or if 25 
percent of the surface area becomes impervious. 
 
This plan must include a description of the property prior to development, as it exists now, 
and how it might be modified in the future; details of the topography, basin, and soils; 
downstream drainage analysis, and calculations of the runoff rates and volumes that would 
occur for the 25-year event.  In addition, the plan must include recommendations and 
construction projects necessary to manage any runoff problems. 
 
The importance of a storm drainage plan, and of properly managing storm runoff, is 
significant step in alleviating potential future drainage issues.  By detaining, retaining, or 
allowing storm runoff to infiltrate, citizens, property and environmentally sensitive areas are 
better protected from flooding, erosion, depleted groundwater and summer base flows, and 
pollution. 
 

System Inventory 
 
The City’s storm drainage network is comprised of numerous catch basins and storm drain 
manholes, piping ranging in size from 6 to 36 inches, year and/or area draws, detention 
ponds/pipes and an extensive network of storm drainage ditches that includes culverts and 
outlet channels.  Several areas are either not currently serviced or are inadequately serviced.  
Areas slated for development or currently without service will require improvements before 
any development can continue, in order to mitigate flooding and other impacts. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
111



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 47 of 73 

The City does not currently provide storm drainage for the State of Washington Rainier 
School.  The Rainier School is located along the easterly City limit and encompasses nearly 
160 acres.  The School directs a majority of its stormwater through a privately maintained 
system to an outfall in the White River, north of the City.  It is believed that the south 
campus, approximately 70 acres in area, channels storm runoff into the City’s drainage 
system located along and within the Ryan Road corridor. 
 
The collector and drainage infrastructure, as it presently exists, predominantly conveys water 
to both the north and west areas of the City to ultimately discharge into the Puget Power 
Flume and the White River Basin.  Areas to the south and east part of the City, which are less 
developed, discharge drainage flows south into the Spiketon Creek Basin area.  The City’s 
existing storm drainage system in included as Figure D1 of the Utilities Element.   
 
To analyze the existing and required future storm drainage capacities, the Urban Growth 
Area was segregated into fourteen individual drainage basins.  Some of the basins were 
divided into smaller sub-basins for the purpose of analysis.  This was accomplished based on 
the present system’s configuration and outfall locations as well as the general topography of 
the Buckley Basin.  These individual drainage basins are shown in Figure D2 of the Utilities 
Element.  Existing conveyance piping and stormwater outfall locations were surveyed to 
estimate the maximum available capacity at discharge points.  Previously, City standards 
relied on the “Yrjanainen and Warren” (Y&W) method of hydraulic analysis.  The Ecology 
Manual uses the “Unit Hydrograph Analysis Methods” for estimating storm run off volumes 
and rates as the preferred method for estimating runoff.  The Comprehensive Flood Hazard 
Management Plan for Buckley used the Santa Barbara Urban Hydrograph Method to analyze 
10, 25, 100, and 500- year storm events.  The analysis reflected existing conditions as well as 
impervious areas that are likely to result from the Comprehensive Plan – designated 
development.  The existing drainage conditions, outfall capacities, and estimated future 
drainage flows were then reviewed to determine storm sewer improvements necessary to 
decrease flood potential.  There are several basins within the City with inadequate storm 
drainage.  The City lies in a relatively flat area, which makes management of drainage 
challenging. In addition, previous storm drainage detention standards either did not include 
detention, or included a 25-year Y&W detention analysis.  These standards proved to be 
inadequate during the 1996 and 1997 floods.  Some of the areas needing improvements 
simply require larger pipes or open channels.  For others, increasing conveyance will move 
existing flooding to another location.  In addition to these conveyance system mitigation 
measures, alternatives including construction of detention facilities and restoration of historic 
drainage patterns must be considered. 
 
The City currently experiences flooding and ponding in areas which are not provided with 
adequate storm drainage.  Some of the areas needing improvement simply require larger 
pipes or open channels, while others have no conveyance system in place.  Areas now being 
proposed for development will need upgrades to existing conveyance systems before any 
development can be completed.  Areas of large impervious surfaces will result in flooding 
and erosion leading to property damage, unless an adequate drainage system is constructed. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
112



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 48 of 73 

The previously completed sanitary sewer infiltration/inflow report recommends that once 
improvements to the sanitary system have been completed and sewage flows are redirected 
into the new network, the old sanitary sewer pipe can be used to collect, convey and 
discharge storm runoff.  The stormwater improvements outlined herein have been selected 
based on the use of the existing storm sewers capacity.  Additional drainage capacity could 
be achieved by the conversion of sanitary piping, and may be completed during sanitary 
system improvement projects, not included as a part of this analysis. 
 
The City’s existing storm drain outfall locations were surveyed and reviewed to estimate 
existing basin discharge capacities.  These estimates were then compared with both the 
existing drainage flows and future estimated maximum runoff flows to determine the current 
and future levels of service.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
113



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 49 of 73 

Proposed Locations and Future Needs  
 
The following project descriptions and recommendations for construction projects have been 
selected based on a review of the City’s existing storm drainage conditions.  These 
improvements are targeted to remove existing storm conveyance problems within the City.  
Each of the selected projects is to be completed with systems that will adequately pass the 
runoff from the future “build-out” developments that are presently anticipated.  The 
recommended piping has been selected to comply with the City standards, which require 
commercial and high value areas to convey a 100-year storm event at maximum development 
expected to occur in each area. 
 
Each of the indicated stormwater system improvement projects indicated in Figure D3 of the 
Utilities Element, have been proposed based on both future development and existing 
conditions.  Figure D3 indicates capital improvements recommended for the 6-year and 20-
year time frames.  The main trunk lines of each basin’s system have been shown and outfall 
locations have been selected to take advantage of existing topographic conditions.  
Improvements to the existing sanitary sewer system or roadways may significantly impact 
the development of these projects. 
 
The projects are taken from the May 2008 City of Buckley Comprehensive Stormwater 
Management Plan (CSMP) and are listed in order of priority. 
 
Stormwater Capital Improvement Projects 
 
CIP 1 – Spiketon Bridge involves the installation of a 12-foot-wide by 3-foot-tall bridge 
section at the Spiketon Road crossing. This will replace the two 24-inch concrete pipes at 
Spiketon Road and will help minimize flooding currently experienced in this area during a 
100-year storm event. 
 
CIP 2 – Dundass Avenue is a project that was brought to the attention of City staff by a 
resident in 2006. This project includes connecting 135 linear feet of new 12-inch pipe 
between 3rd Street and 4th Street to the existing storm system. The installation of this pipe 
should alleviate the flooding seen in this area.  
 
CIP 3 – The Sheets Road Diversion project involves the diversion of flow from Spiketon 
Ditch to the ditch along the east side of Sheets Road. This ditch flows north, under Ryan 
Road, and then along the west side of the Rainier School property where it crosses Collins 
Road, and eventually discharges to the PSE Flume. In diverting water north along Sheets 
Road, flooding will be lessened on the properties surrounding Spiketon Ditch west of Sheets 
Road. This project involves the upgrade of existing Sheets Road driveway culverts to 36-inch 
pipes and the replacement of a 36-inch pipe south of Collins Road with 1,025 linear feet of 
60-inch pipe. Flow splitters will also be needed to direct flow north along Sheets Road, and 
then again near Ryan Road where 
flow will need to be disbursed between the existing 18-inch and 24-inch pipes in this area.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
114



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 50 of 73 

CIP 4 – The Division Street (Ryan Road Diversion) project is a temporary measure to 
implement prior to the installation of a 48-inch pipe that will connect runoff from Ryan Road 
to the existing 48-inch pipes in Hinkelman Extension. The purpose of the Division Street 
project is to divert water from Ryan Road south along Division Street. 
By doing so, the first 645 linear feet of pipe will need to be replaced with 24-inch pipe.  In 
addition, 100 linear feet of ditch will need to be rehabilitated near the south end of Division 
Street. 
 
CIP 5 – The Hinkleman Road East Basin is a 58-acre basin that drains to the north via a ditch 
across private property midway between the Hinkleman Extension and Mundy Loss Road.  
The recommended improvements in this basin include the installation of 2,685 linear feet of 
36-inch pipe on the south side of Hinkelman Road. The drainage should be directed east, 
opposite of its current flow direction, to the 
48-inch storm sewer system installed in the Hinkleman Road Extension.  
 
CIP 6 – The Hinkelman Extension/Ryan Road Extension project was noted above as the 
installation of 3,440 linear feet of 48-inch pipe. This pipe will connect the Ryan Road storm 
system to the existing 48-inch pipes at Hinkelman Extension. The pipes will extend west of 
the intersection of Ryan Road and Division Street, west toward 
112th Street East.  This project has been completed as part of the SR410/SR165 Realignment 
Project.  The completed project has improved the flooding seen along Ryan Road and A 
Street  and has helped restore the flow back to its natural discharge location.  
 
CIP 7 – The McNeely basin includes the area between McNeely Road and the WSU Dairy 
Farm property, and is bounded on the south by Collins Road and the north by the PSE flume. 
The improvements in this basin are listed as the seventh priority of the CIP plan. The basin is 
lightly developed at this time. The ditch and driveway culverts that run north through this 
basin and along McNeely Road are not adequately sized to convey the 100-year event. The 
ditch should be rehabilitated for 354 linear feet, and 797 linear feet of pipe and culverts will 
need to be replaced with 24-inch pipes.  
 
CIPs 8 and 9 – Regional Treatment and Detention Feasibility Studies to identify the 
feasibility of installation of one or more regional stormwater treatment and detention ponds 
should be prepared. These projects were ranked eighth and ninth. The City will need the 
results of the feasibility study in order to evaluate alternatives for system improvements. The 
use of regional stormwater treatment and detention ponds could eliminate the need for 
multiple treatment and detention facilities located on private property. Regional ponds, 
because of their size, may provide better opportunities for water quality treatment and more 
effective maintenance.  
 
CIP 10 – The Elk Meadows Ditch project involves the enhancement of an existing ditch and 
culverts west of Sheets Road along private property. According to local residents, this area 
floods from Spiketon Ditch under extreme storm events. This project would involve the 
upgrade of three driveway culverts to two 3' x 3' box culverts and one 3' x 5' box culvert. In 
addition, 1,915 linear feet of ditch would need to be rehabilitated to handle the anticipated 
flow from a 100-year storm.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
115



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 51 of 73 

 
CIP 11 – The Spiketon Road project is a minor project that resulted from the hydraulic 
modeling done along Spiketon Road. Under the 100-year storm condition, a 242 linear foot 
section of ditch was found to have insufficient capacity. Therefore, it is recommended that a 
2' x 3' box culvert replace this ditch.  
 
CIP 12 – The Collins Road Basin includes the drainage systems along Collins Road, 
Sergeant Street, and Spruce Street.  The basin has a large number of drainage deficiencies 
and the continuing development in this basin will continue to exacerbate the problem. The 
improvements recommended in the Collins Road Basin include pipe and ditch replacement. 
Approximately 2,150 linear feet of 18-inch pipe and 1,464 linear feet of 24-inch pipe would 
be installed along Collins Road. South of Collins Road, 1,314 linear feet of parallel 36-inch 
pipe would be installed, which would then connect to the Collins Road system which 
continues northerly. From Collins Road north, the existing pipe would be replaced with 3,290 
linear feet of 60-inch pipe where it would then discharge into the PSE Flume.  
 
CIP 13 – The Ryan Road project includes the extension of the new 48-inch pipe of the 
Hinkelman Extension/Ryan Extension project. A 36-inch pipe was placed in Ryan Road 
during 2006 that extended from the Division Street/Ryan Road intersection east toward 
Spiketon Road. According to the hydraulic model, this pipe will need to be supplemented 
with 1,659 linear feet of a parallel 36-inch pipe. In addition, this project includes the 
installation of 3,175 linear feet of 36-inch pipe and 1,018 linear feet of 48-inch pipe.  
 
CIP 14 – The Downtown area consists of insufficient 18-inch pipes at the downstream end of 
the system in this basin. The Downtown project consists of replacing these 18-inch pipes 
with 140 linear feet of 24-inch pipes and 850 linear feet of 36-inch pipe. 
 
CIP 15 – The North Highway 410 project incorporates the replacement of existing pipes with 
1,240 linear feet of new 36-inch pipe and 210 linear feet of 48-inch pipe at the downstream 
end of this basin.  
 
CIP 16 – The River Avenue North project is similar to the Downtown and North Highway 
410 projects in that it includes the replacement of existing pipes with 1,720 linear feet of 36-
inch pipe at the downstream end of the stormwater system in this area. 
 
CIP 17 – The 112th Street Basin is bounded on the south by the high point in the topography 
south of 112th Street and Mundy Loss Road to the west.  The drainage problems here have 
been minor in nature, yet the hydraulic model indicated that during a 100-year storm along 
the west end of 112th Street, the existing pipes and ditch need to be replaced with 1,541 
linear feet of parallel 36-inch and 48-inch pipe.  
 
CIPs 18 and 19 – West Highway 410A and 410B are located on the south and north sides of 
SR 410, respectively. The results of the hydrologic/hydraulic model indicated that the ditch 
should be replaced with 5,520 linear feet of 24-inch pipe on the south side of SR 410. It was 
also found that 75 linear feet of 12-inch pipe should be installed on the 
north side of SR 410 along with 85 linear feet of ditch that should be rehabilitated.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
116



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 52 of 73 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 

Stormwater System 
 
 CF-17 presents a capital improvement plan for the stormwater system.  The  lists the year of 
completion and the probable source of funds for each project.  The projects are described in 
more detail in the previous sections.  Data for the stormwater system improvements were 
taken from the May 2008 City of Buckley Comprehensive Stormwater Management Plan. 
 

Table CF-17 Stormwater Projects 
 

Project 
Number 

Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated Project 
Cost (2018)  

CIP-1 2019 Rates $700,000 
CIP-2 2018 Rates $77,500 
CIP-3 2019 Rates $672,500 
CIP-4 2020 Rates $277,500 
CIP-5 2021+ Rates $1,587,500 
CIP-6 Complete   
CIP-7 2021 Rates $438,750 
CIP-8 Complete   
CIP-9 2020  $10,000 

CIP-10 2021+  $476,250 
CIP-11 2021+ Rates $173,750 
CIP-12 2021+  $4,797,500 
CIP-13 2021+  $3,771,250 
CIP-14 2021+  $606,250 
CIP-15 2021+  $966,250 
CIP-16 2021+  $958,750 
CIP-17 2021+  $1,786,250 
CIP-18 2021+  $43,750 
CIP-19 2021+  $2,151,250 

 
 

RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN 
 
The current Stormwater Utility rates are $22.64 per month for a single-family residence, 
$14.94 per month for multi-family residential units, and $22.64 per month per each 
equivalent service unit (ESU) for all other parcels.  An ESU is defined to mean 8,000 square 
feet of impervious surface area. 
 
In addition to the monthly stormwater utility fee, the City collects a surface water 
management general facilities charge of $7,578 per single-family residence or ESU (BMC 
14.28.140). 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
117



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 53 of 73 

 
  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
118



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 54 of 73 

VII. OTHER UTILITIES 
 

NATURAL GAS UTILITY 
 
The natural gas distribution utility is owned, operated, and maintained by the Puget Sound 
Energy (PSE).  
 
Company Overview:  Puget Sound Energy (PSE) is a private utility providing natural gas 
and electric service to homes and businesses in Puget Sound region of Western Washington 
and portions of Eastern Washington, covering 10 counties and approximately 6,000 square 
miles.  PSE’s regional and local natural gas and electric planning efforts are integrated and 
centered on providing safe, dependable, and efficient energy service. PSE provides natural 
gas to more than 770,000 customers, throughout 6 counties, covering approximately 2,900 
square-mile area.  As of 2017, PSE provides natural gas service to approximately 1,500 
customers in the City of Buckley. 
 
Regulatory Environment: PSE’s operations and rates are governed by the Washington 
Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC). PSE natural gas utility operations and 
standards are further regulated by the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), including 
the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Administration (PHMSA).  PHMSA’s Pipeline Safety 
Enforcement Program is designed to monitor and enforce compliance with pipeline safety 
regulations.  This includes confirmation that operators are meeting expectations for safe, 
reliable, and environmentally sound operation of PSE’s pipeline infrastructure. PHMSA and 
the WUTC update pipeline standards and regulations on an ongoing basis to assure the 
utmost compliance with standards to ensure public safety. The residents within the City of 
Buckley rely on the coordinated effort between PSE and the City for the adoption and 
enforcement of ordinances and/or codes to support on the  safe, reliable, and environmentally 
sound construction, operation and maintenance of PSE’s natural gas facilities. 
 
INTEGRATED RESOURCE PLAN 
 
In order for PSE to meet its regulatory requirements, it updates and files an Integrated 
Resource Plan (IRP) with the WUTC every two years.  The IRP identifies methods to 
provide dependable and cost effective natural gas service that address the needs of retail 
natural gas customers. Natural gas sales resource need is driven by design peak day demand. 
The current design standard ensures that supply is planned to meet firm loads on a 13-degree 
design peak day, which corresponds to a 52 Heating Degree Day (HDD).  Currently, PSE’s 
supply/capacity is approximately 970 MDth/Day at peak.  This figure will be updated in the 
fall of 2015. The IRP suggests the use of liquefied natural gas (LNG) for peak day supply 
and support the needs of emerging local maritime traffic and truck transport transportation 
markets. 
 
Natural Gas Supply: PSE controls its gas-supply costs by acquiring gas, under contract, 
from a variety of gas producers and suppliers across the western United States and Canada. 
PSE purchases 100 percent of its natural-gas supplies needed to serve its customers.  About 
half the natural gas is obtained from producers and marketers in British Columbia and 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
119



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 55 of 73 

Alberta, and the rest comes from Rocky Mountain States. All the gas PSE acquires is 
transported into PSE’s service area through large interstate pipelines owned and operated by 
Williams Northwest Pipeline. PSE buys and stores significant amounts of natural gas during 
the summer months, when wholesale gas prices and customer demand are low, and stores it 
in large underground facilities and withdraws it in winter when customer usage is highest; 
ensuring a reliable supply of gas is available. 
 
System Overview: To provide the City of Buckley and adjacent communities with natural 
gas, PSE builds, operates, and maintains an extensive system consisting of transmission and 
distribution natural gas mains, odorizing stations, pressure regulation stations, heaters, 
corrosion protection systems, above ground appurtenances, and metering systems. When PSE 
takes possession of the gas from its supplier, it is distributed to customers through more than 
21,000 miles of PSE-owned natural gas mains and service lines.  
 
PSE receives natural gas transported by Williams Northwest Pipeline’s 36” and 30” high 
pressure transmission mains at pressures ranging from 500 PSIG to 960 PSIG.  The custody 
change and measurement of the natural gas occurs at locations known as Gate Stations.  PSE 
currently has 39 such locations throughout its service territory. This is also typically where 
the gas is injected with the odorant mercaptan.  Since natural gas is naturally odorless, this 
odorant is used so that leaks can be detected. The Gate Station is not only a place of custody 
transfer and measurement but is also a common location of pressure reduction through the 
use of “pressure regulators”.     Due to state requirements, the pressure is most commonly 
reduced to levels at or below 250 PSIG.  This reduced pressure gas continues throughout 
PSE’s high pressure supply system in steel mains ranging in diameter of 2” to 20” until it 
reaches various other pressure reducing locations. PSE currently has 755 pressure regulating 
stations throughout its service territory. These locations consist of Limiting Stations, Heaters, 
District Regulators, and/or high pressure Meter Set Assemblies. 
 
The most common of these is the intermediate pressure District Regulator.  It is at these 
locations that pressures are reduced to the most common levels ranging from 25 PSIG to 60 
PSIG.  This reduced pressure gas continues throughout  PSE’s intermediate pressure 
distribution system in mains of various materials consisting of  polyethylene and wrapped 
steel that range in diameters from 1-1/4” to 8” (and in a few cases, larger pipe). The gas 
flows through the intermediate pressure system until it reaches either a low pressure District 
Regulator or a customer’s Meter Set Assembly.  
To safeguard against excessive pressures throughout the supply and distribution systems due 
to regulator failure, over-pressure protection is installed.  This over-pressure protection will 
release gas to the atmosphere, enact secondary regulation, or completely shut off the supply 
of gas. To safeguard steel main against corrosion, PSE builds, operates, and maintains 
corrosion control mitigation systems to prevent damaged pipe as a result of corrosion. 
 
Future Projects: To meet the regional and City of Buckley natural gas demand, PSE’s 
delivery system is modified every year to address new or existing customer growth, load 
changes that require system reinforcement, rights-of-way improvements, and pipeline 
integrity issues.  The system responds differently year to year and PSE is constantly adding 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
120



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 56 of 73 

or modifying infrastructure to meet gas volume and pressures demands. At this time, there 
are no known major construction projects anticipated in the City of Buckley.  
 
Current and future system integrity work will include ongoing investigations throughout the 
city to determine the location of where gas lines have been cross bored through sewer lines 
and make subsequent repairs. 
 
ELECTRICAL UTILITIES  
 
Puget Sound Energy (PSE) serves the City of Buckley. 
 
Company Overview: Puget Sound Energy (PSE) is a private utility providing electric and 
natural gas service to homes and businesses in Puget Sound region and portions of Eastern 
Washington, covering 10 counties and approximately 6,000 square miles.   PSE’s regional 
and local electric and natural gas planning efforts are integrated and centered on providing 
safe, dependable, and efficient energy service. PSE provides electrical power to more than 
1.2 million electric customers throughout 8 counties.  As of 2017, PSE provides electric 
service to approximately 2,000 customers in the City of Buckley. 
 
Regulatory Environment: PSE’s operations and rates are governed by the Washington 
Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC). PSE electric utility operations and 
standards are further governed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), the 
National Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC), and the Western Electricity Coordinating 
Council (WECC). These respective agencies monitor, assess and enforce compliance and 
reliability standards for PSE. The residents of the City of Buckley and the region rely on the 
coordinated effort between PSE and the City for the adoption and enforcement  of ordinances 
and/or codes to protect transmission and distribution line capacity and support federal and 
state compliance of safe, reliable, and environmentally sound operation of PSE’s  electric  
facilities. Routine utility maintenance work, including vegetation management is required to 
maintain compliance with FERC, NERC, and WECC regulations.   
 
Integrated Resource Plan:   In order for PSE to meet regulatory requirements, it updates 
and files an Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) with the WUTC every two years.  The IRP) 
presents a long-term forecast of the lowest reasonable cost combination of resources 
necessary to meet the needs of PSE’s customers to provide dependable and cost effective 
service over the next 20 years. The current plan, which was filed in May of 2013, details both 
the energy supply and transmission resources needed to reliably meet customers’ wintertime, 
peak-hour electric demand over the next 20 years. The plan, which will be updated, 
forecasted that PSE would have to acquire approximately 4,900 megawatts of new power-
supply capacity by 2033. This resource need is driven mainly by expiring purchased-power 
contracts and expected population and economic growth in the Puget Sound region.  The IRP 
suggests that roughly more than half of the utility’s long-term electric resource need can be 
met by energy efficiency and the renewal of transmission contracts. This reduces the need 
down to 2,200 MW by 2033. The rest of PSE’s gap in long-term power resources, the IRP 
stated is likely to be met most economically with added natural gas-fired resources.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
121



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 57 of 73 

PSE generates approximately 46 percent of the electricity for its customers’ from its own 
generation specifically generation plants; hydro, thermal, solar and wind.  PSE currently has 
about 3,000 megawatts of power-generating capacity, and purchase the rest of its power 
supply from a variety of other utilities, independent power producers and energy marketers 
across the western United States and Canada. 
 
System Overview: To provide the City of Buckley with electricity, PSE builds, operates, and 
maintains an extensive integrated electric system consisting of generating plants, 
transmission lines, substations, switching stations, sub-systems, overhead and underground 
distribution systems, attachments, appurtenances, and metering systems. 
 
Electricity provided by PSE to the City of Buckley is often produced elsewhere and is 
interconnected to the Northwest’s regional transmission grid through an extensive network of 
transmission facilities providing bulk transmission service to meet the demands of electricity 
customers within the region’s eight states. The PSE electric transmission facilities in the City 
of Buckley are important components of the electric energy delivery grid serving the Puget 
Sound region.  As electricity reaches the City of Buckley the voltage is reduced and 
redistributed through lower-voltage transmission lines, distribution substations, overhead and 
underground distribution lines, smaller transformers, and to individual meters. 
 
PSE will be prudently and systematically deploying smart grid technology at each level of 
infrastructure to enhance and automate monitoring, analysis, control and communications 
capabilities along its entire grid. Smart grid technologies can impact the electricity delivery 
chain from a power generating facility all the way to the end-use application of electrical 
energy inside a residence or place of business. The ultimate goals of smart grid are to enable 
PSE to offer more reliable and efficient energy service, and to provide customers with more 
control over their energy usage. 
 
Future Projects: To meet regional and City of Buckley electric demand, PSE is upgrading 
the existing 55 kilovolt (kV) substations and transmission lines between Electron Heights 
(vicinity of Kapowsin) and Enumclaw to 115 kV. The multi-year projects began in 2009 and 
entail converting the voltage of over 20 miles of transmission line between the Electron 
Heights and Krain Corner (Enumclaw) substations, installing roughly 1.5 miles of new 
transmission line in Enumclaw, as well as converting, upgrading or completely rebuilding 
four substations as well as constructing a new substation in Buckley and adding a fiber-optic 
line to existing transmission facilities between Buckley and Enumclaw. 
 
TELECOMMUNICATION UTILITIES  
 
The City of Buckley is served by CenturyLink.  Various facilities are located throughout the 
County and the City. 
 
Many of the telecommunication facilities are co-located with those of Puget Power.  Buckley 
has digital electronic facilities available through CenturyLink, which allow call forwarding 
and a number of other features to be available to the customer.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
122



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 58 of 73 

CenturyLink reacts to customer demands, since the telecommunications industry is required 
to provide service upon demand.  CenturyLink has indicated to the City that there is capacity 
for the City and its Urban Growth Area. 
 
Cellular telephone service is provided in the Buckley area by Comcast.  Cable TV is 
provided to the Buckley area by Comcast for areas surrounding the City.   
 
The provision of telecommunication services is driven by the needs of its customers.  As the 
city grows, telecommunication facilities will be upgraded to ensure adequate service levels.  
Facilities will be upgraded as technology advances. 
 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION  
 
The City contracts with D.M. Disposal Company for solid waste collection.  Collection is 
performed once a week. in the unincorporated portion of the Planning Area, solid waste is 
collected also by D.M. Disposal.   
 
TRANSPORTATION 
 
The transportation system serving the residents of the City of Buckley has been analyzed as 
part of this initial step in the comprehensive planning process.  The detailed inventory and 
analysis are presented in the Transportation Element, which was adopted by the City in 
December, 2017.  According to the analysis there are significant transportation facilities 
required to support the growth projected within the UGA. 
 
The City of Buckley 6-year Transportation Improvement Plan, adopted in July, 2018 is 
included in CF-18.  The primary outside funding source for City transportation projects is the 
Washington State Transportation Improvement Board (TIB).  City funding of the local match 
for TIB funded projects is funded primarily by the street impact fees, which are currently 
$6,074 for each single-family home, $4,243 for each multi-family unit, and $638 per average 
daily trip (ADT) for non-residential, based on trip generation in the City’s adopted  based on 
the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual.    
 

Table CF-18 6-year Transportation Improvement Plan 
(2020 – 2025) 

 

Project 
Number Project Name 

Est 
Project 

Date 
Funding Source 

Estimated 
Project Cost 

(2019) 
1 Sergeant Street 2020 TIB, Local $421,000  
2 Cedar Street 2020 TIB, Local $280,700  
3 Naches Street 2020 TIB, Local $224,000  
4 River Avenue 2020 TIB, Local $352,500  
5 112th Street Resurfacing 2021 TIB, Local $207,700  
6 Spruce Street Reconstruct 2021 TIB, Local $319,000  
7 Naches Street Resurfacing 2021 TIB, Local $90,000  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
123



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 59 of 73 

Project 
Number Project Name 

Est 
Project 

Date 
Funding Source 

Estimated 
Project Cost 

(2019) 
8 Pearl & Jefferson Int Imp 2021 TIB, Local $80,000  
9 Mt. View Resurfacing 2021 TIB, Local $193,600  

10 Division St Imp Project 2022 TIB, Local $1,501,500  
11 Division Street Overlay 2022 TIB, Local $211,900  
12 Dundass Street Overlay 2022 TIB, Local $233,500  
13 Hinkleman Rd Resurfacing (Ph II) 2022 TIB, Local $160,200  
14 Jefferson Ave Overlay 2023 TIB, Local $689,500 
15 White River Bridge (Trail) 2023 Multi & Local $7,436,100 
16 View Place Overlay 2024 TIB, Local $29,200  
17 Whitmore Way Overlay (Ph II) 2024 TIB, Local $185,000  
18 Main Street Rehab 2024 TIB, Local $326,900  
19 River Ave & Main St Int Imp 2024 TIB, Local $1,247,100  
20 Spiketon Rd Ped Imp 2025 TIB, Local $1,258,500  
21 "A" Street Overlay 2025 TIB, Local $227,200  
22 Pearl Street Overlay 2025 TIB, Local $661,900  
23 Mundy Loss Ped Imp  2025 TIB, Local $433,100  
24 Ryan Road (Ph II) Reconstruct 2028 TIB, Local $3,075,100  
 
PARKS AND RECREATION  

 
The City of Buckley adopted its initial Parks and Recreation Element in December, 1996.  
The original Element was compiled through the collaborative effort of the Park Board, City 
Council, citizens and staff and resulted in a basic plan that the City could use to move 
forward in the development of park and recreation facilities and programs to meet the 
demands of a growing community.  The Park Board updated the Park and Recreation Plan in 
2004 and again in 2015 and it is intended to be used both as a “stand-alone” document and as 
an element of the City of Buckley Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Level of Service 
 
The Parks & Recreation Level of Services Standards included in the 2015 update are as 
follows: 
 

Table CF-19 Parks & Recreation LOS Standards 
 

Facility Acres/Units/pop 
Mini-Park 0.25 acre:1,000 
Neighborhood Park 1.0 acre:1,000 
Community Park 5.0 acre:1,000 
Sports Complex  

• Softball Fields 1 facility:2,000 
• Baseball Fields 1 facility:2,000 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
124



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 60 of 73 

Facility Acres/Units/pop 
• Basketball Courts 1 facility:3,500 
• Soccer Fields 1 facility:3,500 
• Volleyball (Outdoor) 1 facility:4,000 
• Tennis Courts 1 facility:4,000 

Special Facilities  
• Skate Park 1 facility:7,500 
• Splash Park 1 facility:7,500 
• Climbing Rock 1 facility:7,500 
• Pump/Bicycle Track 1 facility:7,500 

Pathways  
• Park Trails 1.0 mile:2,000 
• All Terrain Bike Trail 0.5 mile:3,000 

 
In addition to a population based LOS city staff and planning commission recommended that 
the complimentary levels of development adopted in the 2004 Park and Recreation Plan be 
retained for neighborhood and community parks, except that the Level of Development for 
each category 1-3 should be the same for each type of park. While overall features and 
facilities may be different at the two types of facilities, the needs associated with use of the 
facilities remain the same. Parking, restrooms and picnic areas are basic amenities that 
should be provided at each neighborhood or community park facility to support use. So the 
minimum level of development for neighborhood and community parks should be a Level 2. 
At Level 3 the facility is expected to be fully developed whether it’s a neighborhood park or 
a community park. The adopted complimentary levels of development are as follows: 
 
 Neighborhood Parks and Community Parks – Level of Development 

 
 Level 1 provides rough grading, fencing, fire hazard mowing, and brush/trash 

removal; it is intended to reduce liability and unsightliness. 
 
 Level 2 provides fine grading, seeding, limited parking facilities, playground 

equipment, restroom, picnic facilities, back stop panel and signage; it is 
intended to offer a basic level of park improvements and usability. 

 
 Level 3 provides sports/tennis courts, asphalt trails, picnic shelters, 

landscaping, interpretive areas, and irrigation; it is intended to provide a full 
level of service for a range of intensive uses. 

 
Inventory of System 

 
 CF-20 includes the City of Buckley’s existing park and recreational facilities. 
 

Table CF-20 Existing Inventory of Facilities 
 

Existing Facility Size of Facility 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
125



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 61 of 73 

Existing Facility Size of Facility 
Thunderbird Park 0.4 acres 
‘A’ Street Mini Park 0.25 acres 
Mt. View Mini Park 0.25 acres 
Elk Heights Mini Park 1.0 acre 
River Avenue Park 1.0 acre 
Vanhoof Park 2.6 acres 
Miller Park 3.5 acres 
White River Athletic Fields 8.0 acres 
Riverside Park 1.0 acres 
Mundy-Loss Passive 5.0 acres 

Total 23.0 acres 
Sports Complex Facilities Number 

Baseball Fields 1 
Softball Fields 4 
Basketball Courts 1 
Soccer Fields 0 
Volleyball (outdoor) 0 
Tennis Courts 0 

Total 6 
Special Facilities Number 

Skate Park 1 
Splash Park 0 
Climbing Rock 0 
Pump/Bicycle Track 0 

Pathways Length 
Park Trails 2.37 miles 
All Terrain Bike Trail 0.0 miles 

 
Facility Needs 

 
 CF-21 includes the Parks and Recreation facility needs based on population projections for 
years 2015 and 2025. 
 

Table CF-21 Parks and Recreation Facility Needs 
 

Park Facility Size for 2015 
Population 

Size for 2025 
Population 

Mini Park 1.15 acres 1.64 acres 
Neighborhood Park 4.62 acres 6.55 acres 
Community Park 23.08 acres 32.74 acre 

Sports Complex Facilities Number Number 
Baseball Fields 2.31 3.27 
Softball Fields 2.31 3.27 
Basketball Courts 1.32 1.387 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
126



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 62 of 73 

Park Facility Size for 2015 
Population 

Size for 2025 
Population 

Soccer Fields 1.32 1.87 
Volleyball (outdoor) 1.15 1.64 
Tennis Courts 1.15 1.64 

Special Facilities Number Number 
Skate Park 0.62 0.87 
Splash Park 0.62 0.87 
Climbing Rock 0.62 0.87 
Pump/Bicycle Track 0.62 0.87 

Pathways Length Length 
Park Trails 2.31 miles 3.27 miles 
All Terrain Bike Trail 0.77 miles 1.09 miles 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 

Parks and Recreation 
 
 CF-22 presents a capital improvement plan for the Parks and Recreation system.  The  lists 
the year of completion and the source of funding for each project.  The projects are described 
in more detail in the Parks and Recreation Element of the Comprehensive Plan.   
 

Table CF-22 Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement 
Schedule 

 
No. Project Years Estimated  

Project 
Cost (2018) 

P-1 Miller Neighborhood Park 2018–2023 $823,226 
P-2 City Ag-Land Multi-Use Community 

Park 
2019-2025 $3,741,300 

P-3 Lot #19 South of Youth Center 2019-2024 $765,000 
P-4 White River Property west of SR410 2019-2025 $146,875 

 Total  $5,476,401 
 

RECOMMENDED FINANCING PLAN 
 
The City of Buckley collects revenues for capital improvements, which may be used as a 
source of funding for park and recreation facilities (when not dedicated for other purposes, 
i.e. water or sewer).  These funds are being deposited into the following three funds: 
 
Fund 135:  This fund, otherwise known as the “Park and Construction Fund” (or the “Park 
and Open Space Fund”), consists of revenues collected from the “Impact Fee for Parks and 
Recreation Facilities,” which are currently $1,625 for each single-family home, $1,332 for 
each multi-family unit.  Collection of this fee is authorized under BMC 3.50.040.  These 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
127



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 63 of 73 

funds can be used only for the acquisition, construction, improvements, maintenance, and 
repair of parks, open space, and recreational facilities. 
 

Fund 137:  This fund is known as the “Capital Improvements Fund”, and consists of 
revenues collected from a one-quarter of one percent (0.25%) excise fee levy on real 
property transaction, authorized under State law.  These funds may be spent for 
capital improvements or facilities provided by State law, such as streets, utility 
facilities, and parks. 

 
Fund 308:  This fund, known as the “Comprehensive Plan Capital Improvements Fund”, and 
authorized under Section 36 of the Growth Management Act, consists of revenues collected 
from another one-quarter of one percent (0.25%) excise fee levy on real property 
transactions.  These funds may be spent only on capital facilities identified in a capital 
facilities element of a Comprehensive Plan, adopted in accordance with the requirements of 
the Growth Management Act.   
 
 CF-23 shows the Parks and Recreation capital improvement projects, year or completion, 
funding source, and estimated project cost. 
 

Table CF-23 Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement 
Funding Sources 

 
Project Year of 

Completion 
Funding Source Estimated 

Project Cost 
(2018) 

P-1 2023 RCO Grant / Local / Impact Fees $823,226 
P-2 2025 RCO Grant / Local / Impact Fees $3,741,300 
P-3 2024 RCO Grant / Local / Impact Fees $765,000 
P-4 2025 RCO Grant / Local / Impact Fees $146,875 

 
MUNICIPAL FACILITIES  
 
The facilities for public administration including City Hall, library, Public Works, Fire 
Station and Police Station are currently in good condition.  As the population in the City 
grows, the concomitant growth in City services will require additional facilities.  The extent 
of the need will depend on several key factors including the amount of growth, the pace of 
new growth, and the level of service expected to be provided. 
 
The inventory collected during this phase of the comprehensive planning process did not 
include information about the quality of social services provided through the local 
government, educational facilities, churches, emergency services, and the library.  As a 
result, it is not possible to provide a reasonable estimate of potential future needs beyond a 
qualitative evaluation that City staff and policy-makers need to address these issues in 
subsequent iterations of the planning process. 
 
  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
128



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 64 of 73 

CF-24 includes the planned Public Facilities Project in the City. 
 

Table CF-24 Public Facilities Projects 
 

Project Year of 
Completion 

Funding Source Estimated 
Project 

Cost 
(2018) 

Building / Planning Remodel 2019 Local $105,000 
Public Works Admin Bldg Ph. 3 2019 Local $130,000 
Remodel City Hall 2021 Local $100,000 
Foothills Trail Parking/Trailhead 2019 RCO Grant/Local $200,000 
Public Works Storage Facility 2020 Local $100,000 

 
 
FIRE PROTECTION FACILITIES  
 
A new Fire Station was completed in 2012 on Division Street to the south of Ryan Road.  
The projected was funded via voter approved bond.  The facility is roughly 20,000 square 
feet and should meet the needs of the City for the 20-year horizon and beyond. 
 
POLICE PROTECTION  
 
Although the City of Buckley is a relatively small and rural community, the Buckley Police 
Department is a full service police agency.  The Buckley Police Department delivers the 
same, if not better, police service to its citizens than larger metropolitan agencies.  The City 
of Buckley Police Department provides the following services. 
 

• Enhanced E-911 Police and Fire emergency dispatching 
• 24-hour police patrol coverage 
• Part-time police coverage for the Town of Carbonado 
• Technical accident investigation 
• Specialized Police K-9 Unit 
• Crime follow-up investigations 
• State certified reserve officer training academy 
• Three full-time detention officers 
• Assigned patrol vehicles 
• State accreditation 
• State approved emergency operations plan 
• First level supervision training for supervisors 
• Computerization of police records 
• Narcotics investigations 
• Gang resistance education training 
• Neighborhood officer assignments (community policing) 
• Modern state-of-the-art communications center 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
129



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 65 of 73 

 
Police Facilities  

 
One of the most urgent needs of the Buckley Police Department is the upgrading and 
expansion of department facilities.  The current facility needs to be upgraded as funding 
becomes available.  The Police Department needs to provide its employees with a productive 
working environment.   
 

VIII. GENERAL CITY FINANCE  
 
As with most cities in Washington, the City of Buckley receives revenue from a variety of 
sources including:  several locally imposed taxes; shared state revenues; service fees, permits 
and licenses; and fines and other forfeitures.   CF-25 shows the distribution of City revenues 
available for current expenses (i.e. general fund revenues).  The largest share of these 
revenues comes from local taxes such as the property tax, sales tax, utilities taxes, and the 
gambling tax.  The second largest share, comes from other financing sources which primarily 
derive from transfers from various utility and enterprise accounts for administrative 
allocations. These categories of income account for approximately 72.58% percent of the 
general-purpose revenues available to the City annually.  

 
Table CF-25 Distribution of City Revenues Available for 

Current Expenses 
 

Source of Funds 2012 2013 2014 Percent of Total 
2012 2013 2014 

Beginning fund balance $25,109 $28,426 $103,716 0.63% 0.81% 2.85% 
Property Tax $792,651 $779,087 $791,402 19.80% 22.18% 21.76% 
Sales & Use Tax $461,706 $528,870 $573,807 11.54% 15.05% 15.78% 
Utility Tax $814,739 $825,647 $804,319 20.36% 23.50% 22.11% 
Gambling & Excise Tax $9,344 $8,990 $14,718 0.23% 0.26% 0.40% 
Licenses & Permits $113,441 $157,045 $143,358 2.83% 4.47% 3.94% 
Intergovernmental $481,410 $51,297 $51,472 12.03% 1.46% 1.42% 
Goods & Services $268,830 $270,991 $329,460 6.72% 7.71% 9.06% 
Fines & Penalties $156,283 $142,122 $117,391 3.90% 4.05% 3.23% 
Miscellaneous  $13,562 $41,194 $58,699 0.34% 1.17% 1.61% 
Nonrevenues $318,701 $162,094 $142,111 7.96% 4.61% 3.91% 
Other Financing Sources $492,820 $477,477 $455,465 12.31% 13.59% 12.52% 
Community Services $54,028 $40,085 $51,230 1.35% 1.14% 1.41% 
Total general fund revenues $4,002,623 $3,513,325 $3,637,148 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 
Total general fund expenditures $3,974,197 $3,409,609 $3,633,850       
Surplus/(deficit) $28,426 $103,716 $3,297       

 
Source:  City of Buckley, Financial Reports 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
130



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 66 of 73 

The total general fund revenues have remained fairly stagnant since the last Comprehensive 
Plan update in 2005. With the advent of the housing downturn and nationwide recession the 
City experienced significant loss of revenue to the general fund, as well as population loss 
that resulted from the number of vacant units within the community. During the last update 
the Comprehensive Plan identified a trend of 4% gain in total revenue between 2002 and 
2004 with a total of $3.918 million in 2004. Table 25 above which reflect comparisons 
between 2012 and 2014 illustrates that total revenue actually decreased over the period. In 
2012 total revenue was $4,002,623, but by 2014 had dropped by 9.13% to $3,637,148.  
 
The downturn and subsequent recession impacted the City beginning in 2008 and the City 
didn’t see any recovery until the 2013 to 2014 period. During this period the City Council 
had to make some difficult decisions in order to maintain levels of service. Their main goal 
was to identify core levels of service and eliminate those that were no longer necessary. Their 
exercise in efficiency resulted in the closure of the City’s Jail and 911 Dispatch Center both 
of which had generated some amount of revenue through outside contracts. This directly 
correlates to the lower revenue after 2012. In addition the City sold the Natural Gas System 
Utility to Puget Sound Energy in 2014.    
 
These steps prepared the City to be well positioned financially once the recover was in full 
swing. At this writing the City ended 2018 with total general fund revenue of $5,676,856 
with a 2019 beginning fund balance of $813,301. 

 
The City’s current expense revenues and expenditures are relevant to a discussion about 
capital financing, since most of the City’s financial resources are general purpose revenues 
which can be used for operating or capital needs.  In most cases, the operating requirements 
of a jurisdiction will account for virtually all of the available general-purpose funds, forcing 
cities to look to other ways of financing capital improvements.  This is especially true in 
small jurisdictions, where larger capital projects are relatively infrequent and can amount to a 
sizable percentage of the operating budget.  Therefore, the ability of the City to fund capital 
improvements will depend in large measure on the relative prosperity and population of 
Buckley that relates directly to sources of expense revenues. 
 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL FUNDING 
 
One relative indicator of prosperity is the importance of intergovernmental transfers in the 
funding of the City’s expenses.  According to data summarized in CF-23, the City is 
dependent on the County, State and/or Federal Government for approximately 8.47% to 
11.84% percent of its expense revenues for the annual comparison. CF-26 presents a 
tabulation of intergovernmental assistance for the years 2012-2014. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
131



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 67 of 73 

Table CF-26 Intergovernmental Assistance for the Years 2012 
to 2014 

 
Program 2012 2013 2014 
Local vehicle license (TBD)     $63,617 
Equalization - City Assistance $14,461 $9,136 $4,431 
Gas tax street (combined) $88,794 $90,237 $90,143 
Disaster Assistance $64,198     
Liquor excise $16,003 $2,924 $8,212 
Liquor board profits $43,342 $39,237 $38,829 
DOT Transportation Grant    $27,435 $154,944 
Transportation Improve Board 
(TIB) $193,526 $5,531 $271,622 
Real estate excise tax $49,094 $107,316 $84,397 
Board of prisoners $359,447 $12,642   
Emergency dispatch $101,246 $27,622   
Fire service contracts $77,127 $98,676 $128,640 
Law enforcement services $58,562 $80,640 $91,836 
Dept. of Justice grant $5,250     
WASPC grant $3,784     
Local sales tax criminal justice $55,859 $61,050 $64,406 
Criminal Justice low population $1,002 $1,050 $1,151 
Crim Justice - Spec Programs $3,682 $3,907 $4,164 
US Fire Administration grant $31,721     
Hotel motel excise tax $17,726 $22,371 $18,507 
PWTF Loan (Water Sys Const.)   $270,579 $457,969 
DOE Stormwater Phase II Grant $17,482 $103,858 $53,093 
DOC Shorelines Grant $25,755     
DOC Energy Grant     $316,923 
DOC GMA Grant     $16,200 
FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant $657,411 $161,335   
DEM Hazard Mitigation Grant $152,310 26889.65   
EPA Booster Station Grant $29,870 $106,143 $225,185 
PC Youth Violence Prevention 
Grant $25,481 $14,076 $12,500 
Pierce County Grant $3,500 $1,008 $7,956 
Total Financial Assistance $2,096,629 $1,273,663 $2,114,725 
Total Citywide Budget $17,713,549 $18,363,739 $24,953,618 

Source:  City of Buckley, Financial Reports 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
132



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 68 of 73 

CAPITAL FUNDS  
 
Aside from general-purpose revenues, the City also receives revenues that are earmarked for 
capital expenditures.  The primary sources of dedicated capital funds are the combined state 
motor fuel tax and the real estate excise tax.   CF-27 summarizes the income received from 
these sources in the period 2012 to 2014. 
 

Table CF-27 City of Buckley Capital Funds Sources for the 
Years 2012 to 2014 

 
Source of Funds 2012 2013 2014 

Motor fuel tax $88,794 $90,237 $90,143 
REET $49,094 $107,316 $84,397 
Total revenues  $137,888 $197,553 $174,539 

                            Source:  City of Buckley, Financial Reports 
 
These revenues, along with any general-purpose revenues transferred from the current 
expense fund, are placed in one of several enterprise funds for use in capital facility 
financing.  These funds can accumulate until such time as there is enough revenue to fund a 
particular improvement.   For comparative analysis the City will use the current cash 
balances “on hand” as of the close of the most recent 2018 fiscal year. CF-28 presents the 
current 2018 balance in the major capital improvement enterprise funds.  The table shows the 
beginning balance, revenues added, expenditures, and ending balance for the period in 
question.  In all cases, the funds are accumulating surpluses for future expenditures. 
 

Table CF-28 Current 2018 Balance in the Major Capital 
Improvement Enterprise Funds 

 

  

Railroad Row 
Maint & 

Devel (008) 

Park 
Construction 
Fund (035) 

Arterial 
Street 

Fund (102) 

Fire Station 
Constructio

n Fund 
(134) 

Capital Imp 
Fund (307) 

Comp Plan 
Capital Imp 
Fund (308) 

Beginning cash & 
investments $109,162 $112,654 $206,620 $202,689 $625,482 $259,618 

Revenues added $24,730 $86,580 
$1,077,36

5 $15,309 $437,566 $193,374 

Total resources $133,892 $199,234 
$1,283,98

6 $217,998 $1,063,048 $452,993 

Expenditures $28,702 $49,225 
$1,058,99

2 $9,965 $496,053 $205,058 
Ending net cash 
& investments $105,190 $150,009 $224,994 $208,032 $566,995 $247,935 

Source:  City of Buckley, Financial Reports 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
133



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 69 of 73 

CITY-OWNED UTILITIES  
 
The City of Buckley operates three public utilities, providing water and sewer service, and 
stormwater management to local residents.  These City-owned utilities are self-supported 
financial entities, financed through the revenues generated by the utility customers and 
responsible for operations, maintenance, and capital improvements.  Capital improvements 
can be funded, either on a pay-as-you-go basis, or through the issuance of revenue bonds.  
The pay-as-you-go approach requires that revenues in excess of operating and maintenance 
costs be held in reserve for capital improvements until enough funding capacity is available 
for project development.  This makes sense for many smaller projects, which can be funded 
out of cash flow. 
 

Table CF-29 City-Owned Utilities – Water, Sewer, Storm 
Revenue Generated 

 

  

Water 
System 

Fund (402) 

Sewer 
System Fund 

(402) 

Stormwater 
Management 
Fund (407) 

Beginning cash & investments $177,453 $381,631 $18,563 
Revenues added $988,900 $2,073,052 $558,964 
Total resources $1,166,353 $2,454,682 $577,527 
Expenditures $1,111,861 $2,176,728 $502,862 
Excess (deficit) $54,492 $277,954 $74,665 
Ending net cash & investments $54,492 $277,954 $74,665 

Source:  City of Buckley, Annual Financial Reports. 
 

For larger projects, where cash requirements are substantially greater than is available, the 
utility can issue tax-exempt revenue bonds to fund the improvement.  This provides the 
utility with a large capital budget and allows the cost of the facility to be repaid from future 
operating revenues.  One of the advantages of this approach, besides allowing for larger 
projects, is that the cost of the facility is shared by both the existing ratepayers and future 
ratepayers.  For facilities with lengthy useful lives this provides a more equitable distribution 
of costs to the beneficiaries of the improvement. 
 
CF-29 presents the most recent financial data for the Water, Sewer and Stormwater Utilities. 
Capital financing capacity, whether it is pay-as-you-go or debt financed, is determined by the 
net cash after operations.  These figures imply that without a rate increase the utilities face 
limited capital financing opportunities.  As a result, a utility rate study should be undertaken 
after the Water and Sewer Comprehensive Plan, and Stormwater Management Plan are 
completed.  The study would determine the necessary rate schedule required to fund the 
improvements called out in these studies. 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
134



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 70 of 73 

POTENTIAL SOURCES OF ADDITIONAL REVENUES/FUNDING CAPACITY  
 
There are two methods available to a city to raise revenues:  1) raise the rate of taxation for 
taxes currently levied; and 2) levy new taxes.  The following are some potential new sources 
of revenue, which the City could tap to increase its financial capacity to fund additional 
capital improvements. 
 

Real Estate Excise Tax (REET)  
 
The Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) is a transfer tax imposed whenever an interest in real 
property is transferred, and is due on the date of the transfer.  The 1990 Legislature has 
authorized cities and counties to impose an additional tax on the sale of real estate.  This 
additional tax of 0.25 percent is to use to support capital projects specified in a capital 
facilities plan element of the City’s comprehensive plan.  The first 0.25 percent REET 
imposed by the City of Buckley received approximately $22,000 in 1992; the City added a 
second 0.25 percent provided under the Growth Management Act, to raise additional revenue 
for capital projects.  In 2018, the City of Buckley received $373,892 from the REET. 
 

B&O Tax on General Business  
 
Cities and towns may levy a business and occupation (B&O) tax on general business of up to 
0.2 percent of gross receipts.  A city may increase the tax rate above this statutory limit, but 
only if approved by the voters of the jurisdiction.  There are only a couple of dozen cities in 
the State of Washington that collect municipal B&O taxes on general business.  The City of 
Buckley has no longer has a B&O tax on general business within the City limits.  
 

B&O Tax on Utilities  
 
Municipalities are permitted to charge a B&O tax on utilities operating within their 
jurisdiction.  Cities may levy up to 6 percent of gross receipts on electrical, natural gas, steam 
energy, and telephone businesses.  There is no limit in the rate levied on gross receipts for 
other utilities such as garbage, surface water management, and water and sewer services.  
Current utility B&O rates for the City of Buckley are shown in CF-30. 
 

Table CF-30 Current Utility and B&O Rates 
 

Utility City of Buckley 
Natural gas 6.0% 
Electric 6.0% 
Telephone 6.0% 
Cellular telephone 6.0% 
Garbage (start 3/05) 10.0% 
Water 10.0% 
Sewer 10.0% 
Drainage 10.0% 
Cable TV 4.0% 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
135



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 71 of 73 

                         Source:  City of Buckley BMC 3.96.050 - Ord. 01-09 § 1, 2009 
 
With the passage of the Growth Management Act, the state gave cities and counties much 
greater flexibility to charge impact fees on new development.  Given the large increments of 
growth projected for the Buckley area, impact fees assist in providing a mechanism for 
shifting some of the financial burdens associated with expanding services.  Good candidates 
for impact fee treatment include:  schools, fire protection, transportation, and parks and 
recreation. 
 

Formation of Local Improvement District (LID)  
 
Another mechanism for allocating the costs of growth, to the responsible individuals is 
through the formation of a Local Improvement District (LID).  Where a new development 
requires some significant improvements, such as a new road or extended water and sewer 
system, an LID can be formed whereby benefiting properties are each assessed for their fair 
share of the cost of the improvement.  This mechanism provides a dedicated revenue stream 
that is pledged to the repayment of bonds used to fund the improvement.  The bonds are 
secured by the value of the land.  This mechanism can also be used in built-up areas to fund 
system replacement or expansion, though it is much more difficult if there are numerous 
property owners, since the formation requires support from benefited property owners 
accounting for over 50 percent of the proposed assessment.  The major difference between 
issuing General Obligation (GO) bonds and using an LID to finance capital improvements is 
the GO bonds will be supported by all taxpayers in the community, while the LID bonds will 
be retired by the beneficiaries of the improvement. 
 

Transportation Benefit Districts 
 
In 1987, the Washington State Legislature approved legislation that allows jurisdictions the 
ability to establish Transportation Benefit Districts as an option for local governments to 
fund transportation improvements. Since 2005, the Legislature has amended the TBD statute 
to expand its uses and revenue authority. More recently, in 2007, the Legislature amended 
the TBD statute (ESHB 1858). 
 
Engrossed Senate and House Bill 1858 authorized a funding mechanism for cities and 
counties that could provide necessary resources to help maintain and preserve transportation 
infrastructure. A TBD can fund transportation improvements contained in any existing state 
or regional transportation plan that is necessitated by existing or reasonably foreseeable 
congestion levels. This can include maintenance and improvements to city streets, county 
roads, state highways, investments in high capacity transportation, public transportation, 
transportation demand management and other transportation projects identified in a regional 
transportation planning organization plan or state plan. 
 
In November of 2012, the City created the new Buckley Transportation Benefit District and 
enacted a $20 vehicle registration fee (for each eligible vehicle registered in Buckley) for the 
purpose of supporting street maintenance and transportation projects. In 2015, the City of 
Buckley received $84,783 in vehicle fee revenue from the TBD. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
136



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 72 of 73 

Transportation Improvement Board  
 
The Transportation Improvement Board (TIB) is a State agency that funds transportation 
improvements on state, city and county arterials. 
 
The primary purpose of the TIB is to administer state funding for local government 
transportation projects.  Projects are funded by utilizing TIB revenue in combination with 
local matching funds and private sector contributions.  Revenues for these grant programs are 
generated from the state fuel tax.  Projects seeking TIB funds are submitted to the Board and 
are prioritized on the basis of several criteria, to determine the eligibility and relative merit of 
each.  The distributions are then determined by going down the prioritized list of projects 
until the budget is depleted.  The City of Buckley’s population is approaching a TIB 
threshold limit that separates small city projects from urban projects.  The threshold 
population is 5,000; those cities below this population are eligible as a small city and those 
cities over are classified as urban.  
 
PLAN OF FINANCE, CAPITAL FACILITIES FINANCE STRATEGY 
 
In keeping with the incremental approach undertaken in this comprehensive planning effort, 
this Plan of Finance is not intended to be a detailed six-year capital facilities plan.  Since 
many of the capital facility needs are yet to be identified and prioritized, an attempt to 
produce a project level CIP was not reasonable at this time.  In its place, the following 
Capital Facilities Finance Strategy will provide the City with a framework strategy to help 
with capital financing decisions during the next couple of years as the detailed engineering 
work is completed.  It will also allow the City to put into place the requisite capital finance 
mechanisms, which will fund the identified priority projects as well as address the longer-
term growth-driven capital needs. 
 
To ensure that the City of Buckley has the necessary financial capacity to fund current and 
future capital improvements, while maintaining an equitable balance between the burden of 
providing new facilities and the beneficiaries of those facilities the City should: 
 

• Expand the existing revenue base where it is deemed practical 
 

• Add new revenue sources primarily for capital funding 
 
• Maintain financial policies which will ensure future population pays its fair 

share of the cost of capital improvements 
 
• Actively pursue state financial assistance for capital projects which will allow 

for the leveraging of local funds (i.e., Transportation Improvement Board) 
 

Expanded Revenue Base 
 
The City should explore possible avenues for expanding the current revenue base.  Toward 
this end the following should be analyzed. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
137



Capital Facilities Element 8 

City of Buckley - Capital Facilities Element 11/21/2019 11:34 AM Page 73 of 73 

 
Adjust Utility Rate Structure 
 
In keeping with the overall strategy of ensuring that new development is paying a fair share 
of the costs of development, the utility rates should be structured such that new connections 
are assessed at a level approximating the marginal cost of infrastructure development. 
 

New Revenue Sources 
 
The other way to expand current financial capacity is to begin to levy new taxes or impose 
new fees.  The following available new taxes or fees should be explored as a means of raising 
additional funds for capital improvements. 
 
Impact Fees 
 
One of the better mechanisms available to the City is to try to equitably allocate the cost of 
new infrastructure among the existing residents and the new population is through the 
establishment of impact fees.  The City should explore the reasonableness of setting up 
impact fee schedules to help defray the costs of transportation improvements, parks and 
recreation facilities, and fire protection services. 
 
The White River School District No. 416, which serves Buckley and the greater Buckley 
area, created a capital facilities plan to calculate impact fees for the city to consider charging. 
This work is attached together with its Resolution Number 18/13 and considered part of this 
element. 
 
Local Improvement Districts 
 
When a particular improvement will benefit only a portion of the population, the City should 
consider the formation of an LID to fund the necessary improvements.  This is especially 
relevant in the case where a new development is proposed and seeking to be annexed, the 
City could require that an LID be in place which funds the appropriate capital improvements.  
This way the value of the land can support the infrastructure development without affecting 
the City’s ability to use general obligation debt or special levies supported by property tax 
revenues and the costs will be borne by the beneficiaries of the improvements. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
138



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: November 26, 2019       AB19-116 
 
ORD No. ____-19, Adopting the 
2020 City Operating Budget 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:  N/A Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:  1/1/2020 to 12/31/2020 Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Ordinance & Budget Document       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  The 2020 Budget as discussed and recommended. 
 
The 2020 budget proposes to expend a total of $22,202,065 on overall revenue projections of 
$33,072,250. The proposed budget anticipates having a total end fund balance of $10,870,185. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: All Committees, Two Full Council Workshops, 
and a Public Hearing. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve ORD No. 24-19, Adopting the 
2020 City Budget. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
139



Ordinance No. _____-19 Page 1 
 

CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____-19 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CIT OF BUCKLEY, 
PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING THE 2020 FINAL 
BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF BUCKLEY BY REFERENCE 
 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor of the City of Buckley, Washington completed and placed on 

file with the City Administrator, a proposed budget and estimate of the money required to meet 

the public expenses, bond retirement and interest, reserve funds and expenses of government of 

the City of Buckley for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010; and 

 WHEREAS, The 2020 Budget was the subject matter at a Public Hearing held on 

November 12, 2019, for which proper publication and posting was made according to law; and 

 WHEREAS, the City council did meet at this time an did consider the matter of the 2020 

Budget; and 

 WHEREAS, the 2020 Budget does not exceed the lawful limit of taxation allowed by 

law to be levied on the property within the City of Buckley for the purposes set forth in the 2020 

Budget, and the estimated expenditures set forth in the 2020 Budget are all necessary to carry on 

the government of the City of Buckley for the Year 2020 and are sufficient to meet the various 

needs of the City of Buckley during that period. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, 

PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON , DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. The 2020 Final Budget for the City of Buckley is hereby adopted by 

reference. The final budget is on file with the City Administrator and available for inspection by 

the public at City Hall, 933 Main Street, Buckley, Washington, during normal business hours. 

 Section 2. Estimated resources, including fund balances or working capital for each 

separate fund of the City of Buckley, and aggregate totals (net of transactions between funds) for 

all such funds combined, for the Year 2020, are set forth in summary form on Exhibit A attached 

hereto; and are hereby appropriated for expenditure at the fund level during the Year 2020 as set 

forth on the attached. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
140



Ordinance No. _____-19 Page 2 
 

 Section 3.  The City Administrator is directed to transmit a certified copy of the 

Budget hereby adopted to the State Auditor’s Office and the Association of Washington Cities. 

 Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and take effect five (5) days after its 

publication according to law. 

 Section 5. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance should be held 

to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 

unconstitutionality shall not affect he validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 

 Introduced, passed, and approved this 26th day of November 2019.  

 

     

Pat Johnson, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Treva Percival, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Phil Olbrechts, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

PUBLISHED:     
EFFECTIVE:     

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
141



Ordinance No. _____-19 Page 3 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

2020 City Budget 

Fund 
Number Fund Name Revenues Expenditures 

Unreserved 
Ending Fund 

Balance 
001 General Expense          $7,009,222 $6,032,727 $976,496 
002 GF Contingency $258,928 $0 $258,928 
003 GF Cumulative  Reserve $5,116,793 $101,318 $5,015,475 
004 Cemetery Operations  $27,632 $4,541 $23,091 
007 Police Equipment Reserve      $341,906 $140,000 $201,906 
008 RR ROW Development        $127,349 $31,997 $95,352 
030 Fire Equip Reserve        $707,106 $579,000 $128,106 
035 Park Construction     $381,639 $300,250 $81,389 
101 Street Operations $276,230 $262,602 $13,628 
102 Arterial Street Capital        $1,981,426 $1,624,051 $357,375 
103 Transportation Benefit District $106,607 $101,502 $5,105 
105 EMS                 $592,119 $396,250 $195,869 
109 Criminal Justice & Drug Enforce  $279,408 $122,000 $157,408 
134 Fire Construction       $206,289 $7,500 $198,789 
136 Visitor Promotion     $191,911 $24,510 $167,401 
202 Fire Station Construction Bond $352,517 $274,420 $78,097 
307 Capital Improvement     $983,496 $827,023 $156,474 
308 Comprehensive Plan Capital Imp   $475,173 $234,983 $240,191 
401 Natural Gas Operations       $14,496 $10,225 $4,271 
402 Water/Sewer Operations $3,567,659 $3,472,266 $95,393 
403 Solid Waste Operations     $1,318,589 $1,303,099 $15,490 
405 Sewer Construction  $3,289,112 $2,261,306 $1,027,806 
406 Water Construction  $2,011,613 $1,934,903 $76,710 
407 Stormwater Operations $747,717 $649,380 $98,337 
408 Stormwater Construction $1,686,799 $970,212 $716,586 
430 Utility Equipment Reserve      $385,103 $135,000 $250,103 
631 Muni Court Trust      $448,278 $400,000 $48,278 
701 Cemetery Endowment    $187,134 $1,000 $186,134 

  Total $33,072,250 $22,202,065 $10,870,185 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
142



                                      
                                                  
 
 
 
 
 
                                              
 
 
 
 
   

     City of Buckley 
 

       2020 Budget Request 
 

Mayor 
Patricia Johnson 

 
  City Council 

           John Leggett              Ron Smith 
           Milt Tremblay            Luke Wilbanks 
           Beau Burkett             Sandy Burkett 

         Connie Bender 

  ♦♦♦ 
 

 

Kenny Loye 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
143



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Mayor’s Message 
 
Page 3 

Budget Summary – 2019-2020 
 
Page 4 

General Operating Fund 
 
Page 4 

Budget Projections – 2020 
 
Page 17 

Departmental Summaries - 2020 
 
Page 25 

Conclusion 
 
Page 56 

 
Appendix A: 2019 City Employee Salary Scale 

 
Page 59 (A 1-2) 

 
Appendix B: 2019 Public Works & Parks FTE Schedule 

 
Page 62 (B 1) 

 
      Appendix C: 2019 Utility Administration Cost Allocation 

 
Page 64 (C 1-2) 

 
Appendix D.  2019 City Organizational Chart 

 
Page 67 (D 1-7) 

 
Appendix E.  2019 Budget Request - Expenditures 

 
Page 75 (E 1-24) 

 
Appendix F:  2019 Budget Request - Revenues 

 
Page 100 (F 1-16)  

 
Appendix G: 2020 - Capital Improvement Program - Schedule 

 
Page 117 (G 1-11) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Buckley 
2020 Budget Request 

Index 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
144



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

3 

 
MAYOR’S MESSAGE 2020 

 
 
The budget document that the City must put together each year is the “road map” 
calculation for how much revenue will come into the City and what it will cost to run the 
City in the coming year. What projects do we hope to accomplish, what equipment does 
the City need to purchase, how much will be paid out in salaries and benefits for 
employees and how much do we need to set aside each year for large capital projects and 
large equipment (such as a fire truck) is only a small portion of what the budget is about. 
It is a real challenge each year and requires a lot of staff time compiling all the data. 
 
Our City continues to grow at a rapid pace, as does the entire Puget Sound area.  Families 
are driving until they can afford the mortgage and with the attraction of a beautiful area 
to live in and good schools, the rate of development will continue for the next several 
years. More people equal more demand for services such as police, fire and utilities. It is 
expected in the 2020 Census that our population will exceed 5,000. 
 
This budget document lists a number of projects to be completed in 2020 in all 
departments. Several positions in the City have gone from part-time to full-time due to 
increased workloads. We are also adding an additional police officer. New development 
creates more roads, streetlights and sidewalks (paid for by the developers) that the City 
then must maintain in the future. 
 
The population figures that will be coming out of the 2020 Census are critical to the City. 
Our State distributes most funds to the City based on population. It will be a major 
undertaking to make sure everyone in the City is counted. 
 
We must be careful with spending as we move forward.  Sooner or later, we will be hit 
with another recession and we need to be prepared.  Over several years; we have paid off 
debt, created healthy reserve accounts that allow us to pay cash for large expenditures, set 
up a “rainy day fund” to cover unexpected expenses and put the proceeds from the sale of 
the Natural Gas Company the City owned into an interest bearing account.  We have 
nearly $15 million now set aside earning money for the City. 
 
It is easy to spend money but hard to save for a project that might not be completed for 
several years. We must continue to ask ourselves, “Is this a need or a want?” “Is this 
project sustainable into the future?” It took many years to get the City to this place and 
with careful budgeting; we will be on stable financial ground now and into the future. 
 
 

Mayor Patricia Johnson 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
145



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

4 

UBUDGET SUMMARY 2019 - 2020 
 
The City of Buckley is a Mayor-Council form of government that provides an extensive array of 
services to the community. The total City budget encompasses twenty-eight (28) individual 
funds, each having an expense and revenue category. From these accounts, the City administers 
programs and services for finance and administration, legislative, executive, legal, information 
technology (I.T.), municipal court, fire control and EMS, law enforcement, contract law 
enforcement services, building and planning, parks and recreation, senior center, youth center, 
community hall, streets and transportation, museum support, cemetery, utility operations (water, 
sewer, stormwater and garbage) and capital improvements and replacements.  
 
The 2019 Budget anticipated and reflected sustained economic improvement throughout the 
business and housing sectors.  End of year projections based on current numbers support many 
of the assumptions made in the budget. Citywide revenues for 2019 are projected to be 7.0% 
higher than budgeted. New housing starts remain strong and we continue to anticipate strength 
in this area for at least the next 2-3 years. City staff continues to see interest from both residential 
and commercial developers. At this point in 2018, City staff had conducted 23 pre-application 
conferences with interested parties and as of October of this year 12 have been conducted. As a 
result of the strong housing market, real estate excise tax (REET) remains strong. Due to the 
continued improvement in the economic sector, revenue from sales and use taxes continues to 
rise and is currently projected to be 38.28% higher than budgeted.  
 
As indicated above, citywide revenue for 2019 is projected to be up by 7.0% with the largest 
increases being reflected in the various utility capital accounts with revenue from new 
development. The general fund is projected to receive revenue 5.8% higher than budgeted 
primarily due to sales tax, building permits and planning fees.  Overall expenditures for 2019 are 
projected to be under by (15.7%), primarily due to delay of capital projects that were budgeted 
for 2019. The general fund expenditures are currently projected to be under by (2.1%). Utilities 
and enterprise funds remain stable with the exception of street operations, where operational 
expenditures continue to outpace revenues despite obtaining additional revenue from the 
establishment of the Transportation Benefit District (TBD) and implementation of the $20 
vehicle fee.  Of additional concern, is the possibility that Initiative 976 (I-976) will be approved by 
Washington voters in which case the funding mechanism provided through establishment of the 
TBD would go away, but this will be discussed in more detail under the transportation and streets 
category. 
 
In the next section we’ll summarize activity for 2019 in the various fund categories. 
 
  

 
 

UGeneral Operating Fund 
 
The general fund (current expense) provides the majority of administrative, public safety and 
community services to the City.  Revenue is derived from multiple sources, including property 
taxes, sales and use taxes, public and private utility taxes, license and permit fees, gambling 
taxes, excise taxes from liquor and marijuana, rentals and leases, user fees, service contracts (law 
enforcement and fire), grants, fines and forfeitures and investment interest. Although the 
general perception is that property taxes from real property in the City fund the largest share of 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
146



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

5 

services, they do in fact “only” represent approximately 18.5% of the revenue to the City’s general 
expense fund. Sales and use taxes have surpassed property and utility taxes for the first time at a 
percentage contribution of 21.7% of the revenue. Utility taxes are on par with property taxes at 
18.5%.  
 
14TU2019 General Fund Revenue: U Total revenue to the general fund in 2019 was budgeted at 
14T$6,335,442, which included a projected 2019 beginning fund balance (BFB) of $931,114 and 
revenue of $5,404,328; however, the BFB was less than projected at $813,302 after completing 
closeout of 2018. Expenditures for 2018 were budgeted at $4,713,095; however after accounting 
for the 13P

th
P month closeout accounting practice, actual expenditures totaled $4,863,555. 

Therefore, we began the year with beginning fund reserves ($117,813) less than projected.  
 
Despite beginning the year with less than anticipated, revenues for 2019 are exceeding 
expectations. Revenues not counting the BFB for current expenses were budgeted at $5,404,328; 
however, we’re projecting this to be 8.96% higher at $5,888,527 by years end if revenue continues 
at the current pace. General fund revenue for 2019 is illustrated in Table 1 below: 
 

UTable 1 – 2019 General Fund Revenue 
 

Category 2019 Budget 2019 Projected % of GF 

Taxes $3,003,373 $3,335,998 55.57% 

- Property Tax $997,837 $997,837 18.46% 

- Sales & Use Tax $995,000 $1,375,874 18.41% 

- Utility Tax (Public & Private) $996,026 $950,464 18.43% 

       - Gambling & Leasehold Tax $14,500 $11,817 0.27% 

Licenses & Permits $306,500 $629,600 5.67% 

Intergovernmental + Goods & SVCS $622,222 $528,935 11.51% 

Fines & Penalties $144,450 $126,836 2.67% 

Miscellaneous  $64,100 $33,934 1.19% 

Non-revenues (pass through) $179,600 $125,063 3.32% 

Other Financing Sources &Transfers $991,952 $980,761 18.35% 

Community Services $92,130 $127,400 1.70% 

Total $5,404,327 $5,888,527 100.00% 

 
While overall revenues are projected to be up by 8.96% in 2019, we are experiencing shortfalls in 
individual categories such as combined utility taxes (4.6%), excise & gambling taxes (18.5%), 
intergovernmental & goods/services (15.0%), fines & penalties (12.2%), miscellaneous rentals and 
leases (47.1%) and municipal court non-expenditures (30.4%). 
 
Primary general fund revenue is derived from the sources identified above. In the Tables below, 
we will illustrate historical trends by listing multi-year comparisons for seven (7) of the major 
revenue sources.  
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
147



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

6 

 
UTable 2 - Revenue Comparisons 

 
Revenue Comparisons 

Category 2017 2018 2019 2020 
  Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Projected Estimated  
Property Tax $890,590 $895,962 $937,618 $936,438 $997,837 $997,837 $1,059,044 
Sales & Use Tax $713,000 $882,921 $761,000 $1,113,497 $995,000 $1,375,874 $1,202,000 
Combined Utility Tax $932,814 $889,772 $949,829 $918,932 $996,026 $950,464 $1,027,201 
Gambling Taxes $13,500 $11,260 $12,500 $13,010 $14,500 $11,817 $14,500 
Licenses & Permits $276,450 $421,661 $304,500 $483,519 $306,500 $629,600 $429,300 
Intergovern + Goods & SVCS $496,986 $497,867 $509,957 $556,819 $622,222 $528,935 $634,950 
Fines & Penalties $159,450 $123,955 $159,450 $106,031 $144,450 $126,836 $154,450 

Total $3,482,790 $3,723,398 $3,634,854 $4,128,246 $4,076,535 $4,621,362 $4,521,445 
 

The five (5) highest sources are discussed separately below: 
 
14TUSales & Use Tax: U14T Is a tax 
imposed upon every taxable 
transaction, as defined in 
RCW 82.14.020, occurring 
within the City. The tax shall 
be imposed upon and 
collected from those persons 
from whom the State sales or 
use tax is collected pursuant 
to Chapters 82.08 and 82.12 of 
the RCW. The City 
administers this tax through 
the policies and provisions of BMC 3.12 and RCW 82.14.050. Revenues from this source are the 
second largest contributor to the general fund and account for approximately 18.41% of the total 
2019 revenue. As stated previously, we continue to see improvement in the economic sector and 
sales and use taxes are up significantly at 38.3% over 2019 budget estimates. Revenue for 2019 
was forecast at $995,000, but year-end projections utilizing the September closeout, forecast that 
sales tax revenue will be $1,375,874. Based on this increased activity, we anticipate that revenue 
from sales and use tax will remain strong 14Tin 2020, so we’re projecting revenue from sales tax at 
$1,202,000, which is a 21.56% increase over the 2019 budgeted revenue14T.  
 
14TUUtility Taxes U: Taxes are levied 
on all utilities both public and 
private under the City’s taxing 
authority and subject to the 
standards outlined in Buckley 
Municipal Code (BMC) 3.96. 
Revenues from these sources 
account for approximately 
18.43% of the total 2019 
revenue to the general fund. 
The 2019 Budget forecast was 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
148



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

7 

that utility taxes would bring in $996,026 in revenue,  however current projections utilizing the 
September closeout indicate that tax revenue from this source will fall slightly under this by 
(4.6%) at $950,46414T. In developing revenue forecasts, the City anticipated an increase as the result 
of new residential development; however, revenue has lagged the actual construction of new 
dwelling units. 
 
14TUFees for Licenses & PermitsU: 
Receive revenues from fire 
permits, business licenses, 
building permits and animal 
licenses. As mentioned in the 
summary, new housing starts 
remain strong and we continue 
to anticipate strength in this 
area for at least the next 2-3 
years. Although projections 
were raised in each of the last 
four years, the strength of new housing development has exceeded the raised expectations by 
over double and we’re projecting a 128.5% increase by years end over 2019 budgeted revenue. 
The 2019 Budget projected receiving $250,000 in building permit fees, but with forecasts based 
on September closeout figures, we’re projecting ending the year with $571,368. 14TFor 2020, we’re 
anticipating that building activity will continue due to new developments which are currently 
under construction; however, in taking a conservative approach we’re only increasing the 2020 
projection by $125,000 over 2019 to $375,000.  
  
14TUIntergovernmental and 
Charges for Goods & Services: U14T 
Are revenues derived from 
State tax distributions for 
liquor and marijuana, fees for 
passports, copies, municipal 
court, land use planning and 
zoning, and charges for 
outside service contracts for 
law enforcement services to 
Rainier School, Wilkeson and 
Carbonado, and fire and EMS 
service to Rainier School, Carbonado and Wilkeson. Revenue for 2019 was budgeted at $622,222; 
however, current projections are that the City will fall short of the amount by (15.0%) and end 
the year at $528,935. The revenue shortfall in this fund category is related to lower marijuana 
excise tax distributions, firefighter training reimbursements, records check fees and 
reimbursable planning expenditures for land use applications.  
 
14TUProperty Tax: U Is 14Trevenue derived from tax assessed on real property by the local government. 
The tax is based on the value of the property (including the land) you own. Real property (also 
called real estate or realty) means the combination of land and improvements. 
 
The law requires the Assessor-Treasurer's Office to value property at 100% of the true and fair 
market value. True and fair market value is defined as the price a willing buyer will pay a willing 
seller. Assessed values are affected by the local real estate market and the real estate market is 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
149



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

8 

directly influenced by supply 
and demand. This affects the 
cost of materials, labor, and 
other incidentals required to 
build, market, and sell a 
home. Pierce County is 
required to conduct an 
annual statistical update of 
assessed values based on real 
estate transactions. Even if 
no improvements are made 
to a home, the value continues to follow the market activity in the neighborhood and/or area in 
which it is located. 
 
A historical property valuation trend is depicted in Table 3 below.  
 

UTable 3: Citywide Property Valuations 
 

 

New 
Construction 

Value 

Property 
Valuation w/o 

New Construction 
Total Valuation 

% Change w/o 
New 

Construction 

% Change 
with New 

Construction 

2005 $2,106,758 $266,875,189 $268,981,947 3.29% 3.24% 

2006 $2,939,735 $304,192,434 $307,132,169 13.98% 14.18% 

2007 $2,814,582 $368,084,949 $370,899,531 21.00% 20.76% 

2008 $5,795,422 $419,908,430 $425,703,852 14.08% 14.78% 

2009 $17,766,205 $435,994,377 $453,760,582 3.83% 6.59% 

2010 $9,281,572 $418,305,191 $427,586,763 -4.06% -5.77% 

2011 $9,581,402 $372,013,776 $381,595,178 -11.07% -10.76% 

2012 $1,226,500 $365,470,656 $366,697,156 -1.76% -3.90% 

2013 $2,873,843 $316,041,139 $318,914,982 -13.52% -13.03% 

2014 $5,824,012 $322,388,401 $328,212,413 2.01% 2.92% 

2015 $5,843,815 $342,379,280 $348,223,095 6.20% 6.10% 

2016 $5,960,403 $378,434,356 $384,394,759 10.53% 10.39% 

2017 $11,770,266 $436,931,172 $448,701,438 15.46% 16.73% 

2018 $20,178,861 $498,790,442 $518,969,303 14.16% 15.66% 

2019 $22,800,906 $569,047,000 $591,847,906 14.09% 14.04% 

2020 $34,041,800 $662,497,220 $696,539,020 16.42% 17.69% 
 
Property tax limits set by Referendum 47, and later confirmed by legislative action, have been set 
at 101%, which in affect limits any property tax increases to 1% of the amount collected in the 
previous year. However, the value of any new construction that occurred in the previous year is 
added to the City’s total valuation. Multiple jurisdictions such as the County, State, and School 
Districts, etc. may tax the same 23Tproperty 23T.  
 
14TThe regular property tax limit for 2019 was $997,837 (including new construction and refunds), 
which was the full levy amount of 101% as allowed by law.  14TRevenue from property taxes for 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
150



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

9 

2019 was forecast at the full 14T$997,837 14Tand projections are that we will meet this total by the end 
of the year. 
 
Property tax statements will illustrate that the total tax is distributed between several 
government agencies 
including State Schools, 
Local School District, 
Pierce County, City of 
Buckley, Conservation 
Futures, Port District, 
Library District and 
County for Noxious 
Weed Control. When 
comparing your overall 
property tax bill, the 
portion that is allocated 
solely to the City 
through the tax levy is 
only a fraction of the 
total property tax bill. 
The chart to the right 
illustrates the 
distribution of each dollar of assessed property tax to be paid to Pierce County for the 2019 tax 
year.   
 
As the chart to the right illustrates, the City receives 22.48% or $0.22 of every property tax dollar 
to use towards providing the vast array of services to the community such as police, fire, parks, 
senior center, youth center, etc. This portion also includes the levied amount that was approved 
by the voters to construct the new fire station. The largest recipient of your tax dollars is the 
local school district, which receives 38.06% or $0.38 of every tax dollar. Together the 
combination of both state schools and local schools receive 60.9% or $0.61 of every property tax 
dollar paid.  
 
The City portion of your property tax is set annually through a levy enacted by the City Council. 
This levy rate is governed by State statute as to how much the City can assess against properties 
within the City. As identified above, for 
2019 14Tthe regular property tax limit was 
estimated at $997,837, which was calculated 
at the full levy amount of 
$1.68596845/1,000 of assessed property 
valuation.  Assessed valuation of property 
within the City totaled $591,847,906, which 
included $22,800,906 of new construction 
valuation. The $997,837 levy amount was 
then collected through individual property 
tax payments and distributed to the general fund to utilize for programs and services to the 
community.  The chart in Table 4 below illustrates how each dollar of property tax was 
apportioned throughout 2019 in the general fund for the provision of these services. 
 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
151



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

10 

14TAs the table below illustrates, the largest area of expense within the general fund, at approximately 
47.49%, is related to public safety which combined encompasses law enforcement (37.17%) and fire 
control (10.32%). 
 

14TUTable 4: 2019 General Fund Property Tax Distributions 
 

 
14TIn addition to revenue from the seven (7) primary sources described above, the City’s general 
fund receives revenue from user fees such as Buckley Hall or Multi-Purpose Center (MPC) 
rentals and any grants the City may receive.  
 
14TU2019 General Fund Expenditures: U General fund expenditures are segregated into twenty (20) 
categories as illustrated in Table 4 above. Table 5 below lists all of the fund categories and shows 
a comparison between 2019 budgeted expenditures and what is currently being projected 
through year’s end by utilizing September closeouts. Overall general fund expenditures are 
projected to be under budget by approximately (2.1%) or $114,171. 
  

14TUTable 5: 2019 General Fund Expenditures 
 

2019 - Department Analysis 

  
2019 Budget End Projection   + or - 

Legislative $33,285 $38,199 14.8% 

Judicial $247,287 $227,556 -8.0% 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
152



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

11 

Executive $116,375 $112,109 -3.7% 

Finance & Admin $844,541 $878,274 4.0% 

Legal $50,500 $39,268 -22.2% 

Pers & GGS $1,850 $2,376 28.4% 

Main/Ins/Jan $210,493 $217,624 3.4% 

I.T. $148,688 $141,973 -4.5% 

Police $2,000,535 $1,843,510 -7.8% 

Fire $555,550 $556,018 0.1% 

Util & Env $4,750 $2,377 -50.0% 

Building $168,219 $137,444 -18.3% 

Planning $269,838 $316,915 17.4% 

Mental Health $1,200 $1,359 13.3% 

Parks $240,696 $248,740 3.3% 

Non-Expend (MC) $141,750 $127,001 -10.4% 

Debt Svcs - TO $51,000 $51,000 0.0% 

MPC & Senior $128,321 $108,164 -15.7% 

Community Center $24,350 $33,424 37.3% 

Youth Center $142,825 $184,550 29.2% 

Total $5,382,053 $5,267,882 -2.1% 
 
14TThe table above illustrates that a large number of categories/departments are projected to be 
under budget at the end of the year. Exceptions are legislative due to advertising costs and 
technology expenditures and finance and administration with employee retirement cash-out of 
accrued time. Personnel with advertising costs associated with vacant positions, insurance due to 
increase in general liability premium, building/planning due to processing and review fees 
associated with the increase in building and land use permits, parks due to rehabilitation of the 
Music in the Park grounds, community hall after an increase in rentals and youth center after 
Council authorized the purchase of a new passenger van to be used for various programs and 
services.   
 
14TU2019 Citywide Revenues: U  The remainder of the overall City budget, other than the general 
expense fund, encompasses sub funds of the general fund such as street operations, street capital 
construction, criminal justice & drug enforcement and park construction; enterprise funds such 
as cemetery, railroad right-of-way improvement and visitor promotion & development; utility 
operation funds consisting of water, sewer collection and treatment, stormwater and solid waste; 
utility capital improvement funds for water, sewer and stormwater; and equipment and capital 
reserve accounts established to purchase high cost equipment (patrol cars, fire trucks, backhoes, 
street sweeper, etc.) for the various departments. In addition, the budget contains funds for EMS, 
Fire Station bond repayment, Fire Station improvement, contingency reserve, cumulative reserve 
fund and municipal trust fund.   
 
14TThe general expense fund and sub funds of the general fund have few restrictions on how 
revenue can be used; however, utility funds, enterprise funds and trust funds are strictly limited 
as to how the funds can be expended. Revenues received for operation, maintenance and 
improvement of the utilities comes directly from public user fees charged for each specific 
service and due to State law must be used for support of the utility and not to fund general 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
153



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

12 

operations of the City. Municipal utilities must be self-supporting and funds derived from the 
utility 14Tcannot be used to fund services outside of their approved category. However, utility funds 
can be used to pay for expenses directly related to the administrative support, and management 
of the utility, which are calculated annually based on a Cost Allocation Policy adopted by the 
City Council in October 2017.  
 

14TUTable 6: 2019 Revenue Comparisons 
 

 
14TOverall Citywide revenue for 2019 is currently projected to be much higher than anticipated by 7.0% 
or $2,030,364. Most, if not all, of the additional revenue is directly related to the strong building activity 
in the community. New building construction generates revenue to the general fund through building 
permit fees, but it also translates into capital improvement revenue to the various utilities and 
transportation and parks construction accounts by payment of the general facility charges (GFCs) and 
impact fees for each and increased Real Estate Excise Tax to the City’s two capital improvement funds.   
Revenue comparisons between 2019 budgeted versus actual for each fund are listed in Table 7 below. 
 

14TUTable 7: 2019 Overall Revenues 
 

FUND 2019 Revenue w/BFB End Projection  
Revenue + or - 

difference 

001 General             $6,335,442 $6,701,829 5.8% 

002 Contingency $211,383 $211,428 0.0% 

003 Cum Res $5,118,465 $5,116,793 0.0% 

004 Cemetery        $25,011 $26,508 6.0% 

007 Police Res       $487,763 $462,358 -5.2% 

008 RR ROW     $126,584 $127,651 0.8% 

030 Fire Res           $1,158,250 $1,131,028 -2.4% 

035 Park Const        $213,647 $311,781 45.9% 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
154



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

13 

101 Street $262,505 $256,119 -2.4% 

102 Arterial             $772,006 $1,342,692 73.9% 

103 TBD $109,256 $104,654 -4.2% 

105 EMS               $528,829 $557,488 5.4% 

109 Crim Justice   $231,961 $238,742 2.9% 

134 Fire Const      $220,729 $219,354 -0.6% 

136 Visitor Prom     $164,278 $169,391 3.1% 

202 FS Bond $343,050 $349,037 1.7% 

307 Capital Imp     $828,166 $857,806 3.6% 

308 Comp Plan      $410,784 $444,400 8.2% 

401 NG Oper      $5,902 $14,408 144.1% 

402 Water/Sewer    $3,593,786 $3,574,623 -0.5% 

403 Solid Waste   $1,137,773 $1,303,129 14.5% 

405 Sewer Const      $2,406,351 $2,866,360 19.1% 

406 Water Const     $750,602 $1,076,289 43.4% 

407 Stormwater    $600,351 $681,131 13.5% 

408 Storm Const      $2,062,203 $1,985,690 -3.7% 

430 Equip Res         $275,539 $345,093 25.2% 

631 Muni Trust $413,204 $349,222 -15.5% 

701 Cemetery  Imp       $182,951 $182,134 -0.4% 

TOTALS $28,976,773 $31,007,137 7.0% 

 
14TFunds listed in Table 7 that project shortfalls are the street operations, transportation benefit district 
(TBD), police equipment reserves, fire equipment reserve, water/sewer operations, stormwater capital 
construction and municipal trust. The shortfalls within street operations, TBD,  police equipment 
reserves and water/sewer operations are all due to starting the year with a lower than anticipated BFBs. 
Fire equipment reserve anticipated applying for and receiving an equipment grant; however that did 
not happen. The municipal trust fund is a trust depository for processing court revenue and is lower 
due to lower than projected revenue.  
 
14TAs illustrated in Table 7 above, the general fund is projected to be 5.8% or $366,386 above 
anticipated in the budget. This is despite starting the year (14T$117,813) short of projected BFB. 
R 14Tevenue forecasts without the BFB were budgeted $5,404,328; however, we’re currently 
projecting this to be 8.96% higher at $5,888,527 by the end of the year. 
 
14TReal Estate Excise Tax:    Is an excise tax on the sale of real property within the corporate limits of the 
city. The real estate excise tax is typically paid by the seller of the property, although the buyer is liable 
for the tax if it is not paid. The tax applies to the seller. The tax also applies to transfers of controlling 
interests (50% or more) in entities that own property in the state. Use of funds the City receives from 
this tax is strictly limited to those uses allowed under RCW 82.46.010.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
155



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

14 

14TRevenue from real estate 
excise taxes (REET) are 
directly related to strength in 
the housing sector, and due to 
the increase in building 
activity it continues to be 
strong. The 2019 budget 
anticipated that revenue from 
REET would be $300,000; 
however, current projections 
are that we’ll exceed this by 
22.7% with revenue of 
$368,110 by the end of the year. In anticipation of continued strength in the housing sector, and a 
number of new developments in the pipeline, we’re anticipating revenue from REET to remain above 
normal for 2020; however, we’re taking a conservative approach and are projecting revenue that 
matches the 2019 budget of $300,000.  
 
14TTable 8 below provides a full Citywide summary of the revenues and expenditures for 2019. 
 

14TUTable 8: 2019 Budget Summaries 
 

2019 Budget Analysis 

FUND 
2019 

Revenue 
w/BFB 

2019 
Expenditures 

w/o EFB 

Budgeted 
EFB 

2019 
Projected 
Revenue 

2019 
Projected 

Expenditure 

2019 
Projected 

EFB  

001 General             $6,335,442 $5,382,053  $953,389  $6,701,829 $5,267,882  $1,433,947  

002 Contingency $211,383 $0  $211,383  $211,428 $0  $211,428  

003 Cum Res $5,118,465 $103,000  $5,015,465  $5,116,793 $101,318  $5,015,475  

004 Cemetery        $25,011 $5,041  $19,970  $26,508 $1,751  $24,757  

007 Police Res       $487,763 $259,000  $228,763  $462,358 $309,553  $152,806  

008 RR ROW     $126,584 $27,730  $98,854  $127,651 $22,802  $104,849  

030 Fire Res           $1,158,250 $1,158,250  $0  $1,131,028 $540,722  $590,306  

035 Park Const        $213,647 $196,250  $17,397  $311,781 $96,391  $215,389  

101 Street $262,505 $248,206  $14,299  $256,119 $222,039  $34,080  

102 Arterial             $772,006 $385,131  $386,875  $1,342,692 $354,761  $987,931  

103 TBD $109,256 $106,002  $3,253  $104,654 $102,284  $2,370  

105 EMS               $528,829 $342,500  $186,329  $557,488 $325,104  $232,384  

109 Crim Justice   $231,961 $72,000  $159,961  $238,742 $63,119  $175,623  

134 Fire Const      $220,729 $6,400  $214,329  $219,354 $23,665  $195,689  

136 Visitor Prom     $164,278 $28,510  $135,768  $169,391 $8,730  $160,661  

202 FS Bond $343,050 $274,020  $69,030  $349,037 $274,020  $75,017  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
156



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

15 

307 Capital Imp                $828,166 $438,254  $389,912  $857,806 $176,810  $680,996  

308 Comp Plan      $410,784 $141,656  $269,127  $444,400 $124,726  $319,673  

401 NG Oper      $5,902 $5,225  $677  $14,408 $1,012  $13,396  

402 Water/Sewer    $3,593,786 $3,358,908  $234,878  $3,574,623 $3,246,367  $328,256  

403 Solid Waste   $1,137,773 $1,110,257  $27,516  $1,303,129 $1,268,818  $34,311  

405 Sewer Const      $2,406,351 $1,764,709  $641,642  $2,866,360 $749,519  $2,116,841  

406 Water Const     $750,602 $622,722  $127,880  $1,076,289 $209,953  $866,336  

407 Stormwater    $600,351 $596,410  $3,941  $681,131 $562,040  $119,091  

408 Storm Const      $2,062,203 $934,985  $1,127,218  $1,985,690 $824,867  $1,160,824  

430 Equip Res         $275,539 $83,500  $192,039  $345,093 $4,741  $340,353  

631 Muni Trust $413,204 $400,000  $13,204  $349,222 $300,944  $48,278  

701 Ceme Imp       $182,951 $1,000  $181,951  $182,134 $0  $182,134  

TOTALS $28,976,773 $18,051,720 $10,925,053 $31,007,137 $15,183,937 $15,823,200 

 
14TAs illustrated in Table 8 above, we anticipated ending the year with a total end fund balance 
(EFB) of $10,925,053, which includes capital equipment reserves that are shown as expenditures, 
but were not intended to be expended. Current projections show that we are exceeding 
expectations by projecting a 2019 EFB of 14TU$15,823,200U14T. This projection includes all funds 
including investments, capital and equipment reserves.  
 
14TThe City continues to pursue and take advantage of every grant opportunity that appears to offer 
funding for projects and/or operations that have been identified through the planning process. The 
City has had an excellent track record when it comes to grants, and staff continues to do a remarkable 
job in this pursuit; however, due to State and Federal budget cuts and tightening, grant funding for 
projects has become more challenging. For 2019, the City has been successful in obtaining U$759,916 
Uworth of grants/funding/donations for project completion, equipment/material purchase and/or 
program funding. Those that the City has either received a notice of award or have actually received 
funding for are listed in Table 9 below. 
 

14TUTable 9: 2019 Grants/Funding/Donations 
 

14TDepartment 14TAgency 14TAmount 

 
14TParks & Recreation 

14TParks & YC Contributions & Donations 14T$1,916 

14TPC Grant – Van Purchase 14T$12,000 

14TFlower Basket Donations 14T$2,375 

14TPC Violence Prevention 14T$22,780 

14TTotal 14T$39,071 

14TSenior Center 
14TPierce County – CDBG 14T$46.150 

14TTotal 14T$46,150 

14TBuilding/Planning 
14TDOE – Shoreline Master Program Update Grant 14T$10,000 

14TTotal 14T$10,000 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
157



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

16 

14TUtilities/Streets 

14TDOE – Stormwater NPDES Capacity Grant 14T$25,000 

14TTIB – Naches Street Overlay Project 14T$255,530 

14TTIB – Cedar Street Reconstruction 14T$384,165 

14TTotal 14T$664,695 

14TTOTAL ALL GRANTS/FUNDS/DONATIONS 14T$759,916 

   
14TDuring the past year, City staff has spent considerable time and effort focusing on the completion of 
ongoing construction projects such as the Spiketon Culvert Replacement Project, Buckley Hall Siding 
Repair Project,14T Public Works & Police Parking Lot Reconstruction Project and design of the 2019 
Consolidated Utilities Project and Cedar Street Reconstruction Project, both of which are planned for 
construction in 2020.  
 
14TIn addition to these projects, a large amount of time and energy has been spent on the following: 
 

 14TEmergency Management Planning 
 14TPhase II NPDES Stormwater Permit Compliance 
 14TCity Comprehensive Plan (update) 
 14TZoning Code (update) 
 14TWater System Plan (update) 
 14TSewer System Plan (update) 
 14TSummer Youth Programs 
 14TMusic in the Park Event 
 14TRehabilitation of the Event Area (irrigation & sod) 
 RR ROW Master Plan Development 
 Perkins Prairie Subdivision Phase III Construction 
 Glacier Meadows Subdivision Construction 
 Elk Ridge Elementary School Renovation 
 Glacier Middle School Renovation 
 White River Meadows Subdivision Construction 
 Various Short Plats and other Land Use Application Processing 

 
The City has completed several multi-million dollar capital improvement projects within the last 
few years. The City intends to continue to focus on implementation of the highest priority 
infrastructure improvements still needing to be done. As a result of these major expenditures, 
and the fact that there are still significant improvements needed to areas such as inadequate or 
antiquated water transmission/distribution piping, roadway conditions, stormwater drainage and 
wastewater collection piping, the City Council must evaluate the current rate structures within 
the City to determine if the charges are sufficient to meet these infrastructure needs. This will be 
discussed further in the 2020 summary.  
 
 
 

Discipline is the bridge between goals and accomplishment. 
                                                                                         ~ Jim Rohn 

 

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
158



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

17 

2020 BUDGET PROJECTIONS  
 

 
The 2020 budget request proposes to expend an overall total of U$22,202,065 Uon projected revenue 
of U$33,072,250U.  Revenue projections for 2020 are based upon assumptions related to anticipated 
building and land use development activity, generation and distribution of property and excise 
taxes, grants and proposed increases in utility usage charges, license/permit fees and service 
contracts. Should these assumptions prove incorrect, then revenue projections would be affected 
accordingly. Further discussion of each will be made within the respective departmental 
categories.  
 
14TThe 14T202014T budget anticipates a beginning fund balance (BFB) of 14TU$15,823,200,U 14Tand after projected 
expenditures is forecast to end the year with an end fund balance (EFB) of 14TU$10,870,185U. 14TThis 
reflects expenditures of any proposed capital infrastructure projects and equipment reserves for 
police, fire and utilities.  

 
14TBenefit costs for employees enrolled in the AWC’s HealthFirst 250 Plan are anticipated to increase 
slightly by up to 2.0% and for those police department employees enrolled in the LEOFF Trust by a 
more substantial 5.0%. The level of employee contribution towards their healthcare premium remains 
a large factor in the City’s ability to contain healthcare costs.  
 
14TOverall taxes received by the City continue to rise as property valuation and building activity levels 
continue to increase. Combined tax revenue for 2019 is projected to be up by 11.1% with the largest 
gain coming from sales and use tax at 14T38.3%14T. For 2020, we’re anticipating that tax revenue will 
continue to rise in conjunction with new housing growth; however, it’s reasonable to assume that 
double digit increases are not going to continue and revenue will plateau at some point so we’re taking 
a more conservative approach and projecting that overall tax revenue will be slightly under by (1.0%) 
from the amount we’re projecting at the end of 2019.  
 
14TGeneral Fund expenditures for 2020 are projected to increase significantly by 12.1%. Many factors are 
contributing to this increase, but the largest contributors are; major technology upgrades to both 
hardware and software across the board for all departments with Microsoft phasing out support of 
Windows 7 in 2020; costs associated with a recent contract settlement with the Police Officer’s Guild; 
addition of an 11P

th
P police officer to the department; transfer of the maximum allowed to the 

Contingency Fund; and continued organizational restructuring and addition of new positions to fill 

Kenny Loye 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
159



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

18 

needs within the City’s departments while simultaneously experiencing continued retirements of long-
term employees and loss of institutional knowledge.  
 
14TIn 2019 the City experienced the loss of two long term employees with the retirement of the Finance 
Director and City Planner both of which cumulatively had 70 years of experience. In 2020, the City 
Administrator will be retiring possibly followed by the Police Chief and Fire Chief. This will be 
followed in 2021 by the Building Inspector. During the last year we’ve taken steps to mitigate any 
reduction in levels of service and have been successful in finding excellent candidates to fill vacant 
positions. In 2020, the plan is to continue forward with this strategy by planning for these retirements 
and getting key personnel in place prior to the exit in order train and mentor to ensure that there is no 
loss in continuity of operations.   
 
14TIn addition to salaries and benefits, changes in department operations and staffing levels will be 
discussed in detail in each individual budget section. Departments or sections proposing the largest 
increases are legislative with increased travel/training and administrative support; municipal court 
with increased court administrator hours; facilities with a 10% increase in the general liability 
premium;  police with the Guild contract and an increase in staffing levels; fire with overall increased 
operational costs; building/planning with staffing level restructuring and addition of a new building 
inspector/code enforcement position; parks with an increase in operations and maintenance; and 
Senior & Youth Center with increased operational costs. Table 10 below illustrates the percentage of 
proposed budget changes from each department/section. Increased costs within each department will 
be discussed in separate sections below. Overall spending Citywide for such items as supplies, repair 
and maintenance services, professional services, and travel and training is consistent with prior years 
with only minor adjustments.  
 

14TUTable 10: U14TU2020 General Fund Departmental Requests  
 

 
2020 General Fund Departmental Requests 

 

Department 2019 Budget 2020 Proposed Change  

Legislative $33,285 $36,985 11.12% 

Judicial $247,287 $274,131 10.86% 

Executive $116,375 $116,375 0.00% 

Finance & Admin $844,541 $874,035 3.49% 

Legal $50,500 $50,500 0.00% 

Pers & GGS $1,850 $2,850 54.05% 

Main/Ins/Jan $210,493 $242,901 15.40% 

I.T. $148,688 $152,498 2.56% 

Police $2,000,535 $2,216,183 10.78% 

Fire $555,550 $639,550 15.12% 

Util & Env $4,750 $4,750 0.00% 

Building $168,219 $295,599 75.72% 

Planning $269,838 $354,770 31.48% 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
160



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

19 

Mental Health $1,200 $1,200 0.00% 

Parks $240,696 $263,429 9.44% 

Non-Expend (MC) $141,750 $141,750 0.00% 

Debt Svcs - TO $51,000 $46,500 -8.82% 

MPC & Senior $128,321 $139,932 9.05% 

Community Center $24,350 $24,350 0.00% 

Youth Center $142,825 $154,439 8.13% 

Total $5,382,053 $6,032,727 12.09% 

 
14TComparisons of budget-wide expenditures and revenues for 2020 are illustrated in Table 11 below: 

 
14TUTable 11: 2020 Expenditure and Revenue Comparisons 

 

14TA summary of the 2020 budget request is listed in Table 12 below. 
 

14TUTable 12: 2020 Budget Summaries 
 

Fund 
Projected 

Beginning Fund 
Balance 

2020 Budget 
Projected End Fund 

Balance 2020 Revenue Total 2020 Expenditures 

001 General             $1,433,947 $7,009,222 $6,032,727 $976,496 

002 GF Contingency $211,428 $258,928 $0 $258,928 

003 GF Cum Reserve $5,015,475 $5,116,793 $101,318 $5,015,475 

004 Cemetery        $24,757 $27,632 $4,541 $23,091 

007 Police Res       $152,806 $341,906 $140,000 $201,906 

008 RR ROW     $104,849 $127,349 $31,997 $95,352 

030 Fire Res           $590,306 $707,106 $579,000 $128,106 

035 Park Const        $215,389 $381,639 $300,250 $81,389 

101 Streets $34,080 $276,230 $262,602 $13,628 

102 Arterial             $987,931 $1,981,426 $1,624,051 $357,375 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
161



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

20 

103 TBD $2,370 $106,607 $101,502 $5,105 

105 EMS               $232,384 $592,119 $396,250 $195,869 

109 Crim Justice   $175,623 $279,408 $122,000 $157,408 

134 Fire Const      $195,689 $206,289 $7,500 $198,789 

136 Visitor Prom     $160,661 $191,911 $24,510 $167,401 

202 FS Bond $75,017 $352,517 $274,420 $78,097 

307 Capital Imp     $680,996 $983,496 $827,023 $156,474 

308 Comp Plan      $319,673 $475,173 $234,983 $240,191 

401 NG Oper      $13,396 $14,496 $10,225 $4,271 

402 Water/Sewer    $328,256 $3,567,659 $3,472,266 $95,393 

403 Solid Waste   $34,311 $1,318,589 $1,303,099 $15,490 

405 Sewer Const      $2,116,841 $3,289,112 $2,261,306 $1,027,806 

406 Water Const     $866,336 $2,011,613 $1,934,903 $76,710 

407 Stormwater    $119,091 $747,717 $649,380 $98,337 

408 Storm Const      $1,160,824 $1,686,799 $970,212 $716,586 

430 Equip Res         $340,353 $385,103 $135,000 $250,103 

631 Court Trust $48,278 $448,278 $400,000 $48,278 

701 Cemetery Imp       $182,134 $187,134 $1,000 $186,134 

TOTALS $15,823,200 $33,072,250 $22,202,065 $10,870,185 
 

14TFund categories and distribution by percentage of the 2020 budget are illustrated in the chart below. 
 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
162



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

21 

14T2020 Property Tax Levy.  The regular property tax limit for the coming year is U$1,059,044 U(including 
new construction and refunds), which is the full levy amount of 101% as allowed by law.  The EMS 
levy, which was approved by the community through the general election in 2016, will be at the 100% 
level of $0.50/1,000 and will total U$267,435U.   
 
14TAssessed valuation of property within the City totaled U$696,539,020U, which includes U$34,041,800 Uof new 
construction valuation.  Last year’s levy resulted in a regular property tax of $1.68597/1,000  of assessed 
property valuation, and as a result of the value of new construction and overall Citywide property 
value increase, the amount next year will be lower at $1.5171/1,000 for property tax.  
 
14TThis $1,059,044 levied as property tax is collected through individual property tax payments and 
distributed to the general fund to utilize for programs and services to the community. The chart 
in Table 13 below illustrates how each dollar of property tax is apportioned throughout the 
proposed 2020 Budget for the provision of programs and services.  
 

14T       UTable 13: 2020 Property Tax Distributions 

 
Property tax limits set by Referendum 47, and later confirmed by legislative action, have been set 
at 101%, which in affect limits any property tax increases to 1% of the amount collected in the 
previous year. With operational costs consistently rising year after year, and revenue streams 
failing to keep pace, local governments struggle to maintain basic levels of service, especially for 
higher cost areas like public safety. 14TThe City has very limited options available to mitigate this. 
The primary means consist of cost containment through cuts to programs and services, or by 
increasing fees and services such as permit fees, service contracts, utility taxes and user fees. This 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
163



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

22 

works as long as building and new development are in a consistent growth pattern. Utility tax 
and user fee increases only increase the burden on taxpayers who are currently suffering from 
past economic conditions and stagnation of wages. Other longer term options involve voter 
support and approval of measures such as an increase in the levy lid which raises property taxes.  
With the passage of initiatives, there are only two ways for the City to increase property taxes by 
more than one (1%) percent; #1 is from the use of “banked capacity” which is reserved for 
jurisdictions that have taken less than the maximum increase they could have in the past; and #2 
is to enact a voter approved levy lid lift under 23TURCW 84.55.050U23T.  
 
Cities, along with counties, are senior taxing districts and their maximum tax rates differ 
depending on whether they have a firemen’s pension fund or whether they are annexed to a fire 
district and/or a library district. The maximum regular property tax levy for most cities is $3.375 
per thousand dollars assessed valuation. Cities with a firemen's pension fund can levy an 
additional $0.225 per thousand dollars assessed valuation, resulting in a maximum levy of $3.60 
per thousand dollars.  
 
For cities that belong to a fire district and/or a library district, the rules are a little more 
complicated. Nominally they have a maximum rate of $3.60 per thousand dollars, but they can 
never collect that much because the levy of the special districts must be subtracted from that 
amount. The library district levy has a maximum rate of $0.50 per thousand dollars and the fire 
district levy can be as high as $1.50. Therefore, if a City belongs to both a fire district and a 
library district, and if these districts are currently levying their maximum amount, then the local 
levy can be no higher than $1.60 ($3.60 - $0.50 - $1.50 = $1.60). 
 
The City of Buckley has no “banked capacity” and currently has a maximum levy lid of $3.10, which is 
the amount authorized after deductions for participation in junior taxing districts such as for the 
library. Fire services are fully funded from property tax dollars and have therefore not resulted in a 
deduction for a fire district. As indicated above, a junior fire district can impose up to $1.50/1,000 for 
services, but Buckley is staffed almost totally by excellent volunteers. The department currently has 
four (4) full time positions consisting of the Chief, Assistant Chief, Volunteer Recruitment Coordinator 
and one Firefighter. The full time firefighter was added in 2018 and the Volunteer Recruitment 
Coordinator in 2019 after the City received a SAFER Grant that supported the position. Total budgeted 
cost to the general fund for fire services in 2019 was $555,550, which when calculated as a percentage 
of all operations in the general fund translates into 10.32% of every dollar the City receives from 
property tax distribution; however, a portion of this is offset through funds from the SAFER Grant for 
the Coordinator position.  
 
In the property tax chart in the previous section, we illustrated that the City “only” receives $0.22 of 
every tax dollar paid to the County Assessor by a property owner. Out of the City’s portion of property 
tax revenue, approximately 10.32% or $0.0232 is used for fire operations. This translates into currently 
costing the taxpayer approximately two cents of every property tax dollar for their fire protection 
services.  
 
As stated above, the City’s maximum levy lid is $3.10, but as discussed earlier the current rate for 2020 
is 14T$1.5171/1,000 14Twhich is 48.94% of the maximum. At the 2020 levy rate, the City is projected to collect 
14T$1,059,044. If the City were to seek a levy lid lift through ballot measure for the maximum amount 
authorized, and the community were to support such a measure, the amount that the City collects 
would increase from $1,059,044 to $2,159,271 resulting in an additional $1,100,227 for operations and 
services. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
164



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

23 

14TUCapital Improvement Projects:U  Utilities and subsequent rate evaluations will be discussed separately in 
individual categories below. For 2020, the City intends to build on the progress that we’ve made in the 
last decade and move forward with a few of the highest priority capital infrastructure and planning 
projects listed in Table 14 below. Capital improvement projects for streets and utilities will be discussed 
in their respective sections; however, the two fund categories that are not discussed within individual 
categories are Funds 307 (Capital Improvement) and Fund 308 (Capital Improvement Planning) both 
of which are funded primarily from REET (Real Estate Excise Tax) revenue and any grants and/or 
transfers from other funds for specific projects. As discussed earlier, REET revenue has been much 
higher due to the strong housing market. This has allowed the City to continue to accumulate much 
needed reserves in both of these funds. Fund 307 is projected to have a 2019 EFB of $680,996, and for 
2020 anticipates expenditures of $827,023 on revenue of $983,496, which includes any BFB reserves. 
Projects proposed in 2020 from Fund 307 are listed in Table 14 below.  Projects proposed in 2020 from 
Fund 308 are directed towards completing the GMA required Comprehensive Plan and Development 
Regulations update and Shorelines Master Program update. In addition, the Fire Department will 
continue to work on the City’s Emergency Management Plan.  
 

14TUTable 14: 2020 Capital Projects 
 

Capital Accounts (Primary Projects for 2020) 

Fund Name Expenditures Projected EFB 

PC - 035 Parks Capital Improvement $300,250 $81,389 

           ~ Parks Capital Improvement 
           ~ Skatepark Restroom Facade Construction 
           ~ Pump Track Bike Park Construction 
           ~ Climbing Wall - Construction (Phase II) 
           ~ Miller Park Phase I (a) & (b) Development 
           ~ Wally's Basketball Court Rehab (Court & Fence) 
           ~ Perkins Prairie Trail - Construction (survey & staking) 

SA - 102 Street Capital Improvements $1,624,051 $357,375 

           ~ 2020 Sidewalk Project/ADA Repair Project 

           ~ 2020 Naches ADA Ramp Retrofit Project 

           ~ Spikton Road Reconstruction- Ryan Rd to Mt View 

           ~ Dieringer Ave Traffic Rev - Copperwynd 
           ~ Naches Street Overlay - TIB PPP 
           ~ Foothills Trail - Pavement Maintenance 
           ~ Cedar Street Reconstruction - TIB SCAP 
           ~ Foothills Trail - White River Bridge Contribution 

CI - 307 Capital Improvement $827,023 $156,474 

           ~ Remodel of MPC - Building/Plan/Court Offices 

           ~ City Hall Repair - Carpet Replacement 
           ~ MPC Repair 
           ~ Foothills Trail Parking & Trailhead Construction 
           ~ Buckley Hall Repair & Maintenance 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
165



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

24 

           ~ Public Works Electric Gate 
           ~ Youth Center Repair - Carpet Replacement 
           ~ Public Works Storage Outbuilding Repair 
           ~ Animal Control Shelter Remodel 

CPI - 308 Capital Plan and Improvements $234,983 $240,191 

           ~ Emergency Management Plan 

           ~ CP Transportation Element Amendment  
           ~ Master Shoreline Program Update 
           ~ Comprehensive Stormwater System Plan Update 
           ~ Comprehensive Sewer System Plan Update 

WWC-405 Sewer Construction $2,261,306 $1,027,806 

           ~ Debt Repayment 

           ~ WWTP Wastewater Reuse Feasibility Study 
           ~ Ryan RD - 649 Spiketon Rd Sewer Replacement 
           ~ Spiketon Road- A Street to Ryan Rd 
           ~ Edith Street- Overlay from Park Ave to Dundass Street 
           ~ Copperwynd- Sewer Repairs 
           ~ McNeely Street S. - Sewer Extension 
           ~ White River Property Access Gate Relocation  
           ~ Collins Road Repair Project 
           ~ PW Storage Facility 

WC-406 Water Construction $1,934,903 $76,710 

           ~ Debt Repayment 

           ~ Edith - Balm St Water Main Replace 

           ~ Telemetry Upgrades - Wells & WTP 

           ~ Re-Sand Slow Sand Filter at WTP 
           ~ Well Repairs - Naches Well 
           ~ Trail Well- Trouble Shooting 
           ~ Cedar Street- From Main St to Jefferson Ave 

           ~ Pre Design Report- WTP Expansion (S3) 

           ~ Copperwynd Valve Replacements  

           ~ McNeely Street South - Main Replace (D15) 

SW-408 Stormwater Construction $970,212 $716,586 

           ~ Spiketon Culvert Replacement 

           ~ Comp Storm Plan Update - Prof Svcs 
           ~ Small Projects - Storm Drain 
           ~ Dundass Storm Improvement - CIP #2 
           ~ Cedar Street- Main Street to Jefferson Ave 
           ~ Spiketon Road- Ryan Road to Mt. View 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
166



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

25 

           ~ 3rd Street Storm Improvement 

UER-430 Utility and Park Equip Res $135,000 $250,103 

           ~ Excavator - 5 Ton Kabota 21 

           ~ Trailer - Tandem Axle 7 Ton 

           ~ Pickup Truck Replacement 

 
 
 

 
2020 DEPARTMENTAL SUMMARY 

 
UCURRENT EXPENSE (GENERAL) FUND 

 
The general fund serves as the 
funding account for most of the 
public services and programs that 
the City provides, and provides 
funding for local government 
administration and finance, 
information technology (I.T.), law 
enforcement, fire control, planning 
and building, municipal court, parks, 
recreation programs, youth center 
and the senior center. The housing 
market continues to be strong and 
we’re experiencing double digit 
growth in housing valuations. The 
steady pace of building and 
development activity continues to provide a source of revenue to the general fund, although this 
is not viewed as a long term source and is not sustainable in any way.  Sales and use tax 
continues to rise again with double digit growth, which is a leading indicator that business 
activity is growing as well.  
 
14TAs discussed in the 2019 summary on page 5, the general fund ended 2018 with end fund 
reserves ($117,813) less than projected. 14TTherefore, we began the year with beginning fund 
reserves less than projected. However, despite beginning the year with less than anticipated, 
revenues for 2019 are exceeding expectations. Revenues not counting the BFB for current 
expenses were budgeted at $5,404,328; however, we’re projecting this to be 9.0% higher at 
$5,888,527 by years end if revenues continue at the current pace. 
 
The 2020 general fund proposes to expend $6,032,727 on revenue of $7,009,222, which includes a 
projected BFB of $1,433,947; however, actual revenues without the BFB factored in are projected 
to be $5,575,275. 14TAs illustrated in Tables 10 and 12, general fund expenditures for 2020 are 
proposed to increase by 12.1%. As discussed under the 2020 Budget introduction, this significant 
increase follows a more than 14% increase in 2019.  The City is still within a transitional period 
with several long term employees beginning to retire. In 2019, the City experienced the loss of 
the Finance Director and City Planner to retirement. In 2020, the City Administrator will be 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
167



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

26 

retiring possibly followed by the Police Chief and Fire Chief. This will be followed in 2021 by the 
Building Inspector. In 2020, the plan is to continue forward with this strategy by planning for 
these retirements and getting key personnel in place prior to the exit in order train and mentor 
to ensure that there is no loss in continuity of operations.   
 
14TIn addition to incorporating wage and benefit increases, the primary purpose of the increased 
spending is related to; major technology upgrades to both hardware and software across the 
board for all departments with Microsoft phasing out support of Windows 7 in 2020; costs 
associated with a recent contract settlement with the Police Officer’s Guild; addition of an 11P

th
P 

police officer to the department; transfer of the maximum allowed to the Contingency Fund; and 
continued organizational restructuring and addition of new positions to fill needs within the 
City’s departments. 
 
14TThe budget request proposes staff changes and/or additions to implement the organizational 
changes as follows: 
 

• 14TUAdministration & Finance DepartmentU – advertising and recruiting for a new City 
Administrator and converting the current .75 FTE Administrative Assistant to full-time. 
 

• 14TUMunicipal CourtU – proposes to increase the Court Administrator from 87.5% time to 
90.0% and increase the Court Clerk from 75.0% to 80.0%. 

 
• 14TUPolice DepartmentU – adding one additional patrol officer position and retaining a part-

time records clerk in the budget. 
 

• 14TUPlanning/Building Department U – converting the Permit Tech/Utility Billing Clerk to a 
full-time Permit Tech with a 50:50 split between building and planning. Staffing the 
Planning Department with two full-time positions consisting of a City Planner and 
Associate Planner. Adding a new full-time Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer 
to train as future replacement of the current Building Inspector who is tentatively 
planning to retire in 2021.   

 
• 14TUCommunity Services DepartmentU – proposes to increase the Community Services 

Director from 75% or ¾ time to 87.5%. 
 

• 14TUPW/Parks/Utilities DepartmentU – converting the part-time Meter Reader position to full-
time to absorb additional duties like one-call locates and sampling. 

 
14TIncorporating these changes within the departments should aid in providing support and offset 
the challenges in dealing with the pace of growth and loss of institutional knowledge in the near 
future. However, the impact to the general fund is significant for 2020. The Public Safety budget 
(Police & Fire) alone is proposing to increase spending by $300,000. Add to this the technology 
upgrades, transfer of maximum to the Contingency Fund (CF), new staffing positions 
throughout the departments and wage and benefit increases and the general fund expenditures 
exceed revenue by ($457,451).  While overall there is a sufficient reserve to absorb this short 
term, it is not sustainable in the long term. One positive factor is that a portion of these costs are 
one-time like the large technology upgrade and transfer to CF. 
 
14TIn 2020, benefit costs for employees enrolled in the AWC’s HealthFirst 250 Plan are anticipated to 
increase slightly by up to 2.0% and for those police department employees enrolled in the LEOFF 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
168



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

27 

Trust by a more substantial 5.0%. The level of employee contribution towards their healthcare 
premium remains a large factor in the City’s ability to contain healthcare costs.  
 
14TWashington State has notified the City that increases for L&I are going up for various position 
categories consisting of the following;14T 14TCity public works & parks – 3%;14T 14TCity law enforcement – 11%; 
and Firefighters – 4%.  
 
Exempt employee salaries for 2020 were reviewed based on current CPI data and as a result the 
2020 Budget, along with the proposed 2020 City Salary Ordinance attached as Appendix A to this 
report reflects, a COLA increase of 3.0% for City exempt and hourly staff. Salaries and wages for 
the police department shall be pursuant to the current Bargaining Unit Agreement which for 
2020 is 12.0%. Salaries and wages for public works and clerical shall be pursuant to the current 
Bargaining Unit Agreement which for 2020 is 3.0% 
 
Overall spending for such items as supplies, repair and maintenance services, professional services, and 
travel and training for operational purposes are consistent with prior years.  
 
 

 
 

ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE 
 
14TAdministration and Finance reflects an increase in 2020 of 3.49% from $844,541 to $874,035. The 
proposed increase is related to the organizational changes discussed in the previous section, 
salaries, benefits, additional travel and training and anticipated retirement settlement with cash 
out of accrued vacation time.  
 
14TIn August the City hired Saundra Groshong as the new City Finance Director. Saundra spent the last 
20 years working for the Washington State Auditor’s Office and brings a wealth of knowledge and 
experience to the City. The City is extremely fortunate to have attracted Saundra and we’re excited to 
see new ideas she will bring to the department.  
 
14TThe City was recently notified that we should anticipate a larger than normal 10.0% increase in 
citywide general liability insurance premiums. It seems that with the numerous natural disasters 
nationwide and increasing number of automobile accidents in the State, insurance costs are 
going up across the board. With the exception of other minor reassignments and rearrangements 
of certain line items, the finance and administration budget proposes no other changes for 2020 
except the increased costs mentioned above. 
 
14TFor informational purposes, we are including Table 15 in the budget document, which reflects 
the number of both full and part-time employees along with total monthly payrolls and annual 
benefit costs for each department proposed for 2020. The table also incorporates the proposed 
increase in staffing to administration, building/planning, police, public works and community 
services. A detailed breakdown of employee positions within the City is included under Appendix 
C at the end of this report. 

 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
169



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

28 

UTable 15: 2020 City Employment Payrolls 
 

City Employment and Payroll (approximate) 

Function 
Full-time 

employees 

Monthly 
full-time 
payroll 

Annual 
Benefit Costs 

Part-time 
employees 

Monthly avg 
part-time payroll 

Judicial and Legal 1.0 $6,517 $69,881 3.0 $6,708 

Finance & Admin 5.0 $37,798 $233,685 0.0 $0 

I.T. Services 1.0 $7,430 $50,828 0.0 $0 

Police  13.0 $98,945 $559,722 0.5 $2,268 

Fire & EMS 4.0 $30,645 $182,790 77.0 $9,317 

Building/Planning 5.0 $28,761 $210,607 0.0 $0 

Parks & Recreation 2.0 $11,049 $84,761 4.0 $2,618 

Community SVCS 1.0 $3,233 $80,838 5.0 $10,298 

Cemetery 0.0 $0 $0 0.0 $0 

Streets 0.0 $0 $37,535 0.9 $5,798 

Water 3.0 $22,705 $167,049 0.9 $805 

Sewer Collection/Treatment 6.0 $40,137 $264,853 1.0 $619 

Solid Waste 0.0 $0 $0 0.0 $0 

Stormwater 2.0 $12,875 $92,543 0.3 $619 

Totals for Government 43.00 $300,095  $2,035,093  92.5 $39,050  

  

 
 

 
 

UINFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 
 
The 2017 budget year was the first year that the City separated and developed a budget solely for 
information technology services. Since that time, the City has continued to identify and refine 
the operating budget of this section. In 2019 expenditures for I.T. services were budgeted at 
$148,689 and is projected to end the year under by (4.5%) at $141,973. 
 
For the 2020 Budget, I.T Services is proposing to increase its budget by 2.56% to $152,498 most of 
which are the result of salary and benefit adjustments. Operational costs are allocated similar to 
what was approved in 2019. 
 
2020 will continue to bring more security and improvements to the City’s overall I.T. 
infrastructure with an emphasis on staying in compliance as Microsoft ends security support 
(end of life) for several products that we extensively use. Windows 7 operating system, Server 
2008, and Office 2010 all reach the end of life in 2020. The major project for the year includes 
purchasing, configuring, and installing of new desktops and laptops throughout the City with 
Windows 10 operating systems and the installation and configuration as we upgrade our Office 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
170



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

29 

365 licenses to include the newest version of Office software. Several servers will also be 
upgraded to remain in compliance with Windows Server 2019.  
  
As reliance on technology continues to grow, all the City’s subscription-based products like 
Office 365, text capturing software, Anti-Virus, Anti-Malware, and Firewall services will continue 
as this software is essential to keeping the City functional and in compliance, as well as keeping 
the computers and networks clean.  
  
The 2020 budget anticipates City staff assuming responsibility for maintenance of the City’s 
website and Facebook page. Previously this was performed by an outside webmaster under a 
separate services contract. 
 
 

 
 

UMUNICIPAL COURT 
 
The Buckley Municipal Court continues to operate in a highly efficient and streamlined manner.  
2019 brought new challenges and opportunities to maximize and adjust policies and procedures 
to remain compliant with court rules, the legislature, and to better serve its constituents. 
 
Several improvements in 2019 focused on better security.  In partnership with the Buckley Police 
Department, the Court was able to build a secure holding room for those defendants who are 
being held in custody.  This allows the security officer to better supervise prisoners and to more 
closely monitor the courtroom as a whole. This project came at a minimal cost as a storage room 
was vacated and converted.   Another project involved separating a shared office to two offices.  
This allows the Judge and the Court Administrator to work independently while still having 
access to court files and equipment.  The public defender also has access to a meeting space 
adjoining the courtroom so he can meet with his clients privately to discuss their cases. 
 
2019 has brought an increase in filings and workload.  As of October 30, 2019, there were 1,279 
cases filed in the court.  This is a 16 percent increase over the same time period in 2018.  As the 
Buckley Police Department and community continues to grow and officers are added, we 
anticipate the caseload to increase as well.  The City Council has been made aware that we are 
continuing to monitor caseload and workload and may need to seek additional staff time as well 
as additional court dates to accommodate the increases.  
 
The Buckley court continues to meet the requirements mandated by the Washington Supreme 
Court and the Washington State Legislature, especially for DUI and domestic violence related 
cases.  We have procedures in place to facilitate firearm and weapon surrender in domestic 
violence cases and we continue to follow the mandatory minimum guidelines for DUI. We 
continue to closely monitor the terms of sentences and other dispositions through court 
monitored probation.  In addition, we strive to screen each defendant on a case by case basis for 
their ability to pay legal financial obligations and waive or convert those obligations to 
community service when applicable.  This has led to a decrease in the collection of fines and 
penalties but is in accordance with state law.  We also remain in compliance with public records 
requests and promise a prompt and complete response, for each request. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
171



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

30 

As we move forward to 2020 we will need to make some necessary upgrades in Information 
Technology and security.  We will be replacing computers with new hardware and software to 
stay compatible with operating systems and to allow the most stringent security to support cyber-
attacks.  We will also need to replace our failing metal detector.  We will replace it with a larger, 
more sensitive model that is also ADA compliant. 
 
The court will greet 2020, with great expectation.  We have worked hard to make our policies and 
procedures effective, efficient, consistent, and user-friendly for staff, attorneys, litigants, and the 
community and look forward to our continued value of serving them well. 

 
 

 
 

LAW ENFORCEMENT 
 
During the past year the Buckley Police Department had 2 new officers 
complete the Basic Law Enforcement Academy successfully. Both Officers 
also completed Field Training and have been patrolling as solo patrol officers 
for the past several months.  In the upcoming year 2020 both officers will 
continue to grow in the department and maintain a safe community for the 
citizens of Buckley, Wilkeson and Carbonado.   
 
In 2019 the Police Department joined Public Safety Testing; this allowed our 
Department to test several candidates for the 11th Commissioned Officer 
Position that was approved in the 2019 budget.  During the rigorous testing 
process we were able to look at hiring the 11th Officer.  With this Officer 
added to the staff this will allow additional patrols and community policing.   
 
In the Fall of 2019 we were able to complete the parking lot project, along with a fully fenced 
parking and storage area.  This area will allow the department to store any seized or forfeited 
property in a safe secure location.    
 
The 2020 budget request reflects the addition of a part-time Records Assistant to assist in the 
management of cases and property.  The Records Assistant will also complete CPL applications 
and requests made by the public for any records.   
 
The 2020 budget request reflects a $100,000 expenditure from the Reserve Equipment fund for 
the purchase of 2 new Police vehicles.  The Vehicles will be used by Patrol; both will need to be 
fully outfitted for patrol duties.   
 
The 2020 budget reflects increases for both dispatch and jail services. An increase to South Sound 
911 for dispatch is anticipated to go up by $11,000, which is projected to continue to increase in 
years to come.  Jail services for 2020 is being budgeted at $122,500, which reflects increases in 
jail contract costs and laws that have mandatory minimum sentences.   
 
The Department training budget was not increased for 2020, since we’ve been able to meet 
training standards using in house training and also using a WEB based training program (Police 
One Academy). 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
172



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

31 

In 2020 the Department will participate in the citywide major technology upgrade replacing 14 
computers to meet safety standards given by the City’s I.T. Manager. 
 
The general fund portion of the 2020 budget will see the largest increase it has over the past few 
years due to contractual increases in salaries for the officers, adding a part time records clerk and 
5% increase to officer’s healthcare premiums.  
 
The police reserve fund 007 is in stable shape due largely to contributions from police contracts 
for service with Rainier State School, Carbonado and Wilkeson. This is the fund that the patrol 
officer’s vehicles are purchased from, which saves the general fund from this expense.  
 
Fund 109 which is the drug enforcement account that receives revenue from Criminal Justice 
distributions is restricted as to how the funds can be spent, is in great financial shape and meets 
the current needs of the Buckley Police Departments.  
 
In 2020 any available grants will be considered for equipment that is needed. The Police 
Department currently has two employees assigned to locate and write any grant applications that 
appear to be applicable for our agency.     
 
 

 
 

FIRE & EMS  
 
While the City of Buckley Fire Department continues to grow, the 
citizens continue to enjoy the significant economic cost-savings of 
having a predominantly volunteer staffed fire department while 
enjoying a professional level of service that is comparable in every 
measure to the level of service provided by an all paid staffed fire 
department.  Throughout 2019, the fire department has maintained 
programs and practices necessary for the City to maintain the Fire 
Protection Class 3 rating issued to the City of Buckley Fire Department 
by the Washington Surveying and Rating Bureau (WSRB) following the 

2018 rating assessment and evaluation.  A Fire Protection Class 3 rating demonstrates the high 
level of service our fire department is able to provide, and this fire protection class rating results 
in a property insurance cost savings for 
many owners of both private and 
commercial properties located within the 
city.  
 
The recruitment, training, and retention of 
the necessary number of volunteer 
firefighters, emergency medical 
technicians, and paramedics needed to meet 
the fire department’s operational demand 
continues to be one of the fire departments 
highest priorities and greatest challenges.  
As a result of a $300,000 SAFER Grant awarded to the fire department in late 2018, the fire 
department has fully implemented a fulltime Volunteer Firefighter Recruitment and Retention 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
173



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

32 

Coordinator position in 2019.  The fire departments ability to meet the recruitment and retention 
needs could not have been met in 2019 without the addition of this coordinator position.  In 2020 
the efforts of the coordinator position will continue to expand as the constant need for 
recruitment and retention remains high, and as the City of Buckley Fire Department in 
conjunction with the Carbonado, Greenwater, and 
Crystal Mountain Fire Departments implement 
the shared “pool volunteer firefighter” program 
recently approved through this multi-agency 
Interlocal Agreement.   
 
In 2020, the fire department will continue to 
invest wisely in the training and professional 
development of both our volunteer and paid staff.  
Constant training and furthering the education of 
our personnel results in the delivery of the 
professional level of service our citizens have 
come to know and expect from our fire department.  While our fire department is fortunate to 
have a number of quality and highly capable instructors in-house, bringing in outside instructors 
is critical to the success of our training program. 
 
It will be eight years in April 2020 since the fire department moved into the “new” fire station.  
As with any building or facility that is in operation 24/7/365, ongoing maintenance is necessary 
for the efficient operation of the improvement and to protect the economic investment of the 
citizens who pay for such facilities.  We anticipate seeing some necessary minor maintenance 
repairs and appliance replacements in 2020 to 
keep the fire station operating efficiently.  
 
As a result of the combination of the late 2017 
bond refunding and the addition of assessed 
valuation from new construction, we continue to 
see the cost to each taxpayer to fund the fire 
station decrease significantly.  The table below 
represents the annual cost of funding the fire 
station bond, based on a select property we have 
used to monitor the bond cost since the inception 
of the bond.  In 2020, for this select property, the 
taxpayer will bear a monthly cost of $9.68 
($116.17/12) to fund the fire station bond payments.  This reflects a 24% decrease in annual cost 
since the first year the bonds were incurred.  Continued growth of new construction in the City 
should continue to decrease the annual cost of the bond measure to each individual taxpayer.   
 

Tax 
Year 

Selected Property’s 
Assessed Value (AV) 

Bond Debt 
Levy Rate/$1,000 AV 

Annual Bond 
Debt In tax 

2011 $194,300 $0.788283 $153.16 
2012 $186,400 $0.827659 $154.28 
2013 $159,100 $0.962644 $153.16 
2014 $160,700 $0.926768 $148.93 
2015 $171,700 $0.882028 $151.44 
2016 $192,400 $0.793402 $152.65 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
174



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

33 

2017 $219,100 $0.681409 $149.29 
2018 $251,900 $0.590475 $148.74 
2019 $275,500 $0.464646 $128.00 
2020 $296,000 $0.393976 $116.17 

 
 

 
 

BUILDING & PLANNING  
 
Building Department: New construction in 2019 continues to be strong and has outpaced the 
record numbers that we had in 2018. As of October 22, 2019, the Building Department has issued 
the following permits: 
 

UTable 16: City Building Permits 
 

Commercial Permits 2018 2019 
Building 20 18 
Demo 2 1 
Mechanical  3 6 
Plumbing 2 0 
Residential Permits  2018 2019 
Building 65 120 
Demo 1 4 
Mechanical 48 41 
Plumbing 5 5 
ADU 1 1 
Other Permits 2018 2019 
Right-of-Way (ROW) 61 64 

 
The 2020 budget anticipates that new residential growth will continue due to the large amount 
of new developments in the processing pipeline. Revenue for 2019 was up by 128.55% over the 
budgeted amount; however, in forecasting revenue for 2020 we’re taking a more conservative 
approach and only increasing projections by 50%. At some point, we expect to see new starts and 
sales slow somewhat as home values and commute costs impacted by higher gasoline prices 
continue to rise.  
 
As we discussed in the 2020 budget summary on page 26 the current Building Inspector will be 
retiring in the next 1-2 years and the City currently has no one to replace him. In the current 
building boom it is extremely difficult to find someone qualified at the salary rate that the City 
pays based on comparable cities. This prevents us from having a competitive edge. In order to 
attract a potential candidate and have time to train and mentor them we have to start the 
recruitment process early. The 2020 budget proposes adding a new full time position to begin 
this process to ensure that there is no loss in continuity of operations.   
 
In addition to adding this position and the fact that the Building/Planning Department will be 
fully absorbing the Permit Tech’s salary and benefits in the upcoming year, the operating budget 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
175



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

34 

for the Building Department is projected to be significantly higher in 2020 from $168,219 to 
$295,599, which is a 75.72% increase. 
 
Planning Department: Planning is separated into two fields: current planning and long range 
planning.  
 
UCurrent Planning 
 
U2019 
In 2019, the City of Buckley saw unprecedented development with most of the growth taking 
place in the Single Family Residential (SFR) category. Currently, the city has five (5) preliminary 
plat applications under various stages of review:  Maracu, Jaeger Estates, Blueberry Farms, 
Perkin’s Prairie Phase IV, and Mia’s Meadow. The approval of said plats would result in a net gain 
of 315 single family lots; this is in addition to the 128 single family lots created for White River 
Meadows and Glacier Meadows which are both in the building (final) phase. The planning 
department is anticipating two more plats prior to the end of the year: Shank and Hanson which 
will yield an additional 33-67 lots.   
 

UTable 17: City Land Use Permit Activity 
  

 
Commercial development, while not bustling in the same manner as residential, is experiencing 
an encouraging amount of growth. Permits approved in 2019 include Buckley Storage, The Oven 
Bakery, Seattle Bubbleworks, and Strang Multi-Family Development. Projects still under review 
are as follows: BP Commercial, Cascade Nobel, Ostrander Storage, Cnossen Multi Family 
Development, and Bigfoot Java. The Planning department was also pleased to assist in making 
the following possible: Gravity Coffee, Buckley Public Market, and Wood, Wine & Whimsy.  
 

Permit Type # in 2019 Anticipated before end of 2019 

Boundary Line Adjustment (BLA) 3 1 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 2  
Design Review (DR) 10 1 
Final Plat/Final Subdivision (FSUB) 2 1 
Land Disturbing Activity (LDA) 7  
Pre-Application Meetings (Pre-Ap) 14 4 
Rezone (RZ) 3  
Short-Plat (SPT) 0  
Sign Permit (SGN) 1  
Site Plan Review (SPR) 2  
Site Plan Review Technical Adjustment 1  
Preliminary (Long) Subdivision (SUB) 3 2 
Variance (VAR) 1  
Shoreline Substantial Development Permit (SSDP) 0 1 
Shoreline Substantial Development Exemption 2  

Totals 46 10 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
176



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

35 

Other projects include City projects such as the Cemetery BLA, Miller Park, and the Rezone of 
the old fire and police station.  
 
Shoreline permitting includes a Shoreline exemption for Pierce Conservation Habitat 
Restoration, PSE powerline improvements, and a Shoreline Substantial Development Permit for 
King County Parks Pedestrian Bridge.  
 
Not included in the table are commercial building permits, residential building permits or home 
occupation business licenses. Building permits are addressed in the building section of this 
narrative; home occupation business licenses are also reviewed by the planning department but 
there is no tracking system in place within planning. 
 
U2020  
 
In 2020, the planning department is anticipating continuing growth. With the potential for 
nearly 400 new single-family lots within the city limits, commercial opportunities should become 
available to suit the needs of the growing population.  With increased density, demand grows, 
and developers take note.  
 
With long subdivisions generally being multi-year processes, the planning department 
anticipates continued work on plat reviews in 2020. Additionally, the planning department 
anticipates seeing a slight increase in commercial inquiries and development.  
 
ULong Range Planning. 
Long range planning includes comprehensive plan development and creation or amendment of 
the City’s land use regulations. The City planner is the staff for the Planning Commission, which 
reviews all proposed ordinances through a public hearing before transmitting them to City 
Council.  
 
U2019 
 
In 2019, the following was accomplished with respect to long range planning: 
 

• Title 20 Revision 
• Design Guidelines Update 
• Shoreline Master Plan Update (final adoption anticipated late 2019) 
• Use Table Update (anticipated adoption early 2020)  
• Small Cell Ordinance 
• Preliminary Downtown Revitalization Research 

 
U2020 
 
In 2020, the planning department’s goals include the following: 
 

• Adopt new Sign Code (anticipated early to mid-2020 adoption) 
• Subdivision Code Update 
• Tiny Home Ordinance 
• Finalize Use Table 
• Comprehensive Plan Update Compliance (Elements 7&8) 
• Next Comprehensive Plan Update (2023) 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
177



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

36 

• Continued work on downtown revitalization 
• Title 20 (revisions where necessary) 
• Design Guidelines (revisions where necessary) 
• Code Anomalies (planning is keeping a running list) to be completed once per year 

 
UPlanning Personnel 
Both current planning and long range planning are handled by planning staff; in 2020, it is 
anticipated that the Planning Department will consist of a full time City Planner, a full-time or ¾ 
time Associate Planner, and a Permit Technician who will be shared with the Building 
Department. Work will be divided up between the two planners as follows: 
 

• City Planner: 80% Current Planning; 20% Long Range Planning 
• Associate Planner: 50% Current Planning; 50% Long Range 

 
The Planning Department will also need to continue to utilize the contract planning consultant 
for overflow. While the planning consultant is budgeted for specific long-range projects, the bulk 
of the work given to her is current planning since the costs can be directly billed to the 
developers. The biggest budget changes in the way of increases are the following: 
 
Professional Services (IT Upgrades): This includes new computers and software licensing. The 
software licensing includes Blubeam REVU (used for zoning review of building plans and site 
plans), one county view web (CV Web) license for GIS services, and one upgraded GIS license for 
County View Pro (CV Pro). GIS services are what allow the planning department to view aerial 
photos, and conduct parcel research. The newly upgraded CV Pro license will allow the planning 
department more GIS functionality with the ability to change the zoning map as needed, run 
analyses, plot/map datapoints, and much more.  
 
Training: 2020 will see a significant increase in the training category primarily due to continued 
education for the City Planner. The City Planner will participate in the 2020 Cohort of the 
Certified Public Manager Program (CPM) where the nationally recognized CPM certification will 
be earned in addition to the globally recognized Lean Six Sigma Green Belt (CLSSB) 
certification. The planning department is also retaining an allotment for other training such as 
SEPA Training and/or Planning Conferences for both the City Planner and Associate Planner.  
 
 

 
 

UCOMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
The City’s Community Services Department encompasses Youth programs, the Youth Center 
and Senior Center.   Both the Youth Center and Senior Center are owned and operated by the 
City of Buckley; however, programming is made possible due to local partnerships and grant 
funding.   
 
 
Buckley Senior Activity Center 
The Senior Center is staffed by one full-time Activities Coordinator, one part-time Community 
Services Director and a part-time Cook.   This allocation of staff time represents the equivalent of 
1.78 full-time staff.  The Senior Center Activity program consists of a variety of activities, classes, 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
178



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

37 

special events and trips.  We serve lunch daily at the Senior 
Center.  These lunches are provided by our cook two days per 

week and Catholic Community Services 
provides lunches the other 3 days.  
Senior Center programs are funded by 
the Buckley Senior Citizen’s non-profit 
board.  The senior van is also 
maintained by the non-profit board. 
Funds are obtained primarily through 
grants and fundraisers.  For 2019-2020 
the Senior Center will be receiving a $46,842 Community Development 
Block Grant.  The only changes to 2020 Senior Center Budget are 
increasing hours of Community Services Director from 30 to 35 per 
week (60% of this salary is funded under Senior Center) and the 
addition of a Training line item of $600 for staff training. 

 
Buckley Youth Activity Center 
The Buckley Youth Activity Center is staffed by two part-time Youth Activities Coordinators, one 
part-time Youth Activities Assistant, and a part-time Community Services Director.  This 
allocation of staff time represents the equivalent of 1.93 full-time staff.  The Buckley Youth 
Activities Center provides our youth with a safe and 
educational place to go during non-school hours 
throughout the year.   Our drop in activities include pool, 
crafts, tutoring, snack shack and computer lab.  We also 
have a Youth Activities Board for teens needing 
community service hours. The Youth Activities Center is 
supported by the Buckley Youth Activities Board which 
receives funding from the Pierce County Youth Violence 
Prevention Grant which will be approximately $19,286 in 
2020. 
 
This budget also includes an increase of Community 
Services Director hours from 30 to 35 hours per week 
(40% of this salary is funded under Youth Activity Center).  Also included in 2020 budget is 
increasing supplies for the purchase of new security cameras and six 8 foot tables.   $500 was 
added for staff training.  We also have $6000 under repairs and maintenance for the repainting 
of Youth Center. 
 
 

 
 

UCITY PARKS  
 
The City’s Park System consists of three Mini Parks, four Neighborhood Parks, one Community 
Park, a Skate Park, outdoor basketball court and a portion of the Foothills Trail. The parks 
department annually hosts Music in the Park which provides summer fun with 5-6 evening 
concerts with local vendors setting up shop along the Foothills Trail.   
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
179



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

38 

The department is staffed by a full-time Parks Maintenance Worker (funded 70% by Parks and 
30% by RR-ROW Development) and a full-time Parks Maintenance and Custodial worker (funded 
75% by Parks, 5% by Water, 5% from the Waste Water Treatment Plant, 5% by Sewer, 5% by 
Street, and 5% by Stormwater), three seasonal park employees, and one seasonal event support 
position.  In addition, Public Works provides supervisory and maintenance support at the 
following levels: the City Mechanic (funded 7.5% by Parks), the Public Works Supervisor, PW 
Office Clerk and the Public Works Director (all funded at 5% by Parks). This allocation of staff 
time represents 2.8 full time staff (FTE’s) being paid from the Park fund.   
 
The 2020 budget reflects a 9.44% increase in expenditures due in part to salary and benefit 
increases, and nominal increases in operating costs for supplies, fuel, rentals & leases, travel and 
training.  
 
UPark Improvements: U In 2019, the City completed installation of the new climbing rocks in the 
SR410 Subarea and replaced fencing around Wally’s Basketball Court.  In 2020, the City proposes 
to complete the following: 
 

UTable 18: Parks Capital Projects 
 

Fund Name Expenditures Projected EFB 
PC - 035 Parks Capital Improvement $300,250 $81,389 
           ~ Skatepark Restroom Facade Construction 
           ~ Pump Track Bike Park Construction 
           ~ Climbing Wall – Construction (Phase II) 
           ~ Miller Park Phase I (a) & (b) Development 
           ~ Wally's Basketball Court Rehab (Court & Fence) 
           ~ SR410 - Outdoor Basketball Court Construction 

 
The 2020 budget proposes to continue to build on identifying and completing projects identified 
in the 2015 Comprehensive Parks and Recreation Plan. The budget proposes continued 
exploration and consideration of constructing a Pump Track Bicycle Park either on the Miller 
Property or on the City Ag Land east 
of Levesque Road. This project is one 
that the City Council is hoping will get 
broad community support and 
volunteer efforts to complete.  
 
The 2019 budget proposed the initial 
development of the Miller property 
into a Regional Park. This Phase I 
construction included initial grading 
and leveling and then adding crushed 
surfacing to create access and parking 
and conclude with adding some play 
feature and/or equipment to the site in the areas identified in the design. However, during 
permitting and SEPA review for this portion of the project, a wetland was identified in the 
northeast corner of the property. The presence of this wetland led the need of a formal 
delineation which in turn delayed moving forward with the project. The 2020 budget proposes to 
reallocate funds to complete this work as outlined in the 2019 budget albeit with a modified site 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
180



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

39 

design that incorporates the wetland into the overall design and rearranging facilities to avoid 
impacts to it. 
 
As mentioned, the City completed 
construction of the new climbing 
rock area adjacent to the skate park in 
2019. The overall site design 
envisioned three climbing boulders; 
however, final cost estimates were 
higher than anticipated so only two 
boulders were installed.  We have had 
such an overwhelming positive 
response from the new area that the 
City is planning to move forward with 
installation of the 3 P

rd
P boulder in 2020. The 3 P

rd
P boulder will be approximately 2’ higher than the 

existing highest one. The 2020 budget adds funding for this final stage of the project.  
 
The third project planned for 2020 is a new basketball and 4-square court just south the new 
climbing rock area. This project was identified in the 2015 Comprehensive Parks and Recreation 
Plan as a high priority project.  
 
 The other project included in the budget is completion of the rehabilitation of the basketball 
courts at Wally’s including surface sealing, new back stops and restriping.   
 
 

 
 

UCITY CEMETERY 
 

In 2016 the City Council entered into agreement with Weeks Funeral Home for management 
and operation of the City Cemetery.  
 
However, while conducting a recent survey for some property line clean-ups, it was identified 
that an area of 
approximately 1.2 acres 
within the lower cemetery is 
actually property belonging 
to Cascade Water Alliance 
(CWA). There are a number 
of older gravesites on the 
portion of property so it’s 
critical that the City work 
with CWA to correct the 
ownership. While we have 
no official cost estimate for 
what it may take to make 
the corrections, the City Council will at some point in 2020 be asked to authorize expending of 
funds from the Cemetery Fund 004 to resolve this issue.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
181



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

40 

 

 
 

14TUFOOTHILLS HISTORICAL MUSEUM 
 
14TThe Foothills Historical Society began as a partnership with the City of Buckley 
in 1981.  The museum occupies a City-owned building between Cottage Street 
and River Avenue.   Outdoor exhibits are located opposite the museum on 
River Avenue and include a lookout tower, log cabin, bunkhouse, saw shop 
and steam donkey.  Various logging and farm equipment items are 
displayed in the farm shed with a new recently constructed exhibit 

featuring a 1949 Caterpillar 
bulldozer and logging arch.  A 
permanent coal and coke mining exhibit has been 
installed inside the Museum and new LED lighting 
system illuminates the “Main Street” exhibit. The 
Foothills Historical Society owns the collection and 
staffs the museum with volunteers.  So far in 2019 
thirty-six (36) volunteer staff has contributed 2,661 
hours to the operation of the Museum.  
 
14TCity funding comes from the budget’s Visitor 
Promotion and Development Fund 136, which obtains 

revenue from the Hotel-Motel tax.  The museum also serves as the City’s Visitor Center for 
information about the local area.  Through this partnership, local history is made available for 
research and preserved for future generations. 
 
14TThe museum is open Tuesdays, Wednesdays and 
Thursdays from 12:00 PM to 4:00 PM, and Sundays from 
1:00 PM to 4:00 PM.  The museum is open additional hours 
during 14T 14Tmost citywide events, and schedules public school 
and other special tours. 
 
14TAs of November 1, 2019, the Museum has hosted 2,253 
visitors from numerous cities, student classes from White 
River School District, 20 other US states and 7 foreign 
nations. 
 
14TExpenditures for 2020 are proposed to increase by 3.55% 
primarily to replace a roof on one of the outbuildings that is in need of repair.  Although 
construction of a building addition is several years away, initial planning began in 2015. 
 
 

 
 

UTILITY/ENTERPRISE SERVICES 
 
14TThe City owns and operates three separate utilities, the Wastewater Treatment System, the Stormwater 
System and a shared Water System with Rainier School. In addition to the three utilities, the Public 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
182



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

41 

Works Department operates and maintains City streets, parks and public properties and provides 
contractual garbage service to City residents.  Although owned by the City, the Cemetery is currently 
managed and maintained under contract with Weeks Funeral Home. The department includes a 
Public Works Director department head and staff consisting of the following: 
 
14TDepartment head – PW Director 
14TAdministrative - PW/Utility Clerk  
 
14TWastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) -  
14T   1 WWTP Supervisor 
14T   2 WWTP Operators 
             
14TWater/Sewer Collection/14T 14TStreets/Stormwater -   

14T1 PW Supervisor 
14T1 Utilities System Tech 
14T5 Utility Workers  
14T1 Meter Reader (purposed) 
14T3 Seasonal P/T Utility Workers 

14TParks, Recreation, Buildings and Grounds - 
14T   1 Building/Parks Maint Worker 
14T   1 Building/Parks Maint Custodial Worker 
14T   4 Seasonal P/T Parks Workers  
 
14TShared - 
14T   1 Utility Mechanic (shared) 
 
14TNatural Gas – N/A  
14TCemetery – Managed under Contract

 
14TThe 2020 budget proposes to convert the departments current part time Meter Reader position to a full 
time  position with expanded duties and responsibilities including, but not limited to, utility locating, 
meter installs and change outs, utility shut off and turn on, and others to help accommodate the increase 
in new customer base resulting from residential growth . This position will also provide relief to our 
utility workers, relieving them of these duties giving them more time to perform needed utility 
maintenance duties.   
 
 

 
 

14TUNatural Gas Department: 
 
14TAlthough the City’s Natural Gas Utility was sold to PSE in 2014, the City has had to keep the 
operations Fund 401 active in order to account for any collections that are received 14Tfrom 
outstanding delinquent accounts 14T. Surplus funds not needed for keeping the fund active are 
surplused and transferred each year as part of the budget process. For 2019, the City Council 
declared as surplus $5,000 that was to be transferred to the general fund; however, due to 
beginning the year with a lower than anticipated BFB and the fact that revenue to the fund did not 
surpass the amount scheduled for transfer, the transfer for 2019 will be delayed until January of 
2020. At that time the City Council can declare a larger amount collected, as surplus and transfer 
over more than what was budgeted in 2019. Based on this premise we’re anticipating a 2020 BFB of 
$13,396 with potential revenue from collections of $1,100 for a total of $14,496. The budget 
proposes to surplus and transfer $10,000 of the revenue to the general fund, which after paying 
State taxes leaves an EFB in 2020 of $4,271.  

 
14TUTable 19: Natural Gas Operations  

 

2019 Operations Analysis 

Utility Revenue Expenditures EFB 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
183



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

42 

2019 Budgeted 
Revenue 

w/BFB 

2019 
Projected 

w/BFB 

2019 
Budgeted 

Expenditures 

2019 
Projected 

Projected  

Natural Gas (401) $5,902 $14,408 $5,225 $1,012 $13,396 

2020 Operations 

Utility 2020 Projected 
BFB 

2020 Projected 
Revenue w/BFB 

2020 Proposed 
Expenditures 

Projected EFB 

Natural Gas (401) $13,396 $14,496 $10,225 $4,271 

 
 

 
 

14TUWater Department: 
 

14TWater system operations are funded through Fund 402 which derives revenue from the sale of domestic 
water to local residents, businesses, government agencies and outside service contracts.   
 
2019 expenditures are under budget by (3.1%) and revenues are over by 2.4% along with beginning the 
year with a BFB over by 32.2%. The lower expenditure is related to the department managing costs the 
best they can. The increased revenue is related to new residential growth and beginning the year with a 
higher BFB over by 32.2%.  
 
The 2019 EFB is projected to be $94,003. Overall revenues for 2020 are projected to be higher by 
0.8%. Revenue from water services, not including the EFB or BFB, for 2019 was budgeted at 
$1,058,583 with actual estimates projecting $1,058,864 by the end of the year. Revenue projections 
for 2020, based on rate adjustment recommendations and demand projections, reflect $1,059,833 in 
revenue. Expenditures for 2020 are projected to increase by 2.3% at $1,138,205; however, this total 
includes all operations, taxes, administrative, transfers, etc. Actual operational costs are projected 
to increase by 3.87% due to the organizational and staffing level changes requested as well as 
salary, benefits, excise and utility taxes, supplies, chemicals for treatment, fuel and repair and 
maintenance costs. The 2019 budget projects ending the year with an EFB of $15,631.    
 

14TUTable 20: Water Operations 
 

2019 Water Operations 

Utility 

Revenue Revenue 

Budget Revenue 
w/BFB 

2019 Projected 
w/BFB 

2019 Budgeted 
Expenditures 2019 Projected 

Water Operations (402)* $1,145,154 $1,172,664 $1,113,034 $1,078,660 
Water Capital (406) $750,602 $1,076,289 $622,722 $239,953 
*Note: BFB for both water and sewer operations is estimated due to comingled utility. 

2020 Water Operations 

Utility 
2020 Projected 
Revenue w/BFB 

2020 Proposed 
Expenditures EFB 

Change in 
Rates Needed 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
184



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

43 

Water Operations (402)* $1,153,836 $1,138,205 $15,631 > 5% 
Water Capital (406) $2,011,613 $1,934,903 $76,710 >TO - 20% 

 
Revenue is still inadequate to fund the ongoing increases in system operations and long list of capital 
projects that we have. Salaries, benefits, excise and utility taxes, supplies, chemicals for treatment, fuel 
and repair and maintenance costs are all contributing to increasing the budget 3.87% higher. New 
customers coming on line from the new residential development do not make up the shortfall. The 
water system plan anticipated annual rate increases of 5%; however, this was to aid in the completion of 
capital projects and not increasing operational costs. The 2020 proposed budget reflects a 5% increase in 
rates in the hope that additional growth will eventually support operations.  
 
The 2020 budget proposes transferring $201,777 or 20% of revenue to the water capital fund, which is the 
minimum established by adopted code. This is the same amount that was transferred in 2019.  
 
As a result of budget projections discussed above, the recommendation for 2020 is for the City Council to 
increase base rates by 5% for all meter sizes as reflected in Table 21-A.1 below:   
  

14TUTable 21-A.1: Proposed Base Water Rate Structure 
 

Meter Size 
2019 2020 

Within City 
Up to 3/4" $24.42 $25.64 

1" $30.96 $32.51 
1-1/2" $44.50 $46.73 

2" $66.87 $70.21 
3" $99.29 $104.25 
4" $161.06 $169.11 
6" $310.69 $326.22 
8" $761.19 $799.25 
10" $1,865.24 $1,958.50 
12" $4,569.17 $4,797.63 

 
14TIn addition to the base rate identified in Table 21-A.1, customers will pay a usage charge per CCF (100 
cubic feet) of water consumed as illustrated in Table 21-A.2 below: 

 
14TUTable 21-A.2: Proposed Seasonal Rate Structure 

 
Effective Beginning  1/1/2019 1/1/2020 

UWinter 

Single-family & Multifamily residential 
2 - 7 CCF 2.09 2.09 

7.01 - 15 CCF 2.50 2.50 
Over 15 CCF 2.99 2.99 

Commercial/Industrial 2.19 2.19 
Schools 2.07 2.07 
Winter rates will be reflected on bills covering October 1st through May 31st 
USummer 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
185



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

44 

Single-family & Multifamily residential 
2 - 7 CCF 2.09 2.09 

7.01 - 15 CCF 2.77 2.77 
Over 15 CCF 3.62 3.62 

Commercial/Industrial 2.19 2.19 
Schools 2.19 2.19 
Summer rates will be reflected on bills covering June 1st through September 30th 

 
14TUWater Capital:U  
 
14TEach year we emphasize the critical needs of the water system and list concerns over the vulnerabilities. 
While we have made much progress in recent years by constructing the emergency intertie and booster 
station with connection to Tacoma Water’s pipeline #1, constructing the new Trail Well and most 
recently replacing the most vulnerable section of the water transmission over South Prairie Creek with 
new water main section and suspension bridge, there is still much to do.  
 
14TThe City obtains its water supply from two primary sources, surface water and groundwater. Surface 
water is diverted and transported from South Prairie Creek, through 6 miles of older pipe, before going 
through a sand filter treatment cell where it is purified, chlorinated and delivered to City customers.  
This water transmission pipeline was constructed over 70 years ago and is steadily deteriorating. Due to 
its age, location and vulnerabilities it remains one of the primary infrastructure concerns for the 
community. Both the water transmission main and access road experienced significant damage from 
consecutive major storm events in 2006 and 2009. Combined cost for repair of the facility from both 
events came in at just under $1,000,000. We were fortunate that in each case the events were declared 
Federal disasters and funding through FEMA and State DEM was authorized for repair. While in each 
case 87.5% of the cost was grant funded, the City was still required to provide the local match in order to 
complete repairs.  
 
14TThis pipeline again experienced damage during storm events in 2011 and in 2015 and remains a major 
source of concern. Through a combination of grant and local funding, the City was able to replace the 
portion of the transmission main that crossed South Prairie Creek in the open stream bed, which was14T 14Tthe 
most vulnerable section of the pipeline. There is still a significant amount of the pipeline that is in need 
of replacement.  
 
14TThe City’s second source of supply comes from four groundwater wells owned by the City and one 
owned by the State on Rainier School’s campus. Each of these wells was originally developed to 
supplement the City’s and Rainier School’s water supplies and not intended to be used for permanent 
supply sources. However, in recent years with the condition of the surface water transmission main the 
City has had to rely more and more on these sources for primary withdrawals.  
 
14TThe City’s water supply issues were the subject of a study commissioned by the City Council and 
performed by the City’s engineers that resulted in the City Council’s decision to prioritize both short and 
long term actions to address the problems listed as follows: 
 
14TUShort Term: 

 
• 14TComplete FEMA Hazard Mitigation repair of the transmission pipeline; 
• 14TMove forward with design and construction of the Emergency Intertie and Booster Station; 
• 14TSeek funding for development of the Trail Well. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
186



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

45 

14TULong Term: 
 
• 14TExplore obtaining additional water rights for potentially locating a new supply source either from 

the White River, CWA Flume or groundwater well next to the White River; 
• 14TAttempt to obtain sufficient financing to replace the City’s water transmission main from South 

Prairie Creek; and 
• 14TPotentially purchase some percentage of permanent water supplies from Tacoma Water through 

the Four Cities Agreement. 
 
14TIn 2012, the City completed the project to repair/replace 2,700 lineal feet of the water transmission 
pipeline funded in large part by a Hazard Mitigation Grant from FEMA.  The City also applied and 
received approval for a State of Washington Public Works Trust Fund (PWTF) loan to construct the Trail 
Well and Emergency Intertie and Booster Station.  
 
14TIn 2014, the City completed construction of the new Booster Station Intertie, which was designed to 
connect the City to Tacoma Water for emergency usage. In 2015, the City took another step forward 
towards eliminating vulnerabilities by completing the South Prairie Creek Crossing of the transmission 
main.  
 
14TIn addition to the three major construction projects, the City conducted an evaluation of Wells #2 and #4 
which revealed severe pitting on the well shafts. As a result of this investigation, the City moved forward 
with rehabilitation of both wells which was completed in the summer of 2014.  
 
14TWhile the main emphasis had been on the water transmission and supply sources within the last 10 
years, the condition of many of the system’s distribution lines that were identified under capital 
improvement plans have had little or no attention. In 2018, the City refocused attention on these lines 
and completed replacement of two of the highest priority distribution mains, Rainier Street and “14TC" 
Street. 
 
In 2019, the City intended to replace the water mains on Edith Street and McNeely Street as part of a 
larger consolidated utilities project with the hopes of getting better economy of scale pricing, resulting in 
cheaper construction cost. For various reasons, the 2019 Consolidated Utilities project was unable to 
happen. 
 
The 2020 budget proposes to continue this process by replacing water lines on Edith Street and McNeely 
Street as part of a large scale 2020 Consolidated Utility project.  
 
In addition to these two water main replacements, the priority projects for 2020 are replacing the sand 
filter media at the City/State Water Treatment Facility, completing upgrade/repairs to the systems 
telemetry, troubleshoot and diagnose issues with both the Trail Well and Naches Well, pre-design the 
Water Treatment Plant expansion and infiltration report, and replacing a segment of the water 
transmission main, if the City is successful at receiving a FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant. These capital 
projects identified are listed in Table 22 below. 

 
14TUTable 22: 2020 Water Capital Projects 

 
 Expenditures EFB 
WC-406 Water Construction $1,934,903 $76,710 
           ~ Debt Repayment 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
187



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

46 

           ~ Edith - Balm St Water Main Replace 
           ~ Telemetry Upgrades - Wells & WTP 
           ~ Re-Sand Slow Sand Filter at WTP 
           ~ Well Repairs - Naches Well 
           ~ Trail Well- Trouble Shooting 
           ~ Cedar Street- From Main St to Jefferson Ave 
           ~ Pre Design Report- WTP Expansion (S3) 
           ~ Copperwynd Valve Replacements  
           ~ McNeely Street South - Main Replace (D15) 

 
 

 
 

14TUSewer Treatment & CollectionU: 
 

14TThe sewer section of Fund 402 serves as a combined budget which functions to provide funding for the 
two sections of Citywide waste treatment (collection and treatment). The collection portion focuses 
mainly on conveyance pipes, manholes, and lift stations throughout the City; and the wastewater 
treatment plant (WWTP) located on Hatch Street serves to treat the waste. The two sections are operated 
and maintained independent of one another. The collection section is maintained by the water/sewer 
section of the Public Works Department and the WWTP is operated and maintained separately by staff 
members assigned to the facility. Revenue for the two sections is derived from the monthly sewer rates 
charged to customers throughout the City.  
 
The most recent Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade was completed in 2008.  Although the plant 
continues to run very well, there are some components of the treatment equipment that are aging 
and in need of rehabilitation and overhaul due to normal wear and service life. The South Aeration 
Basin diffusers have been replaced and that basin was brought on line in August 2018 and the 
North Aeration basin has been taken out of service, dewatered, and cleaned in preparation to 
replace diffusers, which is currently in progress and should be finished by the end of November.  
We have also painted the Chemical building and given it a minor facelift replacing deteriorated 
fascia boards.  We are also working with the developer in bringing on-line the Spiketon Rd lift 
station. Up to this point, our collection system has been gravity flow with some STEP (Septic Tank 
Effluent Pumped) at the farthest points in the system.  The lift station will allow development in 
the area that would not allow sewer connections due to grade restraints.  We are currently working 
with the integrator installing controls for the lift station that will be accessible on the WWTP 
SCADA System.  
  
For 2020, we have general maintenance to complete. We will be looking at replacing brushes on 
the fine screens, which screen out foreign materials from the influent stream.  This is basic wear 
and tear maintenance and can be completed by plant personnel. 
 
The Dept. of Ecology is continuing with the process of developing Phosphorus limits for the White 
River which is the outfall for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Effluent.  In 2018, Draft limits were 
set and we are now looking at what it will take to be able to meet those limits.  Meeting the limits 
will involve chemical addition to remove the phosphorus and the WWTP is currently set up to 
accomplish this.  The question is how well we are able to optimize the biological nutrient removal 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
188



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

47 

system so we can limit the amount of expensive chemical we have to use to meet the effluent 
limits for Phosphorus removal. 
 
The Department of Ecology continues to be very supportive and pleased with plant operations and 
effluent quality.  Josh Reedy took a position with public works and has continued to help out taking 
on-call assignments and filling in as need be.  We hired Lloyd Dahlem at the plant to fill his 
position.  He has proven to be a conscientious and hardworking employee and is fitting in well at 
the plant.  He will shortly be taking his Operator-In-Training (OIT) test and when he has passed 
that and has completed one year’s experience, he will automatically upgrade to a WWTP Group 1 
Operator. He will then continue working toward completion of his apprenticeship and the ultimate 
goal of earning his WWTP Group 2 Operator’s certification and journeyman operator status.  David 
McArtor continues to be a valuable employee both at the plant and for the City heading up the 
Wellness committee.  He is already looking at taking an advanced test for his WWTP Group 3 
Operator’s certification. 
 
2019 expenditures are under budget by (3.5%) and revenues by (1.9%) along with beginning the year 
with a BFB under by (33.2%). The lower expenditure is related to the department managing costs the best 
they can. The revenue shortfall is related to beginning the year with a lower BFB.  
 
The 2019 EFB is projected to be $235,460. Actual revenue, not counting the BFB for 2020 is projected to 
be higher by 3.17%. Revenue from sewer services, not including the EFB or BFB, for 2019 was budgeted 
at $2,107,750 with actual estimates projecting $2,166,358 by the end of the year. Revenue projections for 
2020, based on the current rate structure, reflect $2,174,569 in revenue. Expenditures for 2020 are 
projected to increase by 3.9% to $2,334,061; however, this total includes all operations, taxes, 
administrative, transfers, etc. Actual operational costs are projected to increase by 3.48% and are due to 
the organizational and staffing level changes requested as well as salary, benefits, excise and utility taxes, 
supplies, chemicals for treatment, fuel, utilities and repair and maintenance costs. The 2020 budget 
projects ending the year with an EFB of $75,968.    

 
14TUTable 23: Sewer Operations 

 
2019 Sewer Operations 

Utility 

Revenue Expenditures 

Budget Revenue 
w/BFB 

2019 Projected 
w/BFB 

2019 Budgeted 
Expenditures 2019 Projected 

Sewer (402)* $2,449,219 $2,401,818 $2,245,874 $2,166,358 
Sewer (405) $2,406,351 $2,866,360 $1,764,709 $749,519 
*Note: BFB for both water and sewer operations is estimated due to comingled utility. 

2020 Sewer Operations 

 

2020 Projected 
Revenue w/BFB 

2020 Proposed 
Expenditures EFB 

Change in Rates 
Needed 

Sewer (402)* $2,410,029 $2,334,061 $75,968 None 
Sewer (405) $3,289,112 $2,261,306 $1,027,806 >TO - 35% 

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
189



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

48 

14TUSewer CapitalU:  
 
14TFund 405 Sewer Capital Fund is established for construction and/or purchase of capital projects and/or 
equipment used in the treatment and collection of waste. The fund also is responsible for any debt 
payments for outstanding loans taken out by the City for capital projects.  
 
14TFunding for this account comes from a minimum 25% transfer of all revenues derived from sewer 
service charges throughout the community. However, due to the intention of moving forward with 
capital improvement projects identified in the Comprehensive Sewer Plan, the transfer from sewer 
operations to capital improvement fund will be increased to 35% of revenue from use charges.   
 
14TFor 2020, the budget proposes to complete the capital projects identified in Table 24 below: 

 
14TUTable 24: 2020 Sewer Capital Projects 

 
 Expenditures EFB 

WWC-405 Sewer Construction $2,261,306 $1,027,806 

           ~ Debt Repayment 
           ~ WWTP Wastewater Reuse Feasibility Study 
           ~ Ryan RD - 649 Spiketon Rd Sewer Replacement 
           ~ Spiketon Road- A Street to Ryan Rd 
           ~ Edith Street- Overlay from Park Ave to Dundass Street 
           ~ Copperwynd - Sewer Repairs 
           ~ McNeely Street S. - Sewer Extension 
           ~ White River Property Access Gate Relocation  
           ~ Collins Road Repair Project 
           ~ PW Storage Facility 

 
 

 
 

14TUStreet Operations: 
 

14TFunding for street operations continues to slowly improve with the assistance of funding from the 
Transportation Benefit District (TBD). The struggle to fund transportation maintenance and 
improvements has been discussed in numerous past budgets and by the Legislature granting Cities the 
ability to create Transportation Benefit Districts and adopt fees to mitigate local impacts to the 
transportation system. 14TSince peaking in 2003, the City had experienced over a 30% drop in revenue due 
to initiatives and lower tax distributions.  
 
14TIn 2015, the State legislature adopted 2ESSB-5987, which allowed counties, cities, and towns to receive a 
share of the multi-modal funds and the increase in fuel tax as a result of the legislation. 
 
14TFuel taxes in Washington are assessed as cents per gallon, so fuel tax revenue depends on the number of 
gallons sold, not the dollar value of the sales. 
 
14TFuel tax forecasts by DOT and MRSC state that “gasoline and diesel fuel prices, along with Washington 
personal income, are the primary variables affecting fuel consumption. In particular, gasoline tax 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
190



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

49 

collections are negatively related to the price of gasoline. Fuel prices have been slowly increasing with 
current projections set for an annual increase of approximately five percent. While employment 
numbers have been steady, growth in personal income is slightly down. These factors, coupled with 
more fuel efficient vehicles, are contributing to a reduction in overall fuel tax forecasts, and these trends 
are projected to continue for the next biennium.” 

 
Street operations continue to have revenue shortfalls with an ever expanding operational budget. The 
ongoing addition of new street lights on upgraded roadway reconstruction projects and new residential 
developments have all but wiped out any savings that the City experienced from the LED conversion. 
For 2020, we had to once again eliminate any administrative allocation to the general fund because of 
the deficit that we had to balance. This amounted to $64,628 , which means that we now find it 
necessary for the general fund to subsidize street operations; in addition to “not” transferring the 
administrative charge over. As discussed in previous budgets, the Council had a limited number of 
options from which to resolve this problem consisting of; #1 increase the $20 vehicle fee to either $30 or 
$40 which generates another $52,500 or $105,000 in revenue; #2 consider putting a ballot measure out to 
the community to move funding for the TBD from a flat vehicle fee to sales tax, which would add 
additional revenue; or #3 continue to subsidize street operations from the general fund at the expense of 
something else.  
 
However, with the advent of I-976 being considered by voters this November, these options may 
drastically change. As communicated by AWC: 
 
“UI-976U is an Initiative being presented to voters during the next general election in November 2019. 
If passed, the immediate impact to cities would be a repeal of the authority for City transportation 
benefit districts (TBDs) to impose a car tab fee. Under current law, cities have the authority to 
establish TBDs for the purposes of acquiring, constructing, providing, and funding transportation 
improvements. To date, over 100 cities have formed TBDs to fund local transportation projects, 
with 62 TBDs receiving revenue from vehicle license fees. Fifty-five of the 62 TBDs use vehicle 
license fees as their sole funding source. In fiscal year 2018, vehicle license fees raised $58.2 
million in revenue to fund local projects. 
 
In addition to repealing city TBD fees, I-976 would do the following: 

 
• Lower motor vehicle and light duty truck weight fees (car tab fees) to $30; 
• Eliminate the 0.3 percent sales tax on vehicle purchases; 
• Lower the electric vehicle, snowmobile, and commercial trailer fees; and, 
• Modify and reduce Sound Transit motor vehicle excise tax provisions. 

 
These actions would reduce direct revenue to cities through TBDs, reduce revenue to Sound 
Transit, and reduce revenue to numerous state transportation accounts. These state accounts 
provide funding for the Washington State Department of Transportation and provide significant 
investment in transportation projects across the state. These projects include, but aren’t limited to 
the following: state and local highway construction, maintenance, ferries and support services; 
multimodal projects like public transportation, rail and bicycle/pedestrian projects; activities of the 
Washington State Patrol; and more.” 
 
14TThe City’s TBD currently generates approximately $104,000 per year that helps to fund both street 
operations and capital improvements. In 2019, $102,000 was transferred from the TBD to Fund 101 out of 
which $66,000 went to support street operations and maintenance and $36,000 was to support capital 
transportation projects such as sidewalk improvements or local match for larger roadway improvements. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
191



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

50 

As mentioned above the City’s general fund is already subsidizing operations by withholding 
administrative support costs of $64,628 so if I-976 passes and the City’s TBD is eliminated we’ll now have 
an additional $104,000 funding gap added to the other subsidy resulting in a total funding shortfall of 
($168,628).  The 2020 Budget reflects a line item transfer from the general fund to street operations of 
$500, which is simply a contingency in case the City Council needs to consider additional support.   

 
2019 expenditures are under budget by (10.5%), however, revenues are under as well by (2.4%) along 
with beginning the year with a BFB under by (4.9%). The lower expenditure is related to lower than 
expected street light costs due to delays in transferring accounts from new developments to the City. As 
discussed above, this practice will extend into 2020 until the City Council can decide on a funding 
strategy to support street operations.  
 
The 2019 EFB is projected to be $34,080. Overall revenues for 2020 are projected to be slightly higher by 
5% at $275,730 and by withholding administrative allocations; expenditures are expected to remain fairly 
consistent with 2019’s at $262,602.  As discussed above this is not sustainable because operational costs 
such as salaries, benefits, supplies, fuel, and public utilities continue to increase faster than revenue 
projections. However, if I-976 does pass and the City’s TBD is eliminated the Street Operations budget 
will have a 2020 shortfall of ($86,872) that will have to be balanced with a combination of operational 
cuts and increased subsidy from the general fund.  Based on the premise that the TBD is not eliminated 
and funding levels remain the same, the 2020 budget projects ending the year with an EFB of $13,128.    

 
14TUTable 25: Street Operations 

 
2019 Street Operations & Capital Analysis 

Fund 

Revenue Expenditures EFB 

Budget 
Revenue 

w/BFB 

2019 
Projected 

w/BFB 

Budget 
Expense 

2019 
Projected 

Projected 
EFB 

Street Operations (101) $262,505 $256,119 $248,206 $222,039 $34,080 
Street Capital (102) $772,006 $1,342,692 $385,131 $354,761 $987,931 

 

2020 Street Operations & Capital Budget 

Fund 
2020 

Projected BFB 

2020 
Projected 
Revenue 

2020 Total 
Revenue 

w/BFB 

2020 Proposed 
Expenditures 

Projected 
EFB 

Street Operations (101) $34,080 $242,150 $276,230 $262,602 $13,628 
Street Capital (102) $987,931 $993,495 $1,981,426 $1,624,051 $357,375 

 
 

UTransportation Benefit District (TBD): 
 
14TIn November 2012, the Buckley City Council adopted Ordinance No. 13-12 establishing a citywide 
Transportation Benefit District for the construction, reconstruction, preservation, and maintenance of the 
City’s streets and related infrastructure consistent with Chapter 36.73 RCW, to protect the City’s long 
term investments in that infrastructure, to reduce the risk of transportation facility failures and improve 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
192



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

51 

safety, to continue optimal performance of the infrastructure over time, and to avoid more expensive 
infrastructure replacements in the future. 
 
14TOn July 30, 2013 the City TBD established an annual vehicle fee in the amount of $20 for the purposes of 
ongoing transportation improvements that preserve and maintain the transportation infrastructure of 
the City of Buckley, consistent with Chapter 36.73 RCW. 
 
14TThe 2019 TBD budget anticipated revenue from vehicle fees to be $109,256, but current projections are 
that we will fall short of that by (4.2%) at $104,654. 

 
Expenditures for 2019 from the TBD account were budgeted at $106,002 with a projected EFB of $3,253. 
Current projections are that expenses will total $102,284 with an EFB $2,370.  

 
14TUTable 26: Transportation Benefit District (TBD) 

 

2019 TBD Budget 

Fund 

Revenue Expenditures EFB 

Budget 
Revenue 

w/BFB 

2019 
Projected 

w/BFB 

Budget 
Expense 2019 Projected 

Projected 
EFB 

TBD Fund (103) $109,256 $104,654 $106,002 $102,284 $2,370 

 

2020 
Projected BFB 

2020 
Projected 
Revenue 

2020 Total 
Revenue 

w/BFB 

2020 Proposed 
Expenditures 

Projected 
EFB 

TBD Fund (103) $2,370 $104,237 $106,607 $101,502 $5,105 

 
The 2020 budget anticipates that revenue will continue to trend upward albeit slowly with new 
residential growth in the community.  Revenue is anticipated to be $104,237 with a BFB of $2,370 for a 
total of $106,607. The budget proposes expenditures of $101,502 with projecting an EFB of $5,105. 
Expenditures include transfers to the street operations fund with $60,000 being identified for operations 
and maintenance and $40,000 for capital construction. 
 
The TBD vehicle fee has been critical to the City’s operation, maintenance and capital improvement of 
the City’s transportation network. As discussed in the previous section, I-976 will be presented to 
Washington voters in November during the general election. This initiative, if passed, will result in 
directly eliminating the City’s taxing authority to have a Transportation Benefit District. The loss of this 
revenue support could result in a total funding shortfall of ($168,628) to street operations and capital 
improvement. All of the gains in the community like sidewalk replacements, pedestrian crossings, 
striping, ADA upgrades, pavement preservation, street lights, etc., could all be impacted.    
 
UStreet Capital U:  
 
14TArterial revenue historically is limited to revenue received from grants, impact fees from new 
development and transfers-in from both the general fund and fund 101 for capital projects.  
 
14TIn 2019, the City completed the Mundy Loss Overlay Project and closed out the River Avenue 
Reconstruction Project.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
193



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

52 

14TThe City also received notice of two grant awards from the TIB consisting of the Naches Street 
Overlay and Cedar Street Reconstruction. Naches Street is a pavement preservation project that 
includes pavement grinding and installation of a new asphalt roadway surface. The City has 
entered into agreement with Pierce County for them to perform the design and construction of this 
project. Through communication with the County, the City was informed that before the County 
will do the work, the City needs to complete ADA retrofits to three ramps at intersections along the 
route. The City has added a line item project to the 2020 budget to complete these upgrades prior 
to the County performing their work.  
 
14TThe Cedar Street Reconstruction involves full street width reconstruction to include pavement 
removal, sidewalk and ADA ramp upgrades, utility replacements and new asphalt roadway.  The 
City engineers are currently designing this project and we hope to get this out to bid early in the 
Spring of 2020. 

 
14TApplications for additional pavement preservation projects have been submitted to the State TIB, 
but for now we have simply listed general project line items until such time that the City has been 
notified of successful award. Projects proposed for 2020 are listed in Table 27 below. 
 

14TUTable 27: 2020 Street Capital Improvements 
 

Fund Name Expenditures Projected EFB 

SA - 102 Street Capital Improvements $1,624,051 $357,375 

           ~ 2020 Sidewalk Project/ADA Repair Project 

           ~ 2020 Naches ADA Ramp Retrofit Project 

           ~ Spikton Road Reconstruction- Ryan Rd to Mt View 

           ~ Dieringer Ave Traffic Rev - Copperwynd 
           ~ Naches Street Overlay - TIB PPP 
           ~ Foothills Trail - Pavement Maintenance 
           ~ Cedar Street Reconstruction - TIB SCAP 
           ~ Foothills Trail - White River Bridge Contribution 

 
 

 
 

UStormwater Operations (“Surface Water Utility”): 
 

The City established the surface water utility in 1992 with the primary purpose of creating a 
funding method to provide financing for planning, development, management, operation, 
maintenance, use, and alteration of the surface water management system in the drainage basins 
of the City in order to maintain their hydrologic balance, minimize property damage, promote and 
protect the public health, safety, and welfare of the community, minimize water quality 
degradation by preventing siltation and erosion of the City’s waterways, ensure the safety of the 
City streets and rights-of-way, increase educational and recreational opportunities, encourage the 
retention of open spaces and foster any other beneficial public use. 
 
Since its inception, the system has been developed and enlarged and as a result has completed 
several “large” significant stormwater drainage projects that have ultimately aided in reducing 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
194



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

53 

seasonal flooding in large parts of the City. In recent years, the program has come under increased 
pressure from the State Department of Ecology (DOE) as a result of falling under the DOE’s Phase 
II NPDES Stormwater Permit and all of the “systematic” increases in regulations that have resulted 
from such.  
 
Like the water system, revenue from stormwater fees are not keeping pace with increased operational 
costs. Salaries, wages, benefits, supplies, fuel and repair and maintenance costs are pushing the 
operational budget higher by 14.93%. While we are seeing a slight increase in revenue from new 
customers coming online from the new residential development, it has not made up the shortfall. 
However, due to a higher than expected BFB a rate adjustment for 2020 is not being requested. We may 
need to look at it again for 2021, but hopefully revenue from new growth with continues to rise, delaying 
any needed consideration.  
 
Staff recently met with DOE representatives concerning the City’s NPDES permit compliance and new 
directives resulting in additional testing, inspection, maintenance, recording and reporting may be 
forthcoming soon. Depending upon what the additional requirements are it may be necessary to re-
evaluate the rates.  
 
2019 expenditures are under budget by (5.8%) and revenues are over by 13.5% with a BFB over by 
$54,338. The lower expenditure is related to the department managing costs.  
 
The 2019 EFB is projected to be $119,091. Revenue projections for 2020, not including the BFB, reflect 
$628,626 in revenue. Expenditures for 2020 are projected to increase by 8.17% to $649,380; however, this 
total includes all operations, taxes, administrative, transfers, etc. Actual operational costs are projected to 
increase by 14.93% due to the organizational and staffing level changes requested, as well as salary, 
benefits, excise and utility taxes, supplies and repair and maintenance costs. The 2020 budget projects 
ending the year with an EFB of $98,337.    
 
The 2020 budget proposes transferring $118,625 or 20% of revenue to the stormwater capital fund. 
Adopted code sets the minimum at 20%.  
 

14TUTable 28: Stormwater Operations 
 

2019 Stormwater Operations & Capital Analysis 

Utility 
Revenue Expenditures EFB 

Budgeted 
Revenue w/BFB 

2019 Projected 
w/BFB 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

2019 
Projected Projected  

Storm Drainage (407) $600,351 $681,131 $596,410 $562,040 $119,091 

Storm Drainage (408) $2,062,203 $1,985,690 $934,985 $824,867 $1,160,824 
 

2020 Stormwater Operations & Capital 

Utility 2020 Projected 
BFB 

2020 Projected 
Revenue w/BFB 

2020 Proposed 
Expenditures 

Projected 
EFB 

Change in 
Rates 

Needed 

Storm Drainage (407) $20,327 $747,717 $649,380 $98,337 No 

Storm Drainage (408) $1,160,824 $1,686,799 $970,212 $716,586 No 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
195



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

54 

UStormwater CapitalU:  
 
The City Comprehensive Stormwater Plan identifies 13 high priority capital improvement projects 
throughout the City that when constructed will effectively convey runoff from the community to 
various points of discharge. The cost to implement all 13 projects in 2008 dollars (when the plan 
was drafted) was $14,812,500, but after adjustments were made for inflation and schedule of 
implementation, the cost increases to $17,478,377. Funding for these projects is anticipated to come 
from a variety of sources to include grants, low interest loans, developer charges and a portion of 
rates.  
 
In 2019 the City initiated the long planned Spiketon Culvert Replacement Project, due to 
environmental permitting the project was delayed until late Summer setting stage for problems 
due to limitations on construction windows for in channel work. The contractor had to stop 
working in channel after September 15, but was able to continue with all work outside of the 
channel. Work will proceed through the fall until weather forces a shut-down. The contractor will 
have to come back in late spring or early summer in 2020 to complete the remaining in channel 
work and open the new box culvert connection for flow. 
 
In addition to completing the Spiketon Culvert Project, the 2020 budget proposes to replace the 
Stormwater conveyance line on Cedar Street while the street is opened up for reconstruction. The 
City also proposes to install a stormwater conveyance line on Dundass Avenue from 3 P

rd
P Street to 4P

th
P 

Street and upgrade the stormwater line on Spiketon Rd from Ryan Rd to Mt. View while the 
roadway section is opened up during the road reconstruction. 
 
The 2020 budget also proposes to update the City’s Comprehensive Stormwater Plan, which was 
last updated in 2008. 
 
Projects proposed for 2020 are listed in Table 29 below. 

 
UTable 29: Stormwater System Capital Improvement Projects 

  

Fund Name Expenditures Projected EFB 

SW-408 Stormwater Construction $970,212 $716,586 

           ~ Spiketon Culvert Replacement 

           ~ Comp Storm Plan Update - Prof Svcs 
           ~ Small Projects - Storm Drain 
           ~ Dundass Storm Improvement - CIP #2 
           ~ Cedar Street- Main Street to Jefferson Ave 
           ~ Spiketon Road- Ryan Road to Mt. View 
           ~ 3rd Street Storm Improvement 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
196



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

55 

14TUSolid WasteU: 
 

14TThe City provides solid waste collection and disposal through contract with DM Disposal, Inc. In October 
2016, the City Council approved a new Franchise Agreement with DM Disposal, Inc. to continue this 
service through October 31, 2024. The City administers this contract and bills customers monthly for 
service.  
 
14TSolid waste is stable at this time with expenditures trending up as new growth is added in the 
community. Revenue tracks along this trend in cost, so the only issue being proposed in 2020 is to adjust 
rates in accordance with contractual increases that come in March of each year. Current projections for 
the 2020 budget are that we will have to increase rates by 1.5% to 2.0% with the budget reflecting a 2.0% 
depending upon what the final CPI is for 2019, the City may need to adjust this percentage in February 
to ensure that the fund is balanced. 
 
14TExpenditures for 2019 were budgeted at $1,110,257 on revenue of $1,137,773. Actual revenues are 
currently being projected to be over by 14.5% at $1,303,129 and expenditures over by 14.3% at $1,268,818. 
The additional expenses resulted from higher contractual costs from service14T and 14Tincreased state and 
local taxes from higher revenue all related to new residential growth in the community. 
 
14TChanges for 2020 include the expectation of another contractual CPI increase coming from both DM 
Disposal and Pierce County for tipping fees again in March 2020, and adjustments to some line items for 
increased share of insurance premium and14T 14Tincrease in administrative cost allocation. Increased costs 
from service will necessitate consideration of a rate increase of the current projection of 2.0% in January 
2020 to compensate for the additional charges. The 2020 budget reflects a 2.0% preliminary rate increase 
in its calculation.  
 
14TExpenditures for 2020 are projected to increase to $1,303,099 to account for higher costs and increased 
state and local taxes from higher revenue. By factoring in the preliminary recommended minimum 
2.0% increase identified above, forecasts for 2020 anticipate a BFB of $34,311 with revenue of $1,284,278 
for a total of $1,318,589. 

 
UTable 30: Solid Waste Operations 

 

2019 Solid Waste Operations Analysis 

Utility 

Revenue Expenditures EFB 
Budgeted 
Revenue 

w/BFB 

2019 
Projected 

w/BFB 

Budgeted 
Expenditures 

2019 
Projected 

Projected  

Solid Waste (403) $1,137,773 $1,303,129 $1,110,257  $1,268,818  $34,311 

 

2020 Solid Waste Operations 

Utility 
2020 Projected 

BFB 

2020 
Revenue 
w/BFB 

2020 
Proposed 

Expenditures 

Projected 
EFB 

Change in 
Rates 

Needed 

Solid Waste (403) $34,311 $1,318,589 $1,303,099 $15,490 >1.5%-2.0% 

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
197



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

56 

 
UTILITY RESERVES 

 
Proposed equipment purchases for 2020 include; 

 
♦ Small tools and equipment 
♦ Excavator - 5 Ton Kabota 21 
♦ Trailer - Tandem Axle 7 Ton  
♦ Pickup Truck Replacement 

 
We will continue to allocate a portion of each department’s budget toward building our equipment 
reserve fund and transferring a portion from each utility fund to build capital reserves for major 
improvements or upgrades to existing facilities. 

 
 
 

 
CONCLUSION 

 
The 2020 Budget Request being presented for consideration provides funding levels for all 
programs and services that the City provides.  

 
Financially the City is in 
fundamentally sound shape, 
which is a reflection of careful 
planning and prudent fiscal 
decisions of past Councils.   
 
The request being presented 
is the result of many hours of 
collaboration, discussion and 
preparation. It represents the 
balancing of wants, needs and 
forward projections with an understanding and acknowledgement of the funding limitations that 
come with living in a small community. The budget is a reflection of priorities established by the 
Mayor and City Council balanced against revenue forecasts and abilities. 
 
Revenues from sales tax, property valuations and sales, and housing starts remain strong. We 
continue to see strong growth in the housing sector with 138 building permits issued to date in 
2019. The planning department has conducted 12 pre-application conferences to date after having 
completed 23 by this time last year. In 2019, the City experienced the highest new construction 
value ever in a one year period, which was $34,041,800. While this definitely provides additional 
funding to the City through building permit and land use fees as well as capital funds to the 
various utilities, it is all one-time money and is not sustainable.  
 
Market trends indicate that Pierce County is still one of the hottest housing markets in the nation 
and in 2019 home values went up on average by 7.0%. For 2020 forecasts indicate that values will 
continue to rise by another 4%.  While this may be a lead indicator that new housing starts will 
remain strong, it’s extremely difficult to project how long this building activity will continue.  

Kenny Loye 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
198



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

57 

Therefore, any requests under this budget proposal have taken this into consideration and efforts 
have been made to ensure that operations are sustainable. 

 
As mentioned under the departmental summary section, the City is still within a transitional 
period with several long term employees beginning to retire. In 2019, the City experienced the loss 
of the Finance Director and City Planner to retirement that cumulatively had over 70 years of local 
government experience, 50 years of which was in Buckley. In 2020, the City Administrator will be 
retiring possibly followed by the Police Chief and Fire Chief. This will be followed in 2021 by the 
Building Inspector. Collectively the loss of these four individuals to retirement will account for 
another 120 years of government experience. As discussed in previous narratives, to a small 
community, the loss of over 200 years of institutional knowledge leaves a huge void in the level of 
experience and knowledge of city and government operations. However, the steps taken by the City 
to date have resulted in the recruitment and placement of well qualified individuals into various 
positions in finance, planning, fire, police, public works and community services that should serve 
the City well into the future.   
 
The City continues to build on the progress that we’ve made in the last decade and move forward 
with the highest priority capital infrastructure and planning projects as illustrated in Table 14 on 
page 23. In 2020, this translates into a combined budget total of $6,951,758, which is remarkable 
for a small community. The list is varied and includes improvements within parks, public facilities, 
streets, water system, sewer system and stormwater system. In addition, the budget provides 
funding for the purchase of new vehicles and equipment for police and public works. In 2019 the 
Fire Department replaced one of their older Fire engines at a cost of $500,000, which was paid for 
in cash. The financial system that has been developed by the City over the last couple of decades 
has allowed us to plan ahead and set aside funds through reserve accounts that provides funding to 
make the needed improvements and/or equipment purchases without having to rely on loans or 
special bond measures to fund them. This has worked exceptionally well and only in special cases 
like the construction of the new fire station, sewer plant upgrade and new trail well construction 
has the cost been high enough that the City needed to seek a bond measure or low interest PWTF 
loan to complete the project.     
 
The City has accomplished a lot and yet, much more is needed. “Core services” and “sustainability” 
continue to form the basis for decision making in planning efforts, program development, funding 
efforts and capital improvement project selection in charting a path forward. The Mayor, City 
Council and staff have worked hard to develop the various programs, mechanisms and projects 
that go towards building a sustainable future for the community.   
 
Through open communication, consensus and cooperation we can look forward to the challenges 
facing us in the coming year. We will continue to exercise restraint, build reserves when possible 
and explore every alternative that presents itself to find a more cost effective solution to providing 
quality service. Through these efforts we will continue to progress and succeed. 
 
In conclusion, I would like to close with a personal note since this will be the last budget that I will 
prepare for the City. I am deeply honored to have had the opportunity to serve this community in 
this capacity as City Administrator for over 18 years. I want to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all 
of the staff, elected officials and community as a whole for their support through the years.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
199



 
            
2020 Budget Request                                                 

 

58 

We have spent significant time and effort 
preparing the City for the change to come as 
several long tenured department heads begins 
to retire. We have carefully chosen well 
qualified new candidates to fill vacated roles to 
provide uninterrupted continuity of operation. I 
am extremely confident in the choices that have 
been made and I know that each of these 
individuals will serve the community well. 
 
The City is in a better financial position than it 
has ever been in its history and will hopefully 
continue to be fiscally sound if future decisions 
are made based on long term sustainability 
rather than short term knee jerk reactions.   

 
I would like to once again express my sincere gratitude to the elected officials, staff and volunteers 
for the dedication and effort into making this community such a great place to live and work! 
Thanks to everyone for their time, commitment and input into the development of this 2020 
budget request.  

 
 

Dave Schmidt, City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
“I'm a success today because I had a friend who believed in me and I didn't have the heart to let him down.” 

                                                                                                                                                                          ~Abraham Lincoln 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
♦♦♦ 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
200



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A: 2019 CITY EMPLOYEE SALARY SCALE 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
201



Initial 
step A B C D E F G H I J

R1 4,600 4,691 4,786 4,882 4,979 5,079 5,180 5,283 5,388 5,497 5,608
R2 4,933 5,030 5,132 5,234 5,339 5,444 5,554 5,664 5,777 5,894 6,012
R3 5,291 5,396 5,504 5,613 5,727 5,840 5,956 6,076 6,198 6,323 6,449
R4 5,672 5,787 5,902 6,019 6,140 6,264 6,389 6,517 6,647 6,781 6,916
R5 6,085 6,207 6,330 6,457 6,585 6,717 6,852 6,989 7,129 7,271 7,417
R6 6,527 6,657 6,791 6,926 7,065 7,207 7,350 7,497 7,648 7,801 7,957
R7 7,001 7,140 7,284 7,430 7,577 7,729 7,884 8,041 8,202 8,366 8,533
R8 7,508 7,657 7,810 7,967 8,126 8,289 8,454 8,625 8,797 8,973 9,152
R9 8,050 8,211 8,376 8,543 8,714 8,888 9,066 9,248 9,433 9,621 9,813

R10 8,655 8,828 9,005 9,185 9,369 9,556 9,747 9,941 10,141 10,343 10,551
R11 9,303 9,491 9,679 9,872 10,071 10,271 10,478 10,686 10,900 11,120 11,341
R12 10,001 10,202 10,405 10,613 10,826 11,042 11,262 11,488 11,718 11,953 12,192

Salary Range Position Classification(s) 1-Jan
R1         - N/A N/A
R2         - Initial

NEW         - Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Initial
R3         - Community Services Director (87.5%) Step D
R4         - Court Administrator (90.0%) Step G

        - City Planner Initial
        - Firefighter Step A
        - Volunteer FF Coordinator Step A

R5         - Building Official Step J
R6         - City Clerk Step B
R7         - Information Systems Manager Step D
R8         - Asst Fire Chief Step H
R9         - Asst Police Chief Step G

        - Public Works Director Step D
R10         - Finance Director Step D
R11         - Fire Chief Step I

        - Police Chief Step J
R12         - City Administrator Step J

Monthly
$2,575
N/A

Municipal Judge N/A N/A N/A
Judge Pro-Tem $58.24 $59.99 3.00%

16-Jul-2019
1-Nov-2020
1-Aug-2020

1-Oct-2019
1-Sep-2019

15-Apr-2019
1-Jan-2021
5-Aug-2020
1-Jan-2021

26-Nov-2019

1-Jan-2021
1-Jan-2021

1-Apr-2019

2020 HOURLY SCALE (NON-BARGAINING UNIT 3.0%)
Position 2019 hourly 2020 hourly COLA Increase

1-Dec-2020

2020 CITY EMPLOYEE SALARY SCALE
           2020 EXEMPT SALARY SCALE (Preliminary - 3.0%)

(a)  Salary steps are graduated approximately by a 2% separation. Step increases shall be performance based on the employees 
anniversary hire date and shall be subject to Mayors approval. 

(b) Employees shall be eligible for a Step increase subject to the provisions of (a) above and the following; for Initial Step 
through Step J employees shall be evaluated and eligible for an increase to the next Step on an annual basis. The Mayor may 
grant up to one additional Step increase over and above the eligible annual increase, for meritorious performance reasons.

Step Eligibility
N/A

Associate Planner (F/T)
1-Jan-2021

1-Jan-2021

1-Sep-2019

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
202



N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

 0-6 mos
   7-12 
mos

 13-24 
mos

  25-36 
mos

   37-48 
mos

  49+ 
mos

$5,673 $5,956 $6,254 $6,567 $6,895 $7,081 
$5,900 $6,195 $6,504 $6,830 $7,171 $7,363 
$6,312 $6,628 $6,960 $7,308 $7,673 $7,879 

 0-6 mos
   7-12 
mos

 13-24 
mos

  25-36 
mos

   37-48 
mos

  49+ 
mos

$4,134 $4,258 $4,385 $4,517 $4,653 $4,792 
$2,735 $2,817 $2,902 $2,988 $3,079 $3,171 
$3,243 $3,342 $3,441 $3,546 $3,652 $3,762 
$3,507 $3,630 $3,757 $3,888 $4,024 $4,165
$3,780 $3,894 $4,011 $4,131 $4,254 $4,382 
$3,936 $4,091 $4,256 $4,426 $4,603 $4,789 
$4,154 $4,279 $4,407 $4,539 $4,676 $4,815 
$4,342 $4,472 $4,607 $4,744 $4,888 $5,034 
$4,386 $4,582 $4,790 $5,005 $5,229 $5,465 
$4,419 $4,735 $4,925 $5,121 $5,327 $5,540 
$4,927 $5,076 $5,226 $5,384 $5,546 $5,712 
$5,153 $5,307 $5,467 $5,631 $5,800 $5,974 
$5,381 $5,543 $5,710 $5,881 $6,056 $6,238 
$5,124 $5,187 $5,341 $5,502 $5,668 $5,838 
$5,623 $5,792 $5,967 $6,144 $6,327 $6,520 
$5,873 $6,053 $6,234 $6,420 $6,614 $6,812 
$6,186 $6,370 $6,561 $6,758 $6,961 $7,169 

Step A Step B Step C Step D
$4,115 $4,239 $4,365 $4,497 

PWD Supervisor

Utility Maint Apprentice

WWTP Supervisor

(January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020)

Classification
Cemetery Caretaker 
Maint Parks/Bldg Custodial
Admin Assistant 

Police Records Clerk
Support Services Officer
Maint Parks/Bldg
Utility Billing/Deputy Clerk
Finance Assistant
Permit Tech/PW Clerk
Utility Worker
Utility Systems Technician

WWTP Operator I
Asst PWD Supervisor

Meter Reader (NEW)

Utility Worker Lead

Sergeant

Public Works & Clerical Department Employee Salaries (3.0%)

Temp Paramedic (P/T) $20.00 $20.60 N/A
PD Records Clerk P/T $20.00 $20.60 N/A
Senior Center Cook $14.35 $14.78 N/A

Activities Coordinator $15.37 to $18.67 $15.83 to $19.23 3.00%

Police Department Employee Salaries (12.0%) - Per Contract
(January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020)

Classification
Patrol
Detective Patrol/Officer

Meter Reader $20.33 $20.94 3.00%
Seasonal Utility P/T $13.72 to $16.48 $14.13 to $16.97 3.00%
Planning Assistant P/T $18.81 $19.37 3.00%

Youth Center Coordinator $15.37 to $18.67 $15.83 to $19.23 3.00%
Youth Asst P/T (min) $12.00 to $13.45 $13.50 to $13.91 State Min - 3.0%
Seasonal Parks P/T $12.00 to $13.45 $13.50 to $13.91 State Min - 3.0%

Court Security $23.07 $23.76 3.00%
Temp Firefighter (P/T) $15.00 $15.45 3.00%
Fire Admin Asst (P/T) $19.60 $20.19 3.00%

Court Clerk I $23.41 to $26.41 $24.11 to $27.20 3.00%

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
203



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B: 2019 PUBLIC WORKS AND PARKS FTE SCHEDULE 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
204



TABLE U.1A  - FTE Breakdown PW's 2020 (_______% + Certifications & Longevity) 

Classification Employee 
2020   Parks Cemetery Water  WWTP Sewer Collection Street Storm 

Salary/Mo 
w/Cert 

Healthcare 
2020 FTE Wage Ins FTE 

Wag
e Ins FTE Wage Ins FTE Wage Ins FTE Wage Ins FTE 

Wag
e Ins FTE Wage Ins 

Event Sea - 300 Hrs Vacant (13.65/hr) $342   100% $342 $0       
  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

  
Parks Sea - 600 Hrs Vacant (13.65/hr) $683   100% $683 $0       

  
    

 
    

 
    

 
    

 
  

Parks Sea - 600 Hrs Vacant (13.65/hr) $683   100% $683 $0       
  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

  
Parks Sea - 800 Hrs Vacant (13.65/hr) $910   100% $910 $0       

  
    

 
    

 
    

 
    

 
  

Parks Sea - 600 Hrs Vacant (13.65/hr) $0                                             
Utility Sea - 600 Hrs Vacant (14.85/hr) $743     

 
        50.0% $372   25.0% $186     

 
  

  
  25.0% $186   

Utility Sea - 600 Hrs Vacant (14.85/hr) $743     
 

        25.0% $186     
 

  25.0% $186   25.0
 

$186   25.0% $186   
Utility Sea - 800 Hrs Vacant (14.85/hr) $990     

 
        25.0% $248     

 
  25.0% $248   25.0

 
$248   25.0% $248   

Meter Read-625 Hrs McCormick  
($ ) 

      
 

        100.0
 

$0     
 

    $0     
 

    
 

  
Maint Parks/Bldg Modjeski (3) $4,539 $2,257 70.0% $3,17

 
$1,58

 
      

 
$0 $0   $0 $0   $0 $0.00   $0 $0   $0 $0 

Maint Parks/Bldg Cust Miller $2,902 $1,769 75.0% $2,17
 

$1,32
 

      5.0% $145 $88 5.0% $145 $88 5.0% $145 $88 5.0% $145 $88 5.0% $145 $88 
PW Office Assistant (75%) Rohner $3,841 $1,724 5.0% $192 $86       20.0% $768 $345 15.0% $576 $259 25.0% $960 $431 10.0

 
$384 $172 25.0% $960 $431 

WWTP Operator I McArtor (5) $5,951 $1,314   
 

        
  

  100.0
 

$5,95
 

$1,314   
 

    
 

    
 

  
Utility Apprentice Dahlem (3) $4,366 $934   

 
        

  
  100.0

 
$4,36

 
$934   

 
    

 
    

 
  

Utility Worker Mickelson (5)  $5,823 $2,575   
 

        15.0% $873 $386 15.0% $873 $386 30.0% $1,74
 

$773 15.0
 

$873 $386 25.0% $1,45
 

$644 
  Rice (5)(L22) $6,123 $2,575   

 
        75.0% $4,59

 
$1,93

 
  

 
  25.0% $1,53

 
$644   

 
    

 
  

  Steinmetz (1)(L12) $5,839 $2,144   
 

        75.0% $4,37
 

$1,60
 

  
 

  25.0% $1,46
 

$536   
 

    
 

  
  Reedy (3) $5,883 $934   

 
        25.0% $1,47

 
$234 10.0% $588 $93 35.0% $2,05

 
$327 15.0

 
$882 $140 15.0% $882 $140 

  Burbank (2)(L12) $5,896 $2,196   
 

        5.0% $295 $110   
 

  20.0% $1,17
 

$439 10.0
 

$590 $220 65.0% $3,83
 

$1,42
 Meter Reader - FT New Vacant $3,630 $1,803 5.0% $181 $90       25.0% $907 $451 15.0% $544 $270 25.0% $907 $451 10.0

 
$363 $180 20.0% $726 $361 

Utility Systems Tech Balliet (3) $5,974 $2,257   
 

        65.0% $3,88
 

$1,46
 

10.0% $597 $226 20.0% $1,19
5 

$451   
 

  5.0% $299 $113 
Mechanic Summers $5,226 $1,769 7.5% $392 $133       25.0% $1,30

 
$442 10.0% $523 $177 25.0% $1,30

 
$442 7.5% $392 $133 25.0% $1,30

 
$442 

Asst PW Supervisor                                                 
WWTP Supervisor Doty (2) $6,948 $2,257   

 
        

  
  100.0

 
$6,94

 
$2,257   

 
    

 
    

 
  

PW Supervisor Dansby (5)(L17)  $7,624 $934 5.0% $381 $47       25.0% $1,90
 

$234 15.0% $1,14
 

$140 25.0% $1,90
 

$234 10.0
 

$762 $93 20.0% $1,52
5 

$187 
Public Works Director Banks  $8,714 $2,650 5.0% $436 $133       25.0% $2,17

 
$663 20.0% $1,74

 
$530 20.0% $1,74

 
$530 10.0

 
$871 $265 20.0% $1,74

 
$530 

Monthly Total  $30,092 $9,554 $3,39
5 

    $23,510 $7,95
 

$24,185 $6,675 $16,572 $5,34
 

$5,697 $1,67
 

$13,494 $4,36
 Annual Salaries "only"    $114,650   $282,121.04 $290,215 $198,861 $68,360 $161,924 

Annual Salary - for Retirement   $83,234   $272,464 $287,986 $193,662 $63,161 $154,496 
VCI - 50%    $1,601   $5,240 $5,538 $3,724 $1,215 $2,971 

Annual Salary + VCI   $116,251   $287,361 $295,754 $202,586 $69,575 $164,895 
Annual Healthcare   $40,738   $95,496 $80,098 $64,147 $20,138 $52,357 

Total Fund w/Salary + Benefits   $156,989   $382,857 $375,851 $266,733 $89,712 $217,253 
Total   $1,489,395 

FTE's       1.73     0.00     3.85     4.15     2.80     0.93     2.25     
Total FTE's - w/o seasonals 15.70   10.99

 
    0.00

 
    24.52

 
    26.43

 
    17.83

 
    5.89

 
    14.33

 
    

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
205



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix C: 2019 UTILITY ADMINISTRATION COST ALLOCATION 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
206



2020 Operational % of total GF Areas Agenda Bill Tracking Clerk (20%) Dep Clerk (6%) City Admin (17%)

001 General            $6,032,727 27.17% $5,542,275 54.67% 59.30% Budget % Notes Category # Items (full) * # partial Total %
002 Contingency $0 0.00% Legislative $36,985 0.3% Street 6.0 0.75 6.75 8.9% 1.8% 0.5% 1.5%
003 Cum Res $101,318 0.46% Judicial $274,131 2.3% Street Cap 10.0 1.1 11.1 14.6% 2.9% 0.9% 2.5%
004 Cemetery       $4,541 0.02% $4,541 0.04% Executive $116,375 1.0% Water 2.0 1.08 3.08 4.1% 0.8% 0.2% 0.7%
007 Police Res      $140,000 0.63% Finance & Admin $874,035 7.4% Water Cap 0.0 3.29 3.29 4.3% 0.9% 0.3% 0.7%
008 RR ROW    $31,997 0.14% $29,724 0.29% I.T. $152,498 1.3% Sewer 2.0 1.08 3.08 4.1% 0.8% 0.2% 0.7%
030 Fire Res          $579,000 2.61% Police $2,216,183 18.7% Sewer Cap 1.0 3.19 4.19 5.5% 1.1% 0.3% 0.9%
035 Park Const       $300,250 1.35% Fire $639,550 5.4% Storm 2.0 1.08 3.08 4.1% 0.8% 0.2% 0.7%
101 Street $262,602 1.18% $214,760 2.12% Building $295,599 2.5% Storm Cap 4.0 2.49 6.49 8.5% 1.7% 0.5% 1.5%
102 Arterial            $1,624,051 7.31% Planning $354,770 3.0% Solid Waste 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.8% 0.2% 0.0% 0.1%
103 TBD $101,502 0.46% Parks $263,429 2.2% 54.8%
105 EMS              $396,250 1.78% $335,000 3.30% MPC & Senior $139,932 1.2%

109 Crim Justice  $122,000 0.55% Community Center $24,350 0.2%

134 Fire Const     $7,500 0.03% Youth Center $154,439 1.3%

136 Visitor Prom    $24,510 0.11% $20,950 0.21% Cemetery       $4,541 0.0%

202 FS Bond $274,420 1.24% RR ROW    $29,724 0.3% Audit Costs - 2020 Operating Cost % $14,000

307 Capital Imp    $827,023 3.72% Street $214,760 1.8% Street/TBD 2.7% $253
308 Comp Plan     $234,983 1.06% $133,733 1.32% TBD $101,502 0.9% Water 9.6% $1,343
401 NG Oper     $10,225 0.05% $225 0.00% EMS              $396,250 3.3% Sewer 19.7% $2,753
402 Water/Sewer   $3,472,266 15.64% $2,170,939 21.42% W- 32.90% S- 67.10% Visitor Prom    $20,950 0.2% Solid Waste  11.0% $1,537
403 Solid Waste  $1,303,099 5.87% $1,035,921 10.22% Comp Plan     $133,733 1.1% Stormwater   5.5% $766
405 Sewer Const     $2,261,306 10.19% NG Oper     $225 0.0%

406 Water Const    $1,934,903 8.71% Water $1,138,205 9.6%

407 Stormwater   $649,380 2.92% $649,380 6.41% Sewer $2,334,061 19.7%

408 Storm Const     $970,212 4.37% Solid Waste  $1,303,099 11.0%

430 Equip Res        $135,000 0.61% Stormwater   $649,380 5.5%

631 Muni Trust $400,000 1.80% Total $11,868,704 100.0%

701 Ceme Imp      $1,000 0.00%

$22,202,065 100.00% $10,137,448 100.00%

FTE's FTE Equal Total/Section % FTE FTE's Fin Dir (6%) Deputy Clerk (18%) City Clerk (10%) City Admin (10%)

6.0 0.0 6.0 12.0% 12.0% 0.7% 2.2% 1.2% 1.2%

1.0 1.1 2.1 4.2% 4.2% 0.3% 0.8% 0.4% 0.4%

13.0 0.5 13.5 27.0% 27.0% 1.6% 4.9% 2.7% 2.7%

4.0 0.4 4.4 8.8% 8.8% 0.5% 1.6% 0.9% 0.9%

5.0 0.0 5.0 10.0% 10.0% 0.6% 1.8% 1.0% 1.0%

3.0 2.1 5.1 10.1% 10.1% 0.6% 1.8% 1.0% 1.0%

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

0.0 0.9 0.9 1.8% 1.8% 0.1% 0.3% 0.2% 0.2%

3.0 0.9 3.9 7.7% 7.7% 0.5% 1.4% 0.8% 0.8%

6.0 1.0 7.0 13.9% 13.9% 0.8% 2.5% 1.4% 1.4%

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

2.0 0.3 2.3 4.5% 4.5% 0.3% 0.8% 0.4% 0.4%

43.0 7.1

50.1

% Converted $152,498 Total Custodial Floor Area Office Council % Budget  $34,354

11.6% City Hall 1,917 7.9% $2,712

 - Streets 1.8% 0.2% $312 $710 MPC 6,350 504 2,686 13.1% $4,513

 - Water 9.6% 1.1% $1,654 $3,764 Buckley Hall 7,077

 - Sewer 19.7% 2.3% $3,392 $15,749 Youth 2,730

 - Solid Waste 11.0% 1.3% $1,894 $3,102 PW Shop 6,120 25.2% $8,658

 - Stormwater 5.5% 0.6% $944 $2,148 Park Restroom 90

7.4% 24,284

 - Streets 1.8% 0.1% $199

 - Water 9.6% 0.7% $1,055 Custodual Allocation Based on Operating Exp $7,225

 - Sewer 19.7% 1.5% $2,164 Street 1.8% $130.73

 - Stormwater 5.5% 0.4% $602 Water 9.6% $692.85

5.3% 5.4% $8,029 Sewer 19.7% $1,420.80

Solid Waste 11.0% $793.23

Building/Utility Billing 7.4% Stormwater 5.5% $395.29

 - Streets 1.8% 0.1% $199

 - Water 9.6% 0.7% $1,055

 - Sewer 19.7% 1.5% $2,164

 - Solid Waste 11.0% 0.8% $1,208

 - Stormwater 5.5% 0.4% $602

Judicial and Legal Judicial and Legal

Appendix C: 2020 UTILITY ADMINISTRATION COST ALLOCATION
FUND 2020 Operational Budgets for Web & Finance To Date 10/8/19 - 100 items

Total Agenda Percentage

*Note: Partial are those where 2 or more categories were subject to or benficiaries of the agenda item

TOTALS

FTE Function Utility Allocation - Payroll & HR Conversion

Finance & Admin & I.T. Finance & Admin & I.T.

Community SVCS & Parks Community SVCS

Cemetery Cemetery

Streets Streets

Police Police 

Fire & EMS Fire & EMS

Building/Planning Building/Planning

PW Shop

WWTP

Stormwater Stormwater

Subtotals

Totals for Government

Utility Allocation for IT - 2020

City Hall 

Water Water

Sewer Collection/Treatment Sewer Collection/Treatment

Solid Waste Solid Waste

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
207



Class/Function Employee 2020 Salary/Mo

Admin Assistant Vacant (F/T)

 - tracked 100% 0.0% 12.5% 0.0% 12.5% 1.0% 12.5% 0.0% 12.5% 12.5% 0.0% 0.0%

 - Payroll & HR Conversion 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

 - Agenda Bill Tracking 0.0% 0.5% 0.0% 0.2% 0.3% 0.2% 0.3% 0.0% 0.2% 0.5% 0.0%

Subtotal $3,441 0.0% 0 13.0% 448 0.0% 0 12.7% 438 1.3% 43 12.7% 438 0.3% 11 12.5% 432 12.7% 438 0.5% 18 0.0% 0

Finance Asst Memovich (2)

 - tracked 100% 0.0% 15.0% 0.0% 14.5% 0.0% 14.5% 0.0% 14.5% 14.5% 0.0% 0.0%

 - operational 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

 - Payroll & HR Conversion 0.0% 0.3% 0.0% 1.4% 0.0% 0 2.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.8% 0.0% 0.0%

Subtotal $5,684 0.0% 0 15.3% 872 0.0% 0 15.9% 903 0.0% 0 17.0% 966 0.0% 0 14.5% 824 15.3% 870 0.0% 0 0.0% 0

City Clerk Percival

 - tracked 100% 0.0% 2.3% 9.8% 5.3% 0.0% 5.3% 0.0% 5.5% 9.5% 0.0% 0.0%

 - Payroll & HR Conversion 0.0% 0.2% 0.0% 0.8% 0.0% 1.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.4% 0.0% 0.0%

 - Agenda Bill Tracking 0.0% 1.8% 0.0% 0.8% 0.9% 0.8% 1.1% 0.2% 0.8% 1.7% 0.0%

Subtotal $6,926 0.0% 0 4.2% 292 9.8% 675 6.8% 473 0.9% 60 7.4% 516 1.1% 76 5.7% 392 10.8% 745 1.7% 118 0.0% 0

Finance Director Groshong

 - tracked 100% 0.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

 - operational 0.0% 2.7% 0.0% 9.6% 0.0% 19.7% 0.0% 11.0% 5.5% 0.0% 0.0%

 - Payroll & HR Conversion 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.5% 0.0% 0.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0%

Subtotal $9,556 0.0% 0 5.8% 552 3.0% 287 13.1% 1,247 3.0% 287 23.5% 2,245 3.0% 287 14.0% 1,336 8.7% 835 3.0% 287 3.0% 287

City Administrator Schmidt

 - tracked 100% 1.5% 9.8% 6.3% 5.8% 4.3% 6.5% 4.3% 2.5% 7.3% 4.8% 3.0%

 - Payroll & HR Conversion 0.0% 0.2% 0.0% 0.8% 0.0% 1.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0 0.4% 0.0% 0.0%

 - Agenda Bill Tracking 1.5% 0.0% 0.7% 0.7% 0.7% 0.9% 0.1% 0.7% 1.5% 0.0%

Subtotal $12,192 3.0% 367 9.9% 1,211 6.3% 762 7.2% 879 5.0% 608 8.6% 1,046 5.2% 632 2.6% 321 8.4% 1,023 6.2% 756 3.0% 366

1.8% $326 0.0% $0 9.6% $1,726 0.0% $0 19.7% $3,540 0.0% $0 11.0% $1,976 5.5% $985 0.0% $0 0.0% $0

$5,873 1.8% $192 0.0% $0 7.7% $798 0.0% $0 13.9% $1,441 0.0% $0 0.0% $0 4.5% $466 0.0% $0 0.0% $0

$710 $3,764 $15,749 $3,102 $2,148

8.9% $3,285 14.6% $5,402 4.1% $1,499 4.3% $1,601 4.1% $1,499 5.5% $2,039 0.8% $292 4.1% $1,499 8.5% $3,158 0.0% $0

$131 $693 $1,421 $793 $395

$253 $1,343 $2,753 $1,537 $766

Total $531,330
$122,465 $20,619 $68,603 $78,366 $24,920$64,628 $37,241 $82,454 $20,010

I.T. Systems Support  (from spreadsheet) (New)

Legislative (Agenda Items)

Custodial

Audit Costs

Annual w/All Costs

$41 $0

Website SVCS (from spreadsheet) (New)

Executive (Mayor - FTE)

$21 $19 $26 $4 $19OT for Admin Asst $43 $70 $19

$12,023

$14,688 $8,130

Annual w/Benefits $62,189 $31,769 $72,612 $18,388 $96,044 $18,554 $60,899 $72,087 $21,721 $12,023

$12,435 $64,948 $12,547 $41,182 $48,748Annual Salary + VCI $42,054 $21,483 $49,102

$7,032 $3,893

VCI - 50% $1,558 $796 $1,819 $461 $2,405 $465 $1,525 $1,805 $544 $301

$5,954 $31,096 $6,007 $19,717 $23,340Benefits (49.72%) $20,135 $10,286 $23,510

$1,179 $652

Annual Salary "only" $40,496 $20,688 $47,284 $11,974 $62,542 $12,082 $39,657 $46,942 $14,144 $7,829

$998 $5,212 $1,007 $3,305 $3,912Monthly Total $3,375 $1,724 $3,940

Utility Administration Allocation Costs - 2020

Cemetery Street Street Const Water Water Const WWTP WWTP Const Solid Waste Stormwater Storm Const Capital Const

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
208



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix D: 2019 CITY ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
209



Judicial 
Branch

 

Legislative 
Branch

 

Executive 
Branch

 

Council Members
 

Municipal Court 
 

Administration
 

Public Works
 

Planning
 

Police 
Department

 

Fire 
Department

 

City 
Administrator

 

Community
Services

Building
 

 
Buckley Municipal 

Government

Mayor 
 

Updated 10/30/2019

CITY OF BUCKLEY 
ORGANIZATIONAL FLOW CHART

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
210



Judicial 
Branch

Legislative
Branch

Executive 
Branch

Council 
Members

 

Position #1
Council Member 

Smith
 

Position #4
Council Member 

B. Burkett
 

Position #3
Council Member 

Wilbanks
 

Position #5
Council Member 

Leggett
 

Position #7
Council Member 

S. Burkett
 

Position #6
Council Member 

Tremblay
 (Pro-tem)

Position #2
Council Member 

Bender
 

 Buckley 
Municipal 

Government
 

Updated 10/30/2019 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
211



Judicial 
Branch

Municipal Court Judge
 Freeby

Municipal Court 
Administrator

Cash

Part Time 
Court Clerk
Brinkman

Court Security P/T
(Contract)

Updated 10/30/2019

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
212



MAYOR JOHNSON 

 

City Administrator
Schmidt

Adminstration
 

Police
Department

Fire
Department

City Clerk
Percival

Finance Director
Groshong

 
Permit Tech – 

Boyle 
 

Building/Planning
Department

City Planner
Wallgren

Building
Official

Deadmond

Building
Inspector

(future vacant)

Community
Services

Community
Services Dir.

Caviezel

Youth Svcs
Coordinator

Kyllonen

Public Works
Department

Public Works 
Director
Banks

Public Works
Supervisor

Dansby

Parks
and

Cemetery

Parks/Bldgs
Maintenance

Modjeski

 
 

Parks/Bldgs Maint. 
Asst. Miller

 
 

P/T Event
Maint Seasonal

Planning 
Associate 

Vacant

 
Youth Center

 

Fire Chief
Predmore

Police Chief
Arsanto

(Police 
Department

shown on Page 5)

Updated 10/29/2019

 
Senior Center

 

(Public Works 
Department

Details shown on 
Page 6)

Admin.
Assistant

Clark

P/T Parks
Maint Seasonal

(Fire Department
shown on Page 7)

 Finance Asst.
 Memovich

IT Systems 
Manager - Frazier

 

P/T Parks
Maint Seasonal

P/T Parks
Maint Seasonal

Comm Svcs
Coordinator

Rogers

Youth Svcs 
Coordinator
Stahlecker

 
Utility Clerk (75%) 

Rohner 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
213



 Law Enforcement
 

Police Chief
J. Arsanto

Asst Chief 
Northam

Detective
Plaster

Sergeant
Garrett

Officer
Chess

Officer
Frazier

Code Officer
Sutphin

Police
 

Police Records 
Clerk

VanWieringen

Officer
Voglis

Code Enforcement/
Animal Control

 

Officer
Fetter

Officer
 Vanhoof

Officer
Noronha

Updated 10/30/2019

P/T Records Asst. 
(Vacant)

 

Officer
 (Vacant)

 
INVESTIGATION

 

PATROL
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
214



Public Works
Department

Public Works Director 
(PWD) Banks

 

Public Works
Supervisor Dansby

Street/Storm
 

Water/Sewer
 

WWTP
 

Utility WWTP
Supervisor - Doty

Utility S/S
Burbank

Utility S/S
Mickelson

Utility W/S
Rice

Utility W/S
Steinmetz

Utility WWTP
 Dahlem

 Meter Reader
Vacant

Utility 
Mechanic - 
Summers

 Utility Clerk (75%)
Rohner 

Utility WWTP
McArtor

Asst Public Works
Supervisor 
(Vacant)

P/T Utility Maint 
Seasonal

P/T Utility Maint 
Seasonal

Utility Systems 
Tech
Balliet

 

P/T Utility Maint 
Seasonal

Updated 10/30/2019

Utility W/S
Reedy

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
215



City of Buckley Fire Department
 

Updated 11/4/2019 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
216



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix E.  2019 BUDGET REQUEST “EXPENDITURES” 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
217



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 1

2019 Budget 2020 Budget 
Request

$953,389 $976,496
$953,389 $976,496

$21,000 $21,000
$1,610 $1,610

$175 $175
$1,500 $1,500
$2,500 $3,000
$1,500 $2,500

$500 $1,200
$1,000 $1,000
$1,500 $2,500
$2,000 $2,500

$33,285 $36,985

$136,232 $147,900
$10,800 $10,800
$10,422 $11,359
$37,811 $38,443
$17,301 $18,783

$2,048 $1,000
$272 $296

$6,250 $10,000
$2,400 $2,400
$3,200 $3,200
$1,500 $3,200
$3,000 $3,000
$2,000 $3,000
$1,300 $2,600
$2,000 $2,000
$5,000 $5,000
$1,500 $1,700
$1,000 $3,000
$1,100 $1,300

$150 $150
$2,000 $2,000

$0 $3,000
$247,286 $274,131

$6,000 $6,000
$500 $500

$25 $25
$250 $250

$106,000 $106,000
$600 $600

001-000-000-511-60-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs
001-000-000-511-60-20-00 Emp Ben  Soc Sec Medicare

        General Government Services
          Legislative
001-000-000-511-60-10-00 Salaries & Wages

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Current Expense
      Expenditure
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
001-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Ending Fund Balance

Account Number

          Municipal Court
001-000-000-512-50-10-00 Salaries & Wages

          Total Legislative
001-000-000-511-60-49-00 Miscellaneous
001-000-000-511-60-48-00 Repair & Maintenance
001-000-000-511-60-43-00 Travel
001-000-000-511-60-42-00 Communications
001-000-000-511-60-41-01 Advertising
001-000-000-511-60-41-00 Professional Services
001-000-000-511-60-31-00 Supplies

001-000-000-512-50-41-01 Professional Services
001-000-000-512-50-41-00 Prof Services (Card Services)
001-000-000-512-50-31-00 Supplies
001-000-000-512-50-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
001-000-000-512-50-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs
001-000-000-512-50-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
001-000-000-512-50-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
001-000-000-512-50-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec/medicare
001-000-000-512-50-18-00 Court Security Salary

001-000-000-512-50-49-03 Judicial & Staff Memberships
001-000-000-512-50-49-00 CJE & AOC Training
001-000-000-512-50-48-00 Repair & Maintenance Service
001-000-000-512-50-47-00 Public Utility Service
001-000-000-512-50-45-00 Rentals & Leases
001-000-000-512-50-43-00 Travel
001-000-000-512-50-42-00 Communication
001-000-000-512-50-41-04 Court Interpreter
001-000-000-512-50-41-02 Judge Pro Tem

001-000-000-513-10-42-00 Communication
001-000-000-513-10-41-00 Prof Svcs Muni CT Pros/Def
001-000-000-513-10-31-00 Supplies
001-000-000-513-10-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs
001-000-000-513-10-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare

           Executive 
001-000-000-513-10-10-00 Salaries & Wages

          Total Municipal Court

001-000-000-512-50-49-05 Jurors - Witnesses
001-000-000-512-50-49-04 Shredding Services

001-000-000-512-50-49-05 Machinery & Equipment

Title

Expenditure - 2020 Budget - Public Hearing

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
218



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 2

$3,000 $3,000
$116,375 $116,375

$508,745 $470,000
$0 $37,500

$5,000 $8,000
$36,165 $38,824

$112,197 $117,659
$60,039 $64,453

$2,500 $2,600
$945 $10,150

$15,000 $15,000
$250 $250

$3,000 $3,000
$25,000 $25,000

$500 $1,000
$500 $500

$35,000 $37,000
$1,200 $1,500
$3,500 $3,500
$2,500 $3,000
$3,000 $3,000
$2,500 $5,000
$4,000 $4,100

$14,000 $14,000

$9,000 $9,000
$844,541 $874,035

$500 $500
$50,000 $50,000
$50,500 $50,500

$750 $750
$750 $750

$100 $100
$1,000 $2,000
$1,100 $2,100

$7,500 $7,500
$1,000 $1,000

$201,993 $234,401
$210,493 $242,901

$86,559 $90,920
$6,622 $6,955

$31,263 $31,794
$10,993 $11,547

$379 $350
$173 $182

$3,000 $1,000
$250 $250

$1,000 $500
$2,500 $2,500
$1,250 $1,800

001-000-000-514-20-20-40 Emp Ben Employment Security
001-000-000-514-20-20-30 Emp Ben L&I Contributions
001-000-000-514-20-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
001-000-000-514-20-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
001-000-000-514-20-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare
001-000-000-514-20-11-00 Overtime

          Financial and Records Services
001-000-000-514-20-10-00 Salaries & Wages

          Total  Executive 
001-000-000-513-10-49-00 Miscellaneous

001-000-000-514-20-10-00 Salaries & Wages - Retirement Cashout

001-000-000-514-20-45-00 Rentals & Leases
001-000-000-514-20-43-00 Travel
001-000-000-514-20-42-00 Communication
001-000-000-514-20-41-10 Professional Services - Records Manage
001-000-000-514-20-41-01 Advertising
001-000-000-514-20-41-00 Professional Services
001-000-000-514-20-35-00 Machinery & Equipment
001-000-000-514-20-32-00 Fuel
001-000-000-514-20-31-00 Supplies

          Legal
001-000-000-515-30-31-00 Supplies

          Total Financial and Records Services
001-000-000-514-40-51-00 Election Expense

001-000-000-514-23-41-00 Audit
001-000-000-514-20-51-00 Emergency Management/ P County
001-000-000-514-20-49-01 Training
001-000-000-514-20-49-00 Miscellaneous
001-000-000-514-20-47-00 Public Utility Service

001-000-000-518-30-48-10 Phone System Repair & Maint

            Facilities
001-000-000-518-30-48-00 Repair & Maint Services

            Total Personnel
001-000-000-518-10-41-01 Advertising

            Personnel
001-000-000-518-10-31-00 Supplies

            Total City Wellness Program

            City Wellness Program
001-000-000-517-90-31-00 City Wellness Program Supplies

          Total Legal
001-000-000-515-30-41-00 Professional Services

001-000-000-518-80-31-00 Supplies
001-000-000-518-80-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
001-000-000-518-80-20-30 Emp Ben L&I Contribs
001-000-000-518-80-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
001-000-000-518-80-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
001-000-000-518-80-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec/Medicare

            Information Technology Services
001-000-000-518-80-10-00 Salaries & Wages

            Total Facilities
001-000-000-518-30-50-00 Insurance

001-000-000-518-80-42-00 Communication
001-000-000-518-80-41-00 Professional Services
001-000-000-518-80-35-00 Machinery & Equipment
001-000-000-518-80-32-00 Fuel

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
219



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 3

$500 $500
$500 $500

$1,000 $1,000
$2,700 $2,700

$148,689 $152,498

$1,653,019 $1,750,275

$1,072,564 $1,214,561
$50,000 $50,000
$82,909 $93,272

$325,321 $336,332
$66,140 $74,406
$47,301 $53,212
$13,900 $2,500
$28,000 $30,500
$40,000 $40,000
$13,000 $18,000

$105,000 $122,500
$89,000 $100,000
$14,000 $14,000

$0 $500
$1,500 $1,500

$500 $2,000
$1,949,135 $2,153,283

$1,500 $1,500
$400 $400

$1,500 $1,500
$12,500 $12,500
$15,900 $15,900

$15,500 $15,500
$20,000 $31,500
$35,500 $47,000

$2,000,535 $2,216,183

$270,000 $283,000
$1,650 $2,500

$21,000 $22,000
$70,000 $80,000
$14,800 $15,000
$14,000 $20,000

$600 $650
$21,000 $27,000

$6,000 $7,000
$3,000 $18,100

$500 $500
$23,500 $27,500

$5,500 $10,000
$200 $500
$200 $200

$3,000 $3,000
$27,000 $25,000

        Total General Government Services

            Total Information Technology Services
001-000-000-518-80-49-01 Training
001-000-000-518-80-49-00 Miscellaneous
001-000-000-518-80-48-00 Repair and Maintenance
001-000-000-518-80-43-00 Travel

001-000-000-521-22-20-40 Emp Ben Employment Security
001-000-000-521-22-20-30 Emp Ben L&I Contributions
001-000-000-521-22-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
001-000-000-521-22-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
001-000-000-521-22-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare
001-000-000-521-22-11-00 Overtime

        Public Safety
          Law Enforcement
              Patrol
001-000-000-521-22-10-00 Salaries & Wages

001-000-000-521-22-45-00 Rentals & Leases
001-000-000-521-22-44-00 Advertising
001-000-000-521-22-43-00 Travel
001-000-000-521-22-42-00 Communication
001-000-000-521-22-41-20 Prof Svcs - Dispatch Service
001-000-000-521-22-41-10 Prof Svcs - Jail Service
001-000-000-521-22-41-00 Professional Services 
001-000-000-521-22-32-00 Fuel
001-000-000-521-22-31-00 Supplies

            Total Facilities
001-000-000-521-50-48-00 Repair & Maint Services

            Facilities
001-000-000-521-50-47-00 Public Utility Services

            Total Training
001-000-000-521-40-49-00 Miscellaneous
001-000-000-521-40-44-10 Advertising - Civil Service
001-000-000-521-40-42-10 Communication - Civil Service

            Training
001-000-000-521-40-31-10 Supplies  Civil Service

              Total Patrol

001-000-000-522-10-20-40 Emp Ben Employment Security
001-000-000-522-10-20-30 Emp Ben L&I Contributions
001-000-000-522-10-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
001-000-000-522-10-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
001-000-000-522-10-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare
001-000-000-522-10-11-00 Overtime

          Fire Control
            Administration
001-000-000-522-10-10-00 Salaries & Wages

          Total Law Enforcement

001-000-000-522-10-46-00 Insurance
001-000-000-522-10-44-00 Advertising
001-000-000-522-10-43-00 Travel
001-000-000-522-10-42-00 Communication
001-000-000-522-10-41-20 Prof Svcs - Dispatch Service
001-000-000-522-10-41-10 Prof Svcs Physical Exams
001-000-000-522-10-41-00 Professional Services
001-000-000-522-10-32-00 Fuel
001-000-000-522-10-31-00 Supplies

001-000-000-522-10-47-00 Public Utility Services

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
220



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 4

$8,000 $11,000
$1,000 $1,000

$490,950 $553,950

$47,500 $49,000
$3,100 $3,500
$5,000 $17,100
$8,000 $15,000

$500 $500
$500 $500

$64,600 $85,600

$555,550 $639,550

$2,556,085 $2,855,733

$500 $500
$250 $250
$750 $750

$2,500 $2,500
$250 $250

$1,250 $1,250
$4,000 $4,000

$4,750 $4,750

$103,340 $183,035
$7,905 $14,002

$16,143 $42,951
$13,124 $23,245

$1,500 $1,500
$207 $366

$7,500 $8,000
$750 $1,000

$2,500 $7,500
$1,500 $1,750

$250 $250
$1,500 $1,500
$2,000 $2,000
$7,500 $5,500
$1,000 $1,500
$1,500 $1,500

$168,219 $295,599

$80,350 $111,919
$1,000 $1,500
$6,147 $8,562

$26,476 $31,351
$10,204 $14,214

$1,000 $1,500
$161 $224

$2,500 $4,000
$500 $500

$125,000 $150,000
$2,000 $2,500
$2,500 $10,000

        Total Economic Environment

        Total Environment

001-000-000-522-45-49-30 Cadet Program
001-000-000-522-45-49-20 Training
001-000-000-522-45-35-00 Machinery & Equipment
001-000-000-522-45-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec/Medicare

              Training
001-000-000-522-45-10-00 Volunteer Salaries & Wages

            Total Administration
001-000-000-522-10-49-00 Miscellaneous
001-000-000-522-10-48-00 Repair & Maintenance Services

001-000-000-554-30-41-00 Animal Control - Professional Services
001-000-000-554-30-31-01 Animal Control Supplies

        Economic Environment
001-000-000-553-70-51-00 Pollution Control-Intergov't Service

        Total Utilities and Environment
001-000-000-538-30-49-00 Miscellaneous

        Utilities and Environment
001-000-000-538-30-41-00 Professional Services-Misc

        Total Public Safety

          Total Fire Control

              Total Training
001-000-000-522-45-49-40 Public Education

001-000-000-558-50-41-00 Professional Services
001-000-000-558-50-32-00 Fuel
001-000-000-558-50-31-00 Supplies
001-000-000-558-50-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
001-000-000-558-50-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs
001-000-000-558-50-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
001-000-000-558-50-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
001-000-000-558-50-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare

            Building Department
001-000-000-558-50-10-00 Salaries & Wages

            Planning Department
001-000-000-558-60-10-00 Salaries & Wages

            Total Building Department
001-000-000-558-50-49-10 Misc Training
001-000-000-558-50-49-00 Miscellaneous
001-000-000-558-50-48-00 Repair & Maintenance
001-000-000-558-50-47-00 Public Utility Service
001-000-000-558-50-45-00 Rentals & Leases
001-000-000-558-50-43-00 Travel
001-000-000-558-50-42-00 Communications

001-000-000-558-60-41-00 Professional Services (Land Use)
001-000-000-558-60-32-00 Fuel
001-000-000-558-60-31-00 Supplies
001-000-000-558-60-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
001-000-000-558-60-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs
001-000-000-558-60-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
001-000-000-558-60-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
001-000-000-558-60-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare
001-000-000-558-60-11-00 Overtime

001-000-000-558-60-41-10 Professional Services
001-000-000-558-60-41-01 Advertising

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
221



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 5

$3,000 $3,500
$500 $1,000

$1,500 $1,500
$2,000 $2,000
$2,500 $2,500
$1,500 $1,500
$1,000 $6,500

$269,838 $354,770

$438,057 $650,369
$212,312
$212,312

$1,200 $1,200
$1,200 $1,200

$1,200 $1,200

$110,953 $116,251
$2,500 $3,000
$8,488 $8,893

$24,242 $40,738
$14,091 $14,764
$13,000 $8,000

$222 $233
$15,000 $15,000

$3,200 $3,800
$5,000 $5,000
$2,000 $2,000
$2,000 $2,500

$20,000 $20,000
$500 $500
$500 $750

$4,500 $5,000
$7,500 $8,000
$2,500 $3,000
$2,000 $2,000
$2,500 $4,000

$240,696 $263,429

$240,696 $263,429

$240,696 $263,429

$125,000 $125,000
$125,000 $125,000

$3,500 $3,500
$250 $250

$12,500 $12,500
$500 $500

$16,750 $16,750

$141,750 $141,750

001-000-000-558-60-49-01 Training
001-000-000-558-60-49-00 Miscellaneous
001-000-000-558-60-48-00 Repair & Maintenance
001-000-000-558-60-47-00 Public Utility Service
001-000-000-558-60-45-00 Rentals & Leases
001-000-000-558-60-43-00 Travel
001-000-000-558-60-42-00 Communication

001-000-000-576-80-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare
001-000-000-576-80-11-00 Overtime

        Culture and Recreation
          Park Facilities
            General Parks
001-000-000-576-80-10-00 Salaries & Wages

        Total Mental and Physical Health

          Total Substance Abuse

        Mental and Physical Health
          Substance Abuse
001-000-000-566-10-51-00 County Services - Substance Abuse

        Total Economic Environment

            Total Planning Department

001-000-000-576-80-41-00 Professional Services
001-000-000-576-80-35-00 Equipment
001-000-000-576-80-32-00 Fuel
001-000-000-576-80-31-10 Supplies - Flower Baskets
001-000-000-576-80-31-00 Supplies
001-000-000-576-80-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
001-000-000-576-80-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs
001-000-000-576-80-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
001-000-000-576-80-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental

          Total Park Facilities

            Total General Parks
001-000-000-576-80-49-01 Training
001-000-000-576-80-49-00 Miscellaneous
001-000-000-576-80-48-00 Repair & Maint Services
001-000-000-576-80-47-00 Public Utility Services
001-000-000-576-80-45-00 Rentals & Leases
001-000-000-576-80-43-00 Travel
001-000-000-576-80-42-00 Communication
001-000-000-576-80-41-10 Professional Services - Park Events

        Total Nonexpenditures

          Total Other Nonexpenditures
001-000-000-589-90-00-00 Miscellaneous Expenditures
001-000-000-589-00-00-05 Leasehold Excise To State
001-000-000-589-00-00-03 Miscellaneous Reimbursements

          Other Nonexpenditures
001-000-000-589-00-00-02 Gun Permits

          Total Agency Type Disbursements

        Nonexpenditures
          Agency Type Disbursements
001-000-000-586-00-01-00 Court Remittances

        Total Culture and Recreation

        Other Financing Uses

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
222



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 6

$1,000 $1,000
$50,000 $45,000

$0 $500 
$51,000 $46,500

$51,000 $46,500

$5,086,557 $5,714,006

$73,816 $84,700
$5,647 $6,480

$23,586 $17,776
$9,375 $10,757

$500 $1,000
$148 $169

$3,000 $3,000
$250 $250
$500 $500

$1,000 $2,000
$500 $500

$2,500 $3,200
$3,500 $3,500
$2,500 $4,000

$500 $500
$0 $600

$127,322 $138,932

$500 $500
$500 $500

$1,000 $1,000

$128,322 $139,932

$1,000 $1,000
$500 $500

$1,000 $1,000
$1,000 $1,000

$100 $100
$10,500 $10,500

$2,000 $2,000
$500 $500

$16,600 $16,600

$6,000 $6,000
$1,000 $1,000

$750 $750
$7,750 $7,750

$24,350 $24,350

$73,910 $84,083
$5,654 $6,432

001-000-103-575-50-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
001-000-103-575-50-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare

    Community/Senior Center
            Multipurpose And Community Centers
001-000-103-575-50-10-00 Salaries & Wages

      Total Expenditure

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Transfer Out

001-000-000-597-00-65-00 T.O. - 002 Contingency Reserve

          Transfer Out
001-000-000-597-00-40-00 430 - Utility Equip Reserve

001-000-000-597-00-00-00 T.O. - 101 Street Operation & Maintenance

001-000-103-575-50-45-00 Rentals & Leases
001-000-103-575-50-43-00 Travel
001-000-103-575-50-42-00 Communication
001-000-103-575-50-41-00 Professional Services
001-000-103-575-50-32-00 Fuel
001-000-103-575-50-31-00 Supplies
001-000-103-575-50-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
001-000-103-575-50-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs
001-000-103-575-50-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement

    Buckley Hall/Food Bank
            Multipurpose And Community Centers
001-000-110-575-50-31-00 Supplies

    Total Community/Senior Center

        Total Nonexpenditures
001-000-103-589-90-00-10 Mpc Rental Cancellation

        Nonexpenditures
001-000-103-589-90-00-00 Mpc Deposit Reimbursement

            Total Multipurpose And Community Centers

001-000-103-575-50-49-00 Miscellaneous
001-000-103-575-50-48-00 Repair & Maint Services
001-000-103-575-50-47-00 Public Utility Services

001-000-000-575-80-49-01 Training

        Nonexpenditures
001-000-110-589-00-00-00 Hall Deposit Reimbursement

            Total Multipurpose And Community Centers
001-000-110-575-50-48-10 Repair & Maintenance Food Bank
001-000-110-575-50-48-00 Repair & Maintenance
001-000-110-575-50-47-00 Public Utility Services
001-000-110-575-50-42-10 Communication Food Bank
001-000-110-575-50-41-00 Professional Services
001-000-110-575-50-32-00 Fuel - Food Bank
001-000-110-575-50-31-10 Supplies Food Bank

001-000-113-576-80-20-00 Employee Benefits Soc Sec Med

    Youth Activities Center
      Youth Activities Center
          Youth Activities Center Facilities
001-000-113-576-80-10-00 Salaries & Wages

    Total Buckley Hall/Food Bank

        Total Nonexpenditures
001-000-110-589-90-10-00 Rental Cancellation Reimb
001-000-110-589-90-00-00 Hall Cancellation Reimbursemnt

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
223



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 7

$30,024 $26,377
$9,387 $10,679
$1,000 $1,000

$150 $168
$4,000 $5,500

$0 $0
$1,000 $1,500
$1,000 $2,000

$500 $500
$250 $250
$250 $250

$6,500 $6,500
$6,000 $7,500
$3,000 $1,000

$0 $500
$142,625 $154,239

$200 $200
$200 $200

$142,825 $154,439

$142,825 $154,439

$5,382,054 $6,032,727

$6,335,443 $7,009,222

$211,383 $258,928
$211,383 $258,928

$5,015,465 $5,015,475
$5,015,465 $5,015,475

$103,000 $101,318
$103,000 $101,318

$5,118,465 $5,116,793

$19,970 $23,091
$19,970 $23,091

$0 $250
$100 $100
$100 $350

$100 $350

$3,500 $3,500
$3,500 $3,500

001-000-113-576-80-20-20 Emp Ben Retire
001-000-113-576-80-20-10 Emp Ben Med Dent

001-000-113-576-80-45-00 Rentals & Leases
001-000-113-576-80-44-00 Advertisement
001-000-113-576-80-43-00 Travel
001-000-113-576-80-42-00 Communication
001-000-113-576-80-41-00 Professional Services
001-000-113-576-80-31-20 Youth Grant Supplies
001-000-113-576-80-31-00 Youth Center Supplies
001-000-113-576-80-20-40 Emp Ben Employment Security
001-000-113-576-80-20-30 Emp Ben L&I

Total Contingency Reserve Fund

Contingency Reserve Fund
002-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Ending Fund Balance

Total Current Expense

    Total Youth Activities Center

      Total Youth Activities Center

        Total Nonexpenditures

        Nonexpenditures
001-000-113-589-90-00-00 YAK Deposit Refund

          Total Youth Activities Center Facilities

001-000-113-576-80-49-00 Miscellaneous
001-000-113-576-80-48-00 YP Repair & Maint
001-000-113-576-80-47-00 YP Public Utilities

    Total Expenditures

001-000-000-575-80-49-01 Training

          Total Cemetery

            Total Administration
004-000-000-536-10-53-00 State of Washington Excise Taxes

          Cemetery
            Administration
004-000-000-536-10-41-00 Professional Services

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Cemetery
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
004-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Ending Fund Balance

Total General Fund Cumulative Reserve

003-000-000-597-00-30-00 T.O. - 001 Investment Interest

General Fund Cumulative Reserve

003-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Ending Fund Balance

        Interfund Transfers

        Total Interfund Transfers

          Ending Net Cash And Investments

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

        Interfund Transfers

        Total Nonexpenditures

        Nonexpenditures
004-000-000-589-00-00-04 Cemetery Lot Buy Back

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
224



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 8

$1,000 $250
$441 $441

$1,441 $691

$5,041 $4,541

$25,011 $27,632

$228,763 $201,906
$228,763 $201,906

$2,000 $2,000
$2,000 $2,000
$7,000 $7,000
$5,000 $5,000
$2,000 $2,000
$3,000 $3,000
$5,000 $5,000

$26,000 $26,000

$5,000 $5,000
$80,000 $82,000

$1,500 $1,500
$20,000 $24,000

$1,500 $1,500
$125,000 $0

$0 $0
$233,000 $114,000

$233,000 $114,000

$259,000 $140,000

$487,763 $341,906

$98,854 $95,352
$98,854 $95,352

$15,552 $16,340
$500 $500

$1,190 $1,250
$3,308 $8,125
$1,975 $2,075

$900 $650
$31 $33

$1,500 $500
$0 $250

$24,956 $29,724

$1,000 $500
$1,773 $1,773
$2,773 $2,273

        Operating Expenses 
007-000-000-521-20-10-00 Salaries & Wages

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Police Equipment Reserve
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
007-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Ending Fund Balance

Total Cemetery

        Total Interfund Transfers
004-000-000-597-00-50-30 T.O. - 001 Insurance Portion
004-000-000-597-00-00-00 To-Util Equip Res

    Total Expenditures

          Capital Expenditures
              Police Dept. EQ
007-000-000-594-21-64-32 Computer Replacement

        Total Operating Expenses 
007-000-000-521-20-49-00 Miscellaneous
007-000-000-521-20-48-00 Repair & Maint Services
007-000-000-521-20-42-00 Communication
007-000-000-521-20-35-00 Equipment
007-000-000-521-20-31-00 Supplies
007-000-000-521-20-20-50 Uniforms

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Railroad Row Maint & Devel
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
008-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Ending Fund Balance

Total Police Equipment Reserve

          Total Capital Expenditures

              Total Police Dept. EQ

007-000-000-594-21-66-72 Police Station Parking Lot Reconstruct
007-000-000-594-21-66-70 Capital Purch - Radar Units
007-000-000-594-21-66-60 Cap Purch-Light Bars & Sirens
007-000-000-594-21-66-40 Capital Purch  Firearms
007-000-000-594-21-66-10 Capital Purchase - Police Vehicle

    Total Expenditures

007-000-000-594-21-66-72 Prof SVCS - PD Parking Lot Reconstruct

        Total Railroad Row Maint/Development

008-000-000-559-30-31-00 Supplies
008-000-000-559-30-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
008-000-000-559-30-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs
008-000-000-559-30-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
008-000-000-559-30-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
008-000-000-559-30-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare
008-000-000-559-30-11-00 Overtime

        Railroad Row Maint/Development
008-000-000-559-30-10-00 Salaries & Wages

008-000-000-559-30-41-00 Professional Services

        Total Other Financing Uses
008-000-000-597-00-50-30 T. O. - 001 - Insurance Portion

        Other Financing Uses
008-000-000-597-00-00-46 T. O. - 430 Utility Equipment Reserve

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
225



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 9

$27,729 $31,997

$126,583 $127,349

$0 $128,106
$0 $128,106

$220,000 $250,000
$473,600 $25,000

$3,500 $7,000
$50,000 $54,000
$25,000 $15,000
$13,000 $16,000
$20,000 $23,000

$154,150 $0
$959,250 $390,000

$164,000 $164,000
$35,000 $25,000

$199,000 $189,000

$199,000 $189,000

$1,158,250 $579,000

$1,158,250 $707,106

$17,397 $81,389
$17,397 $81,389

$2,000 $2,000
$2,500 $2,500

$500 $2,500
$250 $250

$5,250 $7,250

$15,000 $10,000
$5,000 $5,000

$100,000 $150,000
$5,000 $1,000

$55,000 $27,000
$2,500 $2,500

$0 $85,000
$0 $0

$182,500 $280,500

$500 $500
$500 $500

$1,000 $5,000

030-000-000-594-22-64-40 Reserve SCBA
030-000-000-594-22-64-30 Reserve C34 (2028)
030-000-000-594-22-64-20 Reserve E35 (2044)

Fire Equipment Reserve

          Capital Expenditures
030-000-000-594-22-64-10 Reserve E34 (2030)

Total Railroad Row Maint & Devel

    Total Expenditures

          Ending Net Cash And Investments
030-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Ending Fund Balance
          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

          Total Capital Expenditures

              Total Fire Equipment Reserve
030-000-131-594-22-64-35 Grant Funded Expenditure

    Fire EQ Reserve-IFL
          Capital Expenditures
              Fire Equipment Reserve
030-000-131-594-22-64-30 Reserve For Aid Car A34 (2019)

          Total Capital Expenditures
030-000-000-594-22-64-91 Reserve Equipment
030-000-000-594-22-64-80 Reserve U 35 - (2021)
030-000-000-594-22-64-70 Reserve U 34 - (2025)
030-000-000-594-22-64-42 Bunker Replacement

            Total General Parks
035-000-000-576-80-44-10 Advertising
035-000-000-576-80-41-00 Professional Services
035-000-000-576-80-35-00 Playground Equipment

            General Parks
035-000-000-576-80-31-00 Supplies

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Park Construction
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
035-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Ending Fund Balance

Total Fire Equipment Reserve

    Total Expenditures

          Total Trails-Capital Expense

          Trails-Capital Expense
035-000-000-595-80-31-00 City Portion Trail Supplies

          Total Park Captial Expenditures

035-000-000-594-76-78-00 Splash Park - Construction - Phase 1
035-000-000-594-76-77-00 Climbing Wall - Construction
035-000-000-594-76-75-41 Perkins Prairie Trail - Prof Svcs
035-000-000-594-76-74-00 Miller Park Phase 1 (a) - Construction
035-000-000-594-76-72-00 Playground Fixture Replacement

          Park Captial Expenditures
035-000-000-594-76-71-00 Wally's Park Basketball Court Rehab

035-000-000-594-76-78-00 SR410 - Outdoor Basketball Court
035-000-000-594-76-78-00 Impact Fee Reserve

          Transfer Out
035-000-000-597-10-00-10 TO - 001 Invest Int

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
226



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 10

$5,000 $5,000
$2,000 $2,000
$8,000 $12,000

$196,250 $300,250

$213,647 $381,639

$14,299 $13,628
$14,299 $13,628

$60,675 $69,575
$1,000 $1,500
$4,642 $5,322

$19,721 $20,138
$7,706 $8,836
$2,700 $3,100

$121 $139
$30,000 $30,000

$3,500 $4,000
$2,500 $2,500

$600 $600
$500 $400

$60,000 $58,700
$1,000 $1,000

$194,665 $205,810

$194,665 $205,810

$7,000 $7,500
$100 $100

$1,250 $1,000
$250 $250
$100 $100

$8,700 $8,950

$203,365 $214,760

$500 $1,000
$0 $0.00

$37,500 $40,000
$6,342 $6,342

$500 $500
$44,842 $47,842

$248,207 $262,602

$262,506 $276,230

$386,875 $357,375
$386,875 $357,375

101-000-000-542-30-10-00 Salaries & Wages

        Street/Storm Drain-Operating Expenses
          Road and Street Maintenance
            Roadway

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Street Operations
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
101-000-000-508-10-00-00 Reserved Ending Fund Balance

Total Park Construction

          Total Transfer Out
035-000-000-597-10-20-00 T.O. - 430 Utility Equipment
035-000-000-597-10-10-10 T.O. - 307 Trailhead/Parking Lot Const

    Total Expenditures

101-000-000-542-30-41-00 Professional Services
101-000-000-542-30-32-00 Fuel For Vehicles
101-000-000-542-30-31-00 Supplies
101-000-000-542-30-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
101-000-000-542-30-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs
101-000-000-542-30-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
101-000-000-542-30-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
101-000-000-542-30-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare
101-000-000-542-30-11-00 Overtime

101-000-000-543-30-47-00 Public Utility Services
101-000-000-543-30-42-00 Communication

          Road and Street General Administration / Overhead
101-000-000-543-30-41-00 Professional Services

          Total Road and Street Maintenance

            Total Roadway
101-000-000-542-30-49-00 Miscellaneous
101-000-000-542-30-47-10 Public Utility - Street Lights
101-000-000-542-30-47-00 Public Utility-Park Lot Lights
101-000-000-542-30-45-00 Rentals & Leases

Total Street Operations

        Total Interfund Transfers
101-000-000-597-50-00-70 T.O. - 001 Dispatcher
101-000-000-597-50-00-30 T.O. - 001 Insurance Portion
101-000-000-597-30-00-00 T.O. - 102 Street Capital Improvements

        Interfund Transfers
101-000-000-597-00-00-00 T.o. - Utility Equip Reserve

        Total Street/Storm Drain-Operating Expenses

          Total Road and Street General Administration / Overhead
101-000-000-543-30-49-00 Miscellaneous
101-000-000-543-30-48-00 Repairs & Maintenance

    Total Expenditures

101-000-000-597-20-00-00 T.o. - 001 C.E Administrative

        Transportation

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Street Capital Improvements
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
102-000-000-508-10-00-00 Reserved Ending Fund Balance

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
227



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 11

$40,000 $0
$0 $30,000
$0 $50,000
$0 $200,000
$0 $50,000

$5,000 $0
$2,500 $17,500
$1,000 $2,500

$0 $10,000
$0 $500

$500 $500
$0 $0
$0 $0

$150,000 $0
$8,000 $0

$24,000 $0
$1,300 $0

$20,000 $0
$25,000 $25,000

$0 $6,250
$30,900 $40,000

$7,715 $10,000
$0 $310,365
$0 $34,485
$0 $73,800
$0 $8,200
$0 $242,753
$0 $12,777
$0 $30,000
$0 $420,180

$315,915 $1,574,810

$315,915 $1,574,810

$2,000 $2,000
$42,216 $37,241
$15,000 $5,000
$10,000 $5,000
$69,216 $49,241

$69,216 $49,241

$385,131 $1,624,051

$772,006 $1,981,426

$3,253 $5,105
$3,253 $5,105

$200 $200
$1,202 $1,202

$100 $100
$37,500 $40,000
$67,000 $60,000

$106,002 $101,502

102-000-000-542-30-77-61 River Avenue Reconstruction Project - Local
102-000-000-542-30-77-62 Prof Svcs - River Avenue Reconst (State)

102-000-000-542-30-48-00 Repair & Maintenance

102-000-000-542-30-63-47 SR 410/SR 165 Public Utilities
102-000-000-542-30-48-10 Realignment Wetlands Maintenance

Mundy Loss Repaving Project - State

103-000-000-542-20-41-01 Professional Services

Transportation Benefit District

103-000-000-508-10-00-00 Unreserved End Fund Balance

Total Street Capital Improvements

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Interfund Transfers 
102-000-000-597-10-00-33 T.O. - 430 Utility Equipment Reserve

102-000-000-542-30-44-00 Advertising
102-000-000-542-30-41-10 Prof Svcs - Sidewalk Project 
102-000-000-542-30-41-00 Professional Services

          Road and Street Maintenance
102-000-000-542-30-31-96 2019 Sidewalk/ADA Project

        Total Transportation

          Total Road and Street Maintenance

102-000-000-542-30-77-93 Prof Svcs - Dieringer Ave Traffic Rev
102-000-000-542-30-77-92 Dieringer Ave Traffic Rev - Copperwynd

102-000-000-542-30-77-90 Foothills Trail - Pavement Maintenance
102-000-000-542-30-77-75 Ryan Rd - Sergeant Ped Xing Project
102-000-000-542-30-77-74 Prof Svcs - Mundy Loss Repaving
102-000-000-542-30-77-73 Prof Svcs - Mundy Loss Repaving
102-000-000-542-30-77-72 Mundy Loss Repaving Project - Local
102-000-000-542-30-77-71

102-000-000-597-10-00-32 T.O. - 307 Trailhead/Parking Lot Project
102-000-000-597-10-00-31 T.O. - 001 Grant/Project Admin

        Other Financing Uses
          Interfund Transfers 
102-000-000-597-10-00-30 T.O. - 001 Investment Interest

    Total Expenditures

          Ending Net Cash And Investments

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

        Other Financing Uses

103-000-000-597-30-48-00 TBD Payment to City Road and Street Maintenance
103-000-000-597-00-00-00 TBD Project Payment to City Street Capital Imp
103-000-000-542-23-41-00 State Audit Fees
103-000-000-542-20-46-00 TBD Payment to City Insurance

        Total Other Financing Uses

102-000-000-542-30-77-72 Prof Svcs - Cedar Street - Local

102-000-000-542-30-31-96 2020 Sidewalk/ADA Project

102-000-000-542-30-77-72 Naches Street Repaving Project - TIB PPP (State)

102-000-000-542-30-77-72 Cedar Street Reconstruction - TIB SCAP

102-000-000-542-30-77-72 Prof Svcs - Cedar Street - State

102-000-000-542-30-31-96 2020 Naches ADA Ramps
102-000-000-542-30-31-96 Spiketon Road- Ryan Rd to Mt.View

Cedar Street Reconstruction - Local102-000-000-542-30-77-72

102-000-000-542-30-77-93 White River Trail Bridge - City Contrbution
102-000-000-542-30-77-72 Naches Street Repaving Project - TIB PPP (Local)

102-000-000-542-30-41-00 Prof Svcs - Spiketon Road- Ryan Rd to Mt.View

102-000-000-542-30-77-90 Prof Svcs - Foothills Trail - Pavement Maintenance

102-000-000-542-30-77-93 Impact Fee Reserve

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
228



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 12

$106,002 $101,502

$109,255 $106,607

$186,329 $195,869
$186,329 $195,869

$92,000 $98,250
$700 $1,100

$7,100 $7,600
$14,200 $18,500

$4,000 $4,000
$4,900 $5,400
$1,900 $500

$17,000 $19,500
$3,200 $3,500
$3,000 $3,500
$5,000 $18,100

$500 $500
$23,500 $27,500
$83,000 $85,000

$5,500 $7,000
$3,000 $3,000
$1,500 $1,200

$270,000 $304,150

$47,500 $49,000
$3,000 $3,500
$5,000 $12,000

$55,500 $64,500

$3,000 $13,100
$500 $500

$6,000 $6,500
$9,500 $20,100

$335,000 $388,750

$0 $0
$0 $0
$0 $0

$6,000 $6,000
$1,500 $1,500
$7,500 $7,500

$7,500 $7,500

$342,500 $396,250

$528,829 $592,119

          Ambulance, Rescue and Emergency Aid
            Administration
105-000-000-522-21-10-00 Salaries & Wages

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Emergency Medical Services
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
105-000-000-508-10-00-00 Reserved Ending Fund Balance

Total Transportation Benefit District

      Total Expenditure

105-000-000-522-21-32-00 Fuel
105-000-000-522-21-31-10 First Aid/CPR Supplies
105-000-000-522-21-31-00 Supplies
105-000-000-522-21-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
105-000-000-522-21-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs
105-000-000-522-21-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
105-000-000-522-21-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
105-000-000-522-21-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare
105-000-000-522-21-11-00 Overtime

              Training
105-000-000-522-45-10-00 Volunteer Salaries & Wages

            Total Administration
105-000-000-522-21-49-00 Miscellaneous
105-000-000-522-21-46-00 Insurance
105-000-000-522-21-42-00 Communication
105-000-000-522-21-41-30 Professional Services AMR
105-000-000-522-21-41-20 Prof Svcs Dispatch Service
105-000-000-522-21-41-10 Prof Services Physical Exams
105-000-000-522-21-41-00 Professional Services

        Nonexpenditures
105-000-000-589-90-00-00 Reimbursement/Refund Transport Fees

          Total Ambulance, Rescue and Emergency Aid

            Total Facilities
105-000-000-522-50-48-00 Repair & Maint Services
105-000-000-522-50-35-10 Equipment Purchased/donations

            Facilities
105-000-000-522-50-35-00 Equipment

              Total Training
105-000-000-522-45-49-20 Volunteer Emt Training
105-000-000-522-45-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec/ Medicare

Crim Just/drug Enforcement

Total Emergency Medical Services

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Transfer Out
105-000-000-597-90-00-40 T.o. - 130 Bunker Replacement

        Other Financing Uses
          Transfer Out
105-000-000-597-90-00-00 Transfer Out - 131

        Total Nonexpenditures
105-000-000-589-90-10-00 Refund - CPR/FA Fees

      Total Expenditure

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
229



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 13

$159,961 $157,408
$159,961 $157,408

$2,000 $2,000
$2,000 $2,000
$2,000 $2,000
$2,000 $2,000
$8,000 $8,000
$2,000 $2,000
$2,000 $2,000
$2,000 $2,000

$22,000 $22,000

$50,000 $100,000
$50,000 $100,000

$50,000 $100,000

$72,000 $122,000

$231,961 $279,408

$214,329 $198,789
$214,329 $198,789

$2,500 $2,500
$2,500 $5,000
$5,000 $7,500

$1,400 $0
$1,400 $0

$1,400 $0

$6,400 $7,500

$220,729 $206,289

$135,768 $167,401
$135,768 $167,401

$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$250 $250

$5,000 $5,000
$100 $100
$600 $600

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

          Ending Net Cash And Investments
109-000-000-508-10-00-00 Reserved Ending Fund Balance

          Total Criminal Justice/Operating Expense
109-000-000-521-10-49-00 Miscellaneous
109-000-000-521-10-48-00 Repairs & Maintenance
109-000-000-521-10-42-00 Communication
109-000-000-521-10-35-00 Equipment
109-000-000-521-10-31-00 Supplies
109-000-000-521-10-20-50 Uniforms
109-000-000-521-10-11-00 Overtime

          Criminal Justice/Operating Expense
109-000-000-521-10-10-00 Salaries & Wages

          Total Fire Station Construction-Operating Expenses
134-000-000-522-50-48-00 Repair & Maintenance Services

          Fire Station Construction-Operating Expenses
134-000-000-522-50-31-00 Furnishings,  and Fixtures

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Fire Dept Station Construction
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
134-000-000-508-10-00-00 Reserved Ending Fund Balance

Total Crim Just/drug Enforcement

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Transfer Out

        Other Financing Uses
          Transfer Out
109-000-000-597-10-00-20 T O - 007 Police Equip Res

      Total Expenditure

          Tourism Promotion
            Administration
136-000-000-557-30-31-00 Supplies

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Visitor Promo & Devel
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
136-000-000-508-10-00-00 Reserved Ending Fund Balance

Total Fire Dept Station Construction

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Transfer Out

        Other Financing Uses
          Transfer Out
134-000-000-597-10-00-30 T.O. - 202 Investment Interest

      Total Expenditure

136-000-000-557-30-42-20 Communication - Museum
136-000-000-557-30-42-00 Communication
136-000-000-557-30-41-11 Prof Svcs - (Geo Caching)
136-000-000-557-30-41-10 Advertising
136-000-000-557-30-41-00 Professional Services
136-000-000-557-30-34-00 Veteran's Memorial Brick/Supplies
136-000-000-557-30-31-20 Arts Commission Reserve Supplies

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
230



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 14

$500 $500
$6,000 $6,000
$6,000 $6,500

$20,450 $20,950

$20,450 $20,950

$500 $500
$5,000 $500
$5,500 $1,000

$500 $500
$1,810 $1,810

$250 $250
$2,560 $2,560

$2,560 $2,560

$28,510 $24,510

$164,278 $191,911

$69,030 $78,097
$69,030 $78,097

$115,000 $120,000
$159,020 $154,420
$274,020 $274,420

$274,020 $274,420

$343,050 $352,517

$389,912 $156,474
$389,912 $156,474

$2,500 $5,000
$0 $250,000

$130,000 $0
$0 $0

$25,000 $0
$0 $0

$25,000 $20,000
$200,000 $400,000

$14,000 $60,000
$7,500 $0

$0 $20,000
$0 $15,000
$0 $20,000
$0 $20,000

$404,000 $810,000

136-000-000-557-30-47-00 Public Utilities
136-000-000-557-30-45-00 Rentals & Leases

136-000-000-597-51-00-30 T.O. - 001 Insurance Portion

        Other Financing Uses
          Transfer Out
136-000-000-597-10-00-10 TO - 001 Invest Int

          Total Tourism-Facilities
136-000-000-576-80-48-00 Veteran's Memorial Landscaping

          Tourism-Facilities
136-000-000-576-80-47-00 Public Utility Services Veteran's Memorial

      Total Expenditure

          Total Tourism Promotion

            Total Administration
136-000-000-557-30-48-00 Repairs & Maintenance Museum

Total Fire Station Const Debt Service

        Total Other Financing Uses
202-000-000-592-22-83-00 GO Bond Interest Payment 2010 A Series A

        Other Financing Uses
202-000-000-591-22-71-00 Fire Station Bond Principal

Fire Station Const Debt Service

202-000-000-508-10-00-00 Reserved Ending Fund Balance
          Ending Net Cash And Investments

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

      Total Expenditure

Total Visitor Promo & Devel

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Transfer Out
136-000-000-597-52-00-60 T.O. 001 Brick Sales Admin

307-000-000-594-48-64-49 Old Fire Station Repair
307-000-000-594-48-64-41 Prof Svcs - Foothills Trail

307-000-000-594-48-62-10 PW Admin Bldg Const - Phase III
307-000-000-594-48-62-10 Prof Svcs - PW Admin Bldg Const

307-000-000-594-48-64-56 Public Works Electric Gate

        Other Financing Uses
          Capital Expenditures
307-000-000-594-10-41-00 Remodel Mpc Offices Prof Svc

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Capital Improvement
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
307-000-000-508-10-00-00 Reserved Ending Fund Balance

          Total Capital Expenditures

307-000-000-594-48-64-55 MPC Repair
307-000-000-594-48-64-54 Buckley Hall Repair & Maintenance
307-000-000-594-48-64-53 Foothills Trail Parking & Trailhead Construction
307-000-000-594-48-64-52 City Hall Repair

307-000-000-594-10-41-00 Remodel of Building/Planning/Court Offices

307-000-000-594-48-64-55 Youth Center Repair - Carper Replacement
307-000-000-594-48-64-55 Public Works Storage Outbuilding Repair
307-000-000-594-48-64-55 Animal Control Shelter

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
231



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 15

$5,000 $5,000
$29,254 $12,023
$34,254 $17,023

$438,254 $827,023

$438,254 $827,023

$828,166 $983,496

$269,127 $240,191
$269,127 $240,191

$28,700 $30,600
$2,200 $2,340
$4,000 $4,200
$1,500 $1,450
$1,100 $1,050

$600 $100
$750 $750
$750 $750

$39,600 $41,240

$0 $0
$0 $0

$42,709 $50,177
$3,267 $3,839
$7,371 $12,004
$5,424 $6,372

$400 $300
$85 $100

$500 $500
$500 $500

$7,500 $7,500
$3,500 $1,000
$1,000 $1,000
$1,500 $1,500
$1,000 $1,000
$1,500 $1,000

$500 $500
$100 $100
$100 $100
$100 $250

$2,000 $2,000
$3,000 $500
$3,000 $500

$500 $1,500
$250 $250

$85,806 $92,493

        Transportation
            Storm Drain Planning
308-000-000-542-40-41-00 Comp Storm Plan Update - Prof Svcs
            Total Storm Drain Planning

        Total Transportation

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Transfer Out
307-000-000-597-10-00-31 T. O. - 001 - Grant/Project Admin

      Total Expenditure

          Transfer Out
307-000-000-597-10-00-10 TO - 001 Invest Int

308-000-000-522-10-20-30 Emp Ben L&I
308-000-000-522-10-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
308-000-000-522-10-20-10 Emp Ben Med Dental
308-000-000-522-10-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare

          Public Safety Planning
308-000-000-522-10-10-00 Salaries & Wages

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Comp Plan Capital Improve
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
308-000-000-508-10-00-00 Reserved Ending Fund Balance

Total Capital Improvement

Emp Ben L & I Contribs
308-000-000-558-60-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
308-000-000-558-60-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
308-000-000-558-60-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare

          Comprehensive/CFP Planning
308-000-000-558-60-10-00 Salaries & Wages

          Total Public Safety Planning
308-000-000-522-10-41-00 Emergency Preparedness Plan
308-000-000-522-10-31-00 Emerg Prep Plan Supplies
308-000-000-522-10-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec

CFP General Engineering
308-000-000-558-60-41-07

        Culture and Recreation
          Park Facilities

          Total Comprehensive/CFP Planning
308-000-000-558-65-41-00 Critical Areas Update
308-000-000-558-60-44-00

SR 410 Master Plan Mapping
308-000-000-558-60-41-06 SR 410 Master Plan Development
308-000-000-558-60-41-03 Shoreline Plan Prof Svcs
308-000-000-558-60-41-00 Zon/subdivision Update
308-000-000-558-60-31-20 Comp Plan Supplies
308-000-000-558-60-31-00 Zon/subdivision Supplies
308-000-000-558-60-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
308-000-000-558-60-20-30

Comp Plan Advertising
308-000-000-558-60-41-12

Zon/subdivision Advertise
308-000-000-558-60-41-46 Capital Facilities Element Update
308-000-000-558-60-41-45 Utilities Element Update
308-000-000-558-60-41-44 Binding Site Plan Amend Prof Svcs
308-000-000-558-60-41-42 Trans Element Update Mapping
308-000-000-558-60-41-41 Transportation Element Update
308-000-000-558-60-41-40 SR 410 Master Plan Prof Svcs
308-000-000-558-60-41-15 Comp Plan Update Prof Svcs
308-000-000-558-60-41-14

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
232



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 16

$500 $500
$250 $250
$500 $500

$1,250 $1,250

$1,250 $1,250

$15,000 $0
$0 $100,000

$15,000 $100,000

$15,000 $100,000

$141,656 $234,983

$410,783 $475,173

$677 $4,271
$677 $4,271

$100 $100
$125 $125
$225 $225

$225 $225

$5,000 $10,000
$5,000 $10,000

$5,000 $10,000

$5,225 $10,225

$5,902 $14,496

$234,878 $95,393
$234,878 $95,393

$3,500 $3,500
$25,000 $25,000

$2,000 $2,000
$500 $500

$0 $0
$3,200 $3,200
$2,500 $2,500
$2,000 $2,000

$50,444 $50,444
$100,888 $100,888

$4,000 $5,000

          Electric and Gas Utilities
            Administration - General
401-000-000-533-10-53-00 State of Washington Excise Taxes

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Natural Gas
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
401-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Fund Balance

Total Comp Plan Capital Improve

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Transfer Out

        Other Financing Uses
          Transfer Out
308-000-000-597-10-30-00 T.O. - 307 - PW Remodel Project

      Total Expenditure

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Water Sewer
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
402-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Fund Balance

Total Natural Gas

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Transfer Out

        Other Financing Uses
          Transfer Out
401-000-000-597-00-00-70 T.O. - GF 001 Sale of Gas System

      Total Expenditure

          Total Electric and Gas Utilities

            Total Administration - General
401-000-000-533-10-54-00 City Utility Taxes

402-000-000-534-10-53-00 State of Washington Excise Taxes
402-000-000-534-10-49-00 Miscellaneous
402-000-000-534-10-48-00 Repair & Maintenance
402-000-000-534-10-47-00 Public Utility Services
402-000-000-534-10-45-00 Rentals & Leases
402-000-000-534-10-44-00 Advertising
402-000-000-534-10-42-00 Communication
402-000-000-534-10-41-00 Professional Services

          Water Utilities
            Water Administration - General
402-000-000-534-10-31-00 Supplies

402-000-000-534-10-55-00 Permits & Fees
402-000-000-534-10-54-00 City Utility Taxes

Parks Plan Update Prof Svcs
            Park Plans

          Total Park Facilities

            Total Park Plans
308-000-000-576-80-44-41 Parks Element Update Mapping
308-000-000-576-80-44-00 Parks Plan Update Advertise
308-000-000-576-80-41-00

308-000-000-597-10-30-00 T.O. - 307 - Foothills Trail Parking & Trailhead 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
233



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 17

$194,032 $195,032

$277,579 $287,361
$7,300 $7,300
$7,500 $7,500

$21,235 $21,983
$88,258 $95,496
$35,253 $36,495
$12,500 $12,500

$555 $575
$50,000 $50,000

$1,000 $1,000
$20,000 $22,000

$2,000 $2,200
$4,000 $4,000
$5,500 $5,500
$5,000 $5,500

$10,000 $10,500
$1,500 $1,500

$500 $750
$3,000 $3,500

$35,000 $35,000
$13,000 $13,000

$3,000 $3,000
$2,500 $3,000

$606,180 $629,659

$800,212 $824,692

$3,500 $3,500
$25,000 $25,000

$1,000 $1,000
$3,200 $3,200
$2,500 $2,500
$2,000 $2,000

$40,700 $41,816
$203,500 $209,082

$3,500 $3,500
$284,900 $291,598

$290,491 $295,754
$180,700 $202,586

$13,360 $13,360
$7,300 $7,300
$8,000 $10,000
$1,500 $1,500

$22,223 $22,625
$72,896 $80,098
$36,892 $37,561
$12,000 $12,000

$581 $592
$13,824 $15,498
$60,650 $64,147
$22,949 $25,728

$6,000 $6,200
$361 $405

$50,000 $75,000
$20,000 $20,000

402-000-000-534-50-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
402-000-000-534-50-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
402-000-000-534-50-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare
402-000-000-534-50-11-00 Overtime
402-000-000-534-50-10-11 Standby Salaries & Wages

            Water Maintenance
402-000-000-534-50-10-00 Salaries & Wages

            Total Water Administration - General

402-000-000-534-50-41-00 Professional Services
402-000-000-534-50-35-00 Small Tools
402-000-000-534-50-32-10 Fuel For Vehicles
402-000-000-534-50-32-00 Fuel For Pumping
402-000-000-534-50-31-12 Supplies - Water Treatment
402-000-000-534-50-31-10 Supplies Headworks
402-000-000-534-50-31-00 Supplies
402-000-000-534-50-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
402-000-000-534-50-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs

            Total Water Maintenance
402-000-000-534-50-49-10 Training
402-000-000-534-50-49-00 Miscellaneous
402-000-000-534-50-48-00 Repair & Maintenance
402-000-000-534-50-47-00 Public Utility Services
402-000-000-534-50-45-00 Rentals & Leases
402-000-000-534-50-43-00 Travel
402-000-000-534-50-42-00 Communication
402-000-000-534-50-41-10 Prof Svcs Water Quality Test

402-000-000-535-10-53-00 State of Washington Excise Taxes
402-000-000-535-10-49-00 Miscellaneous
402-000-000-535-10-48-00 Repair & Maintenance
402-000-000-535-10-47-00 Public Utility Services
402-000-000-535-10-42-00 Communication
402-000-000-535-10-41-00 Professional Services

          Sewer Utilities
            Sewer Administration - General
402-000-000-535-10-31-00 Supplies

          Total Water Utilities

402-000-000-535-50-11-10 Overtime Sewer Maint
402-000-000-535-50-11-00 Overtime
402-000-000-535-50-10-12 Standby Salaries & Wages Maint
402-000-000-535-50-10-11 Standby Salaries & Wages
402-000-000-535-50-10-10 Salaries & Wages Sewer Maint

            Sewer Maintenance
402-000-000-535-50-10-00 Salaries & Wages

            Total Sewer Administration - General
402-000-000-535-10-55-00 Fees & Permits
402-000-000-535-10-54-00 City Utility Taxes

402-000-000-535-50-21-30 Emp Ben Sew Maint L&I Contribs
402-000-000-535-50-21-20 Emp Ben Sew Maint Retire
402-000-000-535-50-21-10 Emp Ben Sew Maint Med & Dent
402-000-000-535-50-21-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medi Sew Maint
402-000-000-535-50-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
402-000-000-535-50-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs
402-000-000-535-50-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
402-000-000-535-50-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental
402-000-000-535-50-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare

402-000-000-535-50-31-10 Supplies Sewer Maint
402-000-000-535-50-31-00 Supplies
402-000-000-535-50-21-40 Emp Ben Sew Maint Employ Sec

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
234



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 18

$20,000 $20,000
$2,500 $2,500

$500 $500
$2,000 $2,000
$4,500 $4,500
$5,000 $5,000
$2,000 $2,000

$55,000 $62,000
$5,000 $6,000
$5,000 $5,000

$32,000 $0
$1,500 $1,500

$500 $500
$500 $750
$500 $500

$1,100 $1,000
$77,000 $70,000
$13,000 $13,000

$5,000 $5,000
$7,000 $7,000

$13,000 $15,000
$2,500 $2,500
$1,000 $2,000
$1,000 $1,500
$5,000 $2,500
$4,000 $1,000

$1,085,827 $1,123,603

$1,370,727 $1,415,201

$0 $500
$0 $500
$0 $1,000

$25,000 $10,000
$6,500 $6,500

$72,190 $82,381
$88,318 $121,995
$15,606 $15,606
$51,328 $51,328

$712,250 $731,787
$201,777 $201,777

$15,000 $0
$0 $10,000

$1,187,969 $1,231,373

$1,187,969 $1,231,373

$3,358,908 $3,472,266

$3,593,786 $3,567,659

$27,516 $15,490
$27,516 $15,490

        Nonexpenditures
402-000-000-589-00-02-00 Utility Overpay Sewer
402-000-000-589-90-01-00 Utility Overpay Water

402-000-000-535-50-35-00 Small Tools
402-000-000-535-50-32-30 Fuel For Vehicles
402-000-000-535-50-32-20 Fuel For Vehicles
402-000-000-535-50-32-10 Fuel For Pumping Sewer Maint
402-000-000-535-50-32-00 Fuel For Pumping
402-000-000-535-50-31-12 Supplies - WWTP Chemicals

402-000-000-535-50-44-00 Advertising
402-000-000-535-50-43-00 Travel
402-000-000-535-50-42-10 Communication Sewer Maint
402-000-000-535-50-42-00 Communication
402-000-000-535-50-41-30 Prof Svcs - Lease
402-000-000-535-50-41-20 Stp Sampling & Testing
402-000-000-535-50-41-10 Prof Services Sewer Maint
402-000-000-535-50-41-00 Professional Services
402-000-000-535-50-35-10 Small Tools - Sewer Maint

402-000-000-535-50-49-10 Miscellaneous Sewer Maint
402-000-000-535-50-49-01 Training
402-000-000-535-50-49-00 Miscellaneous
402-000-000-535-50-48-11 Repairs & Maintenance "Farm"
402-000-000-535-50-48-10 Repair & Maint - Sewer Maint
402-000-000-535-50-48-00 Repair & Maintenance
402-000-000-535-50-47-30 Public Utilities "Farm"
402-000-000-535-50-47-00 Public Utility Services
402-000-000-535-50-45-00 Rentals & Leases

402-000-000-597-00-00-53 T.O. - 001 Insurance Portion Water
402-000-000-597-00-00-52 T.o. - 001 C.e. Admin Sewer
402-000-000-597-00-00-51 T.o. - 001 C.e. Admin Water
402-000-000-597-00-00-50 To-Current Expense Dispatcher

        Other Financing Uses
          Transfer Out
402-000-000-597-00-00-40 Transfers Out - 430 Util Equip

          Total Sewer Utilities

            Total Sewer Maintenance
402-000-000-535-50-55-00 Permits & Fees
402-000-000-535-50-53-00 External Taxes

        Total Nonexpenditures

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Solid Waste
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
403-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Fund Balance

Total Water Sewer

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Transfer Out

402-000-000-597-00-00-90 T. O. - 307 - PW Remodel Project

      Total Expenditure

402-000-000-597-00-00-80 T O 406 Water Improvement Fund
402-000-000-597-00-00-70 T.o.- 405 Sewer Improve Fund
402-000-000-597-00-00-55 T.O. - 001 Insurance Portion - Sewer

402-000-000-597-00-00-90 T. O. - 307 - PW Storage Outbuilding Repair

          Garbage and Solid Waste Utilities
            Solid Waste Administration 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
235



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 19

$500 $500
$750 $750

$865,152 $1,022,552
$500 $500

$3,000 $3,000
$1,500 $1,500

$500 $500
$54,673 $63,959

$109,346 $127,918
$1,035,921 $1,221,179

$1,035,921 $1,221,179

$60,924 $68,508
$13,412 $13,412
$74,336 $81,920

$74,336 $81,920

$1,110,257 $1,303,099

$1,137,773 $1,318,589

$641,642 $1,027,806
$641,642 $1,027,806

$500 $500
$5,140 $5,140
$5,640 $5,640

$500 $500
$2,000 $2,000

$500 $500
$2,500 $2,500
$2,500 $2,500
$8,000 $8,000

$10,000 $10,000
$1,000 $2,500

$11,000 $12,500

$24,640 $26,140

$39,517 $39,517
$350,000 $350,000
$118,421 $118,421

$1,186 $988
$15,750 $14,000

$6,513 $5,921
$566,401 $528,847

403-000-000-537-10-54-00 City Utility Taxes
403-000-000-537-10-53-00 State of Washington Excise Taxes
403-000-000-537-10-49-00 Miscellaneous
403-000-000-537-10-48-00 Repair & Maintenance
403-000-000-537-10-47-00 Public Utilities
403-000-000-537-10-42-00 Communication
403-000-000-537-10-41-00 Professional Services
403-000-000-537-10-31-00 Supplies
403-000-000-537-10-11-00 Overtime

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Sewer Line Repair & Construct
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
405-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Fund Balance

Total Solid Waste

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Transfer Out
403-000-000-597-00-00-55 T.O. - 001 Insurance Portion

      Total Expenditure

        Other Financing Uses
          Transfer Out
403-000-000-597-00-00-10 T.o. - 001 C.e. Administrative

          Total Garbage and Solid Waste Utilities

            Total Solid Waste Administration 

            Total Maintenance
405-000-000-535-50-48-10 Manhole Repairs
405-000-000-535-50-48-00 Repair & Maintenance
405-000-000-535-50-44-00 Advertising
405-000-000-535-50-41-00 Professional Services

            Maintenance
405-000-000-535-50-31-00 Supplies

            Total Administration - General
405-000-000-535-10-49-00 Perkins Prairie L.L.C. Latecomer's Fee

          Sewer Utilities
            Administration - General
405-000-000-535-10-44-00 Advertising

405-000-000-591-35-78-90 PWTF Phase II E 20 Year Debt
405-000-000-591-35-78-89 Pwtf Const Loan - 20 YR Debt
405-000-000-591-35-78-88 Pwtf Design Loan - 20 YR Debt
        Other Financing Uses

          Total Sewer Utilities

            Total Operations - General
405-000-000-535-80-41-10 Professional Svcs Base Mapping

            Operations - General
405-000-000-535-80-41-00 Professional Services

          Capital Expenditures

          Total Interest And Other Debt Service Costs
405-000-000-592-35-83-90 Pwft Phase II E - 20 Yr Debt -Interest
405-000-000-592-35-83-89 Pwft Const Loan - 20 Yr Debt -Interest
405-000-000-592-35-83-88 Pwft Design Loan - 20 Yr Debt -Interest
          Interest And Other Debt Service Costs

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
236



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 20

$2,500 $2,500
$5,000 $5,000

$75,000 $60,000
$0 $15,000

$100,000 $100,000
$30,000 $30,000
$25,000 $25,000

$0 $0
$5,000 $5,000

$0 $0
$284,400 $320,000

$0 $32,000
$0 $250,000
$0 $62,500

$430,000 $400,000
$0 $100,000
$0 $26,000
$0 $5,200
$0 $10,000
$0 $2,500
$0 $75,000

$150,000 $150,000
$0 $0

$1,106,900 $1,675,700

$26,768 $20,619
$15,000 $0
$25,000 $5,000

$0 $5,000
$66,768 $30,619

$1,740,069 $2,235,166

$1,764,709 $2,261,306

$2,406,351 $3,289,112

$127,880 $76,710
$127,880 $76,710

$500 $500
$5,000 $5,000
$2,500 $2,500

$500 $500
$500 $500

$9,000 $9,000

$9,000 $9,000

$99,152 $99,152

$7,436 $6,941
$106,588 $106,093

$500 $500

          Total Capital Expenditures

405-000-000-594-80-48-00 PW Storage Facility

405-000-000-594-73-48-00 Spikton Road- A Street to Ryan Rd Sewer (CIP G2)

      Total Expenditure

405-000-000-594-50-48-00 Edith - Balm Street Sewer Replace
405-000-000-594-40-48-41 Sewer Capital Improvement Projects - Prof SVCS

405-000-000-594-38-66-32 WWTP - Supplies Mech Replace
405-000-000-594-35-63-12 White River Property Access Gate Relocation
405-000-000-594-35-63-10 WWTP Wastewater Reuse Feasibility Study

405-000-000-594-40-48-00 WWTP Non-potable Water System Re-piping

405-000-000-594-50-48-01 Edith Street- Overlay from Park Ave to Dundass St

405-000-000-594-71-48-00 Copperwynd- Sewer Repairs

405-000-000-594-71-48-00 Ryan Rd - 649 Spiketon Rd Sewer (CIP G5)

405-000-000-594-73-48-00 McNeely Street S. - Sewer Extension (CIP T-1)

405-000-000-594-73-48-00 WSU Ag Land- Roof Replacement - Bldg #4

405-000-000-594-80-48-00 GFC Reserve

          Water Utilities
            Operations - General
406-000-000-534-80-31-00 Supplies

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Water Line Repair & Construct
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
406-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Fund Balance

Total Sewer Line Repair & Construct

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Transfer Out

405-000-000-597-10-00-33 T. O. -  430 Utility Equip Res
405-000-000-597-10-00-32 T. O. -  307 PW Remodel Project

          Transfer Out
405-000-000-597-10-00-31 T.O. - 001 Grant/Project Admin

408-000-000-597-00-00-57 T. O. - 307 - PW Storage Outbuilding Repair

          Total Interest And Other Debt Service Costs

          Interest And Other Debt Service Costs
406-000-000-592-34-83-00 PWTF - Int - Trail Well and Emergency Intertie Booster

        Other Financing Uses
406-000-000-591-34-78-80 PWTF Principle Trail Well & Emergency Intertie Booster 

          Total Water Utilities

            Total Operations - General
406-000-000-534-80-44-00 Advertising
406-000-000-534-80-41-30 Comp Water Plan Update Prof Svcs
406-000-000-534-80-41-10 Professional Svcs Base Mapping
406-000-000-534-80-41-00 Professional Services

          Capital Expenditures
406-000-000-594-34-41-51 Booster Station & Intertie Prof Svcs

405-000-000-594-35-63-04 Collins Road Repair Project
405-000-000-594-35-63-01 Stp - Wwtp Upgrade Construct
405-000-000-594-35-31-01 Supplies

405-000-000-594-71-48-00 Prof Svcs - Ryan Rd - 649 Spiketon Rd Sewer

405-000-000-594-73-48-00 Prof Svcs - Spikton Road- A Street to Ryan Rd Sewer

405-000-000-594-50-48-01 Prof Svcs - Edith Street- Overlay from Park Ave to 

405-000-000-594-71-48-00 Prof Svcs - Copperwynd- Sewer Repairs

405-000-000-594-73-48-00 Prof Svcs - McNeely Street S. - Sewer Extension

405-000-000-594-35-63-04 Prof Svcs - Collins Road Repair Project

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
237



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 21

$5,000 $2,000
$500 $500

$0 $0
$5,000 $5,000
$2,500 $5,000
$1,500 $10,000

$20,000 $5,000
$500 $500

$124,000 $135,800
$0 $44,200
$0 $10,000
$0 $28,000
$0 $2,800
$0 $20,000

$5,000 $5,000
$25,000 $25,000

$500 $500
$20,000 $225,000

$0 $56,250
$55,000 $193,000

$0 $48,250
$180,000 $155,000

$0 $25,000
$0 $230,000
$0 $57,500
$0 $400,000
$0 $100,000
$0 $0

$445,000 $1,789,800

$32,133 $20,010
$15,000 $0
$15,000 $5,000

$0 $5,000
$62,133 $30,010

$613,721 $1,925,903

$622,721 $1,934,903

$750,601 $2,011,613

$3,941 $98,337
$3,941 $98,337

$148,493 $164,895
$7,300 $7,300
$3,500 $3,500

$11,360 $12,615
$45,917 $52,357
$18,859 $20,942

$6,300 $6,300
$297 $330

$25,000 $25,000
$4,500 $5,000
$2,000 $2,500
$2,500 $2,500
$1,000 $14,000

406-000-000-594-34-65-10 Raw Water Distribution Main (Ag Property)
406-000-000-594-34-65-00 Small Construction Projects
406-000-000-594-34-63-82 Water Transmission Main Repair
406-000-000-594-34-63-17 Tran Main Access Road Repair
406-000-000-594-34-48-41 Prof Svcs - Slow Sand Filter Re-Sand Pilot
406-000-000-594-34-48-10 Prof Svcs - Leak Detection
406-000-000-594-34-41-82 Water Transmission Prof Svcs

406-000-000-594-50-48-00 Edith/Balm St./Ewing Water Main Replace (CIP D-1)

      Total Expenditure

406-000-000-594-46-31-00 Naches Well Genset
406-000-000-594-45-31-00 Well Repairs - Naches Well
406-000-000-594-44-41-00 Professional Services

406-000-000-594-44-31-00 Well & System Telemetry (CIP TR-1)
406-000-000-594-34-66-41 Raw Water Main Emergency Repair Prof Svcs

Cedar Street Main Replace - Main St to Jefferson Ave

Trans Main Project Segments 10, 13, and 15 (1,800 LF)

406-000-000-594-80-48-00

406-000-000-594-80-48-00

406-000-000-594-44-31-01 Trail Well- Trouble Shooting
406-000-000-594-44-31-02 Copperwynd Valve Replacements

406-000-000-594-44-31-03 Pre Design Report- WTP Expansion (S3)

406-000-000-594-50-48-00 Prof Svcs - Edith/Balm St./Ewing Water Main Replace

406-000-000-594-44-31-02 Prof Svcs - Copperwynd Valve Replacements

406-000-000-594-44-31-00 Prof Svcs - Well & System Telemetry

        Total Other Financing Uses

          Total Transfer Out

406-000-000-597-10-00-40

          Transfer Out
406-000-000-597-10-00-31 T.O. - 001 Grant/Project Admin

408-000-000-597-00-00-57 T. O. - 307 - PW Storage Outbuilding Repair

          Total Capital Expenditures

406-000-000-594-73-48-00 Re-Sand Slow Sand Filter at WTP (CIP S-3)

406-000-000-594-72-48-00 McNeely Street S - Main Replace (CIP D-15)

406-000-000-594-80-48-00 GFC Reserve

406-000-000-594-72-48-00 Prof Svcs - McNeely Street S - Main Replace

406-000-000-594-80-48-00 Prof Svcs - Cedar Street Main Replace - Main to 

406-000-000-594-73-48-00 Prof Svcs - Re-Sand Slow Sand Filter at WTP

406-000-000-594-80-48-00 Prof Svcs - Trans Main Project Segments 

407-000-000-531-20-20-00 Emp Ben Soc Sec Medicare
407-000-000-531-20-11-00 Overtime
407-000-000-531-20-10-11 Standby Salaries & Wages

            Storm Drain - Maintenance
407-000-000-531-20-10-00 Salaries & Wages

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Storm Water Op & Maint Fund
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
407-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Fund Balance

Total Water Line Repair & Construct

T. O. - 430 Util Equip Res
406-000-000-597-10-00-32 T. O. - 307 PW Remodel Project

407-000-000-531-20-41-15 Prof Svcs - Sampling & Testing
407-000-000-531-20-41-00 Professional Services
407-000-000-531-20-35-00 Small Tools
407-000-000-531-20-32-00 Fuel For Vehicles
407-000-000-531-20-31-00 Supplies
407-000-000-531-20-20-40 Emp Ben Employ Sec
407-000-000-531-20-20-30 Emp Ben L & I Contribs
407-000-000-531-20-20-20 Emp Ben Retirement
407-000-000-531-20-20-10 Emp Ben Medical & Dental

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
238



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 22

$500 $750
$3,000 $3,000
$7,500 $10,000
$2,000 $2,000
$1,000 $1,500

$291,026 $334,489

$2,500 $2,500
$10,000 $10,000

$2,500 $2,500
$8,594 $8,897

$57,292 $59,313
$0 $0

$5,000 $5,000
$1,000 $1,000

$500 $500
$7,000 $7,000

$94,386 $96,710

$15,000 $5,000
$114,585 $118,625

$69,836 $77,977
$11,079 $11,079

$500 $500
$0 $5,000

$211,000 $218,182

$596,412 $649,380

$600,353 $747,717

$1,127,218 $716,586
$1,127,218 $716,586

$10,000 $70,000
$0 $1,500

$500 $5,000
$2,500 $2,500

$13,000 $79,000

$2,500 $2,500
$5,000 $2,500

$106,000 $20,000
$705,000 $105,000

$25,000 $42,000
$5,000 $10,500

$0 $0
$5,000 $2,500
$1,000 $500

$0 $90,000
$0 $22,500
$0 $130,150
$0 $32,538
$0 $64,000
$0 $16,000

407-000-000-531-30-42-00 Communication
407-000-000-531-30-41-00 Professional Services

            Storm Drain Administration / Overhead
407-000-000-531-30-31-00 Supplies

            Total Storm Drain - Maintenance
407-000-000-531-20-49-10 Training
407-000-000-531-20-49-00 Miscellaneous
407-000-000-531-20-48-00 Repair & Maintenance
407-000-000-531-20-45-00 Rentals & Leases
407-000-000-531-20-43-00 Travel

        Other Financing Uses
407-000-000-597-00-00-00 T.O. - 430 Utility Equip Res

            Total Storm Drain Administration / Overhead
407-000-000-531-30-49-01 Permits & Fees
407-000-000-531-30-49-00 Miscellaneous
407-000-000-531-30-48-00 Repairs & Maintenance
407-000-000-531-30-47-00 Publice Utility Services
407-000-000-531-30-45-00 Rentals & Leases
407-000-000-531-30-44-01 City Utility Taxes
407-000-000-531-30-44-00 State of Washington Excise Taxes

408-000-000-595-43-41-00 Prof Svcs - Phase II NPDES Comply - LID Review

408-000-000-594-80-48-00

408-000-000-594-80-48-00

Cedar Street Line Replacement

Dundass Storm Improvement (CIP2)

408-000-000-594-80-48-01 Prof Svcs -Spiketon Road- Ryan Road to Mt View

408-000-000-594-80-48-00 Prof Svcs -Cedar Street Line Replacement

408-000-000-594-80-48-00 Prof Svcs -Dundass Storm Improvement (CIP2)

408-000-000-594-80-48-01 Spiketon Road- Ryan Road to Mt View

408-000-000-595-43-31-00 Supplies - Phase II NPDES Comply
408-000-000-595-42-67-00 "C" Street Utilities Replacement Project
408-000-000-595-42-66-41 Prof Svcs - Small Projects - Storm Drain
408-000-000-595-42-66-00 Small Projects - Storm Drain
408-000-000-595-42-65-50 Spiketon Culvert Replacement
408-000-000-595-42-65-41 Prof Svcs Spiketon Culvert

Professional Services

          Storm Drain-C.P. Operating Expenses
408-000-000-542-40-41-00 Comp Storm Plan Update Prof Svcs

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Stormwater Capital Project Fund
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
408-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Fund Balance

408-000-000-542-40-41-01 Advertising

Total Storm Water Op & Maint Fund

        Total Other Financing Uses

407-000-000-597-00-00-57 T.O. - 001 Dispatcher
407-000-000-597-00-00-53

408-000-000-595-40-41-00 General Professional Services

        Other Financing Uses
          Capital Expense - Storm Drain
408-000-000-595-10-31-00 Storm Drain Project Supplies

          Total Storm Drain-C.P. Operating Expenses
408-000-000-542-40-41-12 Professional Services - Base Map
408-000-000-542-40-41-10

T.O. - 001 Insurance Portion

      Total Expenditure

407-000-000-597-00-00-57 T.O. - 307 - PW Storage Outbuilding Repair

407-000-000-597-00-00-20 T.O. - 001 General Fund Adminstrative
407-000-000-597-00-00-10 T.O. - 408 Storm Drain Capital

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
239



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 23

$0 $40,000
$0 $10,000
$0 $265,605

$854,500 $856,293

$27,485 $24,920
$15,000 $0
$25,000 $5,000

$0 $5,000
$67,485 $34,920

$934,985 $970,212

$2,062,203 $1,686,799

$192,039 $250,103
$192,039 $250,103

$2,500 $2,500
$2,500 $2,500
$5,000 $5,000

$500 $500
$500 $40,000
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500

$40,000 $50,000
$12,000 $15,000

$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500

408-000-000-597-10-00-32 T. O. - 307 PW Remodel Project

408-000-000-597-00-00-57 T. O. - 307 - PW Storage Outbuilding Repair

408-000-000-597-10-00-31 T. O. - 001 Grant/Project Admin

          Total Capital Expense - Storm Drain

      Total Expenditure

408-000-000-594-80-48-00 GFC Reserve

408-000-000-594-80-48-00 3rd Street Storm Improvement
408-000-000-594-80-48-00 Prof Svcs -3rd Street Storm Improvement

          Capital Expenditures
430-000-000-594-30-44-00 Advertising

        Total Utiltiy EQ Reserve - Operating Expense
430-000-000-538-90-35-02 Misc Small Equip

        Utiltiy EQ Reserve - Operating Expense
430-000-000-538-90-35-00 Machinery & Equipment

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Utility Equipment Reserve
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
430-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Ending Fund Balance

Total Stormwater Capital Project Fund

        Total Other Financing Uses

408-000-000-597-10-00-33 T. O. - 430 Utility Equip Reserve

430-000-000-594-30-64-21 3 - 4 YD Ford Dump Truck 1964 - Cemetery
430-000-000-594-30-64-20 Pickup - Light - 1990 Chevy 1500 - Mechanic
430-000-000-594-30-64-19 #7 Pickup Res - 96 - Ford 4x4 - Watering Trk
430-000-000-594-30-64-18 #6 Pickup Res - 82 - Chevy - Parks Svc Trck
430-000-000-594-30-64-17 #5 Pickup - 97 Jeep Cheerokee - Meter Reader
430-000-000-594-30-64-16 #4 Pickup - 97 Ford F250 - Parks w/Dump
430-000-000-594-30-64-15 #3 Pickup - Light - 2005 Chevy 4x4
430-000-000-594-30-64-14 #2 Pickup  - 97 - Ford F350 - Parks W/dump
430-000-000-594-30-64-12 #1 Pickup 2003 Sup 4x4

430-000-000-594-30-64-44 ATV Water Line Inspection - 1998 Polaris 4x4
430-000-000-594-30-64-43 3cy Loader - Treatment Plant
430-000-000-594-30-64-42 5-6 YD Dump Truck - 1994  F - Series Ford Diesel
430-000-000-594-30-64-28 Backhoe 580K 1991 W/S
430-000-000-594-30-64-27 Backhoe 580D 1982 Cemetery
430-000-000-594-30-64-25 Fiat - Allis Grader - 1980
430-000-000-594-30-64-24 Tymco Street Sweeper - 1997
430-000-000-594-30-64-23 Pickup - 1988 Chevy 3500 Flatbed
430-000-000-594-30-64-22 Pickup - 2010 Ford F150 - WWTP

430-000-000-594-30-64-61 1997 New Holland Tractor & Tiger Side Mower
430-000-000-594-30-64-60 Mini Truck - Fuel Conservation
430-000-000-594-30-64-55 Trailer - Tandem Axle 7 Ton
430-000-000-594-30-64-54 Excavator - 5 Ton Kabota 21
430-000-000-594-30-64-53 Mower X Mark Fr250k - 2008 - 48" Deck
430-000-000-594-30-64-52 Mower Xmark Kabota 07
430-000-000-594-30-64-51 #9 Pickup - 2005 Chevy Gas Dep 4x4
430-000-000-594-30-64-50 #8 Pickup - 2007 Chevy Supt (mid)
430-000-000-594-30-64-49 Street Repair - Tar Heater

430-000-000-594-30-64-70 2008 Grasshopper Blower
430-000-000-594-30-64-69 2007 New Holland Tractor T 1510 - Parks
430-000-000-594-30-64-68 1999 Case 580L 4x4 Backhoe
430-000-000-594-30-64-67 1988 Peterbilt Vactor Truck
430-000-000-594-30-64-66 1993 International Model 4900 Dump Truck
430-000-000-594-30-64-65 1984 GMC Dump Truck
430-000-000-594-30-64-64 2014 Chevy 3500 HD Water Service Truck
430-000-000-594-30-64-62 Mower - John Deere 1420 - 2002

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
240



 City Administrator on 4/3/2019 10:40:56 AM  Public Hearing - Expenditures 24

$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$500 $500
$100 $100
$500 $500
$200 $200
$200 $200

$73,500 $126,000

$5,000 $4,000
$5,000 $4,000

$83,500 $135,000

$275,539 $385,103

$13,204 $48,278
$13,204 $48,278

$325,000 $325,000
$75,000 $75,000

$400,000 $400,000

$400,000 $400,000

$413,204 $448,278

$181,951 $186,134
$181,951 $186,134

$1,000 $1,000
$1,000 $1,000

$1,000 $1,000

$1,000 $1,000

$182,951 $187,134

$28,976,771 $33,072,250 

430-000-000-594-30-64-71 Mower Xmark Turf Tracer 2007 - 52" Deck

                Grand Totals

Total Cemetery Improvement

        Total Nonexpenditures

          Total Other Nonexpenditures

        Nonexpenditures
          Other Nonexpenditures
701-000-000-589-90-04-00 Cemetery Lot Buy Back

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Cemetery Improvement
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
701-000-000-508-10-00-00 Reserved Ending Fund Balance

Total Municipal Court Trust 

      Total Expenditure

        Total Nonexpenditures
631-000-000-589-00-00-10 Court-Trust Cash Disbursement

        Nonexpenditures
631-000-000-589-00-00-00 Court-Remittance to City

          Total Ending Net Cash And Investments

Municipal Court Trust 
      Expenditure
          Ending Net Cash And Investments
631-000-000-508-80-00-00 Unreserved Ending Fund Balance

Total Utility Equipment Reserve

          Total Transfer Out

      Total Expenditure

          Transfer Out
430-000-000-597-10-00-10 TO - 001 Invest Int

          Total Capital Expenditures
430-000-000-594-35-64-34 Workman Utility Vehicle - Gator
430-000-000-594-35-64-33 Forklift
430-000-000-594-35-64-31 Mower-John Deere 1420-2002
430-000-000-594-30-64-78 #1 Pickup - 2017 Toyota - UT Super
430-000-000-594-30-64-77 PW Mobile Vehicle Shop Hoist

      Total Expenditure

430-000-000-594-30-64-76 1994 Graco 5900 - Crosswalk and Curb Painter
430-000-000-594-30-64-75 1996 Vermeer BC935 Chipper
430-000-000-594-30-64-74 1992 L9000 Semi Truck - WWTP
430-000-000-594-30-64-73 1988 Ford F350 Lift Truck
430-000-000-594-30-64-72 2004 Polaris 6x6 Atv - Water Line Inspection

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
241



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix F:  2019 BUDGET REQUEST “REVENUES” 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
242



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 1

2019 Budget 2020 Budget 
Request

$931,114 $1,433,947
$931,114 $1,433,947

$997,837 $1,059,044
$997,837 $1,059,044

$10 $10
$10 $10

$950,000 $1,150,000
$45,000 $52,000

$995,000 $1,202,000

$245,000 $250,000
$100,888 $100,888
$130,000 $130,000
$203,500 $209,082
$109,346 $127,918

$70,000 $80,000
$15,000 $10,000
$65,000 $60,000
$57,292 $59,313

$996,026 $1,027,201

$10,000 $10,000
$4,000 $4,000

$500 $500
$14,500 $14,500

$3,003,373 $3,302,755

$3,000 $1,500
$1,000 $300

$35,000 $35,000
$39,000 $36,800

$250,000 $375,000
$2,500 $2,500

$15,000 $15,000

Revenue - 2020 Budget - Public Hearing

Account Number Title

Current Expense

          Total Timber Harvest Taxes

          Retail Sales and Use Taxes
001-000-000-313-11-00-00 Sales & Use Tax
001-000-000-313-17-00-00 Park Sales Tax

001-000-000-311-11-00-00 Property Taxes
          Total General Property Taxes

          Timber Harvest Taxes
001-000-000-312-10-00-00 Forest Excise Tax

          Beginning Balance-General Fund
001-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance
          Total Beginning Balance-General Fund

        Taxes
          General Property Taxes

Telephone Tax
001-000-000-316-47-10-00 Cellular Phone Tax

001-000-000-316-43-00-00 Natural Gas Tax
001-000-000-316-44-00-00 Sewer Tax
001-000-000-316-45-00-00 Garbage/Solid Waste Tax

          Total Retail Sales and Use Taxes

            Business and Occupation Taxes on Private Utilites
001-000-000-316-41-00-00 Electric Tax
001-000-000-316-42-00-00 Water Tax

001-000-000-321-99-00-00 Business License

001-000-000-316-46-00-00 TV Cable Tax
001-000-000-316-47-00-00

          Total Business Licenses 

          Non-Business Licenses and Permits
001-000-000-322-10-00-00 Building Permits

        Licenses and Permits
          Business Licenses 
001-000-000-321-30-10-00 Fire Permits
001-000-000-321-30-10-10 Fire Dept Svcs

001-000-000-317-20-00-00 Leasehold Taxes

        Total Taxes

001-000-000-316-48-00-00 Storm Drain Tax
            Total Business and Occupation Taxes on Private Utilites

001-000-000-316-82-00-00 Gambling Tax

001-000-000-322-30-00-00 Animal Licenses
001-000-000-322-90-00-00 Other Licenses & Permits

          Excise Taxes

001-000-000-318-34-00-00 Real Estate Excise Tax (St of WA)
          Total Excise Taxes

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
243



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 2

$267,500 $392,500

$306,500 $429,300

$81,098 $70,000
$24,492 $24,000
$38,882 $39,000

$144,472 $133,000

$144,472 $133,000

$0 $0
$250 $250

$1,000 $1,000
$250 $250

$1,000 $1,000
$2,000 $2,000

$500 $500
$50 $50

$250 $250
$100 $100

$5,500 $12,500
$10,900 $17,900

$4,000 $4,000
$1,000 $1,000

$12,000 $12,000
$18,000 $18,000
$42,500 $42,500

$9,000 $9,000
$15,000 $15,000
$12,000 $15,000
$49,115 $49,115
$25,885 $25,885

$3,000 $4,000
$100 $100

$25,000 $10,000
$40,000 $42,000

$0 $1,000
$0 $100
$0 $100

$256,600 $248,800

$250 $250
$250 $250

$50,000 $50,000
$10,000 $10,000

$150,000 $175,000
$210,000 $235,000

$477,750 $501,950

001-000-000-336-06-95-00 Liquor Board Profits
          Total State Entitlements and Impact Payments

        Total Intergovernmental Revenues

        Charges for Goods and Services
          General Government-Services

        Intergovernmental Revenues
          State Entitlements and Impact Payments
001-000-000-336-06-41-10 Marijuana Excise Tax
001-000-000-336-06-94-00 Liquor Excise Tax

          Total Non-Business Licenses and Permits

        Total Licenses and Permits

001-000-000-341-33-06-00 IT Time Pay Fee
001-000-000-341-50-00-00 Sale of Maps
001-000-000-341-62-00-00 Microfilm & Photocopy Charge

001-000-000-341-33-00-30 Crim Conv FE CN
001-000-000-341-33-02-00 Warrant Costs
001-000-000-341-33-03-00 Def Pros Admin Costs 04

001-000-000-341-33-00-00 Deferred Pros Admin Costs
001-000-000-341-33-00-10 Crim Cnv FE DUI
001-000-000-341-33-00-20 Crim Conv FE CT

001-000-000-342-10-12-00 Law Enforcement Svcs Wilkeson
001-000-000-342-10-13-00 Law Enforcement Svcs - Rainier School
001-000-000-342-21-10-00 Fire Contract - Town of Carbonado

001-000-000-342-10-00-00 Law Enforcement Services
001-000-000-342-10-01-00 Law Enforcement Services
001-000-000-342-10-11-00 Law Enforce Svcs - Carbonado

001-000-000-341-81-00-00 Sale of Copies
001-000-000-341-99-00-00 Passport & Naturalization Fees
          Total General Government-Services

          Public Safety-Services

001-000-000-342-33-06-00 Record Check Fee
001-000-000-342-33-07-00 Sentencing Compliance Monitoring Fee
001-000-000-342-38-01-00 Pretrial Sup-CLJ

001-000-000-342-21-20-21 SAFER R&R Grant Benefits
001-000-000-342-21-20-22 SAFER R&R Grant Interlocal Agencies
001-000-000-342-33-00-00 Adult Prob Fees

001-000-000-342-21-10-10 Fire Service Contract - Wilkeson
001-000-000-342-21-10-20 Firefighter Training Reimburse
001-000-000-342-21-20-20 SAFER R&R Grant Salaries

001-000-000-345-81-20-00 Zone & Subdivision-Engineers
001-000-000-345-81-30-00 Reimbursable Planning Exp
            Total Planning and Development Services

        Total Charges for Goods and Services

001-000-000-343-93-00-00 Animal Board
          Total Utilities & Other Services

            Planning and Development Services
001-000-000-345-81-00-00 Zone&subdivision-Planning

001-000-000-342-90-01-00 CNV FE DUE 01/13
001-000-000-342-90-02-00 CONV FE CT 1/13
          Total Public Safety-Services

          Utilities & Other Services

        Fines and Penalties

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
244



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 3

$5,000 $5,000
$5,000 $5,000

$500 $500
$2,500 $2,500

$20,000 $20,000
$7,000 $7,000

$55,000 $60,000
$0 $5,000

$500 $500
$1,000 $1,000

$0 $0
$86,500 $96,500

$250 $250
$250 $250

$15,000 $15,000
$2,000 $2,000

$100 $100
$0 $0

$100 $100
$15,000 $15,000

$1,000 $1,000
$33,700 $33,700

$2,500 $2,500
$250 $250

$2,500 $2,500
$0 $0

$5,250 $5,250

$10,000 $10,000
$3,500 $3,500

$250 $250
$250 $250

$14,000 $14,000

$144,450 $154,450

$8,000 $15,000
$1,000 $1,000
$7,000 $7,000

$16,000 $23,000

$1,000 $500
$25,000 $5,000
$26,000 $5,500

$2,500 $2,500
$3,000 $3,000
$5,500 $5,500

001-000-000-353-10-04-00 Legislative Assessment
001-000-000-353-10-05-00 Traffic Inf
001-000-000-353-10-80-00 DF - Deferred Finding Admin Fee

001-000-000-353-10-00-00 Traffic Infractions  TO 07/03
001-000-000-353-10-02-00 Traffic Infractions
001-000-000-353-10-03-00 Traffic Infraction 07/07

          Civil Penalties
001-000-000-352-30-00-00 Mandatory Insurance Admin Cost
          Total Civil Penalties

          Civil Infractions 

001-000-000-355-20-00-00 DWI
001-000-000-355-20-01-00 DUI - DP Acct
001-000-000-355-20-03-00 Cri Cnv Fee DUI

          Total Civil Infractions 

001-000-000-354-00-00-00 Parking Infractions
001-000-000-354-00-01-00 Pr-Handicapped
          Criminal Traffic Misdemeanor Fines

001-000-000-353-70-02-00 Other Infractions
001-000-000-353-70-04-00 Other Infractions 08/31/07
001-000-000-353-70-13-00 Other Infractions

001-000-000-356-90-02-00 City Dog Violation
001-000-000-356-90-04-00 Other Non Traffic
001-000-000-356-90-14-00 Cri Conv Fee Cn

001-000-000-355-80-02-00 Criminal Conv Fe Ct
          Total Criminal Traffic Misdemeanor Fines

          Criminal Non-Traffic Fines
001-000-000-356-90-00-00 Non-Traffic Misdemeanor

001-000-000-355-20-04-00 DUI-DP Acct
001-000-000-355-80-00-00 Other Criminal Traffic
001-000-000-355-80-01-00 Criminal Traffic Misdemeanor

        Miscellaneous Revenues
          Interest and Other Earnings
001-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest
001-000-000-361-40-00-00 Sales Interest

001-000-000-357-35-00-00 Court Interpreter Costs
001-000-000-357-39-00-00 Criminal Costs
          Total Criminal Cost Recoveries

        Total Fines and Penalties

          Total Criminal Non-Traffic Fines

          Criminal Cost Recoveries
001-000-000-357-33-00-00 Public Def Fees
001-000-000-357-34-00-00 Warr/Subp - Shf

001-000-000-367-10-10-50 Flower Basket Donations
          Total Contributions and Donations From Private Sources

001-000-000-362-50-00-00 Long Term-Rents & Leases
          Total Rents, Leases and Concessions

          Contributions and Donations From Private Sources
001-000-000-367-10-00-00 Donations - Park Dept

001-000-000-361-40-01-00 D/M Interest Income
          Total Interest and Other Earnings

          Rents, Leases and Concessions
001-000-000-362-40-00-22 Fire Station Facility Rental

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
245



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 4

$500 $500
$15,000 $10,000

$100 $100
$1,000 $1,000

$16,600 $11,600

$64,100 $45,600

$500 $500
$2,500 $2,500
$5,000 $5,000

$10,000 $10,000
$1,000 $1,000
$1,500 $1,500
$2,500 $2,500
$1,000 $1,000

$250 $250
$75,000 $75,000
$37,500 $37,500

$1,000 $1,000
$1,000 $1,000

$20,000 $20,000
$500 $500
$250 $250

$159,500 $159,500

$5,000 $5,000
$5,000 $5,000

$100 $100
$10,000 $7,500
$20,100 $17,600

$179,600 $177,100

$25,000 $0
$274,000 $0

$15,000 $15,000
$103,000 $101,318

$6,500 $6,500
$6,500 $6,500

$100 $100
$1,202 $1,202

$163,993 $204,376
$500 $500
$500 $500

$60,924 $68,508
$69,836 $77,977
$66,934 $66,934
$11,079 $11,079

$441 $441
$1,773 $1,773
$6,342 $6,342

$13,412 $13,412
$1,810 $1,810

$250 $250

          Other Miscellaneous Revenues
001-000-000-369-10-00-00 Sale of Surplus Items

001-000-000-386-12-00-00 Crime Victims
001-000-000-386-83-05-00 JIS/Trauma 10/03
001-000-000-386-83-06-00 Auto Theft Prevention Acct

          Total Other Miscellaneous Revenues

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Nonrevenues
          Agency Type Deposits
001-000-000-386-10-00-00 State Building Code Fee

001-000-000-369-91-00-00 Other Miscellaneous Revenue
001-000-000-369-91-01-00 Small Overpayment
001-000-000-369-91-03-00 NSF Revenues

001-000-000-386-92-00-00 State Remittance 30% Psea (ct)
001-000-000-386-93-00-00 State Psea #3
001-000-000-386-96-03-00 Lab-Bld/breath

001-000-000-386-89-14-00 Hwy Safety Act
001-000-000-386-89-15-00 Death Inv Acct
001-000-000-386-91-00-00 State Remittance (court)

001-000-000-386-83-07-00 JIS/Trauma 08/07
001-000-000-386-83-32-00 Trauma Brain Injury
001-000-000-386-89-09-00 WSP Hiway Acct

001-000-000-389-90-10-40 Salary Overpayment Reimbursement
001-000-000-389-90-40-00 Leasehold Excise Tax 
          Total Other Nonrevenues

        Total Nonrevenues

          Total Agency Type Deposits

          Other Nonrevenues
001-000-000-389-90-00-00 Non-Revenues
001-000-000-389-90-10-10 Misc Reimbursements

001-000-000-386-97-00-00 JIS Account
001-000-000-386-97-01-00 JIS Account 04
001-000-000-386-99-00-00 School Zone Safety

001-000-000-397-50-15-00 T.I. - 008 RR ROW
001-000-000-397-50-20-00 T.I. - 103 Administrative
001-000-000-397-50-30-00 T.I. - 103 Insurance

001-000-000-397-00-40-00 T.I. Investment Interest
001-000-000-397-00-45-00 T.I. - Investment Interest - 003
001-000-000-397-00-60-00 T.I. From 402/Dispatcher

        Other Financing Sources
001-000-000-395-10-20-00 Sale of Fixed Asset - PD Station
001-000-000-395-10-30-00 Sale of Fixed Asset Fire Department
          Interfund Transfer-In

001-000-000-397-60-71-00 T.I. - 407 Insurance Portion
001-000-000-397-60-80-00 T.I. - 004 Insurance Portion
001-000-000-397-60-81-00 T.I. - 008 Insurance Portion

001-000-000-397-60-40-00 T.I. - 403 Administrative
001-000-000-397-60-40-10 T.I. - 407 Administration
001-000-000-397-60-60-00 T.I. - 402  Insurance Portion

001-000-000-397-60-10-00 T.I. - 402 Administrative
001-000-000-397-60-21-00 T.I. - 407 Dispatch
001-000-000-397-60-22-00 T.I. - 101 Dispatch

001-000-000-397-60-91-00 T.I. - 136 Vet Brick Administration

001-000-000-397-60-82-00 T.I. - 101 Insurance Portion
001-000-000-397-60-83-00 T.I. - 403 Insurance Portion
001-000-000-397-60-90-00 T.I. - 136 Insurance Portion

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
246



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 5

$5,000 $10,000
$42,216 $37,241
$26,768 $20,619
$32,133 $20,010
$27,485 $24,920
$29,254 $12,023

$991,952 $709,335

$991,952 $709,335

$1,500 $1,500
$500 $8,500
$500 $500

$2,500 $10,500

$16,000 $46,150
$300 $300

$10,000 $0
$26,300 $46,450

$500 $500
$500 $500

$1,500 $1,500
$750 $750

$2,250 $2,250

$2,250 $2,250

$31,550 $59,700

$12,500 $12,500
$2,000 $2,000

$500 $500
$500 $500

$15,500 $15,500

$10,000 $15,000
$10,000 $15,000

$25,500 $30,500

$500 $500
$500 $500

$500 $500
$50 $50

$5,000 $5,000
$250 $250

001-000-000-397-60-96-00 T.I. - 405 Grant/Project Admin
001-000-000-397-60-97-00 T.I. 406 Grant/Project Admin
001-000-000-397-60-98-00 T.I. - 408 Grant/Project Admin

001-000-000-397-60-93-00 T.I. - 401 Gas System Sale
001-000-000-397-60-95-00 T.I. - 102 Grant/Project Admin

          Total Rents, Leases and Concessions

          Contributions and Donations From Private Sources
001-000-103-367-10-10-20 CDBG Grant (sr)
001-000-103-367-10-10-40 Contributions & Donations

001-000-103-362-40-00-00 Rentals
001-000-103-362-40-40-00 Facility Contracts
001-000-103-362-40-50-00 Program Fees (Instructors)

001-000-000-397-60-99-00 T.I. - 307 Grant/Project Admin
          Total Interfund Transfer-In

        Total Other Financing Sources

    Community/Senior Center
          Rents, Leases and Concessions

          Total Other Nonrevenues

        Total Nonrevenues

    Total Community/Senior Center

    Buckley Hall/Food Bank
        Program Income-Buckley Hall
001-000-110-362-40-00-00 Rentals

          Total Other Miscellaneous Revenues

        Nonrevenues
          Other Nonrevenues
001-000-103-389-90-00-00 Miscellaneous Mpc Revenue
001-000-103-389-90-10-00 Mpc Reimbursable Deposits

001-000-103-367-10-20-00 PC Grant - Salaries & Wages
          Total Contributions and Donations From Private Sources

          Other Miscellaneous Revenues
001-000-103-369-91-00-00 Other MPC Revenue

    Youth Activities Center
        Charges for Goods and Services
001-000-113-347-60-00-00 Program Fees
        Total Charges for Goods and Services

        Miscellaneous Revenues

        Total Program Income-Buckley Hall

        Nonrevenues
001-000-110-389-90-00-00 Reimbursable Deposits
        Total Nonrevenues

    Total Buckley Hall/Food Bank

001-000-110-362-50-00-00 Facility Contracts
001-000-110-367-00-00-00 Contributions & Donations
001-000-110-367-60-00-00 Program Fees (Instructors)

001-000-113-367-10-00-00 Cont & Donat Youth Center

001-000-113-362-40-00-00 Rentals & Leases
001-000-113-362-50-00-00 Facility Contracts
001-000-113-367-00-00-00 Contributions & Donations

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
247



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 6

$2,000 $2,000
$22,780 $19,286

$3,000 $3,000
$0 $0

$500 $500
$34,080 $30,586

$500 $500
$500 $500

$35,080 $31,586

$5,404,327 $5,575,275

$6,335,441 $7,009,222

$159,383 $211,428

$2,000 $2,500
$2,000 $2,500

$50,000 $45,000
$50,000 $45,000

$52,000 $47,500

$211,383 $258,928

$5,015,465 $5,015,475

$103,000 $101,318
$103,000 $101,318

$103,000 $101,318

$5,118,465 $5,116,793

$24,136 $24,757

$375 $375
$375 $375

$500 $2,500
$500 $2,500

$500 $2,500

$875 $2,875

$25,011 $27,632

001-000-113-367-10-10-47 Tacoma PC Health Dept Healthy Youth 

001-000-113-369-91-00-00 Miscellaneous Revenue
        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Nonrevenues

001-000-113-367-10-10-40 Youth Program Grants (New)
001-000-113-367-10-10-45 PC Youth Violence Prevention Grant

001-000-113-367-10-10-48 Contribution & donations Van

Total Contingency Reserve Fund

General Fund Cumulative Reserve
003-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance

003-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

002-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance 

002-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

002-000-000-397-00-10-00 T.I. - 001 General Fund

001-000-113-389-90-00-00 Reimbursable Deposits
        Total Nonrevenues

    Total Youth Activities Center

Total Current Expense

Contingency Reserve Fund

          Total Interest and Other Earnings

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

      Total Revenue

Total Cemetery

Police Equipment Reserve
      Revenue

004-000-000-343-60-00-00 Sale of Lots
        Total Charges for Goods and Services

        Miscellaneous Revenues
          Interest and Other Earnings
004-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

Total General Fund Cumulative Reserve

Cemetery
      Revenue
004-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance
        Charges for Goods and Services

      Total Revenue

        Miscellaneous Revenues

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

      Total Revenue

    Total Revenue

        Miscellaneous Revenues

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Other Financing Sources

        Total Other Financing Sources

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
248



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 7

$249,163 $152,806

$5,000 $500
$5,000 $500

$5,000 $500

$12,000 $12,000
$2,000 $5,000

$18,000 $18,000
$42,500 $42,500
$74,500 $77,500

$1,500 $1,000
$1,500 $1,000

$2,500 $5,000
$2,000 $2,000

$600 $600
$5,100 $7,600

$2,500 $2,500
$2,500 $2,500

$100,000 $0
$50,000 $100,000

$150,000 $100,000

$238,600 $189,100

$487,763 $341,906

$104,478 $104,849
$104,478 $104,849

$2,500 $2,500
$19,107 $19,500

$250 $250
$21,857 $22,250

$250 $250
$250 $250

$22,107 $22,500

$126,585 $127,349

$1,024,250 $590,306

$35,000 $25,000

007-000-000-342-10-10-02 Law Enforcement Wilkeson
007-000-000-342-10-10-03 Law Enforcement Svcs - Rainier School
        Total Charges for Goods and Services

        Fines and Penalties

          Total Direct Federal Grants

        Total Intergovernmental Revenues

        Charges for Goods and Services
007-000-000-342-10-00-01 Law Enforcement Svcs Carbonado
007-000-000-342-10-05-00 TS - DUI Cost Recovery

007-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance
        Intergovernmental Revenues
          Direct Federal Grants
007-000-000-331-16-01-00 Dept of Justice Bpv Grant

007-000-000-389-90-00-00 Misc Reimbursement
        Total Nonrevenues

        Other Financing Sources
007-000-000-395-10-20-00 Sale of Fixed Asset PD

007-000-000-369-10-00-00 Sale of Surplus Items
007-000-000-369-91-00-00 Miscellaneous Revenue
        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Nonrevenues

007-000-000-357-39-00-00 Restitution
        Total Fines and Penalties

        Miscellaneous Revenues
007-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

008-000-000-362-50-00-00 Rentals & Leases
008-000-000-369-91-00-00 Miscellaneous Revenue
        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Nonrevenues

          Beginning Fund Balance-RR Row 
008-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance
          Total Beginning Fund Balance-RR Row 

        Miscellaneous Revenues
008-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

007-000-000-397-00-00-00 T I From 109 Criminal Justice
        Total Other Financing Sources

      Total Revenue

Total Police Equipment Reserve

Railroad Row Maint & Devel

        Intergovernmental Revenues
030-000-000-334-03-80-40 General Grant - 2016

008-000-000-389-90-00-00 Miscellaneous Revenue
        Total Nonrevenues

Total Railroad Row Maint & Devel

Fire Equipment Reserve
030-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance

      Total Revenue

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
249



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 8

$35,000 $25,000

$76,500 $76,300
$76,500 $76,300

$15,000 $8,000
$15,000 $8,000

$1,500 $1,500
$1,500 $1,500

$6,000 $6,000
$6,000 $6,000

$134,000 $116,800

$1,158,250 $707,106

$164,897 $215,389

$750 $4,999
$250 $0

$48,750 $81,250
$0 $80,000

$49,750 $166,249

$49,750 $166,249

$214,647 $381,639

$22,732 $34,080

$6,576 $6,644
$98,731 $97,993

$5,766 $5,813
$111,073 $110,450

$111,073 $110,450

$18,000 $25,000
$18,000 $25,000

$100 $100
$100 $100

$6,000 $6,000
$6,200 $6,200

$67,000 $60,000
$37,500 $40,000

        Total Charges for Goods and Services

        Miscellaneous Revenues
030-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest
        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Other Financing Sources

        Total Intergovernmental Revenues

        Charges for Goods and Services
030-000-000-342-21-00-00 Fire Contract/rainier School

        Miscellaneous Revenues
035-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest
035-000-000-367-00-00-00 Contributions & Donations
035-000-000-367-12-00-00 Impact Fees

        Total Other Financing Sources

    Total Fire EQ Reserve-IFL Revenue

Total Fire Equipment Reserve

Park Construction
035-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance

030-000-000-397-10-10-00 TI - 105 Bunker Replacement
        Total Other Financing Sources

    Fire EQ Reserve-IFL
        Other Financing Sources
030-000-131-397-00-00-00 T.I. From 105 - Aid Car Replacement

101-000-000-336-00-87-10 Gas Tax - Increased ESSB 5987
          Total State Entitlements, Impact Payments and Taxes

        Total Intergovernmental Revenues

        Charges for Goods and Services
101-000-000-345-89-00-00 Other Planning & Development (ROW 

        Intergovernmental Revenues
          State Entitlements, Impact Payments and Taxes
101-000-000-336-00-71-00 Multi - Modal Transpo
101-000-000-336-00-87-00 Gas Tax

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Park Construction

Street Operations
      Revenue
101-000-000-308-10-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance - Reserved

101-000-000-397-42-00-00 TBD Project Payment to City Street Cap 

101-000-000-369-91-00-00 Other Miscellaneous Revenue
        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Other Financing Sources
101-000-000-397-20-10-00 TBD Maintenance

        Total Charges for Goods and Services

        Miscellaneous Revenues
101-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest
101-000-000-367-00-00-00 Contributions & Donations

035-000-000-395-10-20-00 Sale of Fixed Asset - A Street Tot Lot

      Total Revenue

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
250



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 9

$0 $500
$104,500 $100,500

$239,773 $242,150 

$262,505 $276,230 

$254,306 $987,931
$254,306 $987,931

$174,000 $0
$0 $0
$0 $384,165
$0 $255,530

$174,000 $639,695

$174,000 $639,695

$2,500 $10,100
$2,500 $10,100

$37,500 $40,000
$37,500 $40,000

$37,500 $40,000

$303,700 $303,700
$303,700 $303,700

$517,700 $993,495

$772,006 $1,981,426

$3,906 $2,370

$105,000 $104,227
$350 $10

$105,350 $104,237

$105,350 $104,237

$109,256 $106,607

$182,529 $232,384

$252,000 $267,435
$252,000 $267,435

        Total Other Financing Sources

      Total Revenue

Total Street Operations

Street Capital Improvements

101-000-000-397-00-10-50 T.I. - 001 General Fund

        Total Intergovernmental Revenues

        Miscellaneous Revenues
102-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest
        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Other Financing Sources

          State Grants
102-000-000-334-03-81-22 T I B  Mundy Loss Road
102-000-000-334-03-82-03 TIB River Ave Reconstruction - State

          Total State Grants

      Revenue
          Beginning Balance Community
102-000-000-308-10-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance - Reserved
          Total Beginning Balance Community

        Intergovernmental Revenues

102-000-000-334-03-81-22 T I B  Naches Street
102-000-000-334-03-81-22 T I B  Cedar Street Reconstruction

Transportation Benefit District
103-000-000-308-10-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance - Reserved

103-000-000-317-60-00-00 TBD Vehicle Fees
103-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

Transportation Benefit District Fees

      Street CIP/Impact Fees
102-000-114-345-85-10-00 Street Impact Fees
      Total Street CIP/Impact Fees

Total Street Capital Improvements

TBD

      Total Revenue

          Transfers-In
102-000-000-397-00-10-50 T.I. - 101 Street Operations (TBD)
          Total Transfers-In

        Total Other Financing Sources

        Taxes
105-000-000-311-10-00-00 EMS Levy Taxes
        Total Taxes

Total Transportation Benefit District

Total TBD

Emergency Medical Services
      Revenue
105-000-000-308-10-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance - Reserved

      Total Revenue

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
251



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 10

$1,200 $1,200
$1,200 $1,200

$1,200 $1,200

$60,000 $60,000
$24,000 $20,000
$84,000 $80,000

$1,500 $2,500
$500 $500
$100 $100

$3,000 $3,500
$4,000 $4,000
$9,100 $10,600

$0 $500
$0 $500

$346,300 $359,735

$528,829 $592,119

$137,595 $175,623

$85,000 $92,000
$85,000 $92,000

$1,572 $1,514
$5,194 $5,471
$1,000 $1,000
$7,766 $7,985

$7,766 $7,985

$600 $600
$600 $600

$600 $600

$1,000 $3,200
$1,000 $3,200

$1,000 $3,200

$0 $0
$0 $0

105-000-000-334-04-90-00 Dept of Health Ems Trauma Care
          Total State Grants

        Total Intergovernmental Revenues

        Charges for Goods and Services
105-000-000-342-21-00-00 Ems Transport Fees

        Intergovernmental Revenues
          State Grants

105-000-000-369-90-30-00 Emt Class Registration Fees
        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

      Total Revenue

Total Emergency Medical Services

Crim Just/drug Enforcement

105-000-000-367-00-00-00 Donations & Contributions
105-000-000-367-00-30-00 Contrib&donate Bike Helmets/Life Vests
105-000-000-369-90-20-00 Cpr & First Aid Class Fees

105-000-000-342-21-10-00 ALS & Transport Subsidy 
        Total Charges for Goods and Services

        Miscellaneous Revenues
          Interest and Other Earnings
105-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

        Nonrevenues
105-000-000-389-90-00-00 Miscellaneous Revenue
        Total Nonrevenues

109-000-000-336-06-51-00 Dui - Cities
          Total State Entitlements, Impact Payments and Taxes

        Total Intergovernmental Revenues

        Fines and Penalties
          Criminal Costs

        Intergovernmental Revenues
          State Entitlements, Impact Payments and Taxes
109-000-000-336-06-21-00 Crim Jus - Pop
109-000-000-336-06-26-00 Crim Just - Spec Programs

109-000-000-308-10-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance - Reserved
        Taxes
109-000-000-313-71-00-00 Local Sales Tax-Crim Just Fund
        Total Taxes

109-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest
          Total Interest and Other Earnings

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

109-000-000-357-33-00-00 Restitution
          Total Criminal Costs

        Total Fines and Penalties

        Miscellaneous Revenues
          Interest and Other Earnings

        Nonrevenues
109-000-000-389-90-00-00 Miscellaneous Revenue
        Total Nonrevenues

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
252



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 11

$94,366 $103,785 

$231,961 $279,408

$210,229 $195,689
$210,229 $195,689

$8,000 $8,400
$8,000 $8,400

$2,500 $2,200
$0 $0

$2,500 $2,200

$2,500 $2,200

$10,500 $10,600

$220,729 $206,289

$136,528 $160,661

$12,500 $14,000
$1,000 $500

$12,500 $14,000
$26,000 $28,500

$500 $1,500
$500 $1,500

$500 $500
$500 $500
$250 $250

$1,250 $1,250

$27,750 $31,250

$164,278 $191,911

$66,050 $75,017
$66,050 $75,017

$275,000 $275,000
$275,000 $275,000

$2,000 $2,500

Total Crim Just/drug Enforcement

Fire Dept Station Construction

      Total Revenue

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Fire Dept Station Construction

Visitor Promo & Devel
      Revenue
136-000-000-308-10-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance - Reserved

      Total Revenue

          Total Charges for Goods and Services

        Miscellaneous Revenues
          Interest and Other Earnings
134-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

          Total Interest and Other Earnings
134-000-000-361-11-10-00 BAB Interest Receipts

          Beginning Balance Community
134-000-000-308-10-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance - Reserved
          Total Beginning Balance Community

          Charges for Goods and Services
134-000-000-342-21-10-00 Fire Contract/rainier School

136-000-000-367-00-00-00 Contributions & Donations
136-000-000-367-10-10-00 Buckley Arts Project
136-000-000-367-10-10-10 Veteran's Brick Orders

        Total Taxes

        Miscellaneous Revenues
          Interest and Other Earnings
136-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest
          Total Interest and Other Earnings

        Taxes
136-000-000-313-31-00-00 Hotel/Motel Lodging
136-000-000-313-31-01-00 Hotel Motel Excise Tax
136-000-000-313-31-02-00 Hotel/Motel Stadium

          Transfers-In
202-000-000-397-00-40-00 Invest Int from Fire Station Const Fund

          Total Beginning Fund Balance

        Taxes
202-000-000-311-10-00-00 Real and Personal Property Taxes
        Total Taxes

        Other Financing Sources

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

      Total Revenue

Total Visitor Promo & Devel

Fire Station Const Debt Service
          Beginning Fund Balance
202-000-000-308-10-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance - Reserved

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
253



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 12

$2,000 $2,500

$2,000 $2,500

$277,000 $277,500

$343,050 $352,517

$578,166 $680,996
$578,166 $680,996

$150,000 $150,000
$150,000 $150,000

$5,000 $12,500
$5,000 $12,500

$5,000 $5,000
$15,000 $10,000
$15,000 $5,000
$15,000 $100,000
$15,000 $5,000
$15,000 $5,000
$15,000 $5,000

$0 $5,000
$95,000 $140,000

$95,000 $140,000

$250,000 $302,500

$828,166 $983,496

$257,284 $319,673
$257,284 $319,673

$150,000 $150,000
$150,000 $150,000

$0 $0
$0 $0

$3,500 $5,500
$3,500 $5,500

$153,500 $155,500

          Total Transfers-In

        Total Other Financing Sources

Total Fire Station Const Debt Service

      Total Revenue

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Other Financing Sources
          Transfers-In
307-000-000-397-10-40-00 T.I. - 035 Parks Construction
307-000-000-397-10-60-00 T.I. - 402 Water/Sewer

        Taxes
307-000-000-318-34-00-00 Real Estate Excise Tax
        Total Taxes

        Miscellaneous Revenues
307-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

Capital Improvement
      Revenue
          Beginning Fund Balance
307-000-000-308-10-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance - Reserved
          Total Beginning Fund Balance

307-000-000-397-10-80-70 T.I. - 405 Sewer Line Repair & Construct
307-000-000-397-10-80-80 T.I. - 406 Water Line Repair & Construct

          Total Transfers-In

        Total Other Financing Sources

        Intergovernmental Revenues
          State Grants
308-000-000-334-03-10-00 Shoreline Plan Grant

307-000-000-397-10-80-80 T.I. - 407 Stormwater

307-000-000-397-10-80-10 T.I. - 408 Stormwater Capital
307-000-000-397-10-80-50 T.I. - 308 Comp Plan Capital Improve
307-000-000-397-10-80-60 T.I. - 102 Street Capital Improvements

308-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest
        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

      Total Revenue

          Total Beginning Fund Balance

        Taxes
308-000-000-318-35-00-00 Real Estate Excise Tax
        Total Taxes

        Miscellaneous Revenues

          Total State Grants

      Total Revenue

Total Capital Improvement

Comp Plan Capital Improve
      Revenue
          Beginning Fund Balance
308-000-000-308-10-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance - Reserved

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
254



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 13

$410,784 $475,173

$4,802 $13,396

$1,000 $1,000
$100 $100

$1,100 $1,100

$1,100 $1,100

$5,902 $14,496

$426,953 $328,256
$426,953 $328,256

$996,383 $996,383
$12,500 $12,500

$5,000 $5,500
$5,000 $5,000

$500 $5,000
$2,500 $750

$1,735,000 $1,790,819
$300,000 $300,000

$12,500 $12,500
$500 $5,000

$1,000 $1,000
$3,070,883 $3,134,452

$3,500 $4,500
$36,000 $40,000
$23,450 $23,450

$7,500 $7,500
$5,000 $5,000
$9,500 $13,500

$84,950 $93,950

$500 $500
$500 $500

$10,000 $10,000
$11,000 $11,000

$3,166,833 $3,239,402 

$3,593,786 $3,567,659 

$39,216 $34,311

$1,093,457 $1,279,178
$5,000 $5,000

$1,098,457 $1,284,178

Total Comp Plan Capital Improve

Natural Gas

      Revenue
          Beginning Fund Balance
402-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance
          Total Beginning Fund Balance

        Charges for Goods and Services

401-000-000-343-31-00-00 Late Charges
        Total Charges for Goods and Services

      Total Revenue

Total Natural Gas

Water Sewer

      Revenue
401-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance
        Charges for Goods and Services
401-000-000-343-30-00-00 Sale of Natural Gas

402-000-000-343-50-00-00 Sewer Service Charges
402-000-000-343-50-10-00 Sewer Charges - Dshs
402-000-000-343-51-00-00 Late Charges

402-000-000-343-41-10-00 Water Sales Penalty
402-000-000-343-42-00-00 Inspection Charges
402-000-000-343-43-00-00 Water Connections

402-000-000-343-40-00-00 Water Sales
402-000-000-343-40-00-10 Water Sales - City Farm
402-000-000-343-41-00-00 Utility Crew Dispatch Fee

402-000-000-367-10-10-00 Farm Prop Contributions
402-000-000-369-91-00-00 Other Miscellaneous Revenue
402-000-000-369-91-10-00 WWTP - Carbonado

402-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest
402-000-000-362-50-00-00 Leases (new)
402-000-000-367-00-00-00 Facilities Charge (Booster Station)

402-000-000-343-52-00-00 Inspection Fees
402-000-000-343-53-00-00 Sewer Connections
        Total Charges for Goods and Services

        Miscellaneous Revenues

      Revenue
403-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance
        Charges for Goods and Services
403-000-000-343-70-00-00 Solid Waste Services

402-000-000-389-90-00-00 Miscellaneous Revenue
        Total Nonrevenues

      Total Revenue

Total Water Sewer

Solid Waste

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Nonrevenues
402-000-000-388-10-00-00 Water Connections
402-000-000-388-10-10-00 Sewer Connections

403-000-000-343-70-10-00 Garbage Penalty
        Total Charges for Goods and Services

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
255



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 14

$100 $100
$100 $100

$100 $100 

$1,098,557 $1,284,278 

$1,137,773 $1,318,589 

$1,287,617 $2,116,841

$25,000 $25,000 
$0 $34,000

$376,074 $376,074 
$5,410 $5,410 

$406,484 $440,484

$712,250 $731,787
$712,250 $731,787

$1,118,734 $1,172,271 

$2,406,351 $3,289,112 

$106,325 $866,336 
$106,325 $866,336

$0 $500,000
$0 $500,000

$2,000 $2,000 
$405,000 $405,000 

$35,000 $36,000
$500 $500

$442,500 $443,500

$201,777 $201,777
$201,777 $201,777

$644,277 $1,145,277 

$750,602 $2,011,613 

$20,327 $119,091 
$20,327 $119,091

405-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance
        Miscellaneous Revenues
405-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

405-000-000-367-00-00-00 Facilities Charge
405-000-000-362-50-00-00 Space & Facilities Leases (Long-Term)

          Total Interest and Other Earnings

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

      Total Revenue

Total Solid Waste

Sewer Line Repair & Construct
      Revenue

        Miscellaneous Revenues
          Interest and Other Earnings
403-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

Total Water Line Repair & Construct

Storm Water Op & Maint Fund
          Beginning Fund Balance
407-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance
          Total Beginning Fund Balance

        Total Other Financing Sources

      Total Revenue

Total Sewer Line Repair & Construct

Water Line Repair & Construct
      Revenue
          Beginning Fund Balance

405-000-000-367-10-20-20 Perkins Prairie Latecomers Fee
        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Other Financing Sources
405-000-000-397-00-00-00 Transfer IN From 402

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Other Financing Sources
406-000-000-397-00-00-00 T.i. From 402 Water/sewer
        Total Other Financing Sources

      Total Revenue

406-000-000-367-00-00-00 Facilities Charge
406-000-000-367-10-30-00 Dshs Share of Improvements
406-000-000-369-91-00-00 Miscellaneous Revenues

406-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance
          Total Beginning Fund Balance

        Miscellaneous Revenues
406-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

        Intergovernmental Revenues
          State Grants
406-000-000-334-03-10-00 FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant
          Total State Grants

        Charges for Goods and Services

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
256



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 15

$572,923 $593,126
$1,000 $2,000
$3,500 $3,500

$577,423 $598,626

$0 $25,000
$0 $25,000

$100 $2,500
$500 $500

$1,000 1000
$1,600 $4,000

$1,000 $1,000
$1,000 $1,000

$580,023 $628,626 

$600,350 $747,717 

$1,553,268 $1,160,824 
$1,553,268 $1,160,824

$12,000 $25,000
$1,000 $1,000

$378,850 $378,850 
$391,850 $404,850

$2,500 $2,500
$2,500 $2,500

$114,585 $118,625
$114,585 $118,625

$114,585 $118,625 

$508,935 $525,975 

$2,062,203 $1,686,799 

$150,039 $340,353

$0 $0
$0 $0

$5,000 $5,000

407-000-000-369-91-00-00 Other Miscellaneous Revenue
        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Nonrevenues
407-000-000-389-90-00-00 Miscellaneous Revenue

        Total Charges for Goods and Services

        Miscellaneous Revenues
407-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest
407-000-000-367-00-00-00 Contributions & Donations

407-000-000-343-10-00-00 Storm Drainage Fees
407-000-000-343-10-00-01 Storm Drain Inspection Fee
407-000-000-343-10-10-00 Storm Drainage Fees Penalty

        Intergovernmental Revenues
          State Grants
407-000-000-334-03-10-00 DOE Stormwater Capacity Grant
          Total State Grants

408-000-000-367-10-10-00 Facilities Charges
        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Nonrevenues
408-000-000-389-90-00-00 Miscellaneous Reimbursements

          Total Beginning Fund Balance

        Miscellaneous Revenues
408-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest
408-000-000-367-00-00-00 Contributions & Donations

        Total Nonrevenues

Total Storm Water Op & Maint Fund

Stormwater Capital Project Fund
      Revenue
          Beginning Fund Balance
408-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance

      Total Revenue

        Miscellaneous Revenues
430-000-000-361-11-00-00 Investment Interest

        Total Other Financing Sources

      Total Revenue

Total Stormwater Capital Project Fund

Utility Equipment Reserve
430-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance

        Total Nonrevenues

        Other Financing Sources
          Transfers-In
408-000-000-397-00-30-00 T. I - 407 Storm Drain Op & Maint
          Total Transfers-In

        Intergovernmental Revenues
          State Grants
430-000-000-334-03-10-00 Shoreline Plan Grant
          Total State Grants

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
257



City Administrator 11/4/2019 Public Hearing - Revenues 16

$5,000 $5,000

$500 $1,000
$1,000 $250

$25,000 $10,000
$15,000 $5,000

$1,000 $1,000
$1,000 $500
$2,000 $2,000

$10,000 $5,000
$25,000 $5,000
$15,000 $5,000
$25,000 $5,000

$120,500 $39,750

$125,500 $44,750

$275,539 $385,103

$13,204 $48,278
$13,204 $48,278

$400,000 $400,000
$400,000 $400,000

$400,000 $400,000

$413,204 $448,278

$177,951 $182,134

$5,000 $5,000
$5,000 $5,000

$5,000 $5,000

$182,951 $187,134

$15,675,857 $17,249,050

$28,977,770 $33,072,250

        Total Miscellaneous Revenues

        Other Financing Sources
430-000-000-397-00-10-00 T. I. - 101- City Street

430-000-000-397-00-80-00 T.I. - 102 Street Capital
430-000-000-397-00-85-00 T.I. - 405 Sewer Capital
430-000-000-397-00-90-00 T.I. - 406 Water Capital

430-000-000-397-00-60-00 T.I. - 001 - General Fund - Parks
430-000-000-397-00-70-00 T.I. - 008 - RR-ROW - Parks
430-000-000-397-00-75-00 T.I. - 035 Parks Capital

430-000-000-397-00-20-00 T. I. - 004 - Cemetery
430-000-000-397-00-40-00 T. I. - 402 - Water/Sewer
430-000-000-397-00-50-00 T. I. - 407 - Storm Drain Op & Maint

      Revenue
701-000-000-308-10-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance - Reserved

      Total Revenue

631-000-000-308-80-00-00 Beginning Fund Balance
          Total Beginning Fund Balance

        Nonrevenues
631-000-000-389-00-00-00 Municipal Court 

430-000-000-397-00-95-00 T.I. - 408 Stormwater Capital
        Total Other Financing Sources

Total Utility Equipment Reserve

Municipal Court Trust 
          Beginning Fund Balance

      Total Revenue

Subtotal Revenue

                Grand Totals

        Charges for Goods and Services
701-000-000-343-60-00-00 Sale of Lots
        Total Charges for Goods and Services

      Total Revenue

Total Cemetery Improvement

        Total Nonrevenues

Total Municipal Court Trust 

Cemetery Improvement

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
258



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix G:  20 Year Citywide Capital Improvement Program (Schedule) 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
259



Source Project Cost Funding
Fund 035 Parks Capital Improvement

Skatepark Restroom Facade Construction $5,000 Local
Pump Track Bike Park Construction $5,000 Local

* Climbing Wall - Construction (Phase II) $27,000 Local
* Miller Park Phase I (a) & (b) Development $150,000 Local
* Wally's Basketball Court Rehab (Court & Fence) $10,000 Local
√ Perkins Prairie Trail - Construction (survey & staking) $0
* SR410 - Outdoor Basketball Court $85,000 Local

$282,000
Fund 102 Streets Capital Improvement

√ "C" Street Utilities Replacement Project $0 Local
* 2020 Sidewalk Project/ADA Repair Project $37,500
* 2020 Naches ADA Ramps $60,000
* Spikton Road- Ryan Rd to Mt View $250,000
* Dieringer Ave Traffic Rev - Copperwynd $50,000
* Naches Street Overlay - TIB PPP $255,530 TIB
* Foothills Trail - Pavement Maintenance $31,250 Local
* Cedar Street Reconstruction - TIB SCAP $426,850 TIB

Foothills Trail - White River Bridge Contribution $30,000
Subtotal $1,141,130

Fund 307 City Capital Improvement
* Remodel of MPC - Building/Plan/Court Offices $250,000 Local
* City Hall Repair - Carpet Replacement $20,000 Local
* MPC Repair $0
* Foothills Trail Parking & Trailhead Construction $400,000 Local

Buckley Hall Repair & Maintenance $60,000
Public Works Electric Gate $20,000

* Youth Center Repair - Carpet Replacement $15,000 Local
* Public Works Storage Outbuilding Repair $20,000 Local
* Animal Control Shelter $20,000

$805,000
Fund 308 City Comprehensive Plan Capital Improvement

√ CP Transportation Element - Completed
√ CP Utilities Element 
√ CP Capital Facilities Element 
√ SR410 Subarea Plan - Completed
√ Comprehensive Water System Plan - Completed
* Comprehensive Sewer System Plan Final to DOE 09/14/17
* Comprehensive Stormwater System Plan $0

$0
Fund 405 Sewer Repair & Construct

* Debt Repayment $528,847 Local
* WWTP Wastewater Reuse Feasibility Study $100,000 Local
√ Edith - Balm Street Sewer Replace $0 Local
√ Park - River Intersect Sewer Replace $0
√ Jeffferson - River Intersect Sewer Replace $0 (Est)
* Ryan RD - 649 Spiketon Rd Sewer Replacement $384,000
* Spiketon Road- A Street to Ryan Rd $312,500
* Edith Street- Overlay from Park Ave to Dundass Street $31,200
* Copperwynd- Sewer Repairs $12,500
* McNeely Street S. - Sewer Extension $500,000
* White River Property Access Gate Relocation $30,000 Local
* Collins Road Repair Project $75,000 Local

Capital Improvement Schedule - 2020 Budget 

Subtotal

Subtotal

Subtotal

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
260



* PW Storage Facility $150,000
$2,124,047

Fund 406 Water System Repair & Construct
* Debt Repayment $106,093 Local
√ "C" Street Utilities Replacement Project $0 Local
* Edith/Balm St./Ewing Water Main Replace $281,250 Local
* Telemetry Upgrades - Wells & WTP $180,000
* Re-Sand Slow Sand Filter at WTP $180,000
* Well Repairs - Naches Well $25,000 Local
* Trail Well- Trouble Shooting $10,000
* Cedar Street- From Main St to Jefferson Ave $287,500
* Pre Design Report- WTP Expansion (S3) $20,000
* Copperwynd Valve Replacements $30,800
* McNeely Street South - Main Replace (D15) $241,250
* New Trans Main Project Segments 10, 13, and 15 (1,800 LF) $500,000

$1,861,893
Fund 408 Stormwater Capital Project 

√ Spiketon Culvert Replacement $105,000 Local
Comp Storm Plan Update - Prof Svcs $70,000

* Small Projects - Storm Drain $52,500
* Dundass Storm Improvement - CIP #2 $80,000
* Cedar Street- Main Street to Jefferson Ave $162,688
* Spiketon Road- Ryan Road to Mt. View $112,500
* 3rd Street Storm Improvement $50,000

$632,688
Fund 430 Utility Equipment Reserve

* Excavator - 5 Ton Kabota 21 $50,000 Local
* Trailer - Tandem Axle 7 Ton $15,000 Local
* Pickup Truck Replacement $40,000 Local

Vactor Truck Replacement $0 Local
Parks Mower Replacement $0

$105,000
$6,951,758

√ Completed or under Contract
*NOTE: Transportation and Utility Capital Project Costs inlcude Engineering for the Project

Subtotal

Subtotal
2020 Budget Total

Subtotal

Subtotal

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
261



F1

Project Priority
Est 

Project 
Date

Estimated Cost Funded Funding Source

Six-Year Water System - Capital Improvement Projects (New Updated)
Source Water

Slow Sand Filter Re-Sand Pilot Study to test the effectiveness of increasing the loading rate. S-1 2018 $30,000 No 20% DSHS, 80% Water Cap. Fund
Re-Sand Slow Sand Filter at the Water Treatment Plant. S-2 2018 $180,000 No 20% DSHS, 80% Water Cap. Fund
Expand Slow Sand Filter Water Treatment Plant-construct additional filter bed area; expand 
filter building, additional inlet and under-drain piping, site piping and controls. S-3 2019 $800,000 No 20% DSHS, 80% Water Cap. Fund
Hydro-Geologic Study for a New Well- complete a hydro-geologic study to obtain 
recommendations of locations that would be most likely to support productive wells. S-4 2020 $25,000 No Water Capital Project Fund

Drill and Test New Well. S-5 2021 $150,000 No Water Capital Project Fund

Reservoir Siting Study.  Evaluate potential reservoir locations and configurations. ST-1 2021 $25,000 No Water Capital Project Fund

Construct 1.0 MG Reservoir. ST-2 2022 $2,000,000 No 70% Loan, 30% Water Cap. Fund

Abandon 0.75 MG Reservoir ST-3 2020 $20,000 No Local

Upgrade System Telemetry. This will allow the City to maintain more competitive service 
contracts for maintenance and repairs of its telemetry equipment. TR-1 2019 $180,000 Yes 20% DSHS, 80% Water Cap. Fund

Segment 6, End of Trenchless to North Slope-replace 2,440 LF of Raw Water Transmission 
Main between Segment 5 and Segment 7 with new 12-inch HDPE Raw Water Transmission 
Main. T-1 2019 $830,000 No 70% Loan, 30% Water Cap. Fund
Segment 8, Creek Crossing Restoration.  The City installed a cable bridge across South 
Prairie Creek in 2016 to carry a segment of the transmission main.  The old pipeline and 
concrete encasement requires removal and the disturbed banks along the creek require 
additional restoration T-2 2018 $50,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
Segment 13, Between Replacement Segments-replace 260 LF of Raw Water Transmission 
Main between Segment 14 and Segment 16 with new 12-inch HDPE Raw Water 
Transmission Main. T-3 2020 $105,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
Segment 15, End of Cable Bridge to Replacement Segment-replace 1,135 LF of the Raw 
Water Transmission Main from the north end of the cable bridge to connect the south end of 
the Segment 14 with new 12-inch HDPE Raw Water Transmission Main. T-4 2020 $390,000 No Water Capital Project Fund

Capital Infrastructure Flow Chart (2020)

Water System - 20 Year Capital Improvement Plan

Storage

Transmission

Telemetry

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
262



F2

Annual Transmission Main Leak Detection-continue an annual leak detection program to
determine if there are any additional sections of the pipeline in need repair. T-5 Annual $140,000 No Water Operating Fund

Segment 16, Existing Cable Bridge.  Replace 200 LF cable bridge across a creek gully.
T-6 2023 $203,000 No Water Capital Project Fund

Segment 19, Along Cliff Face.  Replace 200 LF of transmission main, including a new cliff 
anchorage system. T-7 2025 $161,000 No Water Capital Project Fund

Segment 21, Creek Bed to Headworks. Replace 1,000 LF of transmission main in the South
Prairie Creek streambed near the headworks of the transmission main. T-8 2027 $409,000 No 70% Loan, 30% Water Cap. Fund

Edith from Park to Dundass, Balm from 4th to Ewing, Ewing from Dundass to Balm, 3rd
from Main to Mason.  Install 1,200 LF of 8-inch water main. D-1 2018 $354,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
Heather between Whitmore and Elk Ridge Elementary School.  Install 70 LF of 8-inch water 
main. D-2 2019 $29,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
Mason from A to D, B south of Mason, Rainier from Main to Mason.  Install 1,900 LF of 8-
inch water main. D-3 2018 $510,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
A from Park to Main.  Install 850 LF of 8-inch water main. D-4 2019 $250,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
Division from Ryan to Fire Station.  Install 360 LF of 8-inch water main. D-5 2021 $99,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
Jefferson from 3rd to Pearl, Pearl from Perkins to Ryan, Mill from Pearl to Jefferson.  Install 
2,080 LF of 8-inch water main. D-6 2020 $583,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
Ryan from Spiketon Road to east side of LDS Church. -Install 2,360 LF of 12-inch water 
main. D-7 2021 $643,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
Fulton and 4th.  Install 450 feet of 8-inch water main. D-8 2021 $211,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
Sheets, south of Ryan.  Install 600 feet of 8-inch water main. D-9 2023 $146,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
Klink, south of Ryan.  Install 1,400 feet of 8-inch water main. D-10 2023 $334,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
SR 410, west to Mundy-Loss.  Install 1,100 feet of 8-inch water main. D-11 2024 $251,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
Hinkleman Extension from SR 410 to 112th.  Install 700 feet of 8-inch water main. D-12 2025 $158,000 No Water Capital Project Fund
Hinkleman Road from Hinkleman Extension to Mundy-Loss.  Install 2,200 feet of 8-inch 
water main. D-13 2026 $1,071,000 No 70% Loan, 30% Water Cap. Fund
McNeely, north of Collins.  Install 2,200 feet of 8-inch water main D-14 2022 $523,000 No Developer Extension
McNeely, south of Collins.  Install 750 feet of 8-inch water main. D-15 2022 $193,000 No Developer Extension
River, north of Dieringer.  Install 450 feet of 8-inch water main. D-16 2024 $120,000 No Developer Extension
Mason from Spruce to McNeely.  Install 2,000 feet of 8-inch water main. D-17 2024 $475,000 No Developer Extension
Dieringer from Sorenson to McNeely.  Install 2,200 feet of 8-inch water main. D-18 2025 $545,000 No Developer Extension

$12,193,000
$12,193,000Total

Sewer System - Six-Year Capital Improvement Costs and Schedule (New Updated)

Subtotal Twenty Year

Distribution

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
263



F3

Gravity Sewer: 450 LF of 8" PVC, Alley to the East of Edith Street, from Park Ave to 
Dundass Street G-1 2018 Complete Yes Sewer Capital Project Fund
Gravity Sewer: 500 LF of 8" PVC, Spiketon Road from Ryan Road to A Street G-2 2019 $180,000 No Sewer Capital Project Fund
Gravity Sewer: 450 LF of 8" PVC, Alley between Cascade St and Edith St from Dundass 
Ave to Park Ave G-3 2018 Complete Yes Sewer Capital Project Fund
Gravity Sewer: 200 LF of 8" PVC, Near 550 Balm Street G-4 2018 Complete Yes Sewer Capital Project Fund

Gravity Sewer: 900 LF of 8" PVC, Spiketon Road from Ryan Road to 649 Spiketon Road
G-5 2019 $284,000 Yes Sewer Capital Project Fund

Gravity Sewer: 1,000 LF of 8" PVC, Alley between Naches St and Second St from Park Ave 
to Mason Ave G-6 2019 $325,000 No Sewer Capital Project Fund

Trunk Sewer: 4,800 LF of 12" PVC, McNeely St south, east on Mason to State School Prop 
line, South to Ryan Road to Klink St T-1 2020 $1,633,000 No

50% Developer Extension, 50% 
Sewer Cap. Project Fund

Force Main: 1,300 LF of 6" D.I., South Spiketon Road Force Main F-1 2019 $253,000 No Developer Extension

South Spiketon Road Lift Station: 500 gpm, 2 pumps with Emergency Generator L-1 2019 Complete No Developer Extension

ADD SR410 Force Main Upsizing TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

ADD Mundy Loss Force Main Upsizing TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

WWTP Non-Potable Water System Upgrades TP-1 2018 $158,000 No Sewer Capital Project Fund
WWTP Wastewater Reuse Feasibility Study TP-2 2019 $100,000 No Sewer Capital Project Fund

Total $2,933,000

Facility Maintenance 1 Annual Inflate 3%/year No Local

NPDES Phase II Compliance 1 Annual Inflate 3%/year No Local
Spiketon Box Culvert (Bridge) CIP-1 2019 $700,000 Yes Local
Dundass - project includes connecting 135 linear feet of new 12-inch pipe
between 3rd Street and 4th Street to the existing storm system. CIP-2 2018 $77,500 No TBD
Sheets Rd. Diversion - project involves the diversion of flow from
Spiketon Ditch to the ditch along the east side of Sheets Road. CIP-3 2019 $672,500 No TBD
Division St. (Ryan Diversion) - project is a temporary measure to
implement prior to the installation of a 48-inch pipe that will connect runoff from
Ryan Road to the existing 48-inch pipes in Hinkelman Extension. CIP-4 2020 $277,500 No TBD

Stormwater System Capital Improvement Plan

Gravity Sewer Main Projects

Trunk Sewer Main Projects

Lift Station and Force Main 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
264



F4

Hinkleman Road East Basin - project includes the installation of 2,685 linear feet of 36-inch 
pipe on the south of Hinkelman Road. CIP-5 2021+ $1,587,500
Hinkelman Extension/Ryan Road Extension CIP-6 Complete
McNeely Basin - project includes ditch rehabilitation for 354 linear feet, and 797 linear feet 
of pipe and culverts replaced with 24-inch pipes. CIP-7 2021 $438,750 No TBD
Regional Treatment and Detention Feasibility Studies CIP-8 Complete No TBD
Regional Treatment and Detention CIP-9 2020 N/A
Elk Meadows Ditch CIP-10 2021+ $476,250 No TBD
Spiketon Rd. CIP-11 2021+ $173,750 No TBD
Collins Road Basin CIP-12 2021+ $4,797,500 No TBD
Ryan Road project - project includes the extension of the new 48-inch pipe of the
Hinkelman Extension/Ryan Extension project. CIP-13 2021+ $3,771,250 No TBD
Downtown project - project consists of replacing these 18-inch pipes with 140 linear feet of 
24-inch pipes and 850 linear feet of 36-inch pipe. CIP-14 2021+ $606,250 No TBD
North Highway 410 - project incorporates the replacement of existing pipes
with 1,240 linear feet of new 36-inch pipe and 210 linear feet of 48-inch pipe at the
downstream end of this basin. CIP-15 2021+ $966,250 No TBD
River Avenue North project - includes the replacement of existing pipes with
1,720 linear feet of 36-inch pipe at the downstream end of the stormwater system in this
area. CIP-16 2021+ $958,750 No TBD
112th Street Basin - project includes replacement of existing pipes and ditch with 1,541 
linear feet of parallel 36-inch and 48-inch pipe. CIP-17 2021+ $1,786,250 No TBD
West Highway 410A - project includes replacement of the existing open ditch with 5,520 
linear feet of 24-inch pipe on the south side of SR 410. CIP-18 2021+ $2,151,250 No TBD
West Highway 410B - project includes installation of 75 linear feet of 12-inch pipe on the 
north side of SR 410 along with 85 linear feet of ditch that should be rehabilitated CIP-19 2021+ $43,750 No TBD

$19,485,000

City Hall
Carpet replacement CH-1 2020 $20,000 Local
Kitchen remodel CH-2 2021 $40,000 Local
Roof replacement CH-3 2022 $40,000
Restroom remodel CH-4 2023 $25,000 Local
Remodel expansion 1140 sq ft additional office space CH-5 2024 $262,200 Local
Multi-Purpose Center (Building/Planning/Court/Senior/Council
Remodel of Building/Planning/Court Offices MPC-1 2020 $250,000 Local
Roof replacement MPC-2 2021 $125,000 Local

Total
Public Facilities

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
265



F5

Window replacement MPC-3 2022 $40,000 Local
Carpet replacement MPC-4 2023 $30,000 Local
Foyer tile replacement MPC-5 2023 $12,000 Local
Façade sealing MPC-6 2023 $15,000 Local
Main entry door(s) replacement MPC-7 2023 $20,000 Local
Youth Center 
Carpet replacement YC-1 2020 $12,000 Local
Foyer tile replacement YC-2 2020 $10,000 Local
Roof replacement YC-3 2023 $15,000 Local
Public Works Facilities
Public Works Storage Outbuilding (Support Pole/Roof/Gutter Replacment) PW-1 2020 $18,000 Local
Public Works Heated Storage Facility PW-2 2022 $200,000 Local
Police Department
Parking Lot Asphalt Overlay PD-1 2019 $78,100 Local
Parking Lot Permimeter Security Fencing PD-2 2019 $46,700 Local
Animal Control Shelter PD-3 2020 $15,000 Local
700 MHz Communication Equipment PD-4 2021 $32,000 Local
Roof replacement PD-5 2023 $125,000 Local
New Patrol Vehicles - 4 PD-6 Annual $200,000 Local
Fire Department

Fire Engine Replacement - E35 FD-1 2019 $450,000

Fire Engine Replacement - E34 FD-1 2030 $535,000 Local (Fund 030 & 105)
Fire Engine Replacement - E35 FD-2 2041 $605,000
Aid Car Replacement - A34 FD-3 2020 N/A
Aid Car Replacement - A35 FD-4 2020 $155,000 Local (Fund 030 & 105)
Aid Car Replacement - A349 FD-5 2025 N/A Local (Fund 030 & 105)
Utility Vehicle Replacement - U34 FD-6 2026 $42,875 Local (Fund 030 & 105)
Utility Vehicle Replacement - U35 FD-7 2029 $44,450 Local (Fund 030 & 105)
Utility Vehicle Replacement - C34 FD-8 2033 $45,875 Local (Fund 030 & 105)
SCBA Replacement FD-9 2030 $104,000 Local (Fund 030 & 105)

$3,008,200

Sergeant Sreet Improvement Project 1 2020 $421,000 No
TIB (SCP Pavement Preservation) & 

Local (PCR 56.0)

Total
                                                                              20 Year Transportation Improvement Plan (Includes 2020 - 2039 STIP)                                                                                

2019 E35 Replacement to E-349 reserve status

2020 A34 Replacement to A-349 Reserve 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
266



F6

Cedar Street Overlay 2 2020 $280,700 No TIB (SCP) & Local (PCR 44)

Naches Street Overlay 3 2020 $224,000 Yes
TIB (SCP Pavement Preservation) & 

Local

River Avenue Resurfacing 4 2020 $352,500 Yes
TIB (SCP Pavement Preservation) & 

Local (PCR 59)

112th Street 5 (NEW#) 2021 $207,700 No
TIB (SCP Pavement Preservation) & 

Local (PCR 58.9)

Spruce Street 6(NEW#) 2021 $319,000 No
TIB (SCP Pavement Preservation) & 

Local (PCR 72.0)

Naches Street 7(NEW#) 2021 $90,000 No Local, (PCR 32)

Pearl Street & Jefferson Ave Intersection Improvements 8(NEW#) 2021 $80,000 No
TIB (SCP Pavement Preservation) & 

Local

Mt. View Resurfacing 9 2021 $193,600 No
TIB (SCP Pavement Preservation) & 

Local (PCR 36)
Division Sreet Improvement Project 10 2022 $1,501,500 No

     
Local

Division Street Overlay 11 2022 $211,900 No
TIB (SCP Pavement Preservation) & 

Local

Dundass Street Overlay 12 2022 $233,500 No
TIB (SCP Pavement Preservation) & 

Local (PCR 68.1)

Hinkleman Road Resurfacing (Phase II) 13 2022 $160,200 No
TIB (SCP Pavement Preservation) & 

Local (PCR 32)
Jefferson Avenue Overlay 14 2023 $689,500 No TIB (SCP) & Local (PCR 73.6)

White River Bridge (Trail) 15 2023 $7,436,100 No
STP. ISTEA, IAC, King County, 

Pierce County & Local

White River Bridge - Trail Extension & Approach (15A) 2023 $297,600 No RCO & Foothills Grant, and Local
White River Pedestrian Bridge Construction (15B) 2023 $7,142,300 No

      
Pierce County

View Place Overlay 16 2024 $29,200 No Local (PCR 50)
Whitmore Way Overlay (Phase II) 17 2024 $185,000 No

     
Local (PCR 32)

Main Street Rehabilitation 18 2024 $326,900 No TIB (SCP) & Local
River Avenue & Main Street Intersection Improvements 19 2024 $1,247,100 No TIB (SCP) & Local (PCR 59)
Spiketon Road Pedestrian Improvements 20 2025 $1,258,500 No TIB (SCP) & Local
"A" Street Overlay 21 2025 $227,200 No TIB (SCP) & Local
Pearl Street Overlay 22 2025 $661,900 No TIB (SCP) & Local (PCR 68)
Mundy Loss Pedestrian Improvement Project 23 2025 $433,100 No TIB (SCP) & Local (PCR 72)
Ryan Road (Phase II) Reconstruct 24 2025 $3,075,100 No TIB (PSMP) & Local

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
267



F7

$27,285,100

Cottage Street Overlay 25 2026 $248,600 No

Replace A.C. Water Main w/grind 
existing surface and overlay with 

asphalt.

"A" Street Overlay 26 2027 $201,000 No

Replace A.C. Water Main w/grind 
existing surface and overlay with 

asphalt.

Ryan Road (Phase II) Reconstruct 27 2028 $2,721,000 No

Reconstruction/rehabilitate, grind, 
replace water, sewer and storm, 

widen, install curb, gutter & sidewalk 
1 side, repave.

Mason Avenue Pedestrian Improvement Project 28 2029 $488,900 No

Shoulder improvements w/pavement 
widening, installation of curb, gutter, 
sidewalks, storm drainage and street 

lighting.

Cedar and Pearl Street Intersection Improvements 29 2030 $493,100 No

Grind and overlay with asphalt, 
replace curb, gutters, sidewalk and 

stormwater drainage. During 
construction replace the asbestos 
water main thru the intersections.

Ryan Road (Phase III) Reconstruct 30 2031 $1,961,000 No

Reconstruction/rehabilitate, grind, 
replace water, sewer and storm, 

widen, install curb, gutter & sidewalk 
1 side, repave.

Collins Road Trail Project 31 2032 $715,900 No

Pedestrian improvements consisting 
of the installation of an 8’ wide paved 

walking trail.

Mundy Loss & 112th Street East Intersection Improvements 32 2033 $1,230,000 No
Install signalization, turn lanes and 

pedestrian facilities.

Hinkleman Extension Continuation 33 2034 $994,300 No

Full street construction to include 
subgrade, pavement surface, curbs, 
gutters, sidewalks both sides, utility 

extensions, stormwater drainage, 
signalization and street lighting.

2nd Street Resurfacing 34 2035 $71,600 No Grind and overlay with asphalt.

Total Six Year Transportation Plan (STIP)

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
268



F8

Park Avenue Resurfacing 35 2036 $198,900 No Grind and overlay with asphalt.

White River Trail 36 2037 $284,100 No

Pedestrian improvements consisting 
of the installation of an 8’ wide 

pervious walking trail.

Ryan Road (Phase V) Reconstruct 37 2038 $1,348,000 No

Reconstruction/rehabilitate, grind, 
replace water, sewer and storm, 

widen, install curb, gutter & paved 
walking trail 1 side, repave.

Levesque Trail Project 38 2039 $636,300 No

Pedestrian improvements consisting 
of the installation of an 8’ wide paved 

walking trail.

Hinkleman Extension Resurfacing 39 2040 $188,300 Grind and overlay with asphalt.

Naches Street   40(NEW#) 2041
Replace A.C. Water Main, Grind and 

overlay with asphalt.   
Dieringer Ave 41 (NEW#) 2042 Grind and overlay with asphalt
Olson Ave 42 (NEW#) 2043 Grind and overlay with asphalt
Whitehouse Ave 43 (NEW#) 2044 Grind and overlay with asphalt
Boyle Street 44 (NEW#) 2045 Grind and overlay with asphalt
Hackmann Street 45 (NEW#) 2046 Grind and overlay with asphalt
Trullinger Street 46 (NEW#) 2047 Grind and overlay with asphalt
Alfano Place 47 (NEW#) 2048 Grind and overlay with asphalt

Norma Street 48 (NEW#) 2049 No
Replace A.C. Water Main, Grind and 

overlay with asphalt.   

$11,781,000

$39,066,100

 - General Park Development - Phase 1 2 Jun-20 $235,363 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees
 - Outdoor Basketball Court 8 Jun-20 $81,250 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees/Volunteers
 - Outdoor Volleyball Court 9 Jun-20 $22,500 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees/Volunteers
 - General Park Development - Phase 2 13 Jun-23 $384,113 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees

 - General Park Development - Phase 1 5 Jun-19 $829,525 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees
 - Soccer Field Construction (1) 6 Jun-19 $193,750 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees/Volunteers

Miller Neighborhood Park Development

City Ag Land Multi-Use Community Park

Ten Year Park & Recreation Capital Facilities Plan (2015-2025)
Total

Subtotal Twenty Year

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
269



F9

 - Baseball Field Construction (1) 17 Jun-25 $404,375 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees/Volunteers
 - Pump or BMX Bicycle Track Construction 7 Jun-20 $275,000 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees/Volunteers
 - Lighted Tennis Courts (2) 10 Jun-21 $147,250 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees
 - Park Trail Loop (1 mile) - Phase 1 11 Jun-22 $213,750 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees
 - General Park Development - Phase 2 14 Jun-24 $1,079,525 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees
 - Soccer Field Construction (1) 12 Jun-23 $193,750 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees/Volunteers
 - Baseball Field Construction (1) 18 Jun-25 $404,375 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees/Volunteers

 - Trailhead & Facility Parking Lot, Storm Drainage & Walkways 1 Jun-16 $445,000 No Public/Private Funding
 - Splash Park 3 Jun-18 $161,250 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees
 - Climbing Wall 4 Jun-18 $55,000 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees
 - Outdoor Basketball Court 15 Jun-20 $81,250 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees/Volunteers
 - Outdoor Volleyball Court 16 Jun-24 $22,500 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees/Volunteers

 - Parking and Trailhead (Gravel, Primitive) 19 Jun-25 $40,000 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees/Volunteers
 - All-Terrain Bike or Hiking Trail Loop (1 mile) - Phase 1 20 Jun-25 $106,875 No RCO/Local/Impact Fees/Volunteers

$5,376,401
$82,061,701

Total
Total

Lot #19, South of Youth Center

White River Property West of SR-410 with Trail Facilities

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
270



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: November 26, 2019       AB19-117 
 
ORD No. ____-19 Adopting the 2020 
City Employee Salary Scale 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:   Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:   Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:   Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Ordinance w/exhibit       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: The updated Exempt & Hourly Salary Scale for 2020 being presented for 
consideration proposes the following changes: 
 

• Establishes a 3% COLA for all exempt and hourly employees and 
• Increases part-time and seasonal wage rates to match State minimum wage rate beginning 

January 1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  Full Council – 2020 Budget Adoption 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve Ordinance No. 25-19 Adopting the 
2020 City Employee Salary Scale. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
271



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 1 
 

CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___-19 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, PIERCE COUNTY, 

WASHINGTON, ADOPTING THE CITY’S 2020 CITY EMPLOYEE SALARY 

SCALE AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, in December 2003, the City Council adopted a salary scale for exempt employees 

by Resolution; and 

 WHEREAS, in July 2012, the City Council modified the salary scale to add all City employees’ 

salaries to the scale to include exempt, those covered by bargaining unit contract, part-time and hourly, 

and adopted the scale by Ordinance; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to compensate exempt and hourly employees with a fair 

and equitable wage comparative with other public agencies for the position and duties assigned and to 

reflect increases in cost of living; and 

WHEREAS, the Consumer Price Index published by the Bureau of Labor indicates that the 

Seattle-Tacoma CPI Index from October 2018 to October 2019 reflected a change of 2.2%; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed revenues and expenditures for 2020 and determined 

that due to the current economic climate and concern over limited resources that wage and salary 

increases must be fair but also reflect current conditions; and 

 

WHEREAS, based on this analysis the City Council has determined that cost of living increases 

for exempt and hourly employees shall be 3.0% for 2020; and 

 

 WEHREAS, Washington State voters approved an increase in the State’s minimum wage 

through passage of Initiative 1433 in 2016 and pursuant to this initiative, beginning January 1, 2020; the 

minimum wage will increase to $13.50.  The City’s salary scale for exempt and hourly employees has 

been adjusted to incorporate this new minimum wage. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
272



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 2 
 

 NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, PIERCE 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1. The City Council hereby adopts Exhibit A, entitled “2020 City Employee Salary 

Scale,” attached and incorporated by this reference as if set forth in full, representing the salary ranges for 

the designated positions classifications. Newly hired employees will be placed at the first step of the 

salary range assigned to a classification, unless the Mayor approves a salary step exception for reasons of 

recruiting difficulties, or because the first step creates inequity for a potential appointee relative to his or 

her qualifications and current or expected compensation package. 

 Section 2. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance should 

be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 

unconstitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance or a summary thereof consisting of the title shall 

be published in the official newspaper of the City, and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days 

after publication. 

 Introduced, passed, and approved this 26th day of November 2019. 

             

       Pat Johnson, Mayor 

Attest: 

      

Treva Percival, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

      

Phil Olbrechts, City Attorney 

PUBLISHED:      

 EFFECTIVE:      

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
273



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 3 
 

Exhibit A: 2020 CITY EMPLOYEE SALARY SCALE 

2020 CITY EMPLOYEE SALARY SCALE 

           2020 EXEMPT SALARY SCALE (Preliminary - 3.0%) 

  
Initial 
step A  B  C  D  E  F  G  H  I J 

R1 4,600 4,691 4,786 4,882 4,979 5,079 5,180 5,283 5,388 5,497 5,608 
R2 4,933 5,030 5,132 5,234 5,339 5,444 5,554 5,664 5,777 5,894 6,012 
R3 5,291 5,396 5,504 5,613 5,727 5,840 5,956 6,076 6,198 6,323 6,449 
R4 5,672 5,787 5,902 6,019 6,140 6,264 6,389 6,517 6,647 6,781 6,916 
R5 6,085 6,207 6,330 6,457 6,585 6,717 6,852 6,989 7,129 7,271 7,417 
R6 6,527 6,657 6,791 6,926 7,065 7,207 7,350 7,497 7,648 7,801 7,957 
R7 7,001 7,140 7,284 7,430 7,577 7,729 7,884 8,041 8,202 8,366 8,533 
R8 7,508 7,657 7,810 7,967 8,126 8,289 8,454 8,625 8,797 8,973 9,152 
R9 8,050 8,211 8,376 8,543 8,714 8,888 9,066 9,248 9,433 9,621 9,813 
R10 8,655 8,828 9,005 9,185 9,369 9,556 9,747 9,941 10,141 10,343 10,551 
R11 9,303 9,491 9,679 9,872 10,071 10,271 10,478 10,686 10,900 11,120 11,341 
R12 10,001 10,202 10,405 10,613 10,826 11,042 11,262 11,488 11,718 11,953 12,192 

(a)  Salary steps are graduated approximately by a 2% separation. Step increases shall be performance based on the employee’s 
anniversary hire date and shall be subject to Mayors approval.  

(b) Employees shall be eligible for a Step increase subject to the provisions of (a) above and the following; for Initial Step 
through Step J employees shall be evaluated and eligible for an increase to the next Step on an annual basis. The Mayor may 
grant up to one additional Step increase over and above the eligible annual increase, for meritorious performance reasons. 
Salary Range Position Classification(s) 

  
1-Jan   Step Eligibility 

R1         - N/A N/A 
 

N/A 
R2         - Associate Planner (F/T) Initial 

 
1-Dec-2020 

NEW         - Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Initial 
 

1-Jan-2021 
R3         - Community Services Director (87.5%) Step D 

 
1-Sep-2020 

R4         - Court Administrator (90.0%) Step G 
 

1-Aug-2020 
          - City Planner Initial 

 
1-Nov-2020 

          - Firefighter Step A 
 

16-Jul-2020 
          - Volunteer FF Coordinator Step A 

 
1-Jan-2021 

R5         - Building Official Step J 
 1-Oct-2020 

R6         - City Clerk Step B 
 

1-Sep-2020 
R7         - Information Systems Manager Step D 

 
1-Jan-2021 

R8         - Asst Fire Chief Step H 
 

1-Jan-2021 
R9         - Asst Police Chief Step G 

 
15-Apr-2020 

          - Public Works Director Step D 
 

1-Jan-2021 
R10         - Finance Director Step D 

 
5-Aug-2020 

R11         - Fire Chief Step I 
 

1-Jan-2021 
          - Police Chief Step J  1-Apr-2020 

R12         - City Administrator 
 
  

Step J    26-Nov-2020 
 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
274



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 4 
 

2020 Proposed Hourly Employee Scale: 

2020 HOURLY SCALE (NON-BARGAINING UNIT 3.0%) 
Hourly or Contract Position 2019 hourly 2020 hourly COLA Increase Monthly 
Municipal Judge  N/A N/A N/A $2,575 
Judge Pro-Tem $58.24  $59.99  3.00% N/A 
Court Clerk I $23.41 to $26.41 $24.11 to $27.20 3.00% N/A 
Court Security $23.07  $23.76  3.00% N/A 
Temp Firefighter (P/T) $15.00  $15.45  3.00% N/A 
Fire Admin Asst (P/T) $19.60  $20.19  3.00% N/A 
Youth Center Coordinator  $15.37 to $18.67 $15.83 to $19.23 3.00% N/A 
Youth Asst P/T (min)  $12.00 to $13.45 $13.50 to $13.91 State Min - 3.0% N/A 
Seasonal Parks P/T $12.00 to $13.45 $13.50 to $13.91 State Min - 3.0% N/A 
Meter Reader  $20.33  $20.94  3.00% N/A 
Seasonal Utility P/T $13.72 to $16.48 $14.13 to $16.97 3.00% N/A 
Planning Assistant P/T $18.81  $19.37  3.00% N/A 
Activities Coordinator $15.37 to $18.67 $15.83 to $19.23 3.00% N/A 
Temp Paramedic (P/T) $20.00 $20.60  N/A N/A 
PD Records Clerk P/T $20.00 $20.60  N/A N/A 
Senior Center Cook $14.35 $14.78  N/A N/A 

 

2020 - Bargaining Unit Salaries 

Police Department Employee Salaries (12.0%) - Per Contract 
(January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020) 

Classification  0-6 mos    7-12 mos  13-24 mos   25-36 mos    37-48 mos   49+ mos 
Patrol $5,673  $5,956  $6,254  $6,567  $6,895  $7,081  

Detective Patrol/Officer $5,900  $6,195  $6,504  $6,830  $7,171  $7,363  

Sergeant $6,312  $6,628  $6,960  $7,308  $7,673  $7,879  

         Public Works & Clerical Department Employee Salaries (3.0%) 
(January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020) 

Classification  0-6 mos    7-12 mos  13-24 mos   25-36 mos    37-48 mos   49+ mos 
Cemetery Caretaker  $4,134 $4,258 $4,385 $4,517 $4,653 $4,792 
Maint Parks/Bldg 

 
$2,735 $2,817 $2,902 $2,988 $3,079 $3,171 

Admin Assistant  $3,243 $3,342 $3,441 $3,546 $3,652 $3,762 

Meter Reader (NEW) $3,507 $3,630 $3,757 $3,888 $4,024 $4,165 
Police Records Clerk $3,780 $3,894 $4,011 $4,131 $4,254 $4,382 

Support Services Officer $3,936 $4,091 $4,256 $4,426 $4,603 $4,789 

Maint Parks/Bldg $4,154 $4,279 $4,407 $4,539 $4,676 $4,815 
Utility Billing/Deputy 

 
$4,342 $4,472 $4,607 $4,744 $4,888 $5,034 

Finance Assistant $4,386 $4,582 $4,790 $5,005 $5,229 $5,465 

Permit Tech/PW Clerk $4,419 $4,735 $4,925 $5,121 $5,327 $5,540 

Utility Worker $4,927 $5,076 $5,226 $5,384 $5,546 $5,712 
Utility Systems 

 
$5,153 $5,307 $5,467 $5,631 $5,800 $5,974 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
275



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 5 
 

Utility Worker Lead $5,381 $5,543 $5,710 $5,881 $6,056 $6,238 

WWTP Operator I $5,124 $5,187 $5,341 $5,502 $5,668 $5,838 

Asst PWD Supervisor $5,623 $5,792 $5,967 $6,144 $6,327 $6,520 

WWTP Supervisor $5,873 $6,053 $6,234 $6,420 $6,614 $6,812 

PWD Supervisor $6,186 $6,370 $6,561 $6,758 $6,961 $7,169 

      Step A Step B Step C Step D 
  

Utility Maint Apprentice $4,115 $4,239 $4,365 $4,497 
  

 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
276



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: November 26, 2019       AB19-118 
 
ORD No. ____-19, Setting the 2020 
Levy Amount Required for the 2010 
Unlimited General Obligation 
Bonds Used for Fire Station 
Construction. 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore  X 
Cost Impact:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:  N/A Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:  N/A Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Ordinance       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: This is the annual levy for the Fire Station construction bond.  Please see 
attached Ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve ORD No. 26-19 Setting the 2020 
Levy Amount Required for the Voter Approved 2010 Unlimited General 
Obligation Bonds for Fire Station Construction Financing. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
277



Ordinance No. ____-19  1 | P a g e  
 

CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. __-19 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BUCKLEY, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DETERMINING 
AND FIXING THE AMOUNT OF FUNDS TO BE RAISED BY 
REGULAR PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE YEAR 2020 FOR THE 
2010 UNLIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS USED 
TO CONSTRUCT A NEW FIRE STATION. 
 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Washington State law, the Pierce County Assessor is 

responsible for determining the assessed valuation of all taxable property situated within 

the boundaries of the City of Buckley for the year 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the voters, in accordance with Ordinance No. 06-10, at a special 

election held on April 27, 2010, authorized the issuance of Unlimited Tax General 

Obligation Bonds to finance the construction of the City's new Fire Station facility, to be 

redeemed with annual excess levies, which for the year 2020 requires $274,020;  now 

therefore 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, PIERCE COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 

Section 1.  Be it ordained by the governing body of the taxing district that the 

estimated sum of $274,020 represents the levy amount required in 2020 for the 2010 

Unlimited Tax General Obligation Bonds issued for the purpose of paying the cost of 

constructing a fire station facility. 

 

Section 2.  If any provision of this Ordinance is held invalid, such invalidity shall 

not effect any other provisions, or the application thereof, which can be given effect 

without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this 

Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
278



Ordinance No. ____-19  2 | P a g e  
 

 

Section 3.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days from and 

after its passage, approval and publication as provided by law. A summary of this 

Ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the Ordinance in its entirety. 

 

Introduced, passed, and approved this 26th day of November, 2019. 

 

 

     __________________________ 
     Pat Johnson, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Treva Percival, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Phil A. Olbrechts 
          
 
 
 
                                                                                               Published:  _________, 2019 
                  Effective:    _________, 2019 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
279



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: November 26, 2019       AB19-119 
 
ORD No. ____-19, Authorizing the 
Transfer of Natural Gas Utility 
Surplus Funds 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong  X 
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:  N/A Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:  N/A Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Ordinance and Exhibit       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  As stated in the Ordinance findings, RCW 35.37.020 authorizes cities to 
transfer surplus utility funds from the natural gas utility funds to the current expense fund. In 2014, the 
City sold its gas utility as authorized by public vote pursuant to Chapter 35.94 RCW, and the proceeds of 
that sale, as well as most of the money in the natural gas operations fund as well as all money remaining 
in the natural gas capital project fund, were declared as surplus to the needs of the City’s natural gas 
utility and transferred to the City’s current expense fund. 
 
Since there were still outstanding delinquent accounts, the City Council left the operation fund open in 
order to account for any revenue recovered. As of December 31, 2018, Fund 401 had an ending fund 
balance of $3,644. This Ordinance declares $3,000 of that remaining balance as surplus to the needs of 
the natural gas utility and transfers this amount to the City current expense fund. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Full Council – Budget Process 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve Ordinance No. 27-19 Authorizing 
the Transfer of Natural Gas Utility Surplus Funds. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
280



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 1 
 

CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____- 19 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON, 
TRANSFERRING SURPLUS GAS UTILITY FUNDS TO THE 
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, RCW 35.37.020 authorizes cities to transfer surplus utility funds 

from the natural gas utility fund to the current expense fund; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2014, the City sold its gas utility as authorized by public vote 

pursuant to Chapter 35.94 RCW, and the proceeds of that sale, as well as most of the 

money in the natural gas operations fund and all moneys remaining in the natural gas 

capital project fund, were declared surplus to the needs of the City’s natural gas utility 

and transferred to the City’s General Expense Fund through ORD No. 02-15; and 

 

WHEREAS, due to a significant amount of delinquent accounts, the City elected 

to leave the natural gas operations fund open in order to collect and account for 

outstanding delinquent utility accounts; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City did receive monies from outstanding delinquent accounts in 

2018 which the City Council desires to declare surplus to the needs of the City’s natural 

gas utility and be transferred to the City’s General Expense Fund. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, 

WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.   That the recitals above are hereby adopted by reference as the City 

Council’s findings of fact, as if fully set forth herein. $3,000.00 of the natural gas 

operations fund for the 2018 fiscal year is hereby transferred to the current expense fund.   

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
281



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 2 
 

Section 2.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

ordinance should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 

constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

 

Section 3. Effective date. This ordinance or a summary thereof consisting of 

the title shall be published in the official newspaper of the City, and shall take effect and 

be in full force five (5) days after publication. 

 

Introduced, passed, and approved this 26th day of November 2019. 
 

________________________________                                             
Pat Johnson, Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 
_________________________                                         
Treva Percival MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________                                    
Phil Olbrechts, City Attorney     
 

Published:     
Effective:    

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
282



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: November 26, 2019       AB19-120 
 
Ord No. ___-19: Adopting the 
Findings and Conclusions of the 
Hearing Examiner’s 
Recommendation for the Cnossen 
Rezone 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival  X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:  N/A Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren X X 
Timeline:  N/A Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: Staff Report, Hearing Examiners Report, and Ordinance       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Applicant Buckley 8, LLC proposes to rezone an unaddressed property on 
the south side of Ryan Road (parcel #0619105002), located approximately halfway between the 
intersections of Spiketon Road and S Sergeant St. The parcel is currently split-zoned with the northern 
half of the parcel (adjacent to Ryan Road) zoned Light Industrial (LI) and the southern half of the parcel 
zoned Neighborhood Mixed Use (NMU). The applicant’s proposal would decrease the LI area and 
increase the NMU area such that the LI portion would be approximately the first 140 deep from Ryan 
Road with the balance in NMU. A map showing the applicant’s proposal is included in the attached staff 
report. This proposal went before the Hearing Examiner on November 12, 2019, and the Hearing 
Examiner recommended this rezone for approval by City Council. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Hearing Examiner 11/12/19 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Approve Ordinance No. 28-19 Adopting the 
Findings and Conclusions of the Hearing Examiner’s Recommendation for 
the Cnossen Rezone and Directing Staff to Update the Zoning Map to Reflect 
the Rezone. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
283



 

1 
 

LAND USE STAFF REPORT 

INTRODUCTION 
 

Proposal Name:  
 

Cnossen Rezone 

Proposal Address:  
 

14XX Ryan Road 
Buckley, WA 98321 
 

Proposal Description:  
 

Reconfigure the zoning designation for parcel 
0619105002. 
 

File Number:  
 

R-19-0001 
 

Applicant: 
 

PK Enterprises 
1315 Marion Street 
Enumclaw, WA 98022 
 

Planner:  
 

Leticia Wallgren, City Planner 
lwallgren@cityofbuckley.com 
360.761.7817 
 

State Environmental Policy 
(SEPA) Threshold 
Determination:  
 

This project is exempt from SEPA pursuant to 
WAC 197-11-800(6)(c). 

Recommendations Included:  Rezone  
Staff Recommendation:  Recommendation of Approval to City Council  

  
                                                           11/01/19 
 Leticia Wallgren, City Planner           Date 
 City of Buckley  
 
Application Date:  
Notice of Application: 
 
Notice of Public Hearing: 
Decision Publication Date:  
 
Appeal Deadline: 

 
April 24, 2019 
June 15, 2019, revised September 18, 2019 
(BMC 20.28.060) 
October 16, 2019 (BMC 20.28.090) 
Within 120 days of determination of complete 
application (BMC 20.20.070) 
21 days from final land use action (RCW 
36.70C.040(3) 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
284



Cnossen Rezone 
R 19-0001 
November 1, 2019 

2 
 

EXHIBITS 
 

1. Rezone Application (April 22, 2019) 
2. Authorization to Rezone (March 28, 2019) 
3. Narrative (April 23, 2019, revised August 28, 2019) 
4. Rezone Plan Sheets (Preferred Engineering, LLC, February 2019, Revised 

August 28, 2019) 
5. Title Report (First American Title, May 28, 2019) 
6. Critical Areas Assessment Report (Leanne Kuhlman, Wetlands Consultant, 

March 18, 2019) 
7. Geotechnical Report (The Riley Group, August 21, 2019) 
8. SEPA Checklist (Preferred Engineering, LLC, April 22, 2019, Revised August 

28, 2019) 
9. Public Comment Letter (Doug Weston, July 27, 2019) 

  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
285



Cnossen Rezone 
R 19-0001 
November 1, 2019 

3 
 

 

CONTENTS 
INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................................. 1 

EXHIBITS ................................................................................................................................................ 2 

FINDINGS OF FACT ........................................................................................................................................ 4 

I. Proposal Description ........................................................................................................................... 4 

II. Site Description, Zoning & Land Use Context ..................................................................................... 5 

A. Site Description ................................................................................................................................. 5 

B. Zoning................................................................................................................................................ 5 

C. Land Use Context .............................................................................................................................. 6 

D. Public Comment ................................................................................................................................ 7 

III. Adverse Impacts .................................................................................................................................. 7 

IV. Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan ......................................................................................... 7 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW ................................................................................................................................. 8 

V. Decision Making Authority .................................................................................................................. 8 

VI. Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Designations. .................................................................................. 8 

VII. State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA)................................................................................................ 8 

VIII. Case Law Review Criteria and Application. ......................................................................................... 8 

IX. Administrative Recommendation ....................................................................................................... 9 

X. Attachments ......................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 

  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
286



Cnossen Rezone 
R 19-0001 
November 1, 2019 

4 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

I. Proposal Description 
The applicant has requested a rezone of a vacant parcel located at 14XX Ryan 
Road (APN 0619105002). The parcel 7.95 acres is currently zoned both 
Neighborhood Mixed Use (NMU) and Light Industrial (LI). The Comprehensive 
Plan Designation is Industrial and General Commercial (I&GC). The parcel is 
currently evenly split between the two zones with the Light Industrial (LI) zoning 
adjacent to Ryan Road. The applicant would like to decrease the Light Industrial 
area and increase the Neighborhood Mixed Use (NMU) such that the Light 
Industrial portion is approximately the first 140 feet deep from Ryan Road with 
the balance in NMU. The new Light Industrial area will be approximately 
12,500sf. The proposed reconfiguration is shown on the site plan maps below. 
See figure 1 below. 
 

Parcel Number Original Area Size Revised Area Size 
Neighborhood Mixed Use ~173,151sf (3.98 acres) ~308,302sf (7.10 acres) 

Light Industrial ~173,151sf (3.98 acres) ~38,000 (0.85 acres) 
 

 

  Figure 1. Proposal Drawing 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
287



Cnossen Rezone 
R 19-0001 
November 1, 2019 

5 
 

II. Site Description, Zoning & Land Use Context 
 

A. Site Description 
The 7.95-acre project site is located at 14XX Ryan Road (APN 0619105002). The 
site has frontage on Ryan Road. The site is rectangular and approximately 267 
feet in width and approximately 1,306 feet in length. There is a Category III 
wetland on the southern edge of the subject property. This wetland requires a 
100-foot buffer (BMC 12.09.030(6)(b)) (Exhibit 6). See figure 2 for an aerial photo 
of the property as it currently exists. 

 

 
 
 

B. Zoning 
The subject lot is zoned Neighborhood Mixed Use on the southern half and Light 
Industrial on the northern half, adjacent to Ryan Road. The NMU zone is intended 
to allow for mixed residential and the development of small commercial 

Figure 2. Aerial showing subject lot highlighted in orange.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
288



Cnossen Rezone 
R 19-0001 
November 1, 2019 

6 
 

businesses in residential neighborhoods (such as neighborhood grocery stores or 
convenience stores), especially residential above ground floor commercial (BMC 
19.20.050). The LI zone is intended to be compatible with the GC zone, have 
easy access from arterials, have business uses that by their nature have a higher 
level of noise and/or possible use of hazardous materials, and include industrial 
uses, the most intense commercial uses, and light manufacturing, such as metal 
working. This zone is not conducive to residential development (BMC 19.20.100).  
 
The minimum lot size for subdivision of lots within the NMU zone is based on the 
use type and ranges from 2,000-8,000sf. The minimum lot size in the Light 
Industrial zone is 6,000sf. The proposed zoning meets the minimum lot size for 
both zones.  

 
C. Land Use Context 

The subject parcel has a Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation of Industrial 
and General Commercial (I&GC). The parcel to the west of the subject shares this 
designation. Parcels to the south, east and north are all designated Urban Low 
Density (ULD), a single-family comprehensive plan use designation. The 
surrounding neighborhood context is mostly single family and undeveloped land, 
though the parcel to the west has an industrial use on the northern half near Ryan 
Road. See figure 3 Zoning Map. 

 

Direction Comprehensive 
Plan Designation Zone Current Use 

Subject I&GC NMU/LI Vacant 
North ULD R-6,000 Single Family Housing  
South ULD R-8,000 Vacant 
East ULD R-8,000 Single Family Housing 
West I&GC NMU/LI Single Family Housing 

 

 
 

Figure 3. Zoning Map showing subject lot highlighted in orange.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
289



Cnossen Rezone 
R 19-0001 
November 1, 2019 

7 
 

 
D. Public Comment 

The city received a public comment from Doug Weston who owns residential 
property on Tanner Road, to the south of the subject site. Mr. Weston expressed 
concern about the incompatibility of industrial uses adjacent to the large lot 
residential development to the south along Tanner Road. He expressed concerns 
about truck traffic, noise, and hazardous materials. He argued the property should 
be zoned residential. As proposed, the area closest to Tanner Road will not be 
developed due to the presence of the wetland in that area. Also, the proposed use 
in that vicinity is NMU, which allows for residential development.  
 

 

III. Adverse Impacts 
There are no significant adverse impacts associated with the proposal. 
Compatibility with adjoining land uses is the only issue of concern at this stage of 
project review. Properties immediately adjacent to the subject on the north, south, 
and east are zoned R-6,000 and R8,000 residential and are currently 
undeveloped or developed as single-family homes. The property to the west is 
largely undeveloped but contains an industrial use on the northern portion of the 
property adjacent to Ryan Road. This parcel is zoned NMU/LI, as is the subject. 
Expanding the portion of the property that is zoned NMU will allow for the 
possibility of residential development, which is more compatible with the 
surrounding low-density residential uses. The Comprehensive Plan specifically 
states the LI zone is not compatible with residential uses. However, the parcel is 
already zoned LI, as is the neighboring property and both are within the Industrial 
and General Commercial (I&GC) Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation. 
Minimizing the LI zone will improve this parcel’s compatibility with the 
neighborhood as it transitions to low intensity single-family uses.  

IV. Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 
The Buckley Comprehensive Plan defines the Industrial and General Commercial 
(I&GC) as: 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
290



Cnossen Rezone 
R 19-0001 
November 1, 2019 

8 
 

in this area uses are to be more intense commercial, auto-oriented 
businesses, and include light manufacturing, metal working, higher levels 
of noise, and possible use of hazardous materials. This district is not 
conducive to residential development. 

 
The Comprehensive Plan goes on to state: 
 

The Neighborhood Mixed Use (NMU) zone is our buffer zone between 
commercial and residential zones but is only buffering a small area of the 
city’s commercial lands. The NMU needs to be expanded to buffer all 
commercial zones around the northeast SR 410 corridor and other 
commercial zones 
 

The Buckley Comprehensive Plan does not directly define implementing zones. 
As the LI and NMU districts are both present on the property, it is assumed both 
are intended to be implementing zones for the I&GC Comprehensive Land Use 
Designation. The applicant is not requesting a change in the base zones on the 
subject property, but a reorientation of the amount of each zone.  

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

V. Decision Making Authority.  
Pursuant to BMC 20.08.030, the City Planning Director provides a 
recommendation to the Hearing Examiner. The Examiner holds an open record 
hearing and forwards a recommendation to the City Council. 
 

VI. Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Designations.  
The subject parcel has a Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation of 
Industrial and General Commercial (I&GC). The subject lot is zoned 
Neighborhood Mixed Use on the southern half and Light Industrial on the 
northern half, adjacent to Ryan Road. 

VII. State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) 
The project is SEPA exempt. The City’s SEPA Responsible Official has 
determined the project is exempt from SEPA review pursuant to WAC 197-11-
800(6)(c) because the proposed zone implements the Comprehensive Plan as 
described in Finding of Fact IV above. 

VIII. Case Law Review Criteria and Application. 
Once it is concluded that a rezone is necessary for consistency with a 
Comprehensive Plan Land use map designation, approval of the rezone is 
essentially legally mandated except in extraordinary circumstances such as 
perhaps gross inconsistencies with other parts of the comprehensive plan. None 
of those circumstances are present here. The Buckley City Code does not 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
291



Cnossen Rezone 
R 19-0001 
November 1, 2019 

9 
 

include any criteria for rezone applications. Washington appellate courts have 
imposed some rezone criteria, requiring that the proponents of a rezone must 
establish that conditions have substantially changed since the original showing 
and that the rezone must bear a substantial relationship to the public health, 
safety, morals or welfare. See Ahmann-Yamane, LLC v. Tabler, 105 Wn. App. 
103, 111 (2001). If a rezone implements the Comprehensive Plan, a showing that 
a change of circumstances has occurred is not required.  Id. at 112.   
 
The proposed rezone clearly meets the judicial criteria for a rezone. There is no 
question that the proposal is necessary to implement the Comprehensive Plan, 
as the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map designation for the property is 
currently Industrial and General Commercial and the current NMU and LI zoning 
implement that designation as described in Finding of Fact IV above. In point of 
fact, approval of a rezone to an implementing zone is mandated by RCW 
36.70A.120, which requires the City’s zoning regulations to be consistent with its 
comprehensive plan. The requested rezone is to shift the balance of two of the 
implementing zones for this Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation.  
 
The rezone bears a substantial relationship to the public health, safety, morals 
and welfare because it will not result in any significant adverse impacts as 
determined in Finding of Fact No. III while providing a significant opportunity to 
reduce the impact of the Light Industrial zoning on the surrounding 
neighborhood. 

IX. Administrative Recommendation 
 

Based on the above Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the City is seeking 
a recommendation of approval from the Hearing Examiner to the City Council; 
further, staff is recommending approval of the proposed rezone (R 19-0001) 
without conditions.  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
292



 
 1Χ 

 
 
 OFFICE OF THE HEARING EXAMINER 
 
 CITY OF BUCKLEY 
 
 REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
FILE NO.:  
 

R-19-0001  
CNOSSEN REZONE 
 

APPLICANT: 
 

Buckley 8, LLC 
23035 S.E. 263rd Street 
Maple Valley, WA 98038 
 

PLANNER: Leticia Wallgren, City Planner 
 
 

SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  
 
Adjust the NMU and LI zones on a split zoned parcel by reducing the area of the LI zone 
to approximately .85 acres and increasing the NMU zoned area to approximately seven 
acres.  The parcel abuts the south side of Ryan Road within the City of Buckley. 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: Approval 
  
DATE OF RECOMMENDATION:  November 20, 2019 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
After reviewing the Planning Department Staff Report and examining available information 
on file with the application, the Examiner conducted a public hearing on the request as 
follows: 
 
The hearing was opened on November 12, 2019, at 3:00 p.m. 
 
Parties wishing to testify were sworn in by the Examiner. 
 
The following exhibits were submitted and made a part of the record as follows: 
 
EXHIBIT "A" - Planning Department Staff Report  
EXHIBIT 1 - Rezone Application 
EXHIBIT 2 - Authorization to Rezone 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
293



 
 2Χ 

EXHIBIT 3 - Narrative 
EXHIBIT 4 - Rezone Plan Sheets 
EXHIBIT 5 - Title Report 
EXHIBIT 6 - Critical Areas Assessment Report 
EXHIBIT 7 - Geotechnical Report 
EXHIBIT 8 - SEPA Checklist 
EXHIBIT 9 - Public Comment Letter from Doug Weston 
EXHIBIT 10 - Public Comment Submittal from Connie Bender 
EXHIBIT 11 - Email dated November 20, 2019 re: Notices 
 
The Minutes of the Public Hearing set forth below are not the official record and are 
provided for the convenience of the parties.  The official record is the recording of 
the hearing that can be transcribed for purposes of appeal. 
 
EMILY TERRELL, consultant planner, appeared, presented the Planning Department Staff 
Report, and testified that the parcel is split zoned with NMU in the south and LI in the north. 
The comprehensive plan designates the parcel for industrial and light commercial uses.  
The applicant desires to reduce the Light Industrial zone from four acres to .85 acres and 
increase the NMU zone from four to 7.1 acres.  A Category III wetland impacts the 
southern extension of the parcel and requires a 100 foot wide buffer.  The LI zone is 
compatible with commercial uses.  If subdivided in accordance with the revised zoning, 
both lots will meet size requirements.  Abutting uses are limited to vacant parcels or single-
family dwellings.  She received one comment from a resident on Tanner Street who 
asserted that the residential and LI uses are not compatible.  The applicant is not 
requesting a zone reclassification to a new zone, but a shift in the line separating existing 
zones.  She sees no significant impacts and believes there would be more compatibility 
with the new zoning.  The LI is not compatible with the residential uses in the area.  The 
proposal complies with the comprehensive plan as the plan specifies no implementing 
zones for its designations.  The zone classifications were adopted along with the 
comprehensive plan.  The code requires staff to make a recommendation to the Hearing 
Examiner who in turn makes a recommendation to the City Council as approval of the zone 
reclassification.  The code contains no criteria for a rezone.  Since the code contains no 
criteria, she applied the general criteria of health, safety, and welfare and looked at the 
comprehensive plan.  An existing commercial enterprise abuts the west property line and is 
probably the reason for the LI zone classification.  The industrial zones are meant to be 
along arterial roads and this LI zone is an anomaly sitting where it is.  However, .5 acres 
would allow a reasonable LI use in a residential neighborhood. 
 
PHIL KITZES appeared and testified that he has had a number of meetings with the City.  
He originally proposed the LI zone in the rear of the property as he felt like LI was not 
compatible with the residential uses to the north and east.  However, the City told him that 
such would not work.  The owner of the property to the east approached him for a possible 
joint enterprise and he developed a new site plan with a new road.  The road will 
accommodate proposed uses to the east.  The three acres to the south are not usable due 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
294



 
 3Χ 

to the wetland and the necessary storm drainage pond.  They are trying to keep things 
consistent. The LI zoning on the two parcels is actually a spot zone.  The LI is not located 
in a good spot.  Uses allowed in the LI zone would have a lot of bad impacts to the 
neighborhood.  It is more of a residential-commercial area.  The City really has no desire to 
attract industrial uses, and he is looking at what is feasible and marketable.  It is a hard 
space.  It is away from a main highway and not appropriate for either manufacturing or light 
industrial.  He is giving away an area zoned LI.  The residential uses on this site would be 
developed as affordable housing.  He does not anticipate apartments, but something like 
attached condominiums.  He has worked in locating the east-west road with the neighbor to 
the east.  He hopes the LI use near Ryan Road will be compatible and noted buffering and 
other requirements.  The LI zone on both of these parcels does not make any sense. 
 
CONNIE BENDER appeared and testified that she resides on Ryan Road.  Changing the 
zone to NMU will cause future uses to become non-compatible with the property to the 
west.  The City only has a small number of properties in the LI zone, and single-family 
residences do not take care of the funding needs of the City.  Housing is not an issue in 
Buckley.  They have enough housing, but they do not have enough commercial.  To lose 
that much LI zoned property is not good.  They will lose three-quarters of the site.  The Use 
Table that she has attached with her submittal shows what can be built in LI and NMU.  
Many uses are allowed in both zones.  The City and State have mitigation requirements, so 
an LI use should not have bad impacts.  Only small businesses could locate there.  The 
business to the west has existed for a long time and is now doing very well.  They are 
hiring and have increased their production.  The NMU provides a nice buffer for LI uses.  
The use to the west means that the LI uses on the present property will create no issues.  
Residential properties across the street have sold, and the owners had no problem or 
difficulty in selling them.  LI uses could be consistent with the neighborhood.  The site is 
proper for smaller uses.  The zoning of one parcel from LI to NMU is inconsistent, as the 
same zones abutting each other is better.  Furthermore, the wetland and pond provide a 
buffer to the south.  Again, the City has very little LI zoned property, and of that, 
approximately 75 percent is already in use.  Little is left.  The health, safety, welfare criteria 
does not consider just the residents of the area, but also considers the City as a whole.  
Industrial uses will give the City consistent income, which it just does not have now.   
 
MR. KITZES reappeared and testified even if a buffer is installed, they will have a single-
family zone abutting LI which is not compatible.  If we look across the board, LI zones are 
along corridors, not in residential areas.  A one acre LI use is compatible with the 
neighbors.  They are losing three acres of LI, but are providing more compatible uses with 
properties in all directions.  It is tough to develop a parcel with two zones.  He has 
performed all of the studies and found that no appetite exists in the area for the LI zone 
and its uses.  They have a specific plan. 
 
MS. TERRELL reappeared, referred to Ms. Bender’s Exhibit 10, and noted that the parcel 
is not within the GC zone classification as shown in the chart.  It is LI and NMU.  Thus, 
uses circled in GC do not apply. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
295



 
 4Χ 

 
No one spoke further in this matter and the Hearing Examiner took the matter under 
advisement. The hearing was concluded at 3:42 p.m. 
 
NOTE: A complete record of this hearing is available in the office of the City of 

Buckley Planning Department. 
 
FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS, AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
1. The Hearing Examiner has admitted documentary evidence into the record, heard 

testimony, and taken this matter under advisement. 
 
2. This rezone application is exempt from review pursuant to the State 

Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) in accordance with Section 197-11-800(6)(c) of 
the Washington Administrative Code (WAC).   

 
3. The City provided proper notice pursuant to the Buckley Municipal Code. 
 
4. The applicant, Buckley 8, LLC, has a possessory ownership interest in an 

unimproved, rectangular, 7.95 acre parcel of property extending between the south 
side of Ryan Road at the north property line and the north side of Tanner Avenue at 
the south property line.  The parcel is on the opposite side of Ryan Road from a 
built-out, single-family residential subdivision and southeast of the Church of Jesus 
Christ of Latter Day Saints. 

 
5. The north half (four acres) of the parcel is located within the Light Industrial (LI) 

zone classification of the Buckley Municipal Code (BMC).  The south half of the site 
(four acres) is located within the Neighborhood Mixed Use (NMU) zone classification 
of the BMC.  The applicant requests a zone reclassification (adjustment) to allow 
extension of the NMU zone north to approximately 140 feet from Ryan Road.  If 
granted, approximately .85 acres adjacent to Ryan Road will remain in the LI 
classification while the balance of the site (7.1 acres) will be located within the NMU 
classification.  

 
6. A Category III wetland that requires a 100 foot wide buffer is located at the south 

end of the property.  In addition, any development of the site will require a storm 
drainage pond adjacent to the northern wetland buffer.  According to the applicant’s 
rendition of potential uses on the site, the wetland/storm tract will impact 
approximately three acres.  Thus, with or without the zone reclassification, the NMU 
area of the parcel is significantly impacted.  Without the zone adjustment, the parcel 
contains approximately one usable acre of NMU area.  With the adjustment, the 
parcel would contain approximately four, usable, NMU acres and .85 usable LI 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
296



 
 5Χ 

acres.  The entire parcel is located within the Industrial and General Commercial 
land use designation of the City of Buckley Comprehensive Plan. 

 
7. Parcels to the north across Ryan Road are located in the Residential-6,000 (R-

6,000) zone classification and improved with single-family residential homes in a 
built-out subdivision.  Said parcels are located within the Urban Low Density (ULD) 
designation of the Comprehensive Plan.  Parcels to the south across Tanner Road 
remain unimproved and are located in the R-8,000 zone and the ULD designation.  
The abutting parcel to the east is also located in the R-8,000 zone and the ULD 
designation and improved with a single-family residential dwelling.  The abutting 
parcel to the west is also split zoned the same as the applicant’s parcel with NMU 
on the south half and LI on the north half.  The comprehensive plan designation is 
also the same as the applicant’s, Industrial and General Commercial.  However, 
while the parcel to the west is improved with a single-family residential home, it also 
supports a business that according to testimony is hiring and expanding. 

 
8. The applicant and the property owner to the east have entered discussions 

regarding development of their parcels to the extent that the applicant proposes an 
east-west, City street between the storm drainage pond and future development to 
the north.  The road would extend across the applicant’s parcel to the abutting 
parcels to the east and west.  The applicant proposes affordable housing in the 
nature of condominiums in the NMU portion of the site and a future, compatible, 
light industrial use on the LI parcel adjacent to Ryan Road.  Such use is yet to be 
determined.   

 
9. Section 19.20.050(1)(a) BMC sets forth the purpose of the NMU zone classification 

as follows: 
 

a. The primary purpose is to allow development of small commercial 
businesses in residential neighborhoods (such as neighborhood 
grocery stores or convenience stores), especially residential above 
ground floor commercial per the Buckley Comprehensive Plan.   

 
 Section 19.20.100(1) BMC sets forth the purpose of the LI zone classification as 

follows: 
 

(1) Purpose Statement.  The LI zone is intended to be compatible with 
the GC zone, have easy access from arterials, have business uses 
that by their nature have a higher level of noise and/or possible use of 
hazardous materials, and include industrial uses, the most intense 
commercial uses, and light manufacturing, such as metal working.  
This zone is not conducive to residential development.   

 
According to the zoning map shown on Figure 3 on page 6 of the Staff Report, the 
applicant’s parcel is abutted by residentially zoned parcels to the north, east, and 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
297



 
 6Χ 

south.  An identically, split zone parcel (NMU and LI) abuts the applicant’s parcel to 
the west.  However, the parcel to the west is likewise abutted on the north, west, 
and south by residentially zoned parcels.  Thus, the applicant’s parcel and the 
abutting parcel to the west are the only LI zoned parcels in the area and are 
surrounded by residentially zoned parcels with the exception of the NMU portion of 
said parcels to the south.  However, uses authorized in the NMU zone are 
considered compatible with residential neighborhoods. 

 
10. Based upon the above, an LI use on either the applicant’s parcel or the abutting 

parcel to the west could introduce uses “nonconductive to residential development”. 
The applicant’s proposal to reduce the LI zoned area of the parcel to approximately 
.85 acres at a location adjacent to Ryan Road is not only consistent with the zoning 
of adjacent parcels, but is also consistent with existing uses.  Uses in the NMU 
classification are “small, commercial businesses” consistent with residential 
neighborhoods.   

 
11. Furthermore, as the applicant testified, LI zoned parcels surrounded by residential 

uses and zones could create a “spot zone” that is considered “an evil in the field of 
municipal growth”.  Our Washington Supreme Court in Pierce v. King County, 62 
Wn. 2d 324 (1963) held: 

 
“Spot zoning is an attempt to wrench a single lot from its environment 
and give it a new rating that disturbs the tenor of the neighborhood, 
and which affects only the use of a particular piece of property or a 
small group of adjoining properties and is not related to the general 
plan for the community as a whole, but is primarily for the private 
interest of the owner of the property so zoned; and it is the very 
antithesis of planned zoning…62 Wn. 2d 324 @ 338 

 
 In the present case Section 19.20.100(1) BMC recognizes that authorized uses in 

the LI zone “is not conducive to residential development”, and that such uses should 
have easy access from arterials, which the applicant’s parcel does not have.   

 
12. While it may be true that the City does not have sufficient LI zoned properties to 

attract heavy commercial and light industrial uses, allowing such uses on the 
present parcel could adversely impact the existing, residential neighborhood.  The 
City Council could evaluate the zoning of parcels in those areas that meet the 
purpose of the LI classification to see if zone reclassifications are appropriate.  
Councilmember Bender’s concerns regarding the overall loss of LI zoned property is 
better considered on a Citywide basis as opposed to focusing on the applicant’s 
parcel individually. 

 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
298



 
 7Χ 

 
CONCLUSIONS: 
 
1. The Hearing Examiner has the jurisdiction to consider and make a recommendation 

on the issues presented by this request. 
 
2. The applicant’s request for expanding the area of the NMU zone classification and 

decreasing the area of the LI zone classification on its parcel is consistent with the 
zoning of the area, uses in the area, and with the purpose of both the NMU and LI 
zone classifications as set forth in the BMC.  Therefore, the zone reclassification 
should be approved.  

  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is hereby recommended that the Buckley City Council grant the applicant’s request for a 
zone reclassification for its Parcel Number 619105002 abutting the south side of Ryan 
Road. 
 
ORDERED this 20th day of November, 2019. 
 

_____________________________________ 
STEPHEN K. CAUSSEAUX, JR. 
Hearing Examiner 

  
TRANSMITTED this 20th day of November, 2019, to the following: 
 
APPLICANT: Buckley 8 LLC 

20035 S.E. 263rd Street 
Maple Valley, WA 98038 
 

OTHERS: 
 
Connie Bender 
1915 Ryan Road 
Buckley, WA 98321 

 

  
CITY OF BUCKLEY 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
299



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 1 
 

CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ - 19 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON, 
CONCERNING A PORTION OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT AN 
UNADDRESSED PARCEL ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF RYAN ROAD 
(PARCEL NUMBER 0619105002); TO ALLOW A REZONE THAT 
RECONFIGURES THE ZONING DESIGNATION RESULTING IN 
AN INCREASED AREA OF NEIGHBORHOOD MIXED USE ZONE 
AND DECREASED AREA OF LIGHT INDUSTRIAL ZONE ON THIS 
SPLIT-ZONED PARCEL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the current City Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan allows for various zones within each Comprehensive Plan 

district; and 
 
WHEREAS, the subject parcel is designated Industrial and General Commercial by the City 

Comprehensive Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, both Light Industrial and Neighborhood Mixed Use are implementing zones within 

the IGC Comprehensive Plan designation; and  
 
WHEREAS, the subject 7.95-acre unaddressed property located on the south side of Ryan Road 

(Parcel #0619105002) is currently zoned Neighborhood Mixed Use (NMU) on the southern half (~4 
acres) of the parcel and Light Industrial (LI) on the northern half (~ 4 acres) adjacent to Ryan Road; and  

 
WHEREAS, the buildable area of the parcel is impacted by the presence of a Category III 

wetland with a regulatory 100-foot buffer and the necessity for roadway and stormwater infrastructure 
which limits the amount of the NMU portion of the site available for development; and  

 
WHEREAS, the NMU zone is intended to allow for mixed residential and the development of 

small commercial businesses in residential neighborhoods; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the LI zone is intended to be compatible with the General Commercial (GC) zone, 

have easy access from arterials, and is intended for business uses that by their nature have a higher level 
of noise and/or possible use of hazardous materials, and include industrial uses, the most intense 
commercial uses, and light manufacturing, such as metal working; and 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
300



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan recognizes the LI zone is not conducive to residential 
development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the surrounding land is mostly zoned low-density residential except for two parcels 

adjacent to the west; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant is not requesting a change in the base zones on the subject property, 

but rather a reorientation of the amount of each zone such that the LI portion will be 0.81 acres and the 
balance will be NMU; and 

 
WHEREAS, both of the requested zoning areas exceed the minimum space requirements for an 

individual parcel within the respective zones; and  
 

WHEREAS, any current and future use of the property must comply with the City’s zoning code; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, minimizing the LI zone and increasing the developable portion of the NMU zone 

will improve this parcel’s compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood as it transitions to low 
intensity single-family uses; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City provided proper notice of this application and the public hearing pursuant 

to the Buckley Municipal Code; and  
 

WHEREAS, this rezone is exempt from State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) review pursuant 
to WAC 197-11-800(6)(c); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Hearing Examiner conducted a public hearing on this proposal on November 

12, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Hearing Examiner recommended, on November 20, 2019, that Buckley City 
Council grant the applicant’s request for a rezone; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the applicant’s request for a rezone is consistent with the 
goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and the Buckley Municipal Code and is granted; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, 

WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The attached staff report serves as findings of fact and conclusions. 
 
Section 2. The subject property on the south side of Ryan Road, parcel #0619105002 is 

hereby rezoned to increase the area of Neighborhood Mixed Use and decrease the area of Light Industrial, 
in accordance with land areas reflected in the applicant’s proposal.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
301



Ordinance No. ____-19 Page 3 
 

 
Section 3. Staff is authorized to change the 2015 zoning map to reflect this change. 
 
Section 4. Copy to the Department of Commerce. Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106, the City 

Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to provide a copy of this ordinance to the State 
Department of Commerce within 10 days of adoption. 

 
Section 5.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should 

be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this ordinance. 

 
Section 6. Effective date. This ordinance or a summary thereof consisting of the title shall 

be published in the official newspaper of the city, and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days 
after publication. 

 
APPROVED by the Buckley City Council this 26th day of November 2019. 

 
_______________________                                             
Mayor Pat Johnson      

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________                                         
Treva Percival, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________                                    
Phil Olbrechts, City Attorney                                                                                    

PUBLISHED: ___________ 
EFFECTIVE:  ___________ 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
302



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: November 26, 2019       AB19-121 
 
Cancellation of December 24, 2019, 
Council Meeting 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney  – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Treva Percival X X 
Finance Dept  – Saundra Groshong   
Building Official – Mike Deadmond   

 Fire Dept – Chief Predmore   
Cost Impact:  N/A Parks & Rec Dept – Kevin Caviezel   
Fund Source:  N/A Planning Dept – Leticia Wallgren   
Timeline:  N/A Police Dept – Chief Arsanto   
 Municipal Court – Jessica Cash   
  PW/Utilities – Chris Banks   
Attachments: None       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Cancellation of the 2nd City Council meeting of the month in December due 
to holiday scheduling and lack of business. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: City Council 11/10/2019 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to Cancel the 2nd Council Meeting in 
December 2019. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
303



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
304



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

E. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
City Council Agenda Packet 11/26/19

 
305


	1. City Council Agenda 11-26-2019 (Website Agenda Packet)
	2. CITY OF BUCKLEY MEETING LIST
	3. November - 2019
	November 2019     

	4. December - 2019
	     December 2019              

	5. A. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	6. Citizen Participation - Jeff Fetter
	7. Citizen Participation - Marvin Sundstrom
	8. B. STAFF REPORTS
	9. C. MAIN AGENDA
	10. Agenda Bill 19-115 (Public Hearing Comp Plan Elements 7 and 8)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	11. Memo to Mayor  Council - Comp Plan Elements 7  8 - Changes
	12. Comp Plan E-7 - Utilities Element (Final to Council) - tracked
	I. Purpose of the Utilities Element
	Urban Growth Area
	Federal and State Laws and Regulations
	Revised Codes of Washington and Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission
	Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
	Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978
	Northwest Power Planning Council
	1991 Clean Air Amendments


	II. Inventory and analysis
	Inventory
	City-Owned Utilities
	Privately- or County-Owned Utilities


	III. water system
	Source and Supply
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Well No. 2
	Well No. 3
	Well No. 4
	Well No. 1 (Naches Street Well)
	Well No. 5 (Rainier School Well
	Well No. 6 (Trail Well No. 1)
	Well No. 7 (Trail Well No. 2)
	Well System Operations

	Forecast of Future Needs

	Treatment
	Level of Service
	Inventory System
	Forecast of Future Needs

	Storage
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Proposed Locations and Future Needs

	Transmission and Distribution System
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Proposed Locations and Future Needs


	IV. sewage collection and treatment
	Collection System
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Proposed Location and Future Needs

	Area Lift Stations
	Completion of Sanitary Sewer System Rehabilitation
	Treatment System
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Treatment System Improvements


	V. Stormwater Collection and Treatment
	Treatment
	Level of Service

	Collection
	Level of Service
	System Inventory
	Proposed Locations and Future Needs


	VI. Other Utilities
	Natural Gas Utility
	Electrical Utilities
	Telecommunication Utilities
	Solid Waste Collection

	VII. Goals, Objectives, and Policies and Consistency with County-Wide Policies
	Plan for Future Utilities
	Vision Statement and Comprehensive Plan Goals
	Utility Goals
	General Utility Policies
	Policy U-1
	Policy U-2
	Policy U-3
	Policy U-4
	Policy U-5
	Policy U-6
	Policy U-7
	Policy U-8
	Policy U-9
	Policy U-10
	Policy U-11
	Policy U-12
	Policy U-13
	Policy U-14
	Policy U-15
	Policy U-16
	Policy U-17
	Policy U-18
	Policy U-19
	Policy U-20

	Water Utility Policies
	Policy W-1
	Policy W-2
	Policy W-3
	Policy W-4
	Policy W-5
	Policy W-6
	Policy W-7

	Sewer System Policies
	Policy S-1
	Policy S-2
	Policy S-3

	Storm and Surface Water Drainage Utility Policies
	Policy D-1
	Policy D-2

	Hazardous Waste Policies
	Policy H-1
	Policy H-2
	Policy H-3
	Policy H-4
	Policy H-5

	Solid Waste Policies
	Policy SW-1
	Policy SW-2
	Policy SW-3
	Policy SW-4
	Policy SW-5
	Policy SW-6
	Policy SW-7

	Relationship to Growth Management Plans and Requirements
	Pierce County Comprehensive Plan
	Countywide Planning Policies




	12a.
	13. Comp Plan E-8 - Capital Facilities (Final to Council) - tracked
	I. Introduction
	Purpose of the Capital Facilities Element
	Urban Growth Area

	II. Municipal Facilities
	Existing Facilities
	City Hall Building
	Multi-Purpose Center
	Public Works Facilities
	Youth Center
	Fire Station
	Police Station


	III. 2018 Municipal Facility Evaluation
	Table CF-1 6- and 20-year needs
	Building Evaluations
	City Hall Building
	Multi-Purpose Center
	Building/Planning
	Municipal Court
	Senior Center
	Council/Court Room
	Youth Center
	Public Works Facilities
	Police Department Services
	Future Demand
	Buckley Police Department Future Needs
	Table CF-2  Projected Additions to Police Department Staff
	Table CF-3 Police Department needs
	Fire & EMS Services
	Chart CF-2, Population & Call Volume History
	Forecast Projected Needs
	Facilities
	Table CF-4  Fire Department Apparatus/Equipment
	Table CF-5 Fire Department Personnel
	Level-of-Service Standards
	Fire Services
	Parks
	Potable Water
	Sanitary Sewer
	Storm and Surface Water Drainage
	Transportation:


	IV. Water System
	Introduction
	Source and Supply
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Well No. 2
	Well No. 3
	Well No. 4
	Well No. 1 (Naches Street Well)
	Well No. 5 (Rainier School Well
	Well No. 6 (Trail Well No. 1)
	Well No. 7 (Trail Well No. 2)
	Well System Operations

	Forecast of Future Needs

	Treatment
	Level of Service
	Inventory System
	Forecast of Future Needs

	Storage
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Proposed Locations and Future Needs

	Transmission and Distribution System
	Level of Service
	Inventory of System
	Proposed Locations and Future Needs

	Capital improvement plan
	Source and Supply Projects
	Table CF-6 Source and Supply Water Projects
	Water Treatment Projects
	Table CF-7   Treatment System Improvements
	Water Storage Projects
	Table CF-8 Storage Projects
	Transmission Main Projects
	Table CF-9 Transmission Main Projects
	Distribution Main Projects
	Table CF-10 Distribution Main Projects

	Recommended Financing plan
	Table CF-11 Monthly Water System Rates – Base Charge for 200 cubic feet


	V. sewage collection and treatment
	Collection System
	Level of Service-+
	Inventory of System
	Table CF-12 Collection System Inventory
	Proposed Location and Future Needs

	Area Lift Stations
	Completion of Sanitary Sewer System Rehabilitation
	Treatment System
	Level of Service
	Table CF-13 NPDES Permit Limits
	Inventory of System
	Treatment System Improvements

	Capital improvement plan
	Collection System
	Table CF-14 Gravity Sewer and Trunk Sewer Projects
	Lift Station and Force Main Projects
	Table CF-15 Lift Station and Force Main Projects
	Treatment Plant Improvements
	Table CF-16 Treatment Plant Improvements

	Recommended Financing plan

	VI. Stormwater Collection and Treatment
	Treatment
	Level of Service

	Collection
	Level of Service
	System Inventory
	Proposed Locations and Future Needs

	Capital improvement plan
	Stormwater System
	Table CF-17 Stormwater Projects

	Recommended Financing plan

	VII. other utilities
	Natural Gas Utility
	Electrical Utilities
	Telecommunication Utilities
	Solid Waste Collection
	Transportation
	Table CF-18 6-year Transportation Improvement Plan (2020 – 2025)

	Parks and Recreation
	Level of Service
	Table CF-19 Parks & Recreation LOS Standards
	Inventory of System
	Table CF-20 Existing Inventory of Facilities
	Facility Needs
	Table CF-21 Parks and Recreation Facility Needs

	Capital improvement plan
	Parks and Recreation
	Table CF-22 Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement Schedule

	Recommended Financing plan
	Table CF-23 Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement Funding Sources

	Municipal Facilities
	Table CF-24 Public Facilities Projects

	Fire Protection Facilities
	Police Protection
	Police Facilities


	VIII. General City Finance
	Table CF-25 Distribution of City Revenues Available for Current Expenses
	Intergovernmental Funding
	Table CF-26  Intergovernmental Assistance for the Years 2012 to 2014

	Capital Funds
	Table CF-27 City of Buckley Capital Funds Sources for the Years 2012 to 2014
	Table CF-28 Current 2018 Balance in the Major Capital Improvement Enterprise Funds

	City-Owned Utilities
	Table CF-29 City-Owned Utilities – Water, Sewer, Storm Revenue Generated

	Potential Sources of Additional Revenues/Funding Capacity
	Real Estate Excise Tax (REET)
	B&O Tax on General Business
	B&O Tax on Utilities
	Table CF-30 Current Utility and B&O Rates
	Formation of Local Improvement District (LID)
	Transportation Benefit Districts
	Transportation Improvement Board

	Plan of Finance, Capital Facilities Finance Strategy
	Expanded Revenue Base
	Adjust Utility Rate Structure

	New Revenue Sources
	Impact Fees
	Local Improvement Districts




	14. Agenda Bill 19-116 (ORD No. _____-19 Adopting the 2020 Budget)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	15. ORD No. _____-19 (2020 Budget Adoption)
	16. 2020 Budget Document (for Adoption) - Complete
	2020 Budget Document (for Adoption)
	Mayor
	Patricia Johnson
	MAYOR’S MESSAGE 2020
	2020 BUDGET PROJECTIONS
	2020 DEPARTMENTAL SUMMARY
	ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE
	LAW ENFORCEMENT

	FIRE & EMS
	BUILDING & PLANNING
	UTILITY/ENTERPRISE SERVICES
	UTILITY RESERVES
	CONCLUSION





	2020 Budget Document (for Adoption) - Appendixes
	Appendix A - 2020 Citywide Proposed Salaries (complete)
	Appendix A - Cover
	Appendix A - 2020 Citywide Proposed Salaries
	Salary


	Appendix B - 2020 PW & Parks FTEs (complete)
	Appendix B - Cover
	Appendix B - 2020 PW & Parks FTEs

	Appendix C - Utility Administration Cost Allocation (complete)
	Appendix C - Cover
	Appendix C - Utility Administration Cost Allocation -  page 1
	UT Allocate

	Appendix C - Utility Administration Cost Allocation -  page 2
	UT Allocate


	Appendix D - Cover
	Appendix D - 2020 City Organizational Chart
	City Organizational Chart (2020 for Budget) Revised.vsd
	Overview
	Legislative
	Judicial
	Administration
	Law Enforcement
	Public Works
	Fire


	Appendix E - 2020 Budget - Expenditures (complete)
	Appendix E - Cover
	Appendix E - 2020 Budget - Expenditures
	Exp


	Appendix F - 2020 Budget - Revenue (complete)
	Appendix F - Cover
	Appendix F - 2020 Budget - Revenue
	Rev


	Appendix G - 2020 Capital Improvement Project List (complete)
	Appendix G - Cover
	Appendix G - 2020 Capital Improvement Project List
	2020 CIP

	Appendix G - 2020 Citywide Capital Improvement Project List
	CIP




	17. Agenda Bill 19-117 (ORD No. ____-19 Adopting the 2020 City Employee Salary Scale)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	18. ORD No. ___- 19 - Adopting 2020 City Employee Salary Scale
	19. Agenda Bill 19-118 (ORD No. ____-19 Setting the 2020 Levy Amount Required for Fire Station Construction)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	20. ORD No. ___- 19 - 2020 Bond Levy Certification Fire Station
	21. Agenda Bill 19-119 (ORD No. ____-19 Authorizing the Transfer of Natural Gas Utility Surplus Funds)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	22. ORD No.  ___-19 Authorizing the Transfer of Natural Gas Utility Surplus Funds
	23. Agenda Bill 19-120 (ORD No. ____-19 Cnossen Rezone)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	24. Staff Report - Cnossen Rezone Recommendation R 19-0001 FINAL - Copy
	INTRODUCTION
	EXHIBITS

	FINDINGS OF FACT
	I. Proposal Description
	II. Site Description, Zoning & Land Use Context
	A. Site Description
	B. Zoning
	C. Land Use Context
	D. Public Comment

	III. Adverse Impacts
	IV. Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan
	CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
	VI. Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Designations.
	VII. State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA)
	VIII. Case Law Review Criteria and Application.
	IX. Administrative Recommendation

	25. HE Report  Recommendation - Cnossen Rezone
	26. ORD No. ___-19 Cnossen Rezone
	27. Agenda Bill 19-121 (Cancelling December 24 Council Meeting)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	28. D. CONSENT AGENDA
	29. E. COMMITTEE REPORTS


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


	Agenda Home: 


